STATE OF VERMONT
GREEN MOUNTAIN CARE BOARI)

IN RE: PROPOSED PURCHASE OF
BIRCHWOOD TERRACE

)
)
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APPLICANTS' RESPONSES TO THE GREEN MOI INTAIN CARE, ROARI}'S
DECEMBER 8.2017 FIRST SET OF REOUESTS FOR INFORMATION

NOW COME the Applicants and submit the following responses to the December 8, 2017
requests for information from the Green Mountain Care Board.
1

Confirm whether any of the three proposed buyers have other personal,

professional, non-health care or health care interests under any other personal
name or business name not reflected on the Personal Financial Statements
submitted with the application. If so, revise and resubmit the Personal Financial
Statements to reflect these interests and associated assets and liabilities.
Response:

Except for the clarification set fonh in #2 below to Milton Ostreicher's Personal Financial
Statement, no other changes are necessary - as the Personal Financial Statements were otherwise
accurate. None of the three proposed individual buyers has other personal, professional, nonhealth care or health care interests under any other personal name or business name, except as
reflected on the Personal Financial Statements submitted with the application, or as hereby
amended.

2.

Revise and resubmit Mr. Ostreicher's Personal Financial Statement to reflect the
assets and liabilities associated with the other facilities in which he has interests.
Provide separate Verifications Under Oath from each of the three buyers to
accompany their Personal Financial Statements.

Response:

Applicants will be submitting a revised Attachment 22 under separate cover as a confidential
document. This is Mr. Ostreicher's updated Personal Financial Statement with an accompanying
verification for the same. Verifications Under Oath will be submitted with that same submission
for the Personal Financial Statements of Messrs. Rubin and Erlichman.

3.

Provide the annual fee the current owner of Birchwood Terrace pays to Ventas
Realty, LP to lease the property on which the facility is built, the annual fee the new
ovyners will payo and the terms of the assignment of the leasehold interest. Explain
whether and where these costs are included in the total project cost in Tab 11' Table
1; if they are not includedo explain and revise the table, if needed. Also verify
whether the annual fee is included in the projected financials in Tab 35.

Response:

The current owner of the real property (under a long term leasehold interest) is KND Real
Estate Escrow Holdings, LLC., a Delaware limited liability company ("KND") and an affiliate of
Kindred Nursing Centers East LLC, the current operator of the Facility. The land under the
Facility is divided into three parcels that are addressed in two leases. The duration and rental
terms of the leases are as follows:
Ground Lease Term:
Lease A (two parcels): commenced on July 5 1963 and expires on June 30,2062
Lease B (one parcel): commenced on July 5 1963 and expires on June 30,2062
Ground Lease Rent:
Lease
Lease

A: $1,800.00 per annum payable in one installment on January 15th of each year
B: $200.00 per annum payable in one installment on January l5th of each year

The Applicants have been informed that, on December 21,2017, Ventas L.P., the previous
owner of the leasehold interest, assigned its rights under the Facility's ground lease to KND.
KND currently leases the property to Kindred Nursing Centers East LLC which is the current
licensed operator of the Facility. Except for the change to the lessee entity (Ventas L.P. to KND),
there were no other changes to the terms of the current leases. At closing, KND will assign its
leasehold interests to the Applicants who will pay the same arìnual rent for the duration of the
leasehold terms. Attachment 11, Table I and Attachment 35 have been updated to reflect these
rent payments.

The Applicants are in negotiations with the ground lessor for an extension of the term of the
ground lease, but have not finalized the same. If and when such terms are finalized, the
Applicants will update the Board.

4.

Explain whether any of the three proposed buyers also manage or have
management agreements with any other facilities. If yeso provide the name and
address of each facility.

Response:

The proposed buyers do not manage or have management agreements with any other facilities
except those indicated in the Revised Certificate of Need Narrative.
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Explain what funding options, other than the financing by HHC Finance at a 7.24o/"
interest rate, were explored by the applicants and why they were not selected.
Response:

The Applicants reached out to numerous financing sources before selecting their term sheet, as
discussed below. However, as the Applicants will only own a leasehold interest, as the Facility
leases the land via a ground lease, many banks are hesitant to provide financing. Additionally,
the relatively small size of the loan limited the financing options as well. The Applicants will
continue to explore the potential for more favorable financing options and will inform the
GMCB if they are successful.

As set forth in the Revised Certihcate of Need Narrative, the Applicants have recently secured a
new term sheet from Customers Bank ("Customers"), submitted herewith and as Attachment 34
to the Revised Certifîcate of Need Narrative. Customers has agreed to finance the proposed
transaction with an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.25o/o, which, at the time of the projections,
equated fo 4.8lYo.

6.

Identify the contingency plan if HHC Finance does not provide the loan you âre
seeking. Fully explain the financial stability of the facilify if the applicants cannot
obtain HUD financing in five years when payments balloon.

Response:

Customers (the Applicants have secured a new term sheet from Customers) does not fund the
loan at closing and the Applicants are not able to procure an alternative lender, the Applicants
will fund the purchase price with cash. Although the Applicants intend to refinance their loan via
HUD financing, the Applicants will obtain a traditional loan if necessary. Due to the relatively
small size of the loan in comparison to the projected income of the Facility, the Applicants do
not anticipate this being an issue. Moreover, the projected income of the Facility can easily fund
the debt service on either type of loan.

If

7

Provide the documents withheld in Attachments 32 (Operations Transfer
Agreement) and 33 (Amended and Restated Assignment and Assumption

Agreement). The Board's review of the project cannot be completed without these
documents.
Response:

Copies of the Operations Transfer Agreement and the Amended and Restated Assignment and
Assumption Agreement are submitted herewith and as Attachments 32 and 33, respectively, to
the Revised Certificate ofNeed Application.
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8.

Provide Ð readable e-copy and readable hard copy

of the 2017 actuals

in

Attachment 15.
Response:

The Applicants have replaced Attachments 13. 14 and 15, with audited financials for the years
in question.

9

Revise Attachments 25-28 to cover the most recent 6-month period for Achieve
Rehabilitation and Nursing Center (Achieve), Beacon Nursing and Rehabilitation
(Beacon), Highland Care Center (Highland) and Birchwood.

Response:

26-27- and 28 are submitted herewith and have been revised to include the
Attachments
most recent 6-month period for Achieve Rehabilitation and Nursing Center (Achieve), Beacon
Nursing and Rehabilitation (Beacon), Highland Care Center (Highland), and Birchwood.

10.

Explain the reasons for low CMS star ratings for Overall StaffÏng and Rf{ Staffing
at Achieve, Beacon and Highland.

Response:

Importantly, and as set forth in the Revised CON Narrative, the Applicants do not anticipate
making any material staffing changes at the Facility. The Applicants are committed to raising the
overall quality of care at the Facility and, after consultation with the current administrator, feel
that the current staffing levels are appropriate for the resident population at the facility.
In regards to the star ratings for staffing at Achieve, Beacon and Highland, the Applicants do not
believe that this category properly reflects the quality of care that is delivered at these facilities.
As set forth in the star ratings data, these facilities score between 3 and 5 stars for Health
Inspection and Quality of Care; clearly indicating a sufficient level of staffing to ensure the
delivery of stellar care to their respective resident populations. Moreover and as indicated
through their surveys, these facilities have had excellent annual surveys including deficiency free
surveys.
Instead, these facilities might have received lower staffing scores due to the fact that they service
a higher acuity resident population than most facilities; leading to a less accurate analysis due to
CMS's current scoring methodology for this category. The Applicants also believe that the low
scores may be due to the fact that the staffing ratings are currently based on self-reported data
not always accurately reported by some facilities as opposed to the Applicants' related facilities
which always reported their data accurately. Indeed, CMS has announced plans to modifu their
current methodology and reporting structure partially in response to the foregoing.
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11.

Provide detailed information, implementation timeline and costs (including the costs
and whether and where such costs are included in budget and staffing projections)'
for each of the following facility improvements and program expansions:
a.

expanded programs

for behavioral health, renal failure and parenteral

nutrition;
b.

expanded on-site psychological services;

c.

more aggressive program for the Alzheimer Unit; and

d.

revised admission policy to accept residents now ineligible for admission.

Response:

As mentioned in the CON narrative, our goal is to do whatever is necessary to raise the quality of
care in the Facility leading to positive outcomes and satisfied residents and family members.
This may include the implementation of new initiatives (like those mentioned in a-d above) and
the hiring of additional and appropriate qualified staff to support the same. However, because we
are not yet at the Facility, we have not been able to conduct a proper analysis of which of these
are necessary and feasible to implement at the Facility. Accordingly, we did not include the cost
of implementation of these services in our financial projections. Still, based on our current
projections, the Facility profits should allow us to roll out these andlor other initiatives at the
Facility.
Based on preliminary consultations with the Facility, we have provided below some more detail
on the above-mentioned initiatives and why we specifically included these as potential areas we
focused on for the Facility.

Behavioral/Mental Health: This is the third most significant diagnosis in the facility. As such, we
need to ensure that the Facility is able to provide these residents with the highest level of care. If
necessary and feasible, we will expand the current program to include additional onsite services
andlor tele-medicine.
Renal: The Facility currently services a high volume of dialysis patients (approx. 6-8), despite
the cost of transportation to off-site dialysis centers ($70-$90/day). V/e will explore the
possibility of peritoneal dialysis. However, we will need to first ensure that all regulatory
requirements, staff education, and new policies and procedures are in place prior to
implementation.

Total Parenteral Nutrition ("TPN"): Birchwood is one of onl y two facilities in Vermont that
accept TPN patients. The Facility, however, can only admit TPN patients who are fairly stable,
as its pharmacy can only service labs twice a week (in the event formula changes are required).
The Applicants will meet with the facility's pharmacy to explore the potential to accommodate
additional TPN patients.
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Expansive Programming for the Alzheimer's Ijnit: The Applicants hope
space with better suited furniture and tactile stimulation.

to create a sensory

Revised Admission Policy: We will explore whether it is feasible for the facility to admit
bariatric residents. We will procure the necessary equipment and ensure the facility has adequate
staff to meet the needs of this population prior to admission.

12.

Explain how the applicants will achieve these facility improvements and program
expansions without adding additional staff and/or training in projected years 1-3, as
shown in Attachment 11, Table 9.

Response:

As clarified above, the above-mentioned improvements and program expansions are areas the
Applicants have begun to focus on after consultation with the Facility but because they are not
operating the Facility they are not able to complete a proper analysis of its feasibility and cannot
commit to its implementation. As such, they did not include the costs for the foregoing in their
projections.

It should be noted, however, that the costs of some of these initiatives are limited where there is
no new equipment to purchase and the only expense is the education and training of staff.
Moreover, some initiatives will even save the Facility money (on-site dialysis versus off-site will
save the facility the cost of daily transportation for these residents).

13.

Birchwood Terrace falls below the state average in L2 of 24 CMS quality measures.
See Attachment 29.In a table format, identiff the quality measures that fall below
the state average and explain how the applicants will seek to improve each, and the
timetable for improvement.

Response:
See

14.

Attachment 39
Provide the three most recent surveys conducted for Birchwood Terrace and the
Highland, Achieve and Beacon facilities.

Response:

The three most recent surveys conducted for Birchwood Terrace and the Highland, Achieve and
Beacon facilities are submitted as follows:

Birchwood, Attachment 40;
Highland, Attachment 41;
Achieve, Attachment 42; and
Beacon, Attachment 43.
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15.

Isaac Rubin's resume states that he "excels at leading 'troubled' facilities to
excellence." Provide specific information regarding his leadership experience at
other facilities, his title and the time period in which he was Ínvolved with each
facility, and the facilityns name and location.

Response:

Isaac Rubin is the Vice President

of Business Development and Managed Care lnitiatives

as

well as Corporate Director of the Delivery System Reform lncentive

Payrnent (DSRIP)
Program for a leading post-acute care provider in the Northeast. In this capacity, Mr. Rubin is at
the forefront of the rapidly evolving healthcare landscape and the national trends towards
quality and value. Mr. Rubin is driven by the belief that high quality care is not only a
provider's duty, but also an opportunity. Accordingly, Rubin appreciates the challenges of
preparing a skilled nursing facility for the post-fee-for-service environment. While quality is
by definition 'qualitative,' he understands that outcomes must be benchmarked against his
peers, and he will accept nothing short of excellence in this regard.

Rubin has leveraged high quality care to secure innovative partnerships across the care
continuum with hospitals, physicians and managed care plans. He sits at the forefront of
healthcare reform initiatives involving Accountable Care Organizations and bundled
pa¡rment programs; always leading the discussion with documented outcomes and resident
satisfaction surveys. These initiatives have driven referrals and validated his approach.
Rubin excels at leading 'troubled' facilities to excellence and has directed historically 'one
star' providers to market leading status. lndeed, many of the regional administrators from
Centers Health Care report to Rubin. He is a fixture 'on the floors' of the facilities in his
charge, and epitomizes the qualities required to succeed in the new world order of healthcare
reform. He has successfully implemented value base programs such as the BPCI Model 2, New
York State's DSRIP (Delivery System Redesign Incentive Payment) program, and
CMS's "Initiative to Reduce Avoidable Hospitalizations among Nursing Facility Residents".
These programs have helped reduce unnecessary hospitalizations and led to a better quality of
life. Additionally, while acting in his role at Centers Health Care from 2013 to the present,
Rubin helped raise the overall census at Centers Health Care affiliated facilities from
approximately 92Yo to 94Yo and the overall return to hospital rate decreased from 22Yo to 16%o.
A list of facilities that Rubin has been involved with since June 2013 is submitted as
Attachment 44.

t6.

In a table format, provide the occupancy rates for the most recent l2-month period
by month for Birchwood Terrace and for Highland, Achieve and Beacon.

Response:

The occupancy rates for the most recent l2-month period, by month, for Birchwood, Highland,
Achieve, and Beacon are submitted in Attachment 45.
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17.

Provide a copy of the admission policyo as referred to on page l0 of the application.

Response:

The current admissions policy is submitted to the Revised Certificate of Need Narrative
Attachment 46.

r8.

as

Correct the error on page 2l that references "Silverbrook Corporation" and
explain, relative to Birchwood Terrace, why no less expensive alternatives exist,
would be unsatisfactory or are not feasible or appropriate for the proposed project.

Response:

The correction has been made to the Revised Certificate of Need Narrative

19.

Provide a letter from DAIL to satisfy HRAP Standards 5.2 and 5.3.

Response:

The Applicants hope to submit such letter in the next several weeks

20.

Explain why, relative to Tabs 16 and 17, there are no members of the LLC.

Response:

The members of Birchwood Operations LLC and Birchwood Prop LLC are as set forth in the
Applicants' Revised CON Narrative. At the time the LLCs were incorporated, the respective
LLC memberships were not fi.nalized. The Vermont LLC statute does not require the Articles to
disclose who the members of an LLC are, so the Applicants have not gone back to revise the
Articles.

RlPaoe

STATE OF VERMONT
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VERIFICATION UNDER OATH
APPLICANTS' R.ESPONSES TO THE GREEN MOUNTAIN CARE BOARD'S
DECEMBER 8, 2017 REOUESTS FOR INFORMATION
Ariel Erlichman, being duly sworn, states on oath

as

follows:

1. My name is Ariel Erlichman. I have reviewed

the Applicants'Responses to the Green
Mountain Care Board's December 8,2017 Requests for Information (the "Submission").

2.

Based on my personal knowledge, after diligent inquiry, I attest that the information
contained in the Submission is true, accurate and complete, does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact, and does not omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statement made therein not misleading, except as specifically noted herein or as
otherwise specifically noted in the Submission.

3. My personal

knowledge of the truth, accuracy and completeness of the information
contained in the Submission is based upon either my actual knowledge of the subject
information or, where identified below, upon information reasonably believed by me to
be reliable and provided to me by the individuals identified below who have certified that
the information they have provided is true, accurate, and complete, does not contain any
untrue statement of a materi al fact, and does not omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statement made therein not misleading.

4.

The following certifying individuals have provided information or documents to me in
connection with the Submission, and such individuals have certified, based on their actual
knowledge of the subject information or, where specifically identified in such
certification, based on information reasonably believed by the certifying individual to be
reliable, that the information or documents provided are true, accurate and complete, do
not contain any untrue statement of a material fact, and do not omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statement made therein not misleading:

Milton Ostreicher, BIRCHWOOD PROP LLC and BIRCHWOOD OPERATIONS LLC
LLC and BIRCHWOOD OPERATIONS LLC
Andrew Bachand CPA, Tomas Depoy, Sharon Martin, Alecia DiMario LNHA.
Isaac Rubin, BIRCHWOOD PROP

5.

3183596.1

In the event that the information contained in the Submission becomes untrue, inaccurate
or incomplete in any material respect, I acknowledge my obligation to notify the Green
Mountain Care Board, and to supplement the Submission, as soon as I know, or
reasonably should know, that any information or document has become untrue,
inaccurate or incomplete in any material respect.
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VERIFICATION UNDER OATH
REVISED CERTIFICATE OF NEED NARRATIVE
Ariel Erlichman, being duly sworn, states on oath as follows:

1.

My name is Ariel Erlichman. I have reviewed the REVISED CERTIFICATE OF NEED
NARRATIVE and attachments to be filed on January 29,2018 (the "Submission").

2.

Based on my personal knowledge, after diligent inquiry, I attest that the information
contained in the Submission is true, accurate and complete, does not contain any untrue
statement of a material fact, and does not omit to state a malerial fact necessary to make
the statement made therein not misleading, except as specifically noted herein or as
otherwise specifically noted in the Submission.

3. My personal knowledge of the truth, accuracy

and completeness of the information
contained in the Submission is based upon either my actual knowledge of the subject
information or, where identified below, upon information reasonably believed by me to
be reliable and provided to me by the individuals identified below who have certified that
the information they have provided is true, accurate and complete, does not contain any
untrue statement of a materi aI fact, and does not omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statement made therein not misleading.

4.

The following certifying individuals have provided information or documents to me in
connection with the Submission, and such individuals have certified, based on their actual
knowledge of the subject information or, where specifically identified in such
certification, based on information reasonably believed by the certifying individual to be
reliable, that the information or documents provided are true, accurate and complete, do
not contain any untrue statement of a materialfact, and do not omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statement made therein not misleading:

Milton Ostreicher, BIRCHWOOD PROP LLC and BIRCHV/OOD OPERATIONS LLC
Isaac Rubin, BIRCHWOOD PROP LLC and BIRCHV/OOD OPERATIONS LLC
Andrew Bachand CPA, Tomas Depoy, Sharon Martin, Alecia DiMario LNHA.

5.

In the event that the information contained in the Submission becomes untrue, inaccurate
or incomplete in any material respect, I acknowledge my obligation to notify the Green
Mountain Care Board, and to supplement the Submission, as soon as I know, or
reasonably should know, that any information or document has become untrue,
inaccurate or incomplete in any material respect.
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NOIE: When compteting tttis table make entries in the shaded fields only
Birchwood OPerations, LLC and
Birchwood ProP, LLC
TABLE 1
PROJECT COSTS

Construction Costs

1. New Construction
2. Renovation
3. Sile Work
4. Fixed Equipment
5, Design/Bidding Contingency
6. Construction ContingencY
7. Construction Manager Fee

L

$

Other (please specify)
Suþtotal

Related Project Costs
1. Major Moveable Equipment
2. Furnishings, Fixtures & Other Equip.
3. Architectural/Engineering Fees
4. Land Acquísition
5. Purchase of Buildings
6. Administrative Expenses & Permíts
7. Ðebt Financing Expenses (see below)
8. Debt Service Reserve Fund
9. Working Capital
10. Other (please specify)
Subtotal

Total Project Costs

Total Debt Financing Expenses

300,000

3,038,785
75,000
113,421

3 527 206
$

Debt Financing Expenses
1. Capital lnterest
2. Bond Discount or Placement Fee
3. Misc. Financing Fees & Exp. (issuance costs)
4. Other
Subtotal
Less lnterest Earnings on Funds
1. Debt Service Reserve Funds
?. Capitalized lnterest Account
3, Construction Fund
4. Other
Subtotal

Ð

7

6

$

113,421

$

113,421

$

$

$

t't3,427

feeds to line 7 above
1t17 t2Q1B

Health Care Administration

{8C3F1A3F-DD48-4625-8845-74F84C587555}.xls, Table

1

NOTE: When eompleting this table make enfries in the shaded fields only.

Birchwood Operations, LLC and
Birchwood Prop, LLC
TABLE 2
DEBT FINANCING ARPÁNGEMENT, SOURCES & USES OF FUNDS

Sources of Funds

1. Financing lnstrument
a. lnterest Rate
b. Loan Period
c. Amount Financed
2. Equity Contribution
3. Other Sources
a. Working Capital
b. Fundraising
c. Grants
d. Other

4.8%
Jan

2018 To:

Dec 2023
$

2,671,428
856,178

Total Required Funds

$

3,527,206

Uses of Funds
Project Costs lfeeds kom Table 1)

1. New Construction
2. Renovation
3. Site Work
4. Fixed Equipment
5. Design/BiddingContingency
6. ConstructionContingency
7. Construction Manager Fee

$

L
L

Major Moveable Ëquipment
Furnishings, Fixtures & Other Equip
10. ArchitecturaliEngineering Fees
1 1. Land Acqulsition

12. Purchase of Euildings
13. Administrative Expenses & Permits
14. Debt Financing Expenses
15. Debt Service Reserve Fund
16. Working Capital
17. Other (please specify)

300,000

3,038,785
75,000
113,421

3,527 246

Total Uses of Funds
Total sources should equal total uses of fi¡nds.
1t1712018

Heatth Care

Administration

{8C3F1A3F-DD4B-4625-8845-74F84C587555}.xIs, Table 2

NOTE: When compteting this table make entngs in tlto shaded liolds only

Birchwood Oporations, LLC and
Birchwood Prop, LLC
TABLE 6A
RËVËNUE SOURCE PROJECTIONS
WITHOUT PROJÊCÏ

Latest Actual

ol

Budgal

%oI

2A17

Total

Total

2A

Year I

I

Proposod

Proposed

P¡oposed
t/o

o/a

ol

%ol

Year 2
20't9

Total

%ol
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3r,275

487,951

$elf Pay
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o 4'/ø

I

Free Care i 8ad Þebt

9ì

1tlvtA,

¡otv,0

,O¡Vß'

100 3%

r0tviul

{Drv/o1

,OlV/0!

ígt\tßl

f DIVÆ'

fOlVrt'

0 4ve

{flrv/ot

#D¡VIO!

folr/nt

rtrv,gl

sÐtv&'

r0ryÐ¡

IDrv/fl:

rotv¡0!

,otv¡c!
rDìv6'

.7

to%

3

S 6,836,306

10â o',.

5

6.973.03?

1cc

s

3t

5

4, I 73.527
6.940.46,1

Other

0

0l¡

tt;v!Q'

s

rÐ¡vic; s

31 67.

ct)rv/9,

I

,llf

a2 g..b

!oiv,ro'

,Ð1V/g'

,Þrvto!

oa:

S

Nst Pat¡ent Revonue
Medrcare
Med¡c¡,d

4,0s1,693

¿?¿

6.804,376

Comme¡cial

908.80 t

Sell Pay

!

F¡ee Care / Bad Dsbt

.1

16.ô9?

{64.825)

7 lJh

I

7q¡

1

.o 54

"

v,4'

$

¡orv,€,

orÂ o 7;

i

\'ti

rÞrv/91

r

nlv¡0'

ro¡v¡o'

39.230

t

7".

É1)ivÆ!

,o¡v/0¡

sôrv,€¡

(66. 1 22Ì

-0

5'1'r

,f,¡vtol

,0rv¡01

,O,Vr0'

1

other

C

Õii

oe,;i

íD1Vn:

sàiv/îr

,ÐIVð¡

DSP'

ao1lr

0t%

rotvto!

,Þtv/t1

iÕrv/0'

rÕ¡v,t, s

rÞtv¡3, s

,Dtvó'

s

12,856.937 1c. cþ

S

1

3.1

14,076

10c

ûn

5
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Birchwood Operations, LLC and
Birchwood Prop, LLC
TABLÊ 68
REVENUE SOURCÊ PROJECTIONS
PROJECT ONLY

Latesl Aclual

%ol

Budget

'/. ot

Ycal I

%of

Fropôsod
Year 2

2016

Total

2017

ïotal

2018

Trtal

?013

ProposEd

Proporod

ol
fotal

Year 3
2020

To

%ol
Tot.1l

Gross lnpôtiont Rovonua
2,591,084

Medicat¡d

¡nlvrll'

2,558,824
'r3,344,993

Ccm¡narc¡ð

r

tl?/Qr

1.204,155

à

7:/,,

1,224,294

Self Fay

øt)'i.1,

993,6S8

5

5:l

1

Free Care / U¡d Debl

I {:i?/ç;

(1{0,774)

"0

B),..

Õt¡ìet

ratv,a,

s

l,ledrcare

5

4orvi0'

c

,:,\:,i

G¡oEs Outpat¡ent Revenue
lltèÕrcare

ti),1,U'

7I1!,

17.958,867 1o.c¡!

tc.\¿,41

9

1

?:,

,007,û13
(143,524)

2,625,344

S

r3,702,5S3

8.7\ $
si't 5
'o d:r $
00, t

1,!38,425

l) lttt.

r,020.32S
(146,328)

.0

*-*

8.108,642

!'¡

ln

s

14

711'¡:

13,523,778

E

18,438,365

(

5

7

4 3:,¿

8t
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!DrV;Sì

ldedrcard

!orvr0,

tDlVio!

f

0tv/0'

,ctv/Õl
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!
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¡ûtv.;.

rClv,0!
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Sell Pay

sDlvtô

IOJVðI
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Fre€ CårÈ'8¿ó Dobt

âiiv t,

t0rv¡0r
¡Õiv,e,

0thór

,ÐlV/Ol

¿itV.a'
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g

!Diviðr

S

Gross Olher Revonúo
Medicare

Þ

tCt\lttl

341,71

1

l,ledrcard

8Ct\J )C'

Comme rcial

,D¡V;CI

83,33 I

Seff P.ry

ß:r:.f,'
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Free Çare I

tad Ocþt

dotv,0!

?.'J"

5
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431 184

)
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c0: )
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0 0ì'" t

00n

s
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o
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s
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5
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1Ð
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8S,697
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1 Á!1
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s
0 0's

ù

s
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Medrcâre

3.344,963

Mê¿¡card
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1
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(
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40.774)
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?,039.629
13.523.778
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5

¡li

1

.0 $%

15 B%

s

$'.

7)

gB0,960

r5 8Ìì,
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t2 ði,
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r

7
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1.323,1 2?

7
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3.279

:

{1,

1,026,719
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(1 4
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(14Ë,326)
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B'r'"
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s
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Ê
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B¡rchwood Operatlons, LLC and
Blrchwood ProP, LLC
TABLE 6C
REVENUE SOURCE PROJECTIONS
W]TH PROJECT

Modicâ16

Lsto3t Actu.l

%ol

2016

Total

s
r

Modica¡d

Commercial
Solf Pay
Froo Car€ I Bad oebt

s

3,287,3r 3

16

7Í

13,935.7r 3

l0

996

3,222.050

!8 7%

3,662.464

?o

1.316.857

6.8r¡
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OE
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r.164.4E3
(08,122)

59*
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S
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1,220.290
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30,662

Sell PaY

.7

94
t!6

31,273

S

6,830,306 rooot6

S

¡¡,0s1,693

tt g*

6,804,378
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8.973,032

læ.oet

3

s

4.173.327

¡r €!{

s

6,840,.t84

52 3!s

828,977
r,1 39.230

7tr
0 lil

$a.122t

1

5,307.858

$

0 01¡

Olñor

.r.9ï

g

00x

0r{

Olhsr

(6¡1.825)

(s5t.2o3)

04%

t

ôo%

Fr€€ Cår€ / 88d Debt

s

20,087.108 roo.o*
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Birchwood 0Porations, LLC and
Birchwood Prop, LLC
ÏABLE

7

UTILIZATION PROJËCTIONS
TOTALS

A:

Proposed

THOUT PROJECT
Latest Actual

8udg0t

201 6

2017

Yoar I

I

Proposod
Yoa¡ 3

Proposed
Year 2
2019

lnpatient Utillzation
144
407

144

48.452

48,452

t17.18

1

Staffed Beds
Adrnissions

Palient Days
Average Length ol StaY

407
17. 18

utp¿tient Utilization
All Oulpalient Visits
OR Procedures
Observation Units
Physician Oflice Visits

Anclllary
All OR Procedures
Emetgency Room Visits

Adjusted Statist¡cs
Adjusted Admissions
Patient

B:

Sudgat

Proposed
Yoar 1

Proposed
Year 2

Proposed
Year 3

2417

201

2Q1

2020

PROJECT ONL
Latost Actual
201

G

I

lnpat¡ent Utilization
Sl¿ffed Beds
Admlssions
Patient Days
Average Length ol StaY

144
447

't44

48,505

48,505
't17.18

f1718

407

144
407
48,505
I 17.18

Outpatient Utili¿atlon
All Outpat;ent Visils

0R Procedures
Observation Un¡ts
Physician Office Visils
All OR Procêdures
Ëmergency Room Visils

ustsd Statistics
Ad¡usted Admission$

C: WITH P

Budget

Proposod
Yoar 1

Proposed

Latest Actual

Year 2

Proposed
Yaar 3

2016

2017

201

201 S

2020

ECT

lnpationt Utili¡ation

144

144

144

144

407

407

447

407

407

48,452
11718

48.452
117.18

48.505
1 17.18

48,505
117 18

48,505
1 1 7.18

Slafled Beds
Admissions
Patient Days
Average Length of StaY

I

Outpatient Utilization
All Outpat¡ent Visits
OR Procedu¡es
Observation Units
Physic¡an Otfice Visits

Anclltary
All OR Procedures
Emergency Room Visrts

Adjusted Statistics
Adjusted Admissions

Health Care Administralion
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Birchwood Operations, LLC and
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TABLE 9
STAFFING PROJECTIONS
TCITALS

Latest Actual

Budget

?016

2417

14.9
85.1

8s.1

Non-MO FTEs
Total General Services
Total lnpatient Routine Services
Total Outpatient Routine Services
Total Ancillary Services
Total Other Services
Total Non-MD FTEs

0.0

0.0

10"4

10.4

34.8
145.2

34,8
145.2

Physician FTEs
Direct Service Nurse FTEs

0.3
37.1

37.1

1t1712018

Health Care Administråtion
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Year 3

2019

2020

0.3

Latest Actual
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201 6

2017
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: WITH P
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0.0
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cian Services
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Direct Service Nurso FTEs

I
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Non.MD FTEs
Tolal General Services
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Total Outpatient Routine Services
Total Ancillary Services
lotal Other Services
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Total lnpatient Rouline Services
Total Outpalient Routine Services
Total Ancillary Services
Total Other Services
I Non-MD FTEs

201

Proposed

14.9

T ONL

Non-MD FTEs
Total General Services

Proposed
Year I

1

I

Proposed
Yea¡ 2
201

I

14.9

14.9

85,'l

85.1

0.0

0.0
10.4
34.8
145.2

Proposod
Year 3
20?0
14.9
85.1

0.0
0.0
0.0
0,0
0,0
0.0

34.8
145.2

0.0
0.0

0.3

0.3

0.3

37.1

37.1

37.1

Proposed
Year 2

Proposed
Year 3

1A.4
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Year

I

0.0
10.4
34.8
145,2

Latest Actual

Budget

201 6

2917

2018

2019
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#VALUEI
#VALUÊI
#VALUEI
#VALUËI
#VALUEI

14.9

14.9
85.1

14.9
85.1

14.9
85.1

851
0.0

0.0

0.0

0,0

10.4

10.4

10.4

10.4

34.8

34.8

34.8

,2

#VALUEI
#VALUEI

0.3
37.1

0.3
37.1

34.8
145.2

.2

0.3
37.'l

i8C3F1 A3F-DD4B-4625'8845-74F84C587555).xls'

0.3
37,1

Table 9

ATTACHMEI{T

3102289.1

15

Kindred Nursing Centers East, LLC
dtb I a Birchwood Terrace Healthcare
Report on Audit of Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31,, 20L6

KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
INDEX

CONTENTS
Page
Report of Independent Ar.ditors

1

Financial Statements:
Statement of Operations and Accunulated Deficit

2

Bahnce Sheet

J

Statement ofCashFlows

4

Notes to Financial Statements

5

}

pwc
Report of Independent Auditors
To the Management of
Kindred Nursing Centers East, LLC
d,&/a Birchwood Temace Healthcare

We have audited the accompanying flrnancial statements of Kindred Nursing Centers East LLC d/b/a Birchwood
Terrace Healthcare, a wholly-owned operating component of Kindred Healthcare Inc., which comprise the balance
sheet as of Decernber 31,2016, and the related statement of operations and accumulated deficit and cash flows for the
year then ended.
Manøgement's Responsibility

for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the fìnancial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implenentation,
and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor.

Auditors' Responsibilíty
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or elror. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
cvaluating the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness ofsignificant accounting estirnates
rnade by rnanagement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statetnents. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is suffìcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Kindred Nursing Centers East LLC d/b/a Birchwood Terrace Healthcare as of December 31,2016, and the results
of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

?@Lt,P
May 31,2017

PrícewaterhouseCoopers LLP,5oo West Main Street, LouisuíIle, KY 4o2o2
T: (Soz) S8g-6too, F: (Soz) SBS-ZBfS, www.puc.com/us

KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED DEFICIT
For the year ended December 31, 2016

$

Reventres

12,922,343
7,136,562
662,822
1,485,544
4,887,769
152,558
(368)
r4,324,887
(1,402,544)

Salaries, wages and benefits
Supplies
Rent
Other operating expenses

Depreciation
Investment income
Total operating expenses

Net loss
Accumulated deficit at beginning ofyear
Accumulated deficit at end ofyear

$

See accompanying notes.

2

(3,787,137)
(5,189,681)

KINDRT,D NURSTNG CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2016
A.SSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accor¡nts receivab le les s allowance of
Inventories
Irsurance recoverab les
Other cunrent assets

57,833
1,646,392
30,765

$
$ 3 9, 5 9

5

48t,596
4,228
2,22O,8r4

Property and equþment:
Land and land improvements
Leaseho ld improvements
Equþment

12,260
2,716,674
1,3 40.381
4,069,315
(2, 900,820)
1,168,495

Accumulated deprec iation

939,646

Insurance recoverab le s
Patient fi¡nd accoults

37 193

$4,

366,148

$

241,376
222,496
76,970
481,596

LIABTLITIES Al\D STOCKHOLDERS' EQTIITY
Current liabilities:
Accourús payable
Salaries, wages and other compersation
Patbnt credit balances
Professional liability and workers compensation
Other accnred liabilities

J

t87

1,025,625
Patient fi.nd accowtts
Deferred rent
Pro fe s s io nal liab ility and workers

co

37,193
324,083
939,646

mpersatio n

Commitrnents and contingencies (Note 4)

Stockholders' equity:
Accumulated deficit
Net conûrbutions from Kindred Heahhcare, Inc.

$
See accompanying notes.
a

J

(5,189,681)
7,229,282
2,O39,60r
4,3 66,148

KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCH\MOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 3 I , 201 6

Cash flows from operating activities:

$

Net loss

(l ,402,544)

Adjustrnents to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities

152,558
64,825

Depreciation
Provision for doubtful accourfs
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accourts receivable
Inventories and other assets
Accotnts payable
Salaries, wages and other compensation
Patient credit balances and other accnrcd liabilities
Net cash r¡sed in operating activities

(295,67t)
(391,47O)
41,592
2,820
387,505
(1,440,385)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase ofproperly and equþment

(592,163)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase ofcontribúiors dtre from Kindred Heahhcare, Inc
Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear
Cash and cash equivalents at end ofyear
S

2,O84,408

$

51,860
5,973
s7,833

upp lemental info rmatio n:

Transfers ofproperly and equipment from Kindred
Property and equþment purchases payable

See accompanying notes
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$

5,380
10,801

KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE

1_

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

Kindred Nursing Centers East, LLC dlbla Birchwood Terrace Healthcare (the "Facility") is a
wholly-owned operating component of Kindred Healthcare, Inc. ("Kindred" or the "Company") and
has no separate legal status or existence. The Facility owns and operates a 144-bed skilled nursing
facility located in Burlington, Vermont.
Basis of Presentation

As a wholly-owned operating component of Kindred with no separate legal status or existence, the
Facility is subject to the accounting policies of Kindred. The accompanying financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAr{P") and
include amounts based upon the estimates and judgments of management. Actual amounts may
differ from those estimates.
Re ce

ntly I s sue d A c c ount ing

Re

quire

me

nt s

In January 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") issued authoritative
guidance that revises the definition of a business, which affects accounting for acquisitions,
disposals, goodwill impairment, and consolidation. The guidance is intended to help entities evaluate
whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or businesses.
The revision provides a more robust framework to use in determining when a set of assets and
activities is a business. The new guidance is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after
December 15,2017 and early adoption is permitted. The adoption of this standard is not expected to
have a material impact on the Facility's business, financial position, results of operations or
liquidity.

In November 2016, the FASB issued authoritative

guidance that simplifies the disclosure of

restricted cash within the statement of cash flows. The guidance is intended to reduce diversity when
reporting restricted cash and requires entities to explain changes in the combined total of restricted
and unrestricted balances in the statement of cash flows. The new guidance is effective for annual
and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and early adoption is permitted. The
adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Facility's statement of cash

flows.

In August 2016, the FASB issued authoritative guidance to eliminate diversity in practice related to

the cash flow statement classification of eight specific cash flow issues, which include debt
prepayment or extinguishment costs, maturity of a zero coupon bond, settlement of contingent
consideration liabilities after a business combination, proceeds from insurance settlements and
distribution from certain equity method investees. The new guidance is effective for annual and
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and early adoption is permitted. The adoption of
this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Facility's statement of cash flows.
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KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE

1

Re

- ACCOUNTING POLICIES

cently Issue d Ac c ounting

Re

(continued)

quirements (cont ínue d)

In February 2016, the FASB issued amended authoritative guidance on accounting for leases. The
new provisions require that a lessee of operating leases recognize in the statement of f,rnancial
position a liability to make lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term. The lease liability will be equal to the present
value of lease payments, with the right-oÊuse asset based upon the lease liability. The classification
criteria for distinguishing between finance (or capital) leases and operating leases are substantially
similar to the previous lease guidance, but with no explicit bright lines. As such, operating leases
will result in straight-line rent expense similar to current practice. For short term leases (term of l2
months or less), a lessee is permitted to make an accounting election not to recognize lease assets
and lease liabilities, which would generally result in lease expense being recognized on a straightline basis over the lease term. The guidance is effective for annual and interim periods beginning
after December 15,2018, and will require application of the new guidance at the beginning of the
earliest comparable period presented. We will not elect early adoption and will apply the modified
retrospective approach as required. The adoption of this standard is expected to have a material
impact on the Facility's financial position. The Facility is still evaluating the impact on its results of
operations and there is no impact on liquidity.

In August 2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance requiring management to evaluate whether
there are conditions and events that raise substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide disclosures in certain circumstances. The guidance is effective for
annual and interim periods ending after December 15,2016. This guidance did not have a material
impact on the Facility's fìnancial statements.

2014, the FASB issued authoritative guidance which changes the requirements for
recognizing revenue when entities enter into contracts with customers. Under the new provisions, an
entity will recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects what it expects in exchange for the goods or services. It also requires more
detailed disclosures to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing,
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

In May

.

In July 2015, the FASB fînalized a one year deferral of the new revenue standard with an
updated effective date for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15,
2017 . Entities are not permitted to adopt the standard earlier than the original effective date,
which was on or after December 15,2016.

.

In March 2016, the FASB finalized its

amendments

to the guidance in the new

revenue

standard on assessing whether an entity is a principal or an agent in a revenue transaction.
Under the new amendments, the FASB confirmed that a principal in an arrangement controls
a good or service before it is transferred to a customer but revised the structure of indicators
when an entity is the principal. The amendments have the same effective date and transition
requirements as the new revenue standard.
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KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
NOTE

1

Re

- ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ce

nt

.

ly I s s ue d A c c ount

i n g Re qu

(continued)
ir e me nt s (c o nt inue d)

In May 2016, the FASB finalized its amendments to the guidance in the new revenue
standard on contracts with customers and specifically, collectability, non-cash consideration,
presentation of sales taxes, and completed contracts. The amendments are intended to reduce
the risk of diversity in practice and the cost and complexity of applying certain aspects of the
revenue standard. The amendments have the same effective date and transition requirements
as the new revenue standard, which is effective for interim and annual periods beginning on
or after December 15,2017, with early adoption permitted on or after December 15,2016.

The Facility will not elect early adoption but will apply the modified retrospective approach upon
the required effective date. The Facility is still evaluating the impact of the adoption of the new
revenue standard on its business, financial position, results of operations, and liquidity.
Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenues are recorded based upon estimated amounts due from patients and thirdparty payors for healthcare services provided, including anticipated settlements under reimbursement
agreements with Medicare, Medicaid, Medicare Advantage and other third-party payors.

A summary of revenues by payor type for the year ended December 31,2016 follows:
Medicare
Medicaid
Medicare Advantage
Private and other

$

s

3,849,656
6,804,376
229,141
2,039,170
12,922,343

Revenues under third-party agreements are subject to examination and retroactive adjustment.
Provisions for estimated third-party adjustments are provided in the period the related services are
rendered. Differences between the amounts accrued and subsequent settlements are recorded in the
periods the interim or final sefflements are determined.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include unrestricted highly-liquid investments with an original maturity of
three months or less when purchased. Cash restricted relates to patient trust accounts. The carrying
value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair market value.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from the Medicare and Medicaid programs,
other government programs, managed care health plans, commercial insurance companies and
individual patients. Estimated provisions for doubtful accounts are recorded to the extent it is
probable that a portion or all of a particular account will not be collected.
considers a number of factors,
including the age of the accounts, changes in collection patterns, the composition of patient accounts
by payor type, the status of ongoing disputes with third-party payors and general industry conditions.

In evaluating the collectibility of accounts receivable, the Facility
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KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/bia BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

J'
NOTE

1

- ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Due to third-party payors
The Facility is required to submit cost reports at least annually to various state and federal agencies
administering the respective reimbursement programs. In many instances, interim cash payments to
the Facility are only an estimate of the amount due for services provided. Any overpayment to the
Facility arising from the completion of a cost report is recorded as a liability.
Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of medical supplies and have been reflected in the accompanying
balance sheet at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory carrying value was
$30,765 at December 31,2016.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense for
the Facility, computed by the straight-line method, was $152,558 for the year ended December 31,
2016. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful lives or the remaining
lease term, whichever is shorter. Estimated useful lives of equipment vary from 5 to 10 years.
Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Net Contributions from Kindred

Net contributions from Kindred Healthcare, Inc. are classified as an increase to equity on the
accompanying balance sheet. For the year ended December 31, 2016, transfers of property and
equipment from Kindred to the Facility increased amounts due from Kindred by $5,380, in addition
to other various interdivisional transactions such as cash management, accounts receivable
processing, property and equipment record keeping, accounts payable processing, payroll and
general bookkeeping, as further discussed in note 6, which increased amounts due from Kindred by
$2,084,408.
Comprehensive Income

The Facility has no components of other comprehensive income or loss and as a result,
comprehensive income or loss is equal to net income or loss as presented in the accompanying
statement of operations and accumulated deficit.
Other Inþrmation

On November 7,2016, Kindred Healthcare Operating, Inc., the owner of the Facility, announced
plans to exit its skilled nursing facility business as an owner and operator. Accordingly, while
Kindred is unable at this time to determine an expected completion date, Kindred is targeting to
complete the exit from the skilled nursing facility business by the end of 2017. At this time, there has
been no determination of the implications to the ownership of the Facility.
The company has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through May 31, 2017 , the date on
which the financial statements were issued.
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KINDRT,D NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE2_INCOMETAXES
The Facility is included in the consolidated federal and state income tax returns filed by the
Company. The Company allocates the consolidated federal and state income tax liabilities among the
members of the consolidated return group (including the Facility) using a separate return method.
Amounts determined to be a payable or receivable under the separate return method are classified as
an element of net contributions to or from Kindred on the accompanying balance sheet at December
31,2016.
The provision or benefit for income taxes is based upon the Facility's annual reported income or loss
for each respective accounting period. The Facility recognizes an asset or liability for the deferred
tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
reported amounts in the financial statements. These temporary differences will result in taxable or
deductible amounts in future years when the reported amounts of the assets are recovered or
liabilities are settled and represent amounts due to or due from the Company in lieu of taxes. A
valuation allowance is provided for these deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the net deferred tax assets will not be realized. Net operating losses are recognized
on a benefits-for-loss basis which modifies the separate return method so that net operating losses
that would not be realized (or realizable) by the Facility are recognized as a benefit for the Facility,
given that they are realized (or realizable) by the Company.
The Facility had no income tax benefit or expense for the year ended December 31,2016.

Reconciliation of federal statutory tax benefit to the benef,rt for income taxes for the year ended
December 31, 2076 follows:
Income tax benefit at federal rate
Valuation allowance
Other iterrs, net

$

(490,890)
488,468
22

$

A summary of deferred income taxes by source included in the balance

sheet at December 31,2016

follows:
Assets

$ 124,286

Propefy and Equipment

17,085
39,923
113,429
566,461
861,184
(53,839)
807,345
(8O7,345)

Reclassification of deferred tax liabilities

Valuation allowance
$

9

$

53,839

Accounts receivab le allowances
Compensation
Professional liabilrty and worker's corrpensation risks
Other
Net operating losses

Net deferred tax assets

Liabilities

$

53,839

KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 3 _ LEASES

The Facility leases real estate and equipment under non-cancelable arrangements. The real estate
under a non-cancelable operating lease is part of a master lease agreement along with other Kindred
facilities. The real estate lease agreement to which the Facility is a party expires on April 30,2025.
Additionally, the master lease agreement provides for rent escalation annually on May 1. All annual
rent escalators are payable in cash. The contingent annual rent escalator for the master lease
agreement is based upon annual increases in the Consumer Price Index, subject to a ceiling of 4Yo.In
2016, the Facility recorded S9,867 of contingent rent for the year ended December 31, 2016.
Contingent rent is included in rent expense in the year incurred.
Rent expense related to non-cancelable operating leases amounted to S1,485,544 for the year ended
December 31,2016. Future minimum payments under the real estate non-cancelable operating lease
are as follows:

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter

$

r"468,987
r,468,987
1,468,987
1,468,987
r,468,987
4,896,623

On November 11, 2016, as part of the Company's strategic decision to exit the skilled nursing
facility business, the Company entered into an agreement with Ventas which provides it with the
option to acquire the real estate for all 36 skilled nursing facilities (the "Ventas SNFs") currently
leased under the Master Lease Agreements for an aggregate consideration of S700 million. The
agreement also provides that, through October 31,2018, the Company has the right to find one or
more purchasers of the Ventas SNFs. As the Company locates new owners/operators for the Ventas
SNFs, in exchange for the Company's payment to Ventas of the allocable portion of the $700
million purchase price, Ventas has agreed to convey the real estate for the applicable Ventas SNF to
the new owner/operator. The Company, at its option, may also elect to renew the leases for any of
the Ventas SNFs through April 30,2025, and transfer them into Master Lease Agreement No. 5. The
Ventas SNFs will remain leased under their current Master Lease Agreements until the Company
exercises its purchase option or April 30, 2018, whichever comes first. If the Company does not
complete the acquisition of the Ventas SNFs by April 30, 2018, the lease for any remaining Ventas
SNFs will be automatically renewed through April 30, 2025, and transferred into Master Lease
Agreement No. 5. Since all of the Ventas SNFs will either be sold or transferred into Master Lease
Agreement No. 5, Kindred's other Master Lease Agreements with Ventas will be effectively
terminated and only Master Lease Agreement No. 5 will remain.
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KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCH\ilOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CON tinued)
NOTE 4 _ CONTINGENCIES

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. The Facility believes it is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and
is not aware of any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations or potential
wrongdoing. While no such regulatory inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and
regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant
regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid
programs. Management is unaware of any commitments or contingencies that would result in losses
to the Facility.

The Facility insures its professional liability and workers compensation risks through a whollyowned, limited purpose insurance subsidiary of the Company (the "Insurance Subsidiary"). The
following is a summary of the insurance recoverables and reserves under the policies as of
December 31,2016:.

'Workers

Professional

liabilitv

Total

co

Assets:

Current
Long term
Liabilities:
Cr¡rrent
Long term

$

$
$

94,682
r45,140

239,822

94,682
145,140

$

239,822

386,914

$

794,506

$
$

$

1,18r,420

$

386,914

$

794 s06

$ l, lgl,420 $

481,596
939,646
1,421,242

48r,596
939
1,421,242

NOTE 5 _ CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Facility derives a majority of its revenue through provider agreements with the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services and the Vermont Department of Health and Human Services.
Accordingly, receivables from these third parties constitute the majority of the Center's patient
accounts receivable which consisted of the following at December 31,2016:

other
Medicaid
Medicare
Private and

4l

Yo

33

26

_t*

^

Management monitors and evaluates the allowance for doubtful accounts to ensure that receivables
are stated at their net realizable value.

NOTE 6 _ RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As a wholly-owned operating component of the Company, the Facility is subject to the accounting
policies of the Company and is a party to numerous transactions with the Company. The Company is
jointly liable forthe obligations of the Facility and has pledged substantially all of the assets of the
Facility to collateralize the Company's ABL Facility, Term Loan Facility and Notes (all as defined
below).
t1

KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

obligations under the ABL Facility and Term Loan Facility are fully and unconditionally
to certain customary release provisions, by substantially all of the Company's
existing and future direct and indirect domestic l00yo owned subsidiaries, as well as certain non100% owned domestic subsidiaries as the Company may determine from time to time in its sole
discretion.

All

guaranteed, subject

The Notes are

fully and unconditionally guaranteed, subject to certain customary

by substantially all of the Company's domestic
ABL Facilitv and

100%o

release provisions,

owned subsidiaries.

ABL Joinder

On April 9, 2014, the Company entered into a second amendment and restatement agreement (the
"second ABL Amendment Agreement") among the Company, the other credit parties party thereto,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as administrative agent and collateral agent, and the lenders party
thereto. The Second ABL Amendment Agreement, among other items, (l) extends the maturity date
of the prior ABL Facility from June I , 2018 to April 9, 2019, (2) provides for the replacement of all
revolving commitments outstanding under the prior ABL Facility with new revolving commitments
in the same principal amount, (3) increases the amounts available for incremental commitments and
(4) amends certain provisions related to the incurrence of debt and liens and the making of
acquisitions, investments and restricted payments.
On October 31,2014, the Company entered into a third amendment and restatement agreement (the
"ABL Amendment Agreement") among the Company, the consenting lenders party thereto and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.4., as administrative agent. The ABL Amendment Agreement amended
and restated the ABL Credit Agreement dated as of June l,20ll, as amended by that certain
Amendment No. I to the ABL Credit Agreement dated as of October 4, 2012 and as further
amended and restated by that certain Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of August
21,2013 and that certain Second Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of April 9,2014
(the "ABL Facility"), among the Company, the lenders from time to time party thereto and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.4., as administrative agent and collateral agent.

The ABL Amendment Agreement, among other items, modified certain provisions related to the
issuance of Notes into the Escrow Accounts. Upon the consummation of Kindred's acquisition of
Gentiva Health Services, Inc. on February 2,2015, and the satisfaction of certain other conditions,
the ABL Amendment Agreement further amended and restated the ABL Facility to, among other
items, modify certain provisions related to the incurrence of debt and the making of acquisitions,
investments and restricted payments.

The ABL Amendment Agreement did not modify the maturity date of the revolving commitments
thereunder or the applicable interest rate margins applicable to any borrowings thereunder.

In addition, on December 12,2014,the Company entered into an incremental joinder agreement (the
oolncremental
ABL Joinder") among the Company, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.4., as administrative
agent and collateral agento the incremental lenders party thereto and the other credit parties party
thereto. Upon the consummation of the Gentiva Merger and the satisfaction of certain other
conditions, the Incremental ABL Joinder provided for additional revolving commitments in an
aggregate principal amount of $150 million under the ABL Facility.
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KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
ABL Amendment No. 2 to the ABL Escilily

On June 3, 2015, the Company entered into an amendment agreement to the ABL Amendment
Agreement (the "ABL Amendment No. 2"), which modified the restrictions on the amount of cash
and temporary cash investments that may be held outside of certain deposit accounts subject to
control agreements. As used herein, the "ABL Facility" refers to the ABL Amendment Agreement,
as amended by the Incremental ABL Joinder and the ABL Amendment No. 2.
Aside from the foregoing changes, the terms and conditions of the ABL Amendment Agreement
were substantially similar to the terms and conditions before the effectiveness of the ABL
Amendment No. 2.
Term Loan Facilít.v

On April 9, 2014, the Company entered into a third amendment and restatement agreement (the
"Third Amended and Restated Term Loan Facility") among the Company, the other credit parties
party thereto, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.4., as administrative agent and collateral agent, and the
lenders party thereto. The Third Amended and Restated Term Loan Facility, among other items,
(l)extends the maturity date of the prior Term Loan Facility from June 1,2018 to April9,202l,
(2) provides for the replacement of all term loans outstanding under the prior Term Loan Facility
with new term loans in a principal amount of Sl billion, (3) reduces the interest rate margins
applicable to the term loans, (4) increases the available capacity for incremental term loans and
(5) amends certain provisions related to the incurrence of debt and liens and the making of
acquisitions, investments and restricted payments.
On November 25,2014, the Company entered into a fourth amendment and restatement agreement
(the "Fourth Amended and Restated Term Loan Facility") among the Company, the consenting
lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.4., as administrative agent. The Fourth
Amended and Restated Term Loan Facility amended and restated the Term Loan Credit Agreement
dated as of June l,20ll, as amended by that certain Incremental Amendment No. I to the Term
Loan Credit Agreement dated as of October 4, 2012 and as further amended and restated by that
certain Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of May 30, 2013, that certain Second
Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of August 21, 2013 and that certain Third
Amendment and Restatement Agreement dated as of April 9,2014, among the Company, the lenders
party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.4., as administrative agent and collateral agent (the
ooTerm
Loan Facility").
The Fourth Amended and Restated Term Loan Facility amended and restated the Term Loan Facility
to, among other items, (i) increase the applicable interest rate margins for London Interbank Offered
Rate borrowings from 3.00% to 3.25o/o and for base rate borrowings from 2.00Yo to 2.25Yo, (ä)
temporarily increase the maximum total leverage ratio permitted under the financial maintenance
covenants, (iii) include soft-call protection at aprepayment premium of l.00yo for twelve months
starting from November25,2014 and (iv) modify certain provisions related to the incurrence of debt

and the making of acquisitions, investments and restricted payments. The Fourth Amended and
Restated Term Loan Facility did not modify the maturity date of the loans made thereunder.
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NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Incremental Term Loan Amendment to Term Loan Facililv
On March 10, 2015, the Company entered into an incremental amendment agreement to the Fourth
Amended and Restated Term Loan Facility (the "Incremental Term Loan Agreement"), which
provided for an incremental term loan in an aggregate principal amount of $200 million under its
Fourth Amended and Restated Term Loan Facility. The Company used the net proceeds of the
incremental term loan to repay outstanding borrowings under the Third Amended and Restated ABL
Facility. The incremental term loan was issued with 50 basis points of original issue discount and
has the same terms as, and is fungible with, all other term loans outstanding under the Fourth
Amended and Restated Term Loan Facility. As used herein, the "Term Loan Facility" refers to the
Fourth Amended and Restated Term Loan Facility, as amended by the Incremental Term Loan
Agreement.

On June 14, 2016, the Company entered into the Term Loan Credit Agreement that amended and
restated the Term Loan Facility to provide for, among other things, (l) additional joint venture
flexibility, including an increased ability to enter into and make investments in joint ventures that are
non-guarantor restricted subsidiaries and to incur debt and liens ofsuchjoint ventures and othernonguarantor restricted subsidiaries, (2) an increase in the size of a basket for asset sales from l5%oto
25Yo of consolidated total assets, (3) maintaining a maximum total leverage ratio of 6.00:1.00 for
each quarterly measurement date after the date of such amendment, and (4) an incremental term loan
in an aggregate principal amount of 5200 million. The incremental term loan was issued with 95
basis points of original issue discount ("OID") and has the same terms as, and is fungible with, the
$ I . I 8 billion in aggregate principal amount of term loans that were outstanding under the Term Loan
Facility immediately prior to the effectiveness of the Term Loan Credit Agreement. The net
proceeds from the incremental term loan were used to repay a portion of the outstanding borrowings
under the Company's ABL Facility.
On March 14,2017, the Company entered into the Term Loan Amendment Agreement that amended
make adjustments to certain
and restated the Term Loan Facility to, among other things,
previously
announced plan to sell
covenants and definitions to better accommodate the Company's
its skilled nursing division, (2) provide the Company with increased leverage covenant flexibility for
an interim period, (3) increase the applicable margin on the outstanding borrowings from3.25o/oto
3.50% for LIBOR borrowings and from 2.25% to 2.50%o for base rate borrowings, (4) require a
maximum leverage ratio of no more than 5.00 to 1.00 for use of the $50 million annual dividend

(l)

basket, and (5) provide for a prepayment premium of 1.00% in connection with any repricing
transaction within six months of the closing date. In accordance with the authoritative guidance on
debt, the Company accounted for the amendment as a debt modification.

Aside from the foregoing changes, the terms and conditions of the Fourth Amended and Restated
Term Loan Facility were substantially similar to the terms and conditions before the effectiveness of
the Incremental Term Loan Agreement.
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KINDRED NURSING CENTERS EAST, LLC
d/b/a BIRCHWOOD TERRACE HEALTHCARE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con tinued)
NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Notes

On April 9,2014, the Company completed a private placement of $500 million aggregate principal
amount of 6.375Yo senior notes due 2022. On December 18, 2014, Kindred Escrow Corp. II, one of
the Company's subsidiaries, completed a private placement of $750 million aggregate principal
amount of 8.00% senior notes due 2020 and $600 million aggregate principal amount of 8.75Vo
senior notes due 2023. The senior notes due 2022,2020 and 2023 are collectively referred to as the
"Notes."
Other Related Partv Transactions

A signifìcant portion of transactions are processed by the Company on the Facility's behalf including
cash management, accounts receivable processing, property and equipment record keeping, accounts
payable processing, payroll and general bookkeeping. Additionally, the Company manages general
business functions on behalf of the Facility including cost reimbursement reporting, human
resources, financial reporting, income taxes and legal services. Expenses incurred by the Company
related to the operations of the Facility are allocated to the Facility based on a percentage of net
revenues. The Company has allocated expenses of 5752,517 forthe year ended December 31,2016
to the Facility which are included in other operating expenses on the accompanying statement of
operations and accumulated deficit.

The Company provides certain rehabilitation services to the Facility. The amount for rehabilitation
services included in other operating expens€s on the accompanying statement of operations and
accumulated deficit for the year ended December 3l , 2016 was $ 1 ,042,05 8. This amount was based
upon contracted rates for rehabilitation services.
The Facility insures the primary layer of its professional and general liability risks and its workers
compensation risks through the Insurance Subsidiary. Risks in excess of those retained by the
Insurance Subsidiary are reinsured with unaffiliated commercial insurance carriers. Liability
premiums paid to the Insurance Subsidiary totaled 535,042 in 2016 and are included in other
operating expenses on the accompanying statement of operations and accumulated deftcit. Workers
compensation premiums paid to the Insurance Subsidiary totaled 5176,345 in2016 and are included
in salaries, wages and benefits on the accompanying statement of operations and accumulated
deficit. See Note 4 for insurance recoverables and liabilities.
The Facility participates in an employee medical benefits plan sponsored by the Company. The plan
provides medical benefits to participating employees and their qualifying dependents who meet

certain eligibility requirements. Medical plan expense totaled $321,013 in 2016 and is included in
salaries, wages and benefits on the accompanying statement of operations and accumulated deficit.
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Attachment 27 - Staffing
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Attachment 28 - RN Staffing
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Execution Version - Birchwood Tewace

OPERATIONS TRANSFER AND SURRENDER AGR.EEMENT

THIS OPERATIONS TRANSFER AND SURRENDER AGREEMENT, together with all
exhibits and schedules (this ',OTA"), dated as of June 30,2017 (the "Executíon Date"), is by and among
Kindred Healthcare Operating, Inc., a Delaware corporation (*Kindred'); Kindred Nursing Centers East,
L.L.C.,a Delaware limited liability company, Kindred's affiliated seller entity which operates the Facility
("Trønsferor"); Birchwood Operations LLC, a Vermont limited liability company ("Transferee"); and
E&R Operations LLC, a Vermont limited liability company ("Transferee Gaørantor"). Each of Kindred,
Transferor, and Transferee may be referred to herein as a "Party" and collectively as 1.he "Pørtíes."
Capitalized terms used herein but not defrned shall have the same meaning ascribed to such terms in the
Purchase Agreement. A glossary of capitalized terms is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.

WHEREAS, Transferor is the operator or manager of the skilled nursing facility located af 43
Starr Farm Rd., Burlington, VT 05408-1321 (the"Facility");
WHEREAS, Kindred has agreed to sell (or transfer the relevant leasehold interest in) the real
property and assets comprising the Facility to BM Eagle Holdings, LLC ("Purchasef') pursuant to that
certain Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of June 30, 2017 (the "Parchøse Agreemenf'), by and
between Kindred and Purchaser;

WHEREAS, Transferor owns certain Assets used in connection with the operation of the
Facility;

WHEREAS, Transferor desires to divest itself of the operations or management of the Facility
operates and all of its interest in the tangible and intangible property and related other
interests relating to the operation and/or management of the Facility, all upon the terms and conditions
contained in this OTA;

that

it currently

WHEREAS, concurrent with the Closing under the Purchase Agreement, Transferee has agreed
to lease the Facility from Purchaser;
WIIEREAS, the Parties hereto desire for Transferor, subject to the satisfaction of the conditions
contained herein, to cease operating the Facility and surrender all rights in and to the Facility, except as
provided in this OTA, and for Transferee to commence operation of the Facility; and
WIIEREAS, the Parties wish to provide for an orderly and lawful transition of the operations
the Facility from Transferor to Transferee.

of

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the mutual obligations of the Parties
contained in this OTA, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as
follows:

ARTICLE

I

SURRENDER

Surrender. Transferor agrees that Transferor's rights and obligations in and to the
Facility and all of its rights to occupy or otherwise operate the Facility shall terminate as of the Effective
Time, except those rights or obligations which survive or are retained by such Transferor pursuant to this
OTA. Transferor agrees to convey, assign and deliver to Transferee the Assets and all of Transferor's
right, title and interest in and to the business operations of the Facility, effective as of the Effective Time.

1.1

59365s I 8.2

ARTICLE II
ASSETS. LIABILITIES AND OTHER MATTERS

2.1

Assets. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this OTA, on the
Closing Date, and except for the Excluded Assets, to the fullest extent of its interest, Transferor shall
(i) transfer to Transferee physical custody (at the Facility) with regard to items in subparagraph "(c)"; and
(ii) sell, transfer, convey and/or assign to Transferee, free and clear of all Encumbrances of any nature
whatsoever except for Permitted Encumbrances, all of Transferor's right, title and interest in and to the
items listed in subparagraphs "4" through "1" (the "Assefs").

(a)

Reserved;

(b)

all computers, computer equipment and hardware, office equipment, trucks,

vehicles and other transportation equipment, parts, supplies and other tangible personal property owned
by and in Transferor's possession as of the date of this OTA or acquired by Transferor prior to the
Closing Date which are used exclusively in connection with the operation of its Facility;

(c) software licenses related exclusively to the operation of the Facility, if applicable
and to the extent assignable (and if licensor consent to such assignment is required, to the extent such
consent is granted), subject to any license transfer fees which would be the responsibility ofTransferee;
(d) all inventory and supplies (excluding those provided by a National Contract) but
not less than a quantity of inventory and supplies that is required by Law including, but not limited to,
office, foodstuffs, medical, disposables, prescription medications and pharmaceutical inventories and
supplies and other inventories, supplies and articles ofpersonal property ofevery kind and nature attached
to or used in connection with the Facility, but only to the extent such inventory and supplies are owned by
Transferor (collectively " I nv e ntory" );
(e) all contracts, agreements, leases (excluding real estate leases), purchase orders
relating exclusively to the Facility (collectively, the "Contrúcts"), whether oral or written, to the extent
transferable and to the extent expressly assumed in writing by Transferee in its sole discretion; excluding,
however, rights, claims or responsibilities thereunder existing and relating to the period of time prior to
the Effective Time. Transferee will inform Transferor in writing of the Contracts which it intends to
assume by delivering to Transferor a listing of such Contracts within the later of (i) three (3) Business
Days after the Execution Date or (ii) ten (10) days of the date of receipt of copies of such contracts. A
preliminary list of those Contracts which Transferee has identified as Assumed Contracts as of the
Execution Date is attached hereto as Schedule 2.1(e), which Transferee may modify until fifteen (15)
days prior to Closing, after which time such Schedule shall be deemed final. All Contracts as to which
Transferor receives from Transferee timely notice of assumption are referred to as the "Assumed
Contracts." To the extent mutually agreed by Kindred and Transferee, Transferee will also assume
therapy Contracts relating to the Facility between any Seller Party and RehabCare or any of its Affiliates,
subject to any modifications or amendments Kindred, Transferee and RehabCare negotiate as part of such
mutual agreement.

(Ð

all menus, operating manuals for equipment at the Facility (but specifically
policy
and procedure manuals), marketing, sales and promotional materials;
excluding operating
Transferor shall leave all operating policy and procedure manuals in
foregoing,
the
notwithstanding
electronic form (the "Policy and Procedure Manuals") for Transferee to use for a period of one hundred
*Polícy Return Date"),
fifty (150) days after the Closing. After one-hundred fifty (150) days (the
Transferee shall return all Policy and Procedure Manuals to Transferor; provided, however, to the extent
that Transferee uses the Policy and Procedure Manuals between the Closing Date and the Return Date,
Transferee shall be required to place its name thereon and remove the name of Transferor and its
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Affiliates; provided, further that the Parties acknowledge Transferor makes no representation or warranty
as to the compliance of Policy and Procedure Manuals with applicable Law, and Transferor shall not be
liable for any use thereof by Transferee;

(g)

to the extent of its interest therein, all rights to telephone and facsimile numbers
used by the Facility, any "yellow page" and other advertising rights of such Facility, and all of the rights
of Transferor in the name used for the Facility (excluding the marks set forth in Exhibit 2.7), for example,
"Rehabilitation and Skilled Nursing Center";

(h)

all files, charts, and other information located at the Facility in

Transferor's

possession or control relating to all (i) current Residents of the Facility as of the Closing Date (including,
but not limited to, all resident records, billing and collection records, medical records, therapy records,

pharmacy records, clinical records, and Resident Trust Funds records), (ii) Residents who previously
occupied the Facility or used the Facility prior to the Effective Time and are not Residents of the Facility
as of the Effective Time (including, but not limited to, all patient records, medical records, therapy
records, pharmacy records, clinical records, and Resident Trust Funds records) for the period between and

including the Effective Time and the date that is three (3) years prior to the Effective Time, (iii)
employment records for the Transferee Employees (including all medical and health records and all nonmedical records including payroll and schedule records, evaluations, etc.), (iv) administrative compliance
records including, but not limited to, all state surveys and plans of correction, and (v) correspondence and
any other written data which was utilized in connection with the operation of the Facility or the Business
(collectively, Current Records");
o'

(Ð

licenses, certificates, permits, waivers, consents, authorizations, variances,
approvals, accreditations, guaranties, certificates of occupancy, utility lease agreements, covenants,
còmmitments, and warranties relating to the Facility and the Assets, if any, issued to or on behalf of
Transferor relating to the Assets or the Facility, provided same are transferable and assumed by
Transferee (" P e rmíts");

(j)

goodwill;

such Transferor's right, title and interest as trustee or otherwise to
held
in trust (collectively, "Resi.dent Trust Funds") to the extent permitted by Law
funds
residents/patient
on the Closing Date. Transferee shall accept such assignment on behalf
Transferee
to
shall be transferred
indemnify and hold Transferor harmless in connection with any such
shall
and
residenlpatient
of such a
Trust Property received by Transferee;
Resident
of
the
the
extent
residenflpatient to

(k)

(l) to the extent permitted by applicable Law and in accordance with the terms and
forth
herein, Transferor's rights and interests in and to its provider number and provider
set
conditions
under the Medicare program and Medicaid; and
agreement
and reimbursement
(m) all other assets, properties, rights, business and tangible personal property of
owned by Transferor on the Closing Date, known or unknown, fixed or unfixed,
nature
kind
and
every
absolute, contingent or otherwise, whether or not specifically referred to in
inchoate,
accrued,
or
choate
to the Facility and its operations to the extent transferable and not expressly
relating
exclusively
this OTA
excluded Dursuant to Section 2.7.

2.2

Nursing Home Licensel Medicare and Medicaid Provider Agreements.

(a) Transferee will file, within seven (7) days of the Execution Date, an application
for a license to operate the Facility (the "New License") with the Vermont Division of Licensing and
Protection (the "Department"), and Transferee shall file applications for the Ancillary Permits and
1

Approvals as and when permitted or required under the laws of the applicable issuing authority.
Transferee will provide Transferor with a copy of its filed application for the New License within one (1)
Business Day after its filing of the application. Transferee shall diligently proceed to secure the New
License and the Ancillary Permits and Approvals and shall (i) from time to time, upon request of
Transferor, advise Transferor of the status of Transferee's efforts to secure the New License and the
Ancillary Permits and Approvals, (ii) promptly advise Transferor once Transferee has received
confirmation of the date on which the New License will be issued, and (iii) promptly upon receipt of a
request therefor from Transferor, shall provide Transferor with copies of the document(s) evidencing the
New License. For purposes hereof, "Ancillary Permits and Approvals" shall mean all ancillary permits
or licenses required for the operation of the Facility from and after the Closing Date including, but not
limited to, the Medicare tie in notice and Medicaid provider agreement, business licenses, food service
permits, elevator permits, vending machine permits, beauty shop licenses and CLIA waivers. Hereinafter,
ih" N"'¡¡ License and the Ancillary Permits and Approvals will be collectively referred to as the
"Regulatory Approvals." The Parties will use reasonable efforts to cooperate by providing such
information necessary for Transferee to file the application for the Regulatory Approvals contemplated
under this Section 2.2.

(b)

To the extent Permitted bY Law:

(Ð Effective as of the Effective Time, Transferor's rights and interests in
provider
number and provider and reimbursement agreement (the "Medícare
and to its Medicare
to
Transferee.
assigned
Agreernent") shall be
(iÐ Effective as of the Effective Time, Transferee shall have the right to bill
Medicaid provider number and Transferor's provider and reimbursement
Transferor's
Medicaid using
(the
"
Agteement").
Medicaíd
agreement
(iiÐ Transferee shall provide all notices and make all necessary filings as
Law in order for Transferee to become the certified Medicare and Medicaid
applicable
under
required
prõvider at the Facility. So long as Transferee is utilizing its best efforts to become the certified Medicare
ãnd Medicaid provider at the Facility, Transferee shall be permitted to bill under the Medicare Agreement
and Medicaid Agreement, utilizing Transferor's Submitter ID and NPI numbers and/or Medicaid provider
number, as applicable, during the period (the"Transition Period") that commences on the Effective Time
and that endJ õn the earlier of (A) in the case of Medicare, the issuance of the Medicare tie-in notice or in
the case of Medicaid, the issuance of the new Medicaid number and related provider agreement to
Transferee, or (B) the date which is twelve (12) months following the Effective Time. If, notwithstanding
Transferee's continuing best efforts, the Medicare tie-in notice shall not have been issued or a new
Medicaid provider agreement shall not have been issued to Transferee within such l2-month period, as
applicable, Transferor, upon Transferee's written request, shall agree to such reasonable extensions ofthe
Transition Period as may be necessary for Transferee to complete the applicable certification process. In
no event shall Transferee bill under the Medicare Agreement or Medicaid Agreement following

expiration of the Transition Period. Transferee shall indemnify and hold Transferor harmless from and
agãinst any and all liabilities arising out of Transferee's use of the Medicare Agreement and/or Medicaid
Agreement following the Effective Time.

(c)

Following the Execution Date, Transferor shall use its commercially reasonable
efforts to provide Transferee with all documents and information necessary for Transferee to seek a
novation (the "Novation") of contract number M0003665 (the "VA Contract") between Transferor and
the Department of Veterans Affairs (the "VA"). Transferor shall use its commercially reasonable efforts
to cooperate with Transferee in seeking the Novation of the VA Contract including, but not limited to,
signing any novation agreement and other forms reasonably requested by Transferee or the VA'
Transfãree shall be entitled to bill under the VA Contract pursuant to that certain Subcontract Pending
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Novation substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 2.2(c) (the "VA Subcontract")' For the
avoidance of doubt, Transferee will continue to receive payment from the VA and any such payments will
be considered Accounts Receivable hereunder, subject to the provisions of Section 6.10. Transferee
acknowledges that (i) the Novation is not expected to occur until after the Closing Date and, therefore, the
issuance of such Novation shall not be a condition to close, and (ii) Transferee shall reimburse Transferor
for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (including, without limitation, any audit costs) incurred by
Transferor in securing the necessary deliverables for the Novation.

2.3

Transfer of Resident Trust Funds. To the extent permitted by applicable Law at the
Closing, Transferor shall deliver to Transferee (a) original copies of the trust fund records, (b) a written
statement that sets forth the Resident Trust Funds, and (c) an assignment of the Resident Trust Funds to
Transferee. Within ten (10) Business Days following the Closing Date, Transferor shall prepare and
deliver to Transferee a true, correct and complete accounting, properly reconciled and balanced, of the
Resident Trust Funds as of the Effective Time. Transferee hereby agrees that it will accept such Resident
Trust Funds and hold the same in trust for the residents, in accordance with applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements.

2.4

Assumption of Liabilities.

(a) Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this OTA, at the
Effective Time, Transferee agrees to assume the following liabilities relating to the Assets, subject to the
provisions of Section 2.4(b): (i) all obligations and liabilities under the Assumed Contracts, (ii) any Taxes
with respect to the operation of the Business at the Facility, (iii) all liabilities under the terms of the
Permits, and (iv) all obligations and liabilities (in each case, whether or not accrued, whether fixed,
contingent or otherwise, and whether known or unknown) pertaining to the operation of the Facility, but
in the case of each of clauses (i) through (iv), only to the extent such liabilities relate to the period after
the Effective Time (collectively, "Assun ed Líabiliti.es").
(b)

Except for the Assumed Liabilities, Transferor shall retain all of its liabilities and
nature, at any time existing or asserted, whether or not accrued, whether fixed,
kind
or
obligations of any
known or unknown, arising out of and by reason of the ownership or
whether
otherwise,
contingent or
prior to the Effective Time. Except to the extent expressly and
Facility
Assets
and
the
operation of the
Transferee is not the successor to liability of Transferor
contrary,
herein
to
the
unambiguously expressed
from, arising from, out of, or relating to, Transferor's
liability
or
detriment
any
and is not herein assuming
of Transferor prior to the Effective Time or conduct
activity
Facility
or
any
ownership of the Assets, the
not and shall not assume (except to the extent
does
Time.
Transferee
of Transferor after the Effective
governmental claim or charge, liability of any
payable
of
Transferor,
included in Assumed Liabilities) any
general
liability, malpractice, professional liability,
for
any
governmental claim or charge, liability
rights
or
contracts, whether such claims arise in law,
resident rights violations, or violation of employee
equity, tort, contract, ståtute, cofirmon law, or from any other source or precedent. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, Transferor shall retain and Transferee shall not assume any (Ð Medicaid
and/or Medicare liabilities for the period prior to the Effective Time, all of which Transferor agrees to
satisfy in full as and when due upon expiration of any applicable period for the contesting or appeal of
such liabilities, (ii) accrued expenses which were incurred prior to the Effective Time, (iii) Encumbrances
affecting the Assets other than Permitted Encumbrances, (iv) liability or obligation of Transferor arising
out of or based upon Transferor's ownership and operation of the Facility prior to the Effective Time, (v)
liability or obligation relating to any RAC, ZPIC, or MAC audits as well as any and all investigations
from a Governmental Entity or any entity acting with the authority of the foregoing or by a whistleblower
or other private citizen claiming a violation of a healthcare related.statute or a violation of the Medicare,
Medicaid or other third party payor agreement, in each case for the period prior to the Effective Time, (vi)
liability or obligation relating to or arising from any Pre-Closing Imposition, (vii) capital repairs or
physical improvements required to remove or resolve a Pre-Closing Imposition, and/or (viii) liability or
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obligation of Transferor arising out of or based upon Transferor's ownership and operation of the
Excluded Assets. Transferor shall retain all of its applicable foregoing liabilities and obligations
(" R e taìn e d Liabìlítie

2.5

s"

).

Employees and Employee Benefits. The Parties hereby agree that:

(a)

Between forty-five (45) and fifty (50) days prior to the Closing, Transferor shall
update the list of employees on Schedule 4.6(a) to reflect new hires and terminations of employment that
occurred after the Execution Date regarding the applicable Transferred Facilities and Transferor shall also
provide a list of employees on Schedule 2.5(a) of employees who are not subject to offers of employment
from Transferee or its Affiliates in Section 2.5(b) below.

(b)

Not less than thirty (30) days prior to the Closing, Transferee shall (or shall cause
one of its Affiliates) to offer in writing employment to substantially all of those employees listed on such
revised Schedule 4.6(a) who meet Transferee's employment eligibility requirements, effective as of the
Effective Time (and subject to such employee's continued employment with Transferor as of immediately
prior to the Effective Time), on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section 2.5. Employees who
ãccept Transferee's (or its Affiliate's) offers of employment and commence employment with Transferee
are riferred to herein as "Transferee Employees." The employment of each Transferee Employee shall

Time. Nothing contained in this OTA shall constitute a guaranty of
of any kind for any current or former employee of Transferor,
employment
or
continued
employment

be effective as of the Effective

whether or not such employee is hired by Transferee.

(c)

As of 11:59:59 p.m. on the applicable Closing Date, Transferor shall terminate
the employment of all employees at the Facility including, without limitation, Persons temporarily absent
from aõtive employment by reason of disability, illness, injury, workers' compensation, approved leave of
absence or layoff. Transferee's or its Affiliate's offer of employment to Transferor employees pursuant to
Section 2.5ô) above shall commence at the Effective Time, such that those Transferor employees who

accept employment with Transferee or its Affiliate shall not experience a period of unemployment in
connection with the transactions contemplated herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Transferor shall be
solely responsible for any liabilities related to or arising out of employment of any such employees of
Transferor and the termination of employment of such employees by Transferor.

(d) Not less than thirty (30) days prior to the Closing, Transferee shall (i) identify to
Transferor all Transferor employees identified on Schedule 4.6(a) to whom Transferee and its Affiliates
will not offer employment, and (ii) identify to Transferor all employees of Affiliates of Transferor (such
as, without limitation, dieticians, clinicians, division vice-presidents, sales people, and such other similar
positions) providing services to such Transferred Facilities to whom Transferee or its Affiliates would
þtopore to make offers (such individuals under subsection (ii) being "\ffilíated-Service Transþree
Employees"), subject to consent in the sole discretion of the applicable Transferor Affiliate. To the extent
that Transferor's applicable Affiliate provides such consent, then the requirements regarding employment
and hiring of Affiliated-Service Transferee Employees by Transferee and its Affiliates will be the same
for Transferee and its Affiliates as those for Transferee Employees under this Section 2.5.
(e)

The Parties shall work together in good faith to coordinate reasonably regarding
between the date of the scheduling updates in this Section and the Effective
occur
employee changes that
its schedules and records accordingly.
update
Time so that each Party can

(Ð

Except as otherwise required by Law, Transferor shall pay the employees at the

Facility in accordance with its standard payroll practice, all earned wages due and payable as of the
Closing Date including, but not limited to, paid time off, personal leave, and vacation benefits as of the
Effective Time, and any severance, retention bonus or other change in control payment payable to any
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Transferred Employee or Affiliated Service Transferee Employee, as applicable, that become due or owed
as a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this OTA.

(g) All Transferee Employees hired by Transferee who accept and commence
Transferee following the Effective Time shall be employed by Transferee on an "at
with
employment
shall initially employ Transferee Employees on the following terms and
Transferee
will" basis.
not to trigger WARN Act liability: (i) comparable base salary or rates of pay
manner
as
conditions in such
prior
to the Closing Date for employees of similar tenure performing comparable
immediately
as in effect
skilled nursing facilities, and (ii) employee benefits that are comparable in
other
services at Transferee's
that
are provided by Transferee to its employees under the Plans at its other
the aggregate to the benefits
In furtherance and not in limitation of the foregoing, Transferee shall
operations.
skilled nursing facility
service with Transferee for purposes of determining eligibility to
Transferor
as
treat prior service with
prograÍìs
maintained by Transferee. It is understood that Transferee
receive and participate in all benefits
workers' compensation benefits to or for any Transferor's
pay
or
any
disability
shall not be responsible to
or
who experienced a disability or injury covered under
benefits
employee who is receiving such
plans
compensation insurance program on or before the
or
workers
Transferor's or Seller's benefit
Closing, and that Transferor or Seller, as applicable, shall continue to be responsible for payment of such
benefits until such obligation terminates under the applicable benefit plans or Laws. Transferee, at
reasonable times in advance of Closing upon prior written notice to and coordination with Transferor,
shall be entitled to meet with the employees of the Facilities and distribute employment applications and
benefit enrollment packages. This OTA shall not create and shall not be deemed to create or grant to any
Transferred Employee any third party beneficiary rights or claims or any cause of action of any kind or
nature.

(h)

to Treasury Regulations

Section 1.4094-1(h)(4), Transferor and
Employee shall be treated as having a
Transferee
Date,
each
Transferee agree that on the Closing
of
the
Code and Treasury Regulations Section
4094
"separation from service" for purposes of Section
Pursuant

1.4094-1(h).

(Ð

Subject to Section 2.5(m), Transferor or Seller shall retain the liability for the
claims respecting all employees of Transferor (including the Transferee Employees) that are incurred
under any Plan prior to the Effective Time.

Transferor, Seller and, to the extent applicable, Seller Affiliates, expressly
assume and retain any liability arising under COBRA with respect to any "M&A qualified beneficiaries"
(as that term is defined in the COBRA regulations). To satisfy this liability, such party shall continue to
maintain group health plan coverage for at least eighteen (18) months after the Closing and shall not
terminate its COBRA obligations by terminating its group health plan prior to the expiration of such
minimum eighteen (18) month period after Closing.

1j)

(k)

Transferee shall be responsible for any and all liabilities arising out of or with
respect to any Transferee Employee arising with respect to employment by Transferee after the Effective
Time or attributable to events or circumstances occurring after the Effective Time.

0)

The Parties acknowledge and agree that all provisions contained

in

this

Section 2.5 with respect to employees are included for the sole benefit of the respective Parties and shall
not create any right (i) in any other Person, including any employees, former employees, any participant
in any Plan or Transferee Plan or any beneficiary thereof, or (ii) to continued employment with any
Transferor or Transferee, or particular benefits or coverage in any Plan or Transferee Plan. For the
avoidance of doubt, (A) the provisions of this Section 2.5 shall not constitute an amendment to any Plan
or Transferee Plan, and (B) in no event shall any employee, former employee, any participant in any Plan
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or Transferee Plan or any beneficiary thereof or any other Person described herein be a third party
beneficiary for purposes of this OTA.

(m)

tmmediately following the Closing, Transferee shall provide Transferee

Employees who accept employment with Transferee, as well as eligible dependents of such employees
(collectively, with the Transferee Employees, "Affected Particípønts") the opportunity to participate in
the applicable employee benefit plans, prograrns or policies maintained or established by Transferee that
are comparable to the plans and benefits Transferee provides at its other skilled nursing

facility operations

(each, a "Transferee Plan"), which may include medical, dental, vision, and/or any other applicable
group medical plan, program, insurance coverage or arrangement (collectively "Group Heakh Plan"). If
elected, the benefits offered to such employees must extinguish Transferor's COBRA insurance coverage
obligations. With respect to each Transferee Plan in which Affected Participants become eligible to
participate, subject to the consent of any applicable insurer, Transferee shall: (i) waive any eligibility
waiting periods, any evidence of insurability requirements and the application of any pre-existing

condition limitations under such Plan, except to the extent that such waiting period, evidence of
insurability requirement, or pre-existing condition limiøtions would not have been satisfied or waived
under the comparable Plan in which the Affected Participant participated immediately prior to the
Effective Time; and (ii) provide each Affected Participant credit for copays and deductibles under any
Transferee Groúp Health Plan to place each Affected Participant in the same place that such Affected
Participant was in under the Transferor's Group Health Plans immediately prior to the Closing.

2.6

Consents to Assignment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, this
OTA shall not constitute an agreement to assign or transfer any contract or lease, or any claim, right or
benefit arising thereunder or resulting therefrom, if an attempted assignment or transfer thereof, without
the consent of a third party thereto or of the issuing Governmental Entity, as the case may be, would
constitute a breach thereof. The Parties shall cooperate to obtain any consents of any parties necessary to
permit the assignment of the Assumed Contracts. Transferor and Transferee acknowledge that certain of
the Assumed Contracts may not, by their terms, be assignable and, accordingly, none of such nonassignable Assumed Contracts shall be deemed assigned to or assumed by Transferee unless and until the
same shall become so assignable. If and when any necessary consent shall be obtained or any such
Assumed Contract shall otherwise become assignable, Transferor shall take all necessary action to assign
all of its rights and obligations thereunder to Transferee and Transferee shall, without the payment of any
pre-closing liabilities, assume such rights and obligations. Until such time as the Assumed Contracts are
assigned to Transferee, Transferor shall not enter into any amendments of such non-assignable Assumed
Contracts without the prior written consent of Transferee. Until such time as the non-assignable Assumed
Contracts are assumed by Transferee, (a) Transferee shall perform and discharge fully all of the

obligations of Transferor under any of such non-assignable Assumed Contracts to the extent the same
would have constituted assumed liabilities if the Assumed Contracts had been assumed by Transferee as
of the Closing Date and to the extent the same relate to the period of time after the Closing Date, and
Transferee shall indemnify, hold harmless, protect and defend Transferor and its respective officers,
employees, managers and members, from and against any and all damages, demands, costs, expenses and
liabilities arising out of Transferee's failure to make payments or perform any other obligations which
relate to the period of time after the Closing Date occurring under the Assumed Contracts or nonassignable Assumed Contracts after the Closing Date, and (b) Transferor shall, without further
consideration therefore, pay, assign and remit to Transferee promptly all monies received or which may
be received or obtained in respect of the non-assignable Assumed Contracts related to periods after the
Closing Date and Transferor shall take such reasonable actions as shall be necessary to confer on
Transferee any other benefits that may be available under such non-assignable Assumed Contracts.

2.7 Excluded Assets. Transferee shall not purchase, and Transferor shall retain, any right,
title and interest in the assets listed on Exhibit 2.7 (collectively , "Excluded Assefs").
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ARTICLE III
THE CLOSING

3.1

Time and Place of Closine. Subject to the satisfaction or waiver of all of the conditions
precedent set forth in this OTA, the consummation of the transactions contemplated under this OTA (the
"Closìng") shall take place on the same date as the closing with respect to the Facility under the Purchase
Agreement, or on such other date as shall be mutually agreed upon by the Parties hereto and Purchaser.
The date on which the Closing occurs is referred to herein as the "C/osíng Date." Notwithstanding the
actual time at which the Closing occurs, the time ("Effective Tíme") as of which the Closing shall be
deemed to be effective and the risk of loss shall pass from Transferor to Transferee shall be 12:00:01 a.m.
(local time where the Facility is located) on the day after the Closing Date.

3.2

Closins Matters. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this OTA, at

the Closing:

(a) Transferor shall deliver to Transferee a bill of sale in the form attached hereto as
(the
"Bíll of Søle") and such endorsements, assignment instruments, and other instruments
Exhibit 3.2(a)
of transfer and conveyance as shall be reasonable or necessary to convey, transfer, assign and deliver the
Assets to Transferee pursuant to the terms of this OTA and to convey, fransfer, assign and deliver any and
all interest it has in the furniture, fixtures and equipment of the Facility to the fee purchaser under the
Purchase Agreement (if applicable);
(b) Transferor shall deliver an assignment of its interests to the items listed in
without limitation, the Assumed Contracts, pursuant to an assignment and
including,
Article II
assumption agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 3.2(b) (the "Assígzment and Assumption
Agreement");

(c)

Transferor and Transferee shall execute and deliver to the other a Certificate in
hereto
as Exhibit 3.2(c) ("Bríng Down Cefüfi.cate");
the form attached

(d) Transferor and Transferee shall execute a closing statement with respect to the
prorations contemplated by Section 3.3 hereof, and the Party owing pursuant to such statement shall pay
the amount due in immediately available funds at Closing;
(e)

Not later than ten (10) days after the Closing, Transferor shall execute

and

deliver to Transferee a detailed schedule and an assignment of all Resident Trust Funds;

(Ð Transferor shall execute and deliver to Transferee an assignment of any and all
security deposits or advance deposits from Residents, and Transferee shall deliver to Transferor a written
receipt for such funds indicating that Transferee is accepting such funds in trust for the Residents;
(g)

Transferor shall deliver to Transferee, to the extent that they are not posted at the

Facility, certificates, licenses, permits, authorizations and/or approvals issued for or with respect to such
Facility by any Governmental Entity;

(h)

Transferor shall deliver to Transferee, or leave at the Facility, the originals (or
copies) of all Assumed Contracts in effect on the Closing Date;

(Ð

Transferor shall deliver to Transferee a current and complete list of the names of

each Resident in the Facility;
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Not later than ten (10) days after the Closing, Transferor shall deliver a detailed
Accounts Receivable aging as of the Effective Time noting all balances owed to Transferor for dates of
service prior to the Effective Time as described in Section 6' l0 below;

çj)

(k)

Transferor shall provide

to

Transferee an updated Schedule 4.6(a) that lists

Transferor's employees as of the Closing Date;

(l)

Transferor shall deliver an Assignment of Admission Agreements, a Termination

of any existing real property lease where a Kindred affiliate is the Fee owner or Ground Lessee, the IMA,
where applicable, and keys to the Facility; and

3.3 Closing and Post-Closing Adjustments: Costs and Prorations. In addition to any other
items agreed upon by the Parties, the following items are to be apportioned between Transferor and
Transferee on a pro-rata basis as to ownership as of the Closing Date, in accordance with the general
principle that Transferor shall be entitled to the revenue attributable to, and responsible for such expenses
ãnd obligations attributable to, the Facility for the period up to and including the Closing Date, and
Transferee shall be entitled to the revenue attributable to, and responsible for such expenses and
obligations attributable to, the conduct of the Facility after the Closing Date:
'Water, gas, electric, telephone and other utility charges, and sewer and waste
water charges, shall be prorated, to the extent possible prior to the Closing, as of the applicable Closing
Date. For metered service, Transferor shall pay or cause to be paid the utility bills for services rendered
prior to the readings, and Transferee shall pay the utility bills for the services rendered after the readings.
If utty nt"t"red utility is read on any day other than the applicable Closing Date, Transferor and Transferee
shall prorate such utility charges consistent with the most recent bills, and then reconcile following the
Closing as provided in Section 3.3(i). In furtherance of the foregoing, Transferee shall work to transition
the utilities serving the Facility into the name of Transferee effective as of the Effective Time, and
Transferor shall reasonably cooperate with Transferee.

(a)

(b)

Subject to and consistent with Section 6.10, all revenue (including rent and
fees)
attributable to any period ending on or prior to the Closing Date shall belong
Residents' occupancy
to Transferor, and all revenue (including rent and Residents' occupancy fees) attributable to any period
after the Closing Date shall belong to Transferee.

(c) For expenses of the Facility, Transferee shall remit to Transferor any invoices
which reflect a service or delivery date on or before the applicable Closing Date, and Transferee shall
assume responsibility for the payment of any invoices which reflect a service or delivery date after the
Closing Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Transferee acknowledges and agrees that it shall have no
right, title or interest in and to any retroactive workers compensation insurance progmm payments
whether or not the same are paid prior to or after the Closing Date if and to the extent they relate to any
period prior to the Closing Date.
(d) Any and all deposits of Transferor with respect to the Facility including, without
and
all equipment leases, security and/or utility deposits paid to and/or cash or other
limitation, any
collateral held by any equipment lessor or by any utility, insurance company or surety, shall remain the
sole and exclusive property ofTransferor, and Transferee shall have no right or interest therein or thereto,
and to the extent that Transferor does not receive a return of any such deposit on the Closing Date and
such security deposit has been assumed by Transferee, Transferee shall reimburse Transferor on the
Closing Date the full amount of any such security deposit assumed by Transferee'
(e)

Transferor and

Any bed Tax or similar provider Taxes or fees shall be pro-rated between
Transferee based on the period of its operation of the Facility occurring before and after

l0

the Closing Date, as the case may be, including, but not limited to, any such assessments made by the
State in which the Facility is located and/or paid by Transferor prior to or on the Closing Date that would
apply to operation of the Facility after the Closing Date.

(Ð

[n the event that there is a governmental assessment against the property upon
which the Facility is situated, Transferor shall be responsible for that which relates to the period prior to
the Effective Time and Transferee shall be responsible for that which relates to the period after the
Closing Date.

(g) Transferor shall pay the reasonable cost of Transferee's compliance with those
physical plant Life Safety Code ("ZSC") Deficiencies and/or fire safety standards violations that were
identified on a survey of the Facility as a deficiency and that was not cured by Transferor prior to the
Closing (" D efrcie ncie s" ).

(h) Transferor shall be responsible for any and all fines, and the reasonable cost to
Facility
into substantial compliance to the extent the Facility is cited for compliance violations
the
bring
operation of the Facility prior to Closing by any Governmental Authority or
to
the
attributable
Program which relates to equipment, furniture, fixtures or the condition of
Reimbursement
Government
grounds,
issues (collectively, "Complíance Violations"). For the avoidance
or
operational
the building or
Violations will not include (i) any violations where a plan of
and
Compliance
of doubt, Deficiencies
Authority, except for (l) liabilities or obligations
Governmental
by
a
correction has been accepted
or (2) capital repairs or physical improvements
lmposition,
Pre-Closing
relating to or arising from any
(ii) any citation for which Transferor currently
Imposition;
or
Pre-Closing
resolve
a
required to remove or
Authority.
holds a waiver issued by a Governmental
(Ð

All such prorations shall be made on the basis of actual days elapsed in the
or revenue period and shall be based on the most recent information available
billing
relevant accounting,
Transferor and Transferee shall reasonably cooperate to produce prior to
Transferee.
to Transferor and
prorations
to be made under this Section 3.3 at the Closing that is as complete
the Closing a schedule of
possible.
All prorations that can be accurately or reasonably estimated as of
and accurate as reasonably
All other prorations, and adjustments to initial estimated
the
Closing.
the Closing shall be made at
Parties
with
due diligence and cooperation within one hundred twenty
prorations, shall be made by the
later
time as may be required to obtain necessary information
(120) days following the Closing, or such
for proration, by payment in immediately available funds by wire transfer to one or more bank accounts
designated in writing of the Party yielding a net credit from such prorations from the other Party.
ARTICLE IV
AND
WARRANTMS OF TRANSEEROB
REPRESENTATIONS
In order to induce Transferee to enter into this OTA, Transferor hereby represents and warrants to
Transferee as of the Execution Date and as of the Closing Date (or in the case of representations and
warranties that by their terms speak as of a specified date, as of such specified date), as to itself and the
Facility only, as follows:

4.1

Corporate.

(a)

Organization. Transferor is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in good

standing under the Laws of the jurisdiction of its organization.

(b)

Power and Authority: Authorizatiou Enforceability. Transferor has all necessary
corporate, partnership or similar power and authority to own, operate and lease the Assets, and to caffy on

its business as and where such is now being conducted, including the Business. Transferor has all
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necessary co{porate, partnership or similar power and authority to enter into the documents and
instruments to be executed and delivered by Transferor pursuant hereto and to carry out the transactions
contemplated hereby. The execution and delivery of this OTA and the performance of this OTA by
Transferor has been duly and validly authorized. This OTA constitutes the legal, valid and binding
obligation of Transferor, enforceable against Transferor in accordance with its terms, except as such
enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar
Laws and equitable principles relating to or limiting creditors' rights generally.

(c) Qualification. With respect to the Business, Transferor is duly qualified or
licensed to do business, and is in good standing, in all jurisdictions (domestic and foreign) in which the
character or the location of the assets owned or leased by it or the nature of the business conducted by it
requires such licensing or qualification.
(d) No Conflicts or Violations. Subject to obtaining the consents, neither the
execution and delivery of this OTA, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby, nor the fulfillment of the terms hereof by Transferor shall (i) violate or result in a breach of any
of the material terms and provisions of, constitute a default under, conflict with, or result in any
acceleration of rights, benefits or obligations of any party under any Assumed Contract to which
Transferor is a party or by which it is bound, (ii) violate any Order of any Governmental Authority
applicable to Transferor, (iii) result in the creation of any material Encumbrance upon any Asset pursuant
to the terms of any such Assumed Contract, (iv) constitute a violation by Transferor of any applicable
Law, (v) result in the breach of any of the material terms or conditions of, or constitute a default under, or
otherwise cause any impairment of, any permit, license or other governmental authorization held by
Transferor, or (vi) conflict with or violate any organizational document of Transferor, except in the case
of sub-clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v), to the extent that any such violation, breach or Encumbrance
would not reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the aggregate, a Material Adverse Effect on
the Facility.
4.2

Notices. Except as listed in Schedule 4.2, neither the Facility nor Transferor has
the last two (2) years, written notice: (a) that the Facility will be subject to a rate
during
received,
or Medicare services provided therein as a result of a Medicare or Medicaid audit;
for
Medicaid
reduction
(b)
from any Governmental Entity that results in a Material Adverse Effect to the Facility or identifies
or
that the Facility is in violation of Law which has not been cured, except where such violation would not
reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect. Transferor shall disclose any rate reduction
or bed count reduction of which it becomes aware and any rate reduction proposal or bed count reduction
proposal of which it becomes aware that will affect the Facility.

4.3

Litigation. Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.3, there is no Action pending or, to
Transferor's Knowledge, threatened against Transferor with respect to the Assets or the Business.
Transferor is not subject to any Order relating to the Assets or the Business.

4.4

Taxes

(a) All Returns required to be filed by or on behalf of Transferor on or before the
respect to the Business or the Assets have been duly and timely filed (or subject to
Date
with
Closing
proper extensions) with the appropriate taxing authority in all jurisdictions in which such Returns are
required to be filed, and all such Returns are true, complete and correct in all material respects.
(b)

All Taxes of Transferor shown on any such Return with respect to the Business
due
and payable on the Execution Date have been fully and timely paid.
that
are
the
Assets
and
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(c)

There are no Encumbrances for Taxes upon the Assets other than statutory liens
yet
due or payable.
for Taxes not

4.5

Emplovee Benefit Plans.

(a)

Schedule 4.5(a) lists all Employee Benefit Plans including, without limitation,

any welfare plan within the meaning of Section 3(l) of ERISA, or any pension plan within the meaning of
Section 3(2) of ERISA, that Transferor or Affiliate sponsors, maintains, contributes or is obligated to
sponsor, maintain, or contribute to the benefit of any current or former employees or other service
provider of the Business (or any dependent or beneficiary thereof), or under which Seller, Kindred, or
Transferor has any material liability with respect any current or former employee or other service
provider of the Business (each, a "Plan"). Transferor has delivered or otherwise made available in the
VDR to Transferee true, accurate and complete copies of each Plan (or, if the Plan has not been reduced
to writing, a written summary of all material terms).

(b) Each Plan that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code (each
a "Qualifted Plan") has received a favorable determination, opinion, or advisory letter from the IRS
indicating that such Qualified Plan (or the master, prototype, or volume submitter form on which it is
established) is so qualified under the Code in forrr¡ and no fact or event has occurred since the issuance of
the most recent such letter that creates a material risk of revocation of any such letter. Transferor has
made available to Transferee a copy of such determination, opinion, or advisory letter.
(c)

Neither Transferor nor any ERISA Affiliate thereof currently

sponsors,

maintains, or contributes to (or has an obligation to sponsor, maintain or contribute to) or sponsored,
maintained or contributed to (or had an obligation to sponsor, maintain or contribute to) any "employee
pension benefit plan" (as defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA) for which Transferor or any ERISA Affiliate
has any liability covering employees of the Business that is subject to Title IV of ERISA or Code Section
412, including any "multi-employer plan" as defined in Section 3(37) or a001(aX3) of ERISA, or any
*ERISA Afft'líate" means any
"multiple employer plan' subject to Section 4063 or 4064 of ERISA.
Person that is considered a single employer with such Person under Section 414þ), (c), (m) or (o) of the
Code, any Transferor, Transferor Affiliate or Joint Venture lnterest.

(d) With respect to each Plan, Transferor, or its Affiliates, as applicable, have
funded, administered and maintain each Plan in material compliance with all applicable Laws, including
ERISA and the Code, and there is no litigation or proceeding pending (other than routine claims for
benefits) or, to the Knowledge of Transferor, threatened or anticipated with respect to any Plan in
connection with the Business.
(e) Except as required under COBRA, no Plan provides or promises benefits,
including death or medical or other health-related benefits, with respect to current or former Service
Providers of the Business beyond retirement or other termination of service, and Transferor or its
Affiliates have no obligation to provide or contribute toward the cost of any such benefits.
(Ð

Neither the execution and delivery of this OTA and any related documents nor
the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will, either alone or in combination with any
other event, (i) increase any benefits payable under any Plan, including acceleration of the payment or
vesting ofany benefit under any Plan, or (ii) entitle any employee to severance payable by Transferee or
any Affiliate thereof; provided, however, that benefits due and payable from a Plan may be paid or made
available due to a termination of employment from Transferor in the ordinary course of administration of
any such Plan.
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4.6

Employees.

(a)

Schedule 4.6(a) contains a true and correct list of (i) all of the current employees
of the Business as of June 12, 2017, including those employees on a leave of absence of any kind, (ii)
each such employee's name, title, and location of employment, (iii) each such employee's employment
status (i.e., whether employees is actively employed or not actively employed due to illness, short-term
disability, sick leave, authorized leave of absence, layoff for lack of work or service in the Armed Forces
of the United States or for any other reason), (iv) each such employee's hourly wage rate, salary level or
annual rate of compensation, including bonuses and incentive pay, (v) the hours worked by each such
employee during the preceding twelve months, the exempt or non-exempt status of each employee
(whether or not paid at an hourly or salary rate), (vi) each employee's date of hire or commencement of
most recent employment, (vii) a description of any fringe benefits (other than the standard fringe benefits

offered by Transferor to all qualifying employees), and (viii) existing contractual arrangement with
employees, if any (it being understood that all Parties do not consider any "at-will" arrangements with
employees to be Contracts).

(b)

Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.6ô), all salary, wages, commissions, bonuses
and other cash compensation due and payable to employees ofTransferor on or prior to the date hereof, as
of the Closing Date, shall be paid in full on or promptly following the Closing Date in accordance with
Transferor's standard payroll practices.

(c)

All workers directly engaged by Transferor (excluding

any engagement through a

staffîng agency) and classified by Transferor as independent contractors since January 1,2014, have in
good faith satisfied the requirements of applicable Law to be so classified, and Transferor has in good
faith fully and accurately reported each such person's compensation on IRS Forms 1099 during such
period when required to do so.

(d)

Transferor has complied, in all material respects, with all applicable Laws
pertaining to labor or employment practices or relations (including, but not limited to, the terms and
conditions of employment, management-labor relations, employee classification, records retention, equal
opportunity employment, non-discrimination, disability accommodation, human rights, statutory and
regulatory employer notice requirements (including requirements pursuant to the Fair Credit Reporting
Act, the United States tmmigration and Nationality Act, as amended, federal, state, provincial and local
minimum wage laws, regulations and ordinances, federal and state family, medical and military leave

laws and regulations, occupational safety and health laws and regulations, and any other similar
applicable Law mandating employer notice of employer and/or employee rights and responsibilities under
such Law), statutory and contractual leaves of absence, wage and hour issues, immigration, occupational
safety and health, workers' compensation, pay equity and human rights and the employment or
termination of employment of their employees, including all such Laws relating to equal employment
opportunities, payment of wages (including, but not limited to, payment of hourly wages, overtime,
salaries, commissions, bonuses, profit sharing, unemployment compensation, benefits, and vacation, sick
or other earned time off benefits due and payable to such employees under any policy, practice, Contract,
program or applicable Law) or illegal discrimination).

(e)

Except as set forth in Schedule 4.6(e), there are no outstanding, pending or, to

Transferor's Knowledge, threatened, actions, causes of action, claims, complaints, grievances, demands,
orders, prosecutions, or suits against Transferor (including its and their respective directors, officers,
agents, or employees) claiming that Transferor has violated any applicable employment Laws before any
Governmental Authority or labor relations board, including the National Labor Relations Board, the
Department of Labor, and the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission regarding any employees of
the Business. No written notice has been received by Transferor of the intent of any Governmental
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Authority responsible for the enforcement of labor or employment Laws to conduct an investigation of
Transferor regarding any employees ofthe Business and no such investigation is in progress.

(Ð

Except as set out on Schedule 4.6(fl, Transferor is not a party to any collective

bargaining agreement relating to the Business.

(g)

Except as set forth in Schedule 4.6(9), since January 1,2014, Transferor has not
experienced any labor disputes, any union organization attempts or any work stoppages, walk outs,
strikes, or lock outs due to labor disagreements. There are no unfair labor practice charges or complaints
pending or threatened against Transferor. There is no labor strike, dispute, request, petition or pending
election for representation, slowdown or stoppage pending, or to Transferor's Knowledge, threatened or
anticipated against or affecting Transferor.

(h)

Transferor maintains an Employment Eligibilþ Form on Form I-9
employee currently employed in the United States in accordance with applicable Law.

for

each

(Ð Except as set forth in Schedule 4.6(i) or with respect to employees subject to a
collective bargaining agreement, all employees of Transferor are employed at-will, may be terminated at
any time with or without notice and for any reason or no reason at all, without material cost or penalty to
Transferor.

(j) Except with respect to transactions contemplated by this OTA, Transferor has not
implemented any employee layoffs that could implicate the WARN Act or any similar applicable foreign,
state or local Law, and no such events are currently planned, anticipated or announced. To Transferor's
Knowledge, no officer or executive of Transferor (i) has any present intention to terminate his or her
employment within the first twelve (12) months following the Closing Date, or (ii) is a party to any
confidentiality, non-competition, proprietary rights or other such agreement that would materially restrict
the performance of such employee's employment duties, or the ability of Transferor to conduct the
Business.

4.7

Encumbrances

(a) Transferor has good and marketable title to, or in the case of personal property
held under a lease or other Assumed Contract (subject to the terms of the lease or other Assumed
Contract), an enforceable leasehold interest in, or right to use, the Assets, and none of the Assets are
subject to any Encumbrance other than Permitted Encumbrances.

(b) V/ith respect to any matter in excess of One Hundred Thousand Dollars
($100,000.00), all contractors, subcontractors and other Persons furnishing work, labor, materials or
supplies for the development and construction of the Facility and/or Assets have been paid, or prior to
Closing shall be paid, whether the work is in progress or completed, for all work performed, material,
supplies and the like up to and including the Closing Date, and there are no claims against any Transferor
or Facility, or any of the Assets in connection therewith which may give rise to a mechanic's lien against
any Facility, the Assets or any portion thereto, except as set forth on Schedule 4.7(lc-')
(c) Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.7(c), there are no Encumbrances against
Transferor's A"/R, provider agreements, bank accounts or licenses, and to the extent there are such liens
extant, the obligations they secure will be paid in full at Closing and the liens on such assets will be
released at Closing unless otherwise indicated as or such constitute an Assumed Liability.

15

4.8

Certain Healthcare Matters: Compliance Generally

(a)

GovernmentReimbursementPrograms.

(Ð

Except as set forth on Schedule 4.8(aXi), the Facility is (A) qualified for
contracts with, the applicable Government
Reimbursement Programs and/or their fiscal intermediaries or paying agents in which the Facility
participates, all of which Government Reimbursement Programs are listed on Schedule 4.8(aXi), and is in

participation

compliance

in, and has current and valid provider

with the conditions of participation or requirements applicable with respect to

such

participation, and (B) eligible for payment under the applicable Government Reimbursement Programs in
which the Facility participates for services rendered to qualified beneficiaries.

(iÐ

All Cost Reports required to be filed for each of the Facility have been
prepared and filed in good faith in accordance with applicable Laws when due, and are true, correct, and
complete in all material respects (and true and complete copies of Cost Reports for the past three (3) fiscal
years have been set out in the VDR).

(iii) All amounts shown as due from the Facility in the Cost Reports either
were remitted with such Cost Reports or will be remitted when required by applicable Law and are
appropriately reflected in the Financial Statements, and all amounts shown in the Notices of Program
Reimbursement as due have been, or prior to the Closing will be, paid when required by applicable Law.
(iv) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.8(aXiv), Transferor has not, during the
last two (2) years, received written notice of any dispute or claim by any Governmental Authority, fiscal
intermediary or other Person regarding the Facility and the Government Reimbursement Programs or the
participation by the Facility in such Programs that have not been cured, and to Transferor's Knowledge,
there are no (A) threatened recoupment claims for services provided by the Business, or (B) threatened
suspensions, terminations, or restrictions to any contracts with Government Reimbursement Programs
and/or their fiscal intermediaries or paying agents.
(v) Except as set forth in Schedule 4.8(aXv), there are no (A) current,
pending or outstanding Government Reimbursement Program audits or appeals, (B) Cost Reports that are
subject to audits, (C) Cost Reports that remain "open" or unsettled, and (D) current or pending
Government Reimbursement Program or Private Program recoupment efforts (other than those conducted
in the ordinary course), in each case with respect to the Facility.
(b) Licenses. The Facility's skilled nursing facility license and CLIA waivers are set
forth on Schedule 4.8(bXi), and all other material Licenses applicable to the Business are located at the
Facility. All such Licenses are all of the material Licenses necessary for the ownership and operation of
the Facility as currently conducted. Such Licenses are in full force and effect, have not been pledged as
collateral security, no proceeding is pending or, to Transferor's Knowledge, threatened, seeking the
revocation or limitation of any such License. The Facility is duly licensed as a skilled nursing facility or
assisted living facility, as applicable, as required under the Laws in the State where the Facility is located,
for at least that number of beds as currently listed on the Licenses. Schedule 4.8(bXii) sets forth a true,
correct, and complete list of the number and types of licensed beds at the Facility and whether such beds
are Medicaid and/or Medicare certified. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.8(bXiii), there are no
proceedings or actions pending or, to Transferor's Knowledge, contemplated to reduce the number of
licensed or certified beds of any Facility. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.8(bXiv), Transferor has not
received written notice of any violations of the LSC, flre, building and other applicable codes, ordinances,
current zoning requirements, rules, and regulations that have not been cured or for which Transferor has
received a waiver under applicable Law. Schedule 4.8(bXv) sets forth a complete and accurate list of
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LSC waivers, decertification proceedings, licensure revocations, and termination and

suspension

proceedings for the past two (2) years.

(c) Compliance Generally. The Facility has been operated in compliance in all
material respects with all applicable Laws, including all Healthcare Requirements, governing the conduct
or operation of the Business, and Licenses. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.8(cXi), Transferor has not
received any written notice of any violation of any such Law or License that has not been cured and, to
Transferor's Knowledge, no notice ofsuch violation has been threatened, except where any such violation
would not have a Material Adverse Effect on the Facility. There are no outstanding or, to Transferor's
Knowledge, threatened or potential Order, subpoena, or investigation from any Governmental Authority,
whistleblower suits, or suits brought pursuant to federal or state False Claims Acts or Laws relating to any
Governmental Reimbursement Program of or relating to any alleged or actual, violation of any Laws.
Except as set forth on Schedule 4.S(cXii), there have been no written notices of violations of Referral
Laws relating to the operation of the Facility, nor to Transferor's Knowledge are there any conditions at
the Facility which would reasonably be expected to cause a violation of Referral Laws or analogous state
statute. To Transferor's Knowledge, Transferor has not (i) made any contributions, payments or gifts to
or for the private use of any governmental official, employee or agent where either the payment or the
purpose of such contribution, payment or gift is illegal under the laws of the United States or the
jurisdiction in which made, (ii) established or maintained any unrecorded fund or asset for any such
purpose or made any false or artificial entries on its books, (iii) given or received any payments or other
forms of remuneration in connection with the referral of patients that would violate the Referral Laws or
any analogous state statute, or (iv) made any payments to any person with the intention or understanding
that any part of such payment was to be used for inducing a referral or any purpose other than that
described in the documents supporting the payment. Transferor has instituted, and the Facility is operated
in compliance in all material respects with, a compliance plan which follows all applicable Healthcare
Requirements.

(d)

Convictions: Exclusions. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.8(d), neither
Transferor nor any current director, officer, or managing employee, is or has been party to a corporate
integrity agleement, corporate compliance agreement, or other settlement agreement with the Office of
the Inspector General of the United States Department of Health and Human Services, the Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services, the United States Department of Justice, any Medicaid Fraud Control
Unit, or any state Attorney General, as a result of an alleged violation of any Healthcare Requirements
(and the Business, Facility, and Assets are in no way subject to or liable with respect to any such
corporate integrity agreement, corporate compliance agreement, or other settlement agreement). Neither
Transferor nor any curent director, officer, or employee has been excluded from participating in the
Medicare program or any other Government Reimbursement Program. No current officer, director, or
managing employee (as that term is defined in 42 U.S.C. $ 1320a-5(b)) of Transferor has been
(i) excluded from participating in the Medicare program or any other applicable Government
Reimbursement Program; (ii) subject to sanction pursuant to 42 U.S.C. ä l32oa-7a or 1320a-8; or (iü) to
Transferor's Knowledge, convicted of, a criminal offense under or in connection with (A) the Referral
Laws, (B) any Law relating to fraud, theft, embezzlement, breach of fiduciary responsibility, or other
financial misconduct in connection with the delivery of a health care item or service or with respect to any
act or omission in a program operated by or financed in whole or in part by Governmental Authority,
(C) any Law relating to the unlawful manufacture, distribution, prescription, or dispensing of a controlled
substance, (D) any Law relating to the interference with or obstruction of any investigation into the
criminal offenses described herein, or (E) any offense which would permit the exclusion of any Facility
from a Government Reimbursement Program.

(e)

Audits; Settlements. Transferor has provided to Transferee true and complete
notices, and waivers of deficiencies, plans of correction, and any other
investigation reports issued with respect to the Facility together with material correspondence with any
copies of

all survey reports,
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Governmental Authority issued within three (3) years of the Execution Date concerning the Facility by

any Governmental Authority, ZPIC audtt, RAC auditor or other contract auditor on behalf of a
Governmental Authority, an identification of any material settlement agreements and, to Transferor's
Knowledge, any material unresolved matters raised in writing by any such Governmental Authority, RAC
auditor or other contract auditor on behalf of a Governmental Authority. Except as set forlh on Schedule
4.8(e)-1, (i) Transferor has not had any cited deficiencies on its most recent survey (standard or
complaint) that have resulted in a written notice of civil money penalties or a denial of payment for new
admissions as of the Closing Date that have not been cured, and (ii) Transferor has not had any
deficiencies at "level G" or above, or an IJ at Level I or above on its most recent survey (standard or
complaint) that have not been cured. All deficiencies and violations cited in any survey or resurvey have
been corrected or corrective action plans have been submitted and approved therefor and will be fully
implemented/corrected prior to Closing. Except as set forth in Schedule 4.8(e)-2, the Facility is not
currently designated as a Special Focus Facility (as such term is defined by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services Special Focus Facility Program), and has not received any written notice of inclusion
or intended inclusion as a Special Focus Facility.

4.9

Resident Asreements. A copy of the current standard form of Admission Agreement
used by the Facility has been provided to Transferee or otherwise made available to Transferee in the
VDR. To Transferor's Knowledge, there are no other agreements with residents of the Facility which
materially deviate from the standard form.

4.lO

Absence

of Changes. Except as otherwise disclosed in

Schedule 4.10

or the

other

Schedules, or as contemplated by this OTA, from January 1,2017, to the Execution Date, (a) the Business
has been conducted in all material respects in the ordinary course consistent with past practice, and (b) to
Transferor's Knowledge, there has been no change, event, or loss affecting the Business that has had a
Material Adverse Effect on the Facility.

4.ll

Inventory. On the Closing Date, Transferor shall maintain its normal inventory of
supplies, which will be in sufficient quantities of supplies required by Law in all material respects and
consistent with past practices for operation of the Facility.

4.12

Contracts.

(a)

As of the Execution Date, true, correct, and complete copies of all of

the

Assumed Contracts set forth on Schedule 2.1(e) have been made available to Transferee or otherwise
made available in the VDR. As of Closing, true, correct, and complete copies of all of the Assumed
Contracts set forth on Schedule 2.1(e) as revised and supplemented prior to Closing will have been made
available to Transferee or otherwise made available in the VDR. A list of proposed Assumed Contracts is
attached hereto as Schedule 4.12(a). Except as set forth in Schedule 4.12(a), (i)each of the Assumed
Contracts is valid, binding and enforceable in accordance with its terms subject to bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and by
general principles of equity (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in the proceeding in
equity or at law), and (ii) there is not any existing material default or material event of default, or any
event which, with or without notice or lapse of time or both, would constitute a material default under any
Assumed Contract by Transferor. In addition, with respect to each Assumed Contract that is a lease of
equipment or other personal property, except as set forth in Schedule 4.12(a), (i) such lease creates a valid
leasehold interest in all property purported to be leased thereunder, (ii) all rent and other required
payments have been timely paid by Transferor through the date hereof, and (iii) Transferor is in lawful
possession of all of such property. Solely to the extent such changes are required in order to track the
addition or deletion of Assumed Contracts from Schedule 2.1(e), this Schedule 4.12(a) may be updated by
Transferor in consultation with Transferee until fifteen (15) days prior to Closing to reflect such required
changes, after which time this Schedule 4.12(a) shall be deemed final.
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(b)

The execution and delivery of this OTA by Transferor and the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby by Transferor do not require any consent under, constitute (with or
without notice or lapse of time or both) a default under, result in any breach of, or give any Person any
rights of termination, acceleration or cancellation of, any Assumed Contract; except for such consents,
approvals, authorizations, defaults, breaches, terminations, accelerations, cancellations or Encumbrances,
or failures to make any such filing, obtain any such consent, approval or authorization, or provide any
such notice, which would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect.

4.13

Resident Trust Funds. The Resident Trust Funds transferred hereunder are the only such

funds required to be held by applicable Law.

4.14 Environmental Laws. Transferor has not received any written notice of alleged, actual or
potential responsibility for, or any inquiry or investigation regarding the presence or release of any
Hazardous Substance at the Facility in violation of any Environmental Law, which Hazardous Substances
were allegedly manufactured, used, generated, processed, treated, stored, disposed or otherwise, handled
at, or transported or released from such Facility or regarding compliance with Environmental Laws.
Transferor has not received any written notice of any other claim, demand or action by an individual or
entity alleging any actual or threatened injury or damage to any Person or entity, property, natural
resource or the environment arising from or relating to the presence or release of any Hazardous
Substances at, ono under, in, to or from its Facility in connection with any operations or activities of
Transferor thereat.

4.15 Improvements. Except as disclosed on any Title Reports, as defined in the Purchase
Agreement, Transferor has not received any written notice for any assessments for public improvements
against the Facility which remain unpaid including, without limitation, those for construction of sewer,
water, gas and electric lines and mains, streets, roads, sidewalks and curbs.
4.16 Insurance. Transferor has provided to Transferee or otherwise made available in the
VDR, a fue and correct list of all general liability, professional liability, fre, casualty, fidelity, workers'
compensation and other insurance policies currently held by or on behalf of Transferor relating to the
Facility, and a description of any self-insurance arrangements by or affecting the Facility, including any
reserves established thereunder. Each of said policies is in full force and effect and shall be maintained
by Transferor in full force and effect until the Closing, and all premiums due thereunder have been paid
and shall be paid by Transferor until the Closing. Transferor has maintained or caused to be maintained
insurance policies that have insured the Facility and the Assets continuously since the date Transferor frst
operated the Facility.
4.17

Financial Statements: Undisclosed Liabilities.

(a) Transferor has delivered to Transferee or otherwise made available in the VDR,
prior to the Execution Date, the Financial Statements. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.17(a), the
Financial Statements, in all material respects, are complete and accurate and present fairly the financial
position of the Facility as of the dates and periods indicated, in accordance with GAAP subject to normal
year-end adjustments and absence of notes and, to the extent consistent with GAAP, Transferor's past
practices in preparing financial statements, subject, in the case of any quarterly Financial Statements
included therein, to normal year-end audit adjustments.

(b) Except as reflected or reserved for or disclosed in the Financial Statements,
material liabilities relating to the Business of a type or nature to be reflected, in
has
no
Transferor
and, to the extent consistent with GAAP, Transferor's past practices in preparing
with
GAAP
accordance
face of a balance sheet except for (i) liabilities incurred in the ordinary course
on
the
financial statements,
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of business since December 31,2016, consistent with past practice, (ii) obligations arising or resulting
from the terms of any Assumed Contract, and (iii) Excluded Liabilities'

I

Broker. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.1 8, Transferor has not engaged, nor is liable to
4.1
pay any fees, costs or commissions to, any broker, finder, agent or financial advisor (each, a "Broker" and
collectively, "Brokers") in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby.

4.19

Intellectual Property. To Transferor's Knowledge, except as would not reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Facility, (a) Transferor owns or possesses all licenses
or other rights to use all Intellectual Property necessary to conduct the Business as presently conducted,
(b) Transferor has not received any written notice from any third party that the Business as currently
conducted misappropriates or infringes upon any Intellectual Property rights of others, and (c) Transferor
has not received any written notice that any third party is infringing any Intellectual Property owned by
Transferor and used exclusively in connection with the Business.

4.20 NO V/ARRANTY OF CONDITTON. THE ASSETS ARE BEING SOLD,
TRANSFERRED, ASSIGNED AND DELIVERED BY TRANSFEROR AND RECEIVED BY
TRANSFEREE AS IS WHERE IS, AND WTTH ALL FAULTS, AND WITHOUT ANY
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WRITTEN OR
ORAL, WHETHER STATUTORY, ARISING BY OPERATION OF LA\V', ARISTNG BY CUSTOMS
OR USAGES OF TRADE, OR OTHERWISE, EXCEFrT SOLELY AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN
THIS ARTICLE TV TO THIS OTA, THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT, AND THE OTHER
TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS, AND SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL LIMITATIONS AND
QUALIFICATIONS HEREIN; IT BEING THE INTENTION OF TRANSFEROR AND TRANSFEREE
TO ÐGRESSLY REVOKE, RELEASE, WAIVE, DTSCLAIM, NEGATE AND EXCLUDE ALL
EXPRESS AND IMPLIED REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES (EXCEPT SOLELY AS
EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THTS ARTICLE TV TO THIS OTA AND SUBJECT TO ANY AND
ALL LIMITATIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS HEREIN) INCLUDING, }VITHOUT LIMITATION,
AS TO (a) THE CONDITION OF THE ASSETS OR ANY ASPECT THEREOF INCLUDTNG'
WITHOUT LIMTTATION, ANY AND ALL EXPRESS OR TMPLIED REPRESENTATTONS AND
WARRANTIES OF OR RELATED TO MERCHANTABTLITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE
OR PURPOSE OR NON-INFRINGEMENT; (b) THE NATURE OR QUALITY OF CONSTRUCTION,
STRUCTI.JRAL DESIGN, OR ENGTNEERING OF THE ASSETS OR ANY OTHER ASSET OR
PROPERTY, tF ANY; (C) THE QUALITY OF THE LABOR OR MATERIALS INCLUDED IN THE
ASSETS; (d) ANY FEATURES OR CONDITIONS AT OR WHTCH AFFECT THE ASSETS WITH
RESPECT TO ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, USE, POTENTIAL, OR OTIIERWTSE; (C) THE SIZE,
SHAPE, CONFIGURATION, CAPACITY, QUANTITY, QUALITY, CASH FLOW EXPENSES,
VALUE, MAKE, MODEL OR CONDITION OF THE ASSETS; (Ð ALL Ð(PRESS OR IMPLIED
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES CREATED BY ANY AFFIRMATION OF FACT OR
PROMISE OR BY ANY DESCRTPTION OF THE ASSETS; (g) ANY STRUCTURAL OR
CONDTTION OR HAZARD OR THE ABSENCE THEREOF HERETOFORE, NOW OR HEREAFTER
AFFECTING TN ANY MANNER ANY OF THE ASSETS; AND (h) ALL OTHER EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS BY TRANSFEROR WHATSOEVER,
EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS ARTTCLE IV AND SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL
LIMTTATIONS AND QUALIFICATTONS HEREIN. FURTHERMORE, TRANSFEROR MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE FUTURE
PROFITABILTTY, FUTTJRE CASH FLOW OR VIABILITY OF THE BUSINESS RELATED TO THE
ASSETS, ALL OF WHICH TRANSFEREE MUST DETERMINE FROM ITS INVESTTGATTON OF
THE RECORDS OF TRANSFEROR AND THE FACIUTY AND TRANSFEREE'S O'WN BUSINESS
ACUMEN.
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4.21

Disclosure Updates. At any time, and from time to time on or prior to the applicable
Closing Date, Transferor may supplement or amend the schedules (a "Disclosure Update"), provided
such Disclosure Update (a) does not seek to cure a breach of this OTA existing as of the Execution Date
and (b) does not have a Material Adverse Effect on the Facility; and provided further that no such

Disclosure Update shall affect or limit the rights of any Purchaser Indemnified Party to seek
indemnification under Article IX with respect to the facts and circumstances underlying such Disclosure
Update.

,EV
AR
REPRESENTATIONS AND \ryARRANTMS OF TRANSFEREE
In order to induce Transferor to enter into this OTA, Transferee hereby represents and warrants to
Transferor and to the Seller of the Facility as of the Execution Date and as of the Closing Date (or in the
case of representations and warranties that by their terms speak as of a specified date, as of such specified
date), as follows:

5.1

Corporate.

(a)

Organization. Transferee is an entity duly organized, validly existing and in

good standing under the Laws of the jurisdiction of its organization.

(b) Power and Authority: Authorization: Enforceability. Transferee has all necessary
corporate, partnership or similar power and authority to enter into the documents and instruments to be
executed and delivered by Transferee pursuant hereto and to carry out the transactions contemplated
hereby. The execution and delivery of this OTA and the performance of this OTA by Transferee has been
duly and validly authorized. This OTA constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of Transferee,
enforceable against Transferee in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited
by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorgarization, moratorium and other similar Laws and equitable principles
relating to or limiting creditors' rights generally.
(c) Qualification. Transferee is duly qualified or licensed to do business, and is in
good standing, in all jurisdictions (domestic and foreign) in which the character or the location of the
assets owned or leased by it or the nature of the business conducted by it requires such licensing or
qualification.
(d)

No Conflicts or Violations. Neither the execution and delivery of this OTA or

the other Transaction Documents, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby,
nor the fulfillment of the terms hereof by Transferee shall (i) violate or result in a breach of any of the
material terms and provisions of, constitute a default under, conflict with, or result in any acceleration of
rights, benefits or obligations of any party under any contracts to which Transferee is a party or by which

it is bound, (ii) violate any Order of any Governmental Authority applicable to Transferee, or
(iii) constitute a violation by Transferee of any applicable Law, or (iv) conflict with or violate any

organizational document of Transferee.

5.2 Litigation. There are no proceedings, orders, or determinations by or with any arbitrator,
or
other governmental body, authority or agency, or to Transferee's Knowledge, threatened against
court,
or by Transferee or any of its Affiliates that challenge (or could challenge) or seek (or could seek) to
prevent, enjoin, or otherwise delay the consummation of the transactions contemplated under this OTA or
the execution and delivery of any agreement in connection therewith'
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5.3

Broker. Except as set forth in Schedule 5.3, Transferee has not engaged, nor is liable to
pay any fees, costs or commissions to any Broker(s) in connection with the transactions contemplated
hereby.

5.4

Transferee'sReliance.

(a) Transferee acknowledges that it has been assured by Transferor that Transferee
permitted
full and complete access to the Facility, the Records, equipment, Returns, Contracts,
will be
(or summaries thereof), and other properties and assets of Transferor concerning the
policies
insurance
Facility, that it and its representatives have desired or requested to see or review, and that it has been
assured by Transferor that Transferee and its representatives will be permitted a full opportunity to meet
with the officers, management and employees of Transferor to discuss the Facility. Transferee
acknowledges that prior to the Execution Date, it will have conducted such independent investigation of
the Assets and the Facility and Transferor to its own full satisfaction. In connection with Transferee's
investigation, Transferee may have received from Transferor certain projections, forward-looking

statements and other forecasts and certain business plan information. Transferee acknowledges that there
are uncertainties inherent in attempting to make such estimates, projections and other forecasts and plans,
that Transferee is familiar with such uncertainties, that Transferee is taking full responsibility for making
its own evaluation of the adequacy and accuracy of all estimates, projections and other forecasts and plans
so furnished to it (including the reasonableness of the assumptions underlying such estimates, projections,
forecasts or plans), and that (except in the case of fraud) Transferee shall not have or make any claim
against any Þe.son with respect thereto. Accordingly, Transferee acknowledges that Transferor or any
other Person have not and do not make any direct or indirect representation or warranty with respect to
such forward-looking estimates, projections, forecasts or plans (including the reasonableness of the
assumptions underlying such estimates, projections, forecasts or plans).

(b)

Transferee acknowledges that Transferor or any other Person have not made any
representation or warranty, expressed or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of any information

regarding Transferor, the Assets and the Facility furnished or made available to Transferee and its
represeniatives, except as expressly set forth in Article IV and Article IV of the Purchase Agreement, and
Tiansferor or any other Person (including any officer, director, manager, member or partner of any of
Transferor) shall not have or been subject to any liability to Transferee (except in the case of fraud), or
any other Person, resulting from Transferee's use of any information, documents or material made
available to Transferee in any confidential information memoranda, "data rooms," management
presentations, due diligence or in any other form in expectation ofthe transactions contemplated hereby.
lransferee acknowledges that except as expressly set forth in Article IV and Article IV of the Purchase
Agreement, the Facility and the Assets have been acquired without any representation or warranty as to
mérchantability or fitness for any particular purpose of their respective assets, in an "as is" condition and
on a "where is" basis. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Section 5.4 is intended to limit or
modify the representations and warranties contained in this Article V. Transferee acknowledges that,
except for the representations and warranties contained in Article IV and Article IV of the Purchase
Agróement, neither Transferor nor any other Person has made any other express or implied representation
or warranty by or on behalf of Transferor.

ARTICLE VI
COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS

6.1

Conduct of Business. From and after the date hereof and pending the Closing, unless
Transferee shall otherwise consent in writing, from and after the date hereof until the earlier of the
termination of this OTA or the Closing, Transferor shall (a) maintain and operate its applicable Assets
and Facility only in the ordinary and usual course of business diligently and in good faith, consistent with
past practiòe; (b) maintain, repair and replace where appropriate, consistent with past practice, with no
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less than like kind, the real and personal property, equipment, furniture and fixtures, leasehold
improvements in substantially the same condition that exists on the date hereof, reasonable wear and tear
excepted and subject to the requirements to repair and replace as set forth in the Purchase Agreement;
(c) refrain from delaying such repair and/or replacement as a result ofthe pending transfer, except where
such delay is consistent with past practice; (d) replace inventory, supplies and equipment consistent with
past practice; (e) otherwise operate the Facility so as not to cause a breach of any covenant or warranty
contained in this OTA; (Ð exercise its commercially reasonable efforts to preserve Transferor's existing
relationships with suppliers, distributors, customers and others having business relations with Transferor
such that the Facility will not be impaired; (g) maintain all existing policies of insurance (or comparable
policies) of or relating to the Assets and the Facility in full force and effect; (h) use its commercially
reasonable efforts to keep available the services of the present officers and employees of Transferor
involved in the day to day operation of the Facility; (i) use its commercially reasonable efforts maintain
the quality of care to the residents; ú) invoice and collect revenue consistent with past practice; (k) take
reasonable steps to safeguard, maintain and preserve all Facility employee and medical records
transferred under this OTA in accordance with the provisions of, and for the periods prescribed by all
applicable Laws, which shall in no event be less than the steps taken by Transferor in the operation of the
Facility prior to the transactions contemplated under this OTA; (l) avoid immediate jeopardy violations,
maintain provider agïeements without suspension, qualification or limitation or revocation, and avoid
what is commonly known as a "ba.n on admission" or imposition of civil money penalties or the
providing of substandard care; (m) undertake or implement all actions, payments, and plans of correction
required in connection with a Pre-Closing Imposition; (n) complete any capital repairs or physical
improvements required to remove or resolve a Pre-Closing Imposition; (o) notify Transferee if Transferor
becomes aware of any violation or non-compliance with any Law, except where any such violation or
non-compliance would not reasonably be expected to result in a Material Adverse Effect; and (p) actively
market the Facility in a manner consistent with past practice.

6.2

Forbearances. Without limiting the effect of any other provision of this OTA, between
the date hereof and the earlier of the termination of this OTA or the Closing Date, Transferor shall not do
any of the following with respect to the Assets or Facility without the prior written consent of Transferee:

(a)

sell, lease, transfer, convey or otherwise dispose of (other than in the ordinary
course of business consistent with past practice), or cause or permit any Encumbrance (other than
Permitted Encumbrances) to exist on, any of the Assets which will not be released at or prior to the
Closing;

(b)

cancel any Assumed Contract or materially default in the performance of any
Assumed Contract, or obligation, or waive any material default or potential material default by any other
Party, or waive, release, compromise, settle or assign any rights or claims under any Assumed Contract;

(c)

notwithstanding anything else contained in this Article V[, enter into any contract
or other transaction that would be material to the Facility, other than in the ordinary and usual course of
business consistent with past practice and shall not, whether consistent with past practice or otherwise,
enter into or amend any material Contract which is not at will on the part of Transferor or terminable by
Transferor on thirty days or less written notice;

(d)

violate in any material respect, terminate or permit the lapse of, or failure to
preserve any material licenses, permits and other authorizations including, but not limited to, the
certificate of need, if any, or any provider agreements including, without limitation, its provider
agreements with Medicare and Medicaid which are necessary or desirable for the operation of the Facility
as it exists on the date hereof;
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(e) release, compromise or settle any material claim, action or legal proceeding that
in
would result a Material Adverse Effect or may be construed as an obligation of Transferee, other than
in the ordinary and usual course of business consistent with past practice;
(Ð

enter into any transaction with any owner, officer, director, manager or Affiliate
of Transferor or any of their Affiliates, or any relative or Affiliate of any such owner, officer, director,
manager or Affiliate other than consistent with past practice or in contemplation of the transactions to be
carried out pursuant to this OTA or the Purchase Agreement;

(g)

materially change employment terms for any executive or group of employees or
institute, amend or terminate any employee plan other than consistent with past practice or in
contemplation of the transactions to be carried out pursuant to this OTA or the Purchase Agreement;

(h)

enter into any agreement,

or adopt any resolution, to do any of the things

described in subsections (a) through (f) above or otherwise commit any act which would cause Transferor
to breach any covenant, representation or warranty contained in this OTA;

(Ð remove, discharge or transfer residents from the Facility to a nursing facility
operated
or managed by Transferor or any of its Affiliates, nor shall there be any voluntary
owned,
Transferor
of residents from the Facility to any other nursing facility, where such transfer is
by
transfers
of business and not (i) for reasons relating to the health and well-being of the
ordinary
course
not in the
(ii)
for
the election to transfer by the resident or his or her family or attorney-in-fact,
resident transferred,
(iii)
by
Law; or
required
or
otherwise
C) (i) remove or relocate to any Affiliate, any administrator, director of nursing or
other key employee, or (ii) hire new employees except in the ordinary course of business consistent with
past practice.

6.3 Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation. For a period commencing upon Closing and
ending two (2) years after the Closing (the "Restricted Period"), neither Transferor nor its Affiliates (each
a "Restrícted Party") shall (a) directly or indirectly, own, operate or manage any skilled nursing facility
within a ten (10) mile radius of the Facility, except for those facilities listed on Schedule 6.3 (the "NonCompetìtìon Covenønt"); or (b) hire or knowingly and intentionally solicit the Director of Nursing or
Facility Administrator of the Facility, or Purchaser (the "Non-Solícítation Covenant"); provided,
however, Transferor or a Restricted Party may hire any Person after the earlier to occur of (x) twelve (12)
months after such Person's termination, or (y) the expiration of the Restricted Period. Further,
notwithstanding the foregoing, general employment solicitations made pursuant to newspaper, television,
radio or other general advertisement which are not specifically targeted at any particular person or group
of persons shall not be deemed a violation of this Section. In connection with a violation of the NonCompetition Covenant, Transferee shall have all remedies at law and/or equity to enforce such NonCompetition Covenant. Transferor further acknowledges that the scope and duration of the provisions of
this Section 6.3 are reasonable. The terms and provisions of this Section 6.3 shall survive the Closing.
6.4

Access.

(a)

As of the date of execution of this OTA, Transferor shall provide Transferee and

its employees, accountants, consultants, legal counsel, agents and other authorized representatives, during
regular business hours and upon reasonable notice, reasonable access to the Facility, and all other
properties, contracts, commitments, and Records of Transferor that relate to the Facility as Transferee
may reasonably request for the purpose of transferring the Assets and Facility, and facilitating the smooth
transition of operations, and Transferor shall promptly furnish Transferee such information as Transferee
may from time to time reasonably require with respect to the Assets and/or the Facility. Transferor shall
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of such Transferor to take commercially reasonable steps to assist
(at
Transferee's expense) in preparing to transfer the Assets and shall cause the counsel,
Transferee
accountants, consultants, and other non-employee representatives of Transferor to be reasonably available
to Transferee for such purposes. Transferor shall, upon written request by Transferee and reasonable
notice, (i) permit Transferee to conduct on-site visits of Transferor's properties and the Assets that
comprise the Facility; and (ii) assist Transferee in contacting and arranging meetings with such suppliers
of Transferor as consented to by Transferor (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld).
cause the officers and employees

(b)

To the extent permitted under Transferor's credit facility and any other similar
Transferor
will reasonably cooperate with Transferee and its financing sources in an
financing document,
effort to enter into subordination and intercreditor agreements, both of which shall be in a form mutually
agreeable to all such parties.

6.5

Announcement and Disclosure.

(a)

No Party shall issue an initial public announcement, report, statement or press
OTA or the transactions contemplated
hereby without the prior written consent of the other Party, except as otherwise required by Law.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) an announcement by Transferor to its employees or any union
representing same shall not be a breach of the foregoing covenanto and (ii) Transferor shall not be
prohibited from issuing a Public Announcement, at any time, regarding the transaction contemplated by
the Purchase Agreement, including any such announcement that references Transferee, the Facility and/or
the purchase price associated with the same.

release (collectively, a "Public Announcentent") regardrng this

(b) Except as may be necessary to enforce this OTA, or to comply with applicable
Laws including securities Laws, for three (3) years after the last Closing, Transferor shall (i) treat and
hold as confidential any proprietary and confîdential information of Transferor exclusively related to the
Assets or the Assumed Liabilities related to the Facility (collectively, "Confidential Informntíon"), and
(ii) refrain from using any of the Confidential Information except in connection with this OTA. The term
"Confidential Information" shall not include information that is or becomes generally available to the
public by actions of Persons other than Transferor or that pertains to any of the Excluded Assets or the
Excluded Liabilities. If Transferor is required to disclose any Confidential Information in order to
comply with, or avoid violating, any applicable Law, Transferor will use commercially reasonable efforts
to provide Transferee with prompt notice thereof to the extent legally permissible. With the exception of
securities filings reasonably required of a public company like Transferor's indirect parent, to the extent
legally permissible and at Transferee's sole expense, Transferor shall provide Transferee, in advance of
any such disclosure, with copies of any Confidential Information that Transferor intends to disclose (and,
if applicable, the text of the disclosure language itself) and shall reasonably cooperate with Transferee, at
Transferee's sole expense, if permitted by applicable Law, to the extent Transferee may reasonably seek
to limit such disclosure in a manner consistent with applicable Law.
(c)

Except as may be necessary to enforce this OTA or any other Transaction
(3)
years after the last Closing, Transferee shall (i) treat and hold as confidential any
Document, for three
proprietary and confidential information of Transferor or any of its Affiliates that does not exclusively
relate to the Assets or the Assumed Liabilities related to the Facility, including any proprietary and
confidential information relating to any of the Excluded Assets or the Excluded Liabilities (collectively,
"Trønsþror Conftdential Infonnation"), and (ii) refrain from using any of Transferor Confidential
Information except in connection with this OTA. The term "Transferor Confidential Information" shall
not include information that is or becomes generally available to the public by actions of Persons other
than Transferee or any of its Affiliates. If Transferee is required to disclose any Transferor Confidential
Information in order to avoid violating any applicable Law, Transferee will use commercially reasonable
efforts to provide Transferor with prompt notice thereof to the extent legally permissible. To the extent
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legally permissible and at Transferor's sole expense, Transferee shall provide Transferor, in advance of
any such disclosure, with copies of any Transferor Confidential Information that Transferee intends to
disclose (and, if applicable, the text ofthe disclosure language itself) and shall reasonably cooperate with
Transferor, at Transferor's sole expense, if permitted by applicable Law, to the extent Transferor may
reasonably seek to limit such disclosure in a manner consistent with applicable Law.

6.6 Appropriate Action: Consents: Filings. From and after the Execution Date, each of the
Parties shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to obtain from any Governmental Entities or third
parties any consents, licenses, permits, waivers, approvals, authorizations or orders required to be
obtained, or made, by such Party in connection with the authorization, execution and delivery of this OTA
and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and shall provide such notices, and
Transferee shall post such escrows, as required by the applicable Governmental Entities and Laws, and
each Party shall comply with any written agreements with third parties to consummate the transaction.
The Parties shall cooperate with each other in connection with the making of all such filings, including
the timing of such filings and providing copies of all such documents to the non-filing Parties and their
advisors prior to filing and, if requested, to accept all reasonable additions, deletions or changes to such
filings suggested in connection therewith.
6.7

Access to Records. From and after the Closing Date, Transferee shall allow Transferor
and its Affiüates, agents and representatives to have reasonable access to (upon reasonable notice and
during normal business hours), and to make copies ofthe Records (at Transferor's expense), to the extent
reasonably necessary to enable Transferor to, among other things, investigate and defend malpractice,
employee or other claims, to support medical review requests from Medicare or Medicaid, to support

Medicare and Medicaid claims appeals, to file or defend Cost Reports and Tax returns, to
complete/revise, as needed, any patient assessments which may be required for Transferor to seek
reimbursement for services rendered prior to the Closing Date and to enable Transfer to complete, in
accordance with Transferor's policies and procedures, any and all post-Closing Date accounting,
reconciliation and closing procedures including, but not limited to, a month end slose out of all accounts
including, but not limited to, accounts payable and Medicare and Medicaid billing. Transferor agrees not
to use or disclose any of the information obtained from Transferee except solely for the purposes
described herein, and further agrees to maintain this information as confidential. Likewise, from and after
the Closing Date, Transferor shall allow Transferee and its agents reasonable access to the Records
including, without limitation, the Prior Records, to the extent Transferee reasonably requires such access
in connection with, without limitation, accounting, billing, Tax filings or securities filings, Medicare
and/or Medicaid filings and appeals. Transferor shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to provide
such items which require expedited handling to Transferee within ten (10) Business Days of Transferee's
request. Transferee agrees not to use or disclose any ofthe information obtained from Transferor except
solely for the purposes described herein, and further agrees to maintain this information as confidential.
Transferee shall assure that any successor operator of the Facility is legally obligated to provide
Transferor access to the Records in the rnnner required by this Section 6.7.

6.8

Further Assurances. From time to time after the Closing, Transferor shall, at the
reasonable request of Transferee and at Transferee's expense but without further consideration, execute

and deliver any further deeds, bills

of

sale, endorsements, assignments, and other instruments of

conveyance and transfer, and take such other actions as Transferee may reasonably request and consistent
with this OTA in order to (a) more effectively transfer, convey, assign and deliver to Transferee, and to
place Transferee in actual possession and operating control of, and to vest, perfect or confirm, ofrecord or
otherwise, in Transferee all right, title and interest in, to and under the Assets or the Facility, (b) assist in
the collection or reduction to possession of any and all of the Assets or the Facility or to enable
Transferee to exercise and enjoy all rights and benefits with respect thereto, (c) with respect to any payor
agreement that is non-transferrable, reasonably cooperate with Transferee to assist Transferee in securing
a new agïeement, or (d) otherwise carry out the intents and purposes of this OTA. In the case of rights
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(including, without limitation, under any Contract) which cannot be transferred effectively without the
consent of third parties, Transferor shall use its commercially reasonable efforts (within commercially
reasonable limits) to obtain such consent and to assure to Transferee the benefits thereof during the terms
thereof.

6.9

No Negotiation. Until such time as this OTA may be terminated pursuant to Article IX,
Transferor shall not directly or indirectly solicit, initiate, encourage or entertain any inquiries or proposals
from, or discuss or negotiate with any Person other than Transferee or its representatives relating to an
acquisition or other disposition of any material Assets of the Facility or any other asset which is required
Uy the OTA to be transferred to Transferee at Closing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Transferor shall
nôt be in any way limited from initiating or participating in discussions concerning any transactions
involving the Excluded Assets.

6.10

AccountsReceivable.

(a) Accounts Receivable. Transferor shall retain whatever right, title and interest it
may have in and to all outstanding Accounts Receivable with respect to the Facility which relate to
periods ending on or before the Effective Time, including any Accounts Receivable arising from rate
adjustments which relate to a period ending on or before the Effective Time even if such adjustments
octur after the Effective Time, and including any Medicaid lag payments (collectively, "Transferor's
A/Rs"). Transferor acknowledges that Transferee owns all Accounts Receivable arising from services
provided by or at the Facility after the Effective Time ("Transferee's NRs").
(b)

Receipts by Transferee. [n furtherance and not in limitation of the requirements

in Section 6.3(a), payments received by Transferee after the Effective Time from third party
payors including, but not limited to, Medicare, Medicaid, VA, managed care and health insurance, shall
set forth

be handled as follows:

(Ð tf such payments either specifically indicate on the accompanying
remittance advice, or if Transferor and Transferee agree that such payments relate to the period ending
before the Effective Time, they shall be forwarded by Transferee to Transferor, along with the applicable
remittance advice, within twenty (20) days after receipt thereof; and
(iÐ If such payments indicate on the accompanying remittance advice, or if
Transferor and Transferee agree that such payments relate to the period after the Effective Time, they
shall be retained by Transferee.

(c) Receipts by Transferor. Payments received by Transferor after the Effective
Time from third party payors including, but not limited to, Medicare, Medicaid, VA, managed care and
health insurance, shall be handled as follows:
(Ð If such payments either specifically indicate on the accompanying
remittance advice, or if Transferor and Transferee agree that such payments relate to the period after the
Effective Time, they shall be forwarded by Transferor to Transferee, along with the applicable remittance
advice, within twenty (20) days after receipt thereof; and
(iÐ tf such payments indicate on the accompanying remittance advice, or if
Transferor and Transferee agree that they relate to the period ending on or before the Effective Time, they
shall be retained by Transferor.
(d) Other Receipts. If the remittance advice indicates or the Parties agree that any
payment relates to periods both prior to or on and after the Effective Time, the Party receiving the
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payment shall forward the amount relating to the other Party's operation of the Business, along with the
applicable remittance advice, within twenty (20) days after receipt thereof. If the remittance advice does
not indicate the period to which a payment relates or whether it is for Transferor or Transferee, or if there
is no accompanying remittance advice, or the payment is not otherwise identifiable using commercially
reasonable efforts, and if the Parties do not otherwise agree as to how to apply such payment, then lÙ07o
of such payments received within the first sixty (60) days after the Effective Time shall be deemed to
have been collected in respect of Transferor's A./Rs due from the payee in respect of services provided on
or prior to the Effective Time. All such payments received in excess of the amount of Transferor's A/Rs
due from said payee and all such payments received sixty (60) days after the Effective Time shall be
deemed to have been collected in respect of Transferee's A"/Rs from said payee. All such payments
received by Transferee but which are deemed to be due Transferor under this Section 6.10 shall be
forwarded by Transferee to Transferor within twenty (20) days after receipt thereof, and all such
payments received by Transferor but which are deemed to be due Transferee under this Section 6.10 shall
be forwarded by Transferor to Transferee within twenty (20) days after receipt thereof. All such
payments received by Transferor which are deemed to have been collected in respect to Transferor's A/Rs
shall be retained by Transferor and all such payments received by Transferee which are deemed to have
been collected in respect to Transferee's A"/Rs shall be retained by Transferee. Transferee shall pay to
Transferor any and all reimbursements including retroactive rate adjustments, appeal settlements and/or
Cost Report settlements for all Cost Report periods with fiscal years ended prior to the Effective Time
that it receives after the Effective Time. During the five (5) year period following the Effective Time,
Transferee shall also make a good faith effort to reconcile its Cost Report reimbursements and/or
settlements with documentation Transferor provides to Transferee regarding Transferor Bad Debt and
shall pay to Transferor any and all reimbursements and/or settlements related to Transferor Bad Debt
pursuant to Section 6.1 1.

(e)

Medicaid Applications. [n connection with Transferor's attempts to collect
Medicaid funds for services rendered to those Residents with pending Medicaid applications (collectively,
the "Pending Medicaid Applicants"), each set out on Schedule 6.10(e), (i) Transferee shall provide
Transferor with a written monthly progress report on the Medicaid application status of each Pending
Medicaid Applicant until such time as all Pending Medicaid Applicants have been approved or denied by
Medicaid, and (ii) if Transferee receives any notice or correspondence regarding such applications,
Transferee shall provide such notice or coffespondence to Transferor within five (5) Business Days
following receipt. Transferee shall cooperate with and provide Transferor with such documents and
information as Transferor shall reasonably request to enable Transferor to contest any denial or negative
determinations by Medicaid with respect to the Pending Medicaid Applicants.

(Ð

Accountins for Accounts Receivable.

(Ð

Attached hereto as Schedule 6.10(fl(i) is a schedule of Transferor's A/Rs
listing by Resident the amount due as of five (5) days prior to Closing. As soon as reasonably possible
but not later than fifteen (15) Business Days after the Closing Date, Transferor shall provide Transferee
with a schedule of Transferor's A"/Rs listing by Resident the amounts due as of the Effective Time.

(iÐ

For a period of twelve (12) months following the applicable Effective
Time or until Transferor receives payment of all Accounts Receivable attributable to the operation of the
Facility on or before the Effective Time, whichever is sooner, Transferee shall provide Transferor (no less
frequently than monthly) with (A) an accounting setting forth all amounts received by Transferee during
the preceding month with respect to Transferee's A/Rs and Transferor's A/Rs using the same format of
schedule as that provided by Transferor pursuant to Section 6.10(b), and (B) copies of all remittance
advices relating to such amounts received and any other reasonable supporting documentation as may be
required for Transferor to determine that Transferee's A/Rs and Transferor's A/Rs have been paid.
Transferee shall deliver such accounting to Transferor at the following physical and email addresses: 680
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South Fourth Street, Louisville, Kentucky 40202, Attention: Raye Ann Cole (raye.cole@kindred.com)
and Linda Fisher (linda.fisher@kindred.com).

(iii)

For a period of twelve (12) months following the Effective Time or until
Transferee receives payment of all Accounts Receivable attributed to the operation of the Facility prior to
the Closing Date, whichever is sooner, Transferor shall provide Transferee (no less frequently than

monthly) with (A) an accounting setting forth all amounts received by Transferor with respect to
Transferee's A/Rs and Transferor's A/Rs using the same type of schedule as that provided by Transferor
pursuant to Section 6.10(b), and (B) copies of all remittance advices relating to such amounts received
and any other reasonable supporting documentation as may be required for Transferee to determine
Transferee's A/Rs and Transferor's A/Rs that have been paid. Transferor shall deliver such accounting to
Transferee at the following address:
, Attention:

(iv) On two (2) occasions during the period of one (1) year following the
Effective Time, Transferor and Transferee shall, upon reasonable notice and during normal business
hours, have the right to inspect all cash receipts of the other Party in order to conflum the other Party's
compliance with the obligations imposed on it under Sections 6.10 and 6.11. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if such information can be transmitted through electronic mail, then Transferor and Transferee
may satisfy their obligations under this Section 6.10 in that manner.
(v) To enable Transferor to close its books with respect to the period ending
on the Closing Date, Transferee will permit appropriate personnel of Transferor reasonable access to the
Facility, in a manner that does not materially interfere with the operation of the Facility, for a period of no
more than forty-five (45) Business Days after the Closing Date. During that period, Transferee will
permit certain individuals employed by Kindred or its Affiliate immediately before the Closing Date to
provide reasonably necessary assistance to Kindred in its closing of the books. Those individuals are the
persons previously employed by Kindred or Transferor in following positions: Executive Director;
Business Office Manager; Accounts Receivable Assistant; Accounts Payable Coordinator; Payroll
Benefits Coordinator and MDS Coordinator.
(vi)

VI

Any amounts to be paid by one Party to the other Party under this
using the wire instructions set forth on Exhibit 6.10(fl.
transfer
made
by
electronic
shall be

Article

(g) Transferor Collection Activities. After the Closing Date, Kindred and Transferor
shall have the right, and any agent or representative retained by the foregoing shall have the right on
behalf of Kindred and Transferor, to engage in any commercially reasonable collection activities with
respect to any unpaid Transferor's A/R's, including private pay amounts.
(h)
Delivery of Mail. To the extent that Transferee or any of its Affiliates recelves
any mail or packages addressed to Kindred, Transferor or any of their Affiliates not relating to the Assets
or the Assumed Liabilities, Transferee shall promptly deliver such mail or packages to Transferor. After
the Closing Date, Transferee may deliver to Transferor any checks or drafts made payable to Transferor
or its Affiliates that constitutes an Asset, and Transferor shall promptly deposit or cause to be deposited
such checks or drafts and, upon receipt of funds, reimburse Transferee within ten (10) Business Days for
the amounts of all such checks or drafts, or, if so requested by Transferee, endorse such checks or drafts
to Transferee for collection. To the extent Transferor or its Affiliates receives any mail or packages
addressed to Transferor or its Affiliates but relating to the Assets or the Assumed Liabilities relating to
the Facility, Transferor shall promptly deliver such mail or packages to Transferee. After the Closing
Date, to the extent that Transferee receives any cash or checks or drafts made payable to Transferee that
constitutes an Excluded Asset, Transferee shall promptly use such cash to, or deposit such checks or
drafts and upon receipt of funds from such checks or drafts, reimburse Transferor within ten (10)
Business Days for such amount received, or, if so requested by Transferor, endorse such checks or drafts
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to Transferor for collection. The Parties may not assert any set off, hold back, escrow or other restriction
against any payment described in this Section 6.10ft).

6.11

Cost Reports.

(a) Transferor shall prepare and file with its fiscal intermediary the final Medicare
Cost Reports covering its operation of the Business through the Effective Time as soon as reasonably
practicable after the Effective Time, but in no event later than the date on which such final Cost Report is
required to be filed by applicable Law under the terms of the Medicare prograrq and will provide the
fiscal intermediary or CMS with any information needed to support claims for reimbursement made by
Transferor either in said final Cost Report or in any Cost Reports filed for prior Cost Reporting periods.
Simultaneously with such filing, Transferor shall provide Transferee with a copy of the final Medicare
Cost Reports and such supporting documentation reasonably requested by Transferee in writing.
(b)

After the Closing Date, Transferor shall promptly and diligently

provide

Transferee with reasonable and appropriate documentation regarding the Medicare bad debts incurred by
Transferor prior to the Effective Time associated with the Facility ("Transþror Bad Debt") for purposes
of facilitating Transferee's preparation of related Cost Reports. Transferor agrees to reasonably cooperate
by providing reasonably requested pre-Effective Time data to Transferee in connection with Transferee's
preparation of Cost Reports with respect to the period after the Effective Time.

(c)

Transferee shall timely prepare and

file with CMS and the appropriate

state

agency for the Facility, its initial Cost Report for the fiscal year commencing with the fiscal year in which
the Closing Date occurs, and will include Transferor Bad Debt in its initial Cost Report.

(d) Transferee shall notify Transferor within ten (10) Business Days of receipt of any
notice of adverse audit adjustments, overpayment, recoupment, fine, penalty, late charge or assessment
accruing in relation to Transferor Bad Debt. Transferee agrees to appeal at the request of, on behalf of,
and at the sole expense of Transferor, any Medicare claims audit, Cost Report audit, overpayment,
recoupment, fines, penalties, late charges and assessment accruing in relation to Transferor Bad Debt.
Transferor and Transferee shall each reasonably cooperate with the other respective Party, with respect to
any such matters including, but not limited to, timely providing any requested documentation within the
other Party's possession or control relating to such matters. Transferee is not responsible for (i) the actual
results of any such appeal, or (ii) Transferor's failure to provide information and/or documents necessary
to process any such appeal.

(e) Transferor and Transferee shall comply with all patient identity and information
protection Laws in providing information under this Section 6.1 1.
(Ð In the event that, following the applicable Effective Time, Transferee or any of
its Affiliates suffers any offsets against reimbursement under any third party payor or reimbursement
programs owed to such Party relating to amounts owing under any such program by Transferor or any of
its Affiliates for services rendered prior to the Effective Time, Transferor shall immediately upon written
demand from Transferee pay to such Party the amounts so billed or offset, even if Transferor appeals the
adverse claim. To the extent that Transferor is successful in any appeal ofany adverse audit adjustments,
overpayment, recoupment, fine, penalty, late charge or assessment by any third party payor accruing for
any period prior to the Effective Time, and Transferee or its Affiliates receive any monies from a third
party payor or reimbursement program as a result of Transferor's successful appeal, then Transferee
and/or its Affiliates agree that it will promptly refund to Transferor any amounts previously paid by
Transferor to such Party for any reimbursement offsets in accordance with the preceding sentence.
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6.12

Assistance in Proceedings. Transferee shall cooperate with any Transferor and its
counsel in the contest or defense of, and make available its personnel and provide any testimony and
access to its Records in connection with, any proceeding involving or relating to (a) any contemplated
transaction herein, or (b) any action, activity, circumstance, condition, conduct, event, fact, failure to act,
incident, occurrence, plan, practice, situation, status or transaction on or before the Closing Date
involving Transferor, the Facility or its Business.

6.13

Overhead and Shared Services: National Contracts. Transferee acknowledges that the
Facility currently benefits from the National Contracts and receives Overhead and Shared Services from
Transferor and its Affiliates. Transferee further acknowledges that, as it relates to the operation of the
Facility, all such benefits from the National Contracts and provision of Overhead and Shared Services
shall cease, and any agreement by the Facility with Transferor or any of its Affiliates in respect to
benefiting from the National Contracts or the provision of Overhead and Shared Services shall terminate,
as of the Closing Date for the Facility. No Overhead and Shared Services shall be provided by Transferor
or any of its Affiliates to the Facility after the Effective Time.

6.14

Business Relationships. After the Closing Date, each Party will reasonably cooperate
with the other Parties in its efforts to continue and maintain for the benefit of those business relationships
of Transferor existing prior to the Closing Date and relating to the business to be operated by Transferee
after the Closing, including relationships with lessors, employees, regulatory authorities, licensors,

patients, suppliers and others. The foregoing notwithstanding, Transferor does not make any
representation or warranty as to the prospects or outlook for such business relationships as carried on by
Transferee after the Closing Date.
6.
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Information S)'stems. Records in Electronic Form. Software and Data.

(a) Transferor shall use reasonable efforts to permit transfer of current data in fully
operational form for use in Transferee's computer applications. Transferor further agrees that in order to
assist Transferee in ensuring the continued operation of the Facility after the Closing Date in compliance
with applicable Law and in a rnnner which does not jeopardize the health and welfare of the Residents of
the Facility, Transferor shall, for a period of no longer than sixty (60) days after the Closing Date, provide
Transferee access to Transferor's electronic medical records system to enable Transferee, at its expense,
to print the medical treatment records and physician orders for each Resident as of the Closing Date that
was a Resident as of the period between and including the Effective Time and the date that is eighteen
(18) months prior to the Effective Time, and cooperate with Transferee regarding the delivery of all such
Records to Transferee, in electronic form (including the provision to Transferee of the last eighteen (18)
months of MDS (Minimum Data Set) history in the format submitted to CMS by Transferor), in order to
enable Transferee to obtain the necessary copies of such medical records and physician orders.
(b)

least thirty (30) days prior to the Closing Date, Transferor shall provide
Transferee and its representatives with access to the Facility so that Transferee can install lines necessary
for computer hardware, together with servers, computer hardware and software. In addition, Transferor
shall cooperate with Transferee and provide Transferee with such assistance as Transferee may
reasonably request in order to provide for an orderly, efficient and safe transition of the operations from
Transferor to Transferee and the continued operation of the Facility after the Closing Date in compliance
with applicable Law and in a manner which does not jeopardize the health and welfare of the Residents of
the Facility. During such time as Transferor provides Transferee with access to the Facility under this

At

Section 6.15ft), Transferee shall not connect with or hook into Transferor's computer lines or computers.
Such access shall be prescheduled with Transferor and shall not interrupt normal business operation.
Transferee shall indemnify Transferor for any damage resulting from such access or installation of the
lines. If, for any reason, this OTA terminates prior to the Closing Date, Transferor shall remove any lines
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installed, at Transferee's cost and expense, and Transferee shall remit payment to Transferor within five
(5) days ofreceiving an invoice for such costs and expenses ofremoval.

ARTICLE VII
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE OBLIGATIONS OF PARTIES

7.1

Conditions to Oblisations of Transferee. The obligations of Transferee hereunder are

subject to the fulfillment of all of the following conditions precedent unless such fulfillment is waived in
writing by Transferee, subject to the limitations contained herein, as the case may be:

(a)

Representations and

Warranties. The representations and warranties of

Transferor set forth in Article IV shall be true and correct in all material respects (or, with respect to any
representation qualified as to materiality, true and correct) on and as of the Closing Date as if made on
and as of the Closing Date, except to the extent any such representation or warranty expressly is made as
of an earlier date or with respect to a particular period, in which case such representation or warranty shall
have been true and correct in all material respects (or, with respect to any representation qualified as to
materiality, true and correct) as of such date or with respect to such period.
(b)
No Litisation. V/ithout limiting the generality of any representation, no
injunction, temporary restraining order, judgment or other order of any court or governmental agency or
instrumentality shall have issued or have been entered which would be violated by the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby; and no suit, action or other proceeding brought by the United
States, the State of Vermont or any political subdivision, which any Facility is located or any agency or
instrumentality thereof shall be pending in which it is sought to restrain or prohibit this OTA or the

consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

(c) Compliance with Covenants. Transferor shall have performed and complied, in
all material respects, with all terms, agreements, covenants and conditions of this OTA to be performed or
complied with by it at or prior to the Closing.
(d)

Authorization. Transferor shall have approved and authorized the transactions

contemplated by this OTA.

(e)

No Portfolio Material Adverse Effect. Since the date of execution of this OTA,

there shall have been no Portfolio Material Adverse Effect.

(Ð

Purchase Agreement. All the conditions for closing of the Facility under the
Purchase Agreement have been satisfied or waived other than the closing of the transactions contemplated
under this OTA.

(Ð

of

Management Agreements. Any management agreements
Termination
between Transferor and Kindred and/or its Affiliates shall have been terminated and any existing Leases
related to the Facility between Transferor and Kindred and/or its Affiliates shall have been terminated.

(h)

New License. Transferee shall have received the New License as of the Closing
Date (or shall have obtained reasonable assurances from the Department that the New License has been or
will be issued by the Department effective as of the Effective Time or promptly thereafter).

(Ð

Reserved.
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Closine Certificate. Transferor shall have delivered to Transferee a certificate of
a duly authorized officer of Transferor dated as of the Closing Date stating that the conditions specified in
Sections 7.1(a) and7.1(c) havebeen satisfied.

çj)

(k) Good Standing Certificate. Transferor shall have delivered to Transferee a
Secretary of State of Delaware as of a recent date as to the legal existence and good
of
the
certifîcate
standing of Transferor.

(l) Assignment and Assumption Agreement. Transferor shall have executed and
delivered any Assignment and Assumption Agreements related to the Facility.
(m)

Resident Trust Deposits. Transferor shall have delivered any and all assignment
and assumptions of resident trust deposits.

(n)
7.2

Reserved.

Conditions to Oblieations of Transferor. The obligations of Transferor hereunder are

subject to the fulfillment of all of the following conditions precedent unless such fulfillment is waived in
writing by Transferor, subject to the limitations contained herein, as the case may be:

(a)

Representations and

Warranties. The representations and warranties of

Transferee set forth in Article V shall be true and correct in all material respects (or, with respect to any
representation qualified as to materiality, true and correct) on and as of the Closing Date as if made on
and as of the Closing Date, except to the extent any such representation or warranty expressly is made as
of an earlier date or with respect to a particular period, in which case such representation or warranty shall
have been true and coffect in all material respects (or, with respect to any representation qualified as to
materiality, true and correct) as of such date or with respect to such period.

O)

No Litigation. Without limiting the generality of any

representation, no

injunction, temporary restraining order, judgment or other order of any court or governmental agency or
instrumentality shall have issued or have been entered which would be violated by the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby; and no suit, action or other proceeding brought by the United
States, the State of Vermont, any political subdivision, which any Facility is located or any agency or
instrumentality thereof shall be pending in which it is sought to restrain or prohibit this OTA or the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

(c) Compliance with Covenants. Transferee shall have performed and complied, in
all material respects, with all terms, agreements, covenants and conditions of this OTA to be performed or
complied with by it at or prior to the Closing.
(d)

Authorization. Transferee shall have approved and authorized the transactions

contemplated by this OTA.

(e)

No Portfolio Material Adverse Effect. Since the date of execution of this OTA,
there shall have occurred, no event, circumstance or other change in Transferee or its assets that, alone or
in the aggregate, has had or, reasonably could be expected to have, a Portfolio Material Adverse Effect
with regard to Transferee.

(Ð

Purchase Asreement. All the conditions for closing of the Facility under the
Purchase Agreement have been satisfied or waived other than the closing of the transactions contemplated
under this OTA.

-t

-t

(g) New License. Transferee shall have received the New License as of the Closing
(or
have
obtained reasonable assurances from the Department that the New License has been or
shall
Date
Department effective as of the Effective Time or promptly thereafter).
by
the
will be issued
(h)
a

Reserved.

(Ð Closine Certificate. Transferee shall have delivered to Transferor a certificate of
duly authorized officer of Transferee dated as of the Closing Date stating that the conditions specified in

Sections 7.2(a) and 7.2(c) have been satisfied.

()
Good Standing Certificate. Transferee shall have delivered to Transferor a
certificate of the Secretary of State of Vermont as of a recent date as to the legal existence and good
standing of Transferee.

(k) Assignment and Assumption Agreement. Transferee shall have executed and
delivered any Assignment and Assumption Agreements related to the Facility.
(l)

Reserved.

(m)

Other Operations Transfer Agreements. The Affiliates of Transferee shall have
consummated the transactions contemplated by the Other Operations Transfer Agreements, except to the
extent any facility governed by any of the Other Operations Transfer Agreements is subject to a "Delayed
Closing" (as governed by Sections 3.1,6.9, 10.3 and 10.4 of the Purchase Agreement and defined below).

ARTICLE VIII
DELAYED CI,OSING

8.1

Delayed Closing. Notwithstanding anything in this OTA to the contrary, in the event the
sale of the Facility under the Purchase Agreement does not occur or is delayed as a result of the
provisions of Sections 3.1, 6.9, 10.3 or 10.4 of the Purchase Agreement (a "Delayed Closing"), the
transfer of operations from Transferor associated with the Facility to Transferee shall occur, if at all, on
the date of the eventual sale of such Facility pursuant to the Purchase Agreement. All of the provisions of
this OTA shall apply to such transfer of operations, other than the Closing Date for such transfer of
operations being adjusted accordingly in accordance with the Purchase Agreement.

ARTICLE X
TERMINATION

9.1

Termination. This OTA may be terminated and the transactions contemplated hereby
abandoned at any time prior to the Closing:

by either Transferor or Transferee if (i) the Closing has not occurred by the
(A)
such date has been extended under the Purchase Agreement in accordance with
Outside Date (unless
its terms, or (B) the Facility is subject to a Delayed Closing); or (ii) the Purchase Agreement has been
terminated in accordance with its terms either in full or with respect to the Facility;

(a)

(b)

by the mutual written consent of Transferor Representative and Transferee;

(c)

by Transferee, by reason of the breach, inaccuracy or non-fulfillment of any
representation, covenant, obligation or agreement by Transferor under this OTA that (i) has a Material
Adverse Effect, and (iiXA) is incapable of being cured prior to the Outside Date, or (B) has not been
cured by Transferor within one hundred eighty (180) days after written notice thereoffrom Transferee; or
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(d)

by Transferor, by reason of the breach, inaccuracy or non-fulfillment of any
representation, covenant, obligation or agreement by Transferee under this OTA that (i) is incapable of
being cured prior to the Outside Date, or (ii) has not been cured by Transferee within forty-five (45) days
after written notice thereof from Transferor Representative, except in the case of a breach of the
covenants set forth in Section 2.2(a), in which case Transferee shall have five (5) days after written notice
thereof from Transferor Representative to file for the applicable New Licenses and/or to notify Transferor
that the necessary filings have been made in accordance with Section 2.2(a).

9.2

Procedure and Effect of Terminatja4.

(a)

In the event of termination of this OTA

pursuant

to this Article IX,

the

terminating Party shall give written notice thereof to the other Parties and this OTA shall terminate, and
the transactions contemplated hereby shall be abandoned, without further action by any of the Parties.

(b) If this OTA is terminated as provided herein, no Party shall have any liability or
further obligation hereunder to any other Party to this OTA, except (i) as provided in Section 6.5 or
Article X, and/or (ii) as otherwise provided for in the Purchase Agreement, and (iii) nothing herein will
relieve any Party from liability for any breach of this OTA.
ARTICLE X
INDEMNIFICATION
Survival of Representations. Warranties and Covenants. All representations, warranties,
10. I
pre-closing covenants and obligations of Transferor, including with respect to any Facility, on the one
hand, and Transferee, on the other hand, contained in this OTA or in any document to be executed and
delivered pursuant to this OTA at the Closing shall survive the Closing for such Facility for eighteen (18)

months and automatically terminate thereafter without any action on the part of any Party hereto;
provided, however, that (a) the representations and warranties set forth in Sections 4.1 (Corporate), 4.7
(Encumbrances),4.18 (Broker),5.1 (Corporate), and 5.3 (Broker) shall survive indefinitely after the
Closing for such Facility, (b) the representations and warranties set forth in Sections 4.4 (Taxes), shall
survive until thirty (30) days after the expiration of the statute of limitations period (including all
extensions thereof) applicable to the underlying subject matter being represented, and (c) the
representations and warranties set forth in Section 4.5 (Employee Benefit Plans) and 4.8 (Healthcare)
shall survive until the three-year anniversary of the Closing Date for such Facility. The representations
and warranties contained in Sections 4.1. 4.4. 4.7. 4.18. 5.1. and 5.3 are sometimes collectively referred to
herein as the "Fundamental Representøtions." Except as otherwise set out in this OTA, post-Closing
covenants and obligations of the Parties shall survive the Closing Date for such Facility for three (3) years
and automatically terminate without any action on the part of any Party hereto; provided, however, that
(a) non-monetary obligations for access and/or retention of records, confidentiality, general cooperation,
delivery of property received belonging to the other Party, and further assurances, shall survive for the
Closing Date for the period of the statute of limitations or the specific period set forth herein, (b)
Transferee's obligations with respect to Assumed Liabilities will survive the Closing Date for the period
of the underlying obligation plus the relevant statute of limitations (including all extensions thereof,)

for such Assumed Liability, and (c) Transferor's obligations with respect to Retained
Liabilities will survive the Closing Date for the period of the underlying obligation plus the relevant
applicable

extensions thereof) applicable for such Retained Liability.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any covenant, obligation, representation or warranty in respect of which
indemnity may be sought hereunder shall survive the time at which it would otherwise terminate pursuant

statute

of

limitations (including

all

tothisSection 10.1 (suchtime, the"ExpirationDate") if aNoticeof Indemnificationshallhavebeen
given to the applicable Indemnifying Party on or before the applicable Expiration Date; provided,
however, that such survival shall automatically expire if Indemnified Party does not bring a judicial action
against Indemnifying Party within one hundred eighty (180) days following the Expiration Date, and
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further, in the absence of the filing of such an action, the Escrow shall be released one hundred eighty
(180) days after the three-year anniversary of the tnitial Closing Date.

1O.2 Indemnification by Transferor. Subject to Section l0.l and any cure periods set forth in
this OTA, Transferor and Kindred or their respective successors and assigns, as applicable, shall jointly
and severally indemnify and hold harmless Transferee, Purchaser and their respective Affiliates
(collectively, "Transferee IndemniJíed Parties") from and against any Loss incurred or suffered by such
Transferee Indemnified Party arising out of or resulting from:

(a)

a breach of any representation or warranty made by Transferor in this OTA or

any other Transaction Document;

(b)

Transferor set

a failure by Transferor to perform or comply with the covenants on the part of
forth in this OTA or any other Transaction Document; and

(c)

any Retained Liabilities, and any obligations arising with respect to an Excluded
Asset from and after the Closing Date.

10.3

Indemnification by Transferee. Subject to Section 10.1 and any cure periods set forth in
this OTA, Transferor or its successors and assigns, as applicable, shall indemnify and hold harmless
Transferee and its Affiliates ("Transferor Indemnified Parties"), from and against any Loss incurred or
suffered by such Transferor Indemnified Party arising out of or resulting from:

(a)

a breach of any representation or waffanty made by Transferee in this OTA or

any other Transaction Document;

(b)

a failure by Transferee to perform or comply with any covenant of Transferee in
this OTA or any other Transaction Document; and

(c)

any Assumed Liability, and any obligations arising with respect to an Asset from

and after the Closing Date.

10.4

Indemnification Limitations. Notwithstanding Section 10.2, if the Closing occurs:

(a)

An Indemnifying Party shall not have any obligation to indemnify

an

Indemnified Party with respect to a Facility whatsoever from and against any Loss pursuant to Section
10.2(a') or Section 10.3(a) unless and until the aggregate claims for such Losses with respect to such
Facility (and with respect to any Transferee Indemnified Party, combined with claims for Losses by the
applicable Purchaser for breaches of Seller's representations and warranties under the Purchase
Agreement) exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) (the "Indemnificatíon Threshold"), at which
time Indemnified Parties shall be entitled to recover all such Losses in excess of the lndemnification
Threshold, subject to the allocated portion of the Indemnification Cap attributed to the Facility under the
Purchase Agreement.

(b)

Indemnified Parties shall not be entitled to recover Losses with respect to the
Facility pursuant to Section 10.2(a) or Section 10.3(a) for an aggregate amount (and with respect to
Transferee Indemnified Parties, combined with the aggtegate amount of Losses recovered by Purchaser
for breaches of Seller's representations and warranties under the Purchase Agreement) in excess of the
amount of the Indemnification Cap allocated to the Facility pursuant to the Purchase Agreement;
provided, however, that claims for fraud or any breach of any of the Fundamental Representations shall
not be subject to the foregoing limits and shall not be included in the determination of whether the
Indemnification Cap has been reached. For all purposes of this Article X, when determining the amount
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of the Losses arising out of or resulting from a breach of a representation or waranty of Transferor or
Transferee, any Material Adverse Effect or other materiality qualifier contained in any such
representation or warranty will be disregarded.

Any Losses for which any Indemnified Party would be entitled to
Article X shall be reduced by the amount of insurance proceeds actually
this
indemnification under
received or recovered under any insurance policies for the benefit of such Indemnified Party (including
any title policies) and any cash payments, setoffs or recoupment of any payments actually recovered by
such Indemnified Party in respect of such Losses. Each Indemnified Party shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to mitigate losses for which such Indemnified Party is subject to indemnification under
this Article X. If, after Indemnifying Party has made an indemnification payment to an Indemnified Party
with respect to Losses in satisfaction of its obligations under this Article X, Indemnified Party actually
recovers from any third parties amounts in respect of such Losses, Indemnified Party shall as promptly as
practicable forward to Indemnifying Party such amounts, but not in excess of the indemnification
payment received by Indemnified Party. For the avoidance of doubt, Transferor shall have no obligation
to indemnify (whether under this Article or otherwise) both (A) Purchaser, or an assignee of Purchaser,
and (B) a Transferee with respect to any single Loss, and shall not be required to pay duplicative
damages, and the Indemnification Cap allocated to the Facility under the Purchase Agreement shall be the
maximum liability for indemnification claims with respect to the Facility under both this OTA and the
Purchase Agreement. In no event shall the Indemnified Parties receive duplicative Losses under such

(c)

agreements.

(d)

Any indemnification payments made pursuant to this OTA shall be treated as an
adjustment to the allocated Purchase Price for the Facility as set forth and in accordance with the
Purchase Agreement (as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes). In the event of a claim under
this Article X, a Party shall have a duty to mitigate its Losses.

10.5

Assumption

of Defense. An Indemnified Party shall promptly give notice (each,

a

"Notice of Indemnificatíon") to each Indemnifying Party after obtaining knowledge of any matter as to
which recovery may be sought against such Indemnifying Party because of the indemnity set forth above
and, if such indemnity shall arise from the claim of a third party and Indemnifying Party provides written
notice to Indemnified Party stating that Indemnifying Party is responsible for the entire claim within ten
(10) days after Indemnifying Party's receipt of the applicable Notice of Indemnification, shall permit such
Indemnifying Party to assume the defense of any such claim or any proceeding resulting from such claim;
provided, however, that failure to give any such Notice of Indemnification promptly shall not affect the
indemnification provided under this Article X, except and only to the extent such Indemnifying Party
shall have been actually prejudiced as a result of such failure or if such Notice of Indemnification is not
given to Indemnifying Party prior the applicable Expiration Date. If an Indemnifying Party assumes the
defense of such third party claim, such Indemnifying Party shall have full and complete control over the
conduct of such proceeding on behalf of Indemnified Party and shall, subject to the provisions of this
Section 10.5, have the right to decide all matters of procedure, strategy, substance and settlement relating
to such proceeding; provided, further, however, that any counsel chosen by such tndemnifying Party to
conduct such defense shall be reasonably satisfactory to Indemnified Party; and provided, further,
however, that Indemnifying Party shall not without the written consent of tndemnified Party consent to
the entry of any judgment or enter into any settlement with respect to the matter which (a) does not
include a provision whereby the plaintiff or the claimant in the rnatter releases Indemnified Party from all
liability with respect thereto; and (b) in the case of Transferee as Indemnifying Party, does not include
any provision that would impose any obligation (including an obligation to refrain from taking action)
upon Seller. Indemnified Party may participate in such proceeding and retain separate co-counsel at its
sole cost and expense (and, for the avoidance of doubt, such cost and expense shall not constitute a Loss
for purposes of the Indemnification Obligations).

37

10.6

Non-Assumption of Defense. If no Indemnifying Party is permitted or elects to assume
the defense of any such claim by a third party or proceeding resulting therefrom, Indemnified Party shall
diligently defend against such claim or litigation in such manner as it may deem appropriate and, in such
event, Indemnifying Party or Parties shall reimburse Indemnified Party for all reasonable and actually
incurred out-of-pocket costs and expenses, legal or otherwise, incurred by Indemnified Party and its
Affiliates in connection with the defense against such claim or proceeding, within thirty (30) days after
the receipt of detailed invoices.

1O3

lndemnified Party's Cooperation as to Proceedings. Indemnified Party will cooperate in
all reasonable respects with any Indemnifying Party in the conduct of any proceeding as to which such
Indemnifying Party assumes the defense, except to the extent Indemnified Party could reasonably be
expected to be prejudiced thereby. Indemnifying Party or Parties shall promptly reimburse Indemnified
Party for all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses, legal or otherwise, incurred by Indemnified
Party or its Affiliates in connection therewith, within thfufy (30) days after the receipt of detailed invoices
therefor.

10.8

Indemnification for Resident Trust Property.

(a) Kindred and Transferor will jointly and severally indemnify, protect, defend and
for, from and against all liabilities, claims and demands, including reasonable
harmless
Transferee
hold
in
the event the corpus of the Resident Trust Property transferred to Transferee
fees
and
costs,
attorneys'
balance ofResident Trust Property delivered to Transferor as custodian, and
the
correct
not
represent
does
or omissions of Transferor with respect to the Resident Trust Property
from
actions
arise
for claims which
time.
at
any
Transferor
handled
by
held or
(b)

Transferee will indemnify, protect, defend and hold Transferor harmless for,
claims and demands, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, in
liabilities,
from and against all
Transferor by a resident or his or her family for his/her Resident Trust
made
against
is
the event a claim
funds or other property were properly transferred to Transferee
Resident's
Property where such
pursuant to the terms hereof.

10.9

Damages Disclaimed. EXCEPT AS SUCH

MAY BE PART OF ANY CLAIM OF

ANY THIRD PARTY THAT IS NOT A TRANSFEREE INDEMNIFIED PARTY OR A
PURCHASER INDEMNIFIED PARTY (AS DEFINED IN THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT),

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES (WHETHER UNDER THIS ARTICLE OR OTHERWISE)
SHALL ANY PARTY BE RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE IN ANY WAY HEREUNDER FOR LOSS
OF PROFITS, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, SPECIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES,
DIMINUTION IN VALUE, OR ANY EXEMPLARY DAMAGES, REGARDLESS OF WIIETHER
THE ACTION IS FOUNDED IN CONTRACT, TORT, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE.
the avoidance of doubt, except in the event of fraud,
member,
shareholder, equity holder, partner, employee,
managing
member,
no individual officer, director,
for any claims of the other Party related to
liability
have
any
Party
shall
agent, or representative of either
in connection herewith, in any way.
delivered
instruments
or
this OTA, or any agreements, certificates

10.10 Individual Liability Disclaimed. For

10.11 Exclusive Remedy Post-Closing. With the exception of fraud and injunctive relief for
specific performance or an action required under this OTA post-Closing for any Transferred Facility, the
exclusive remedy of any Party after a Closing shall be indemnity under this Article X.
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ARTICLE XI
ASSIGNMENT

l.l

Assignment. Neither this OTA, nor any rights, interests or obligations hereunder, may be
I
assigned or transferred, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise by Transferor or Transferee
without the prior written consent of the other Party which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned
or delayed, and any such assignment that is not consented to shall be null and void. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, upon prior written notice to Transferor Representative, Transferee may assign all, but not less
than all, of its rights, duties and obligations under this OTA to a wholly-owned subsidiary of Transferee

or Purchaser or to a Substitute OTA Transferee, provided (a) it is understood that a Substitute OTA
Transferee which is substantially similar to Transferee as of the Closing shall be deemed acceptable to
Transferor, and (b) that no such assignment shall relieve Transferee or Transferee Guarantor from their
obligations under this OTA.
ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS

12.1

Disclosure Schedules. The information contained in the Disclosure Schedules shall be
qualify
to the specific Section (or subsection, as appropriate) of this OTA to which it
deemed to
shall
be cumulative so that if the existence of the fact or item or its contents disclosed in
corresponds, and
any particular schedule is relevant to any other schedule, then such fact or item shall be deemed to be
disclosed with respect to the other schedule to the extent such relevance is reasonably apparent whether or
not a specific cross-reference appears. The headings contained in the Disclosure Schedules are included
for convenience only, and are not intended to limit the effect ofthe disclosures contained in such schedule

or to expand the scope of the information required to be disclosed in such schedule. Descriptions of
documents in the Schedules are summaries only and are qualified in their entirety by the specific terms of
such documents. Matters reflected in the Disclosure Schedules are not necessarily limited to matters
required by this OTA to be reflected herein; additional matters are set forth for informational purposes
uná th" fact that any item of information is disclosed in the Disclosure Schedules shall not be construed to
mean that such information is required to be disclosed by this OTA. Any information and the dollar
thresholds set forth herein shall not be used as a basis for interpreting the term "material" or other similar
terms in this OTA or constitute an admission that such items are required to be disclosed under this OTA.

12.2

Pavment of Expenses. Except as otherwise provided in this OTA, each of the Parties
shall bear its own expenses in connection with the negotiation and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this OTA. Subject to the foregoing, no expenses of Transferor relating in any way to the
purchase and sale of the Assets hereunder and the transactions contemplated hereby, including legal,
accounting or other professional expenses of Transferor shall be charged to or paid by Transferee or
included in any of the Assumed Liabilities. No expenses of Transferee relating in any way to the
purchase and sale of the Assets hereunder and the transactions contemplated hereby, including legal,
accounting or other professional expenses of Transferee shall be charged to or paid by any Transferor or
included in any of the Excluded Liabilities. The foregoing shall not limit, however, any Party's right to
include such expenses in any claim for damages against any other Party who breaches any legally binding
provision of this OTA to the extent provided in this OTA.

12.3

Entire Agreement: Assignment: Etc. This OTA (including the Disclosure Schedules and
all other schedules and exhibits hereto which are incorporated into and are a part of this OTA), together
with the Purchase Agleement, and with any certificates and other instruments delivered hereunder, state
the entire agreement of the Parties, merge all prior negotiations, agreements and understandings, if any,
whether written or oral, and state in full all representations, warranties, covenants and agreements that
have induced this OTA. Each Party agrees that in dealing with third parties no contrary representations
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will be made. This OTA shall not be assignable by operation of Law or otherwise. The Parties
acknowledge that Purchaser is a third party beneficiary of this OTA to the extent provided below.

12.4 Captions. The Article, Section and paragraph captions in this OTA are for convenience
of reference only, do not constitute part of this OTA and shall not be deemed to limit or otherwise affect
any of the provisions hereof.

12.5 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this OTA shall not
affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this OTA.
12.6

Enforcement.

(a)

The Parties agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of
the provisions of this OTA were not performed in accordance with their specific terms or were otherwise
breached and that any breach of this OTA could not be adequately compensated in all cases by monetary
damages alone. The Parties acknowledge and agree that, prior to the valid termination of this OTA
pursuant to Section 9.1, the Parties shall be entitled to an injunction, specific performance and other
equitable relief to prevent breaches of this OTA and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions
hereof, in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at Law or in equity, but in all events
subject to the limitations set forth in this OTA.

(b) Nothing set forth in this Section 12.6 shall require Transferor to institute any
proceeding for (or limit Transferor's right to institute any proceeding for) specific performance under this
Section 12.6 prior or as a condition to exercising any termination right under Section 9.1, nor shall the
commencement of any legal proceeding pursuant to this Section 12.6 or anything set forth in this Section
12.6 restrict or limit Transferor's right to terminate this OTA in accordance with the terms of Section 9.1
or pursue any other remedies under this OTA.
(c)

To the extent any Party brings any Action to enforce specifically the performance
of the terms and provisions of this OTA (other than an Action to specifically enforce any provision that
expressly survives termination of this OTA pursuant to Section 9.1 when expressly available to such
Party pursuant to the terms of this OTA, each Termination Date shall automatically be extended by (i) the
amount of time during which such Action is pending, plus twenty (20) Business Days, or (ii) such other
time period established by the court presiding over such Action.

12.7 Modification or Amendment. The Parties may modify or amend this OTA at any time,
only by a written instrument duly executed and delivered by Transferee and Transferor Representative.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, prior to the Closing, the Parties may not amend, modify or terminate this
OTA without the prior written consent of Purchaser.
12.8 Construction of Agreement. If an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises
under this OTA, this OTA shall be construed as if drafted jointly by the Parties, and no presumption or
burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any Party by virtue of the authorship of any of the
provisions of this OTA.
12.9

Notices. All notices and other communications given or made pursuant hereto shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given or made as of the date delivered if delivered
personally or by a nationally recognized overnight courier service to the Parties at the following addresses
(or at such other address for a Party as shall be specified by like notice, except that notices of changes of
address shall be effective upon receipt):
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If to Transferor,

addressed to:

Kindred Healthcare, Inc.
680 South Fourth Street
Louisville, Kentucþ 40202
Attn: Joseph L. Landenwich, General Counsel
Attn: Douglas Curnutte, Senior Vice President, Corporate Development

With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):
Polsinelli PC
401 Commerce Street, Suite 900
Nashville, TN 37219
Attn: Bobby Guy, Esq.

Ifto

Transferee, addressed to:

Birchwood Operations LLC
c/o Ari Erlichman
101 Lawrence Avenue
Lawrence NY 11559
arierlichman @ gmail. com

With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice):
Shireen T. Hart

Primmer Piper Eggleston & Cramer PC
shart@primmer.com
or to such other address or to such other Person as either Party shall have last designated by such notice to
the other Party.

l2.l0 Remedies Cumulative. Except as otherwise provided herein, the remedies provided for
or permitted by this OTA shall be cumulative and the exercise by any Party of any remedy provided for
herein shall not preclude the assertion or exercise by such Party of any other right or remedy provided for
herein.

l2.ll Governing Law: Consent to Jurisdiction. This OTA shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the domestic Laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to any choice or
conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of Delaware or any other jurisdiction) that would
cause the application of the Laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of Delaware.

12.12 Forum: Waiver of Jury Trial.

(a) With respect to any Action between any of the Parties arising out of or relating to
this OTA, or any of the transactions contemplated by this OTA, (i) each of the Parties irrevocably and
unconditionally consents and submits to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of either the state or federal
courts located in the State of Delaware, and (ii) each of the Parties irrevocably consents to service of
process by first-class certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid.
(b)

Each of the Parties hereby irrevocably waives any and all right to trial by jury

of

any claim or cause of action in any legal proceeding arising out of or related to this OTA or the
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transactions or events contemplated hereby or any course of conduct, course of dealing, statements
(whether verbal or written) or actions of any Party. The Parties each agree that any and all such claims
and causes of action shall be tried by the court without a jury. Each of the Parties hereto further waives
any right to seek to consolidate any such legal proceeding in which a jury trial has been waived with any
other legal proceeding in which a jury trial cannot or has not been waived.

12.13 Time of Essence. With regard to all dates and time periods set forth or referred to in this
OTA, time is of the essence unless such delay is caused by factors outside the control of the Party in
which case a reasonable delay shall be granted to the requesting Party.

12.14 Counterparts. This OTA may be executed in the original or by facsimile or electronic
.pdf in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The exchange of copies of this OTA and of
signature pages by facsimile transmission or e-mail shall constitute effective execution and delivery of
this OTA as to the Parties and may be used in lieu of the original OTA for all purposes. Signatures of the
Parties transmitted by facsimile or e-mail shall be deemed to be their original signatures for all purposes.
Waiver. Each of the Parties hereto acknowledges and agrees, on its own
12.15 Repres
behalf and on behalf of its members, partners, officers, employees and Affiliates, that Transferor is a
client of Polsinelli PC and Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton (collectively, the "Firms") in the
preparation, negotiation and execution of this OTA and the other Transaction Documents. After the
Closing, it is possible that the Firms will represent Transferor and/or its Affiliates in the future in
connection with issues that may arise under this OTA and the other Transaction Documents or any claims
that may be made thereunder. Each of the Firms (or any successor) may serve as counsel to Transferor
and/or its Affiliates or any member, partner, manager, officer, employee, representative or Affiliate of
such Persons in connection with any claim arising out of or relating to this OTA or the other Transaction
Documents. Each of the Parties hereto consents thereto, and waives any conflict of interest arising
therefrom, and each such Party shall cause any Affiliate thereof to consent to waive any conflict of
interest arising from such representation. Each of the Parties hereto acknowledges that such consent and
waiver is voluntary, that it has been carefully considered, and that the Parties have consulted with counsel
or have been advised they should do so in connection therewith.

12.16 Third-Party Beneficiary. Purchaser shall be a third-party beneficiary of the
representations and warranties of Transferor under Article IV and the indemnification provisions of
Article X; provided, however, that Transferor shall have no obligation to indemnify (whether under this
Article or otherwise) both (a) Purchaser, or an assignee of Purchaser other than Transferee, and (b) any
Transferee with respect to any single Loss.

12.17 Transferor

(a)

Representative.

Transferor hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints Kindred

as

its

representative ("Transþror Representative") and its true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with full power and
authority in each of their names and on behalf of each of them to act on behalf of Transferor in the
absolute discretion of Transferor Representative for purposes of this OTA, the Purchase Agreement and

the transactions to be carried out pursuant hereto and thereto, and the execution of this OTA, by
Transferor will constitute ratification and approval of such designation on the terms set forth herein. All
decisions, actions, consents and instructions by Transferor Representative with respect to this OTA will
be binding upon Transferor, and Transferor will not have the right to object to, dissent from, protest or
otherwise contest the same. Transferee will be entitled to rely on any decision, action, consent or
instruction of Transferor Representative as being the decision, action, consent or instruction of Transferor.
By way of example and not limitation, Transferor Representative will be authorized and empowered, as
agent of and on behalf of Transferor to (i) execute and deliver and take all actions under the OTA on
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behalf of Transferor; (ii) give and receive notices and communications as provided herein; (iii) object to
any claims of an lndemnified Party; (iv) agree to, negotiate, enter into settlements and compromises of,
and comply with orders of courts and awards of arbitrators with respect to, such claims or Losses;
(v) waive after the Closing Date any breach or default of Transferee of any obligation to be performed by
it under this OTA; (vi) receive service of process on behalf of Transferor in connection with any claims
against Transferor arising under or in connection with this OTA; and (vii) take all other actions that are
either (A) necessary or appropriate in the judgment of Transferor Representative for the accomplishment
of the foregoing, or (B) specifically mandated by the terms of this OTA. Notices or communications to or
from Transferor Representative will constitute notice to or from Transferor.

(b) The grant of authority provided for in this Section 12.17 is coupled with an
granted, in part, as an inducement to Transferee to enter into this OTA, and will be
is
being
interest and
irrevocable and survive the dissolution, liquidation or bankruptcy of any Transferor, and will be binding
on any successor thereto.
12.18 Attornev-Client Privilege. Neither of Transferor or Transferee is waiving,

and each

will

not be deemed to have waived or diminished, any of its attorney work product protections, attorney-client
privileges or similar protections and privileges as a result of disclosing its Confidential Information
(including Confidential Information related to pending or threatened litigation) to the others, regardless of
whether such Party has asserted, or is or may be entitled to assert, such privileges and protections. The
Parties (a) share a common legal and commercial interest in all of the Confidential lnformation that is
subject to such privileges and protections; (b) are or may become joint defendants in proceedings to
which such Party's Confidential lnformation covered by such protections and privileges relates; (c) intend
that such privileges and protections remain intact should any Party become subject to any actual or
threatened proceeding to which the Confidential Information covered by such protections and privileges
relates; and (d) intend that after the Closing the Proprietary Party whose Confidential Information is at
issue shall have the right to assert such protections and privileges. No Party shall admit, claim or
contend, in proceedings involving any Party or otherwise, that any Party waived any of its attorney workproduct protections, attorney-client privileges or similar protections and privileges with respect to any
information, documents or other material not disclosed to a Party due to any Party disclosing its
Confidential Information (including Confidential Information related to pending or threatened litigation)
to another Party.

12.19 Guaranty: Obligations of Transferee Guarantor. Transferee Guarantor unconditionally
guarantees the full and prompt payment and performance of all of Transferee's obligations to Transferor,
Kindred, and Transferor Indemnified Parties in accordance with this OTA or any other agreement
between Transferor and Transferee arising in connection with the Transaction. The liability of Transferee

Guarantor under this Section 12.19 will in no way be affected or impaired by any failure or delay by
Transferor in enforcing payment of any amount required under this OTA, in enforcing the performance of
any obligations under this OTA, in enforcing payment under this Section 12.19, or in exercising any right
or power in respect thereto, or to any compromise, waiver, settlement, change, subordination,
modification, or disposition of any payments due under this OTA or any performance required under this
OTA or any of the other Transaction Documents, and Transferee Guarantor hereby waives all defenses of
suretyship. The amendment or modification of this OTA will not affect Transferee Guarantor's liability
under this Section 12.19, unless such Transferee Guarantor's liability is amended or modified in a writing
signed by the Parties.
guarantees the full and
prompt payment and performance of all of Transferor's obligations to Transferee, Transferee Guarantor,
and Transferee Indemnified Parties in accordance with this OTA or any other agreement between
Transferor and Transferee arising in connection with the Transaction. The liability of Kindred under this
Section 12.20 will in no way be affected or impaired by any failure or delay by Transferee in enforcing

12.20 Guaranty: Oblieations of Kindred. Kindred unconditionally
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payment of any amount required under this OTA, in enforcing the performance of any obligations under
this OTA, in enforcing payment under this Section 12.20, or in exercising any right or power in respect
thereto, or to any compromise, waiver, settlement, change, subordination, modification, or disposition of
any payments due under this OTA or any performance required under this OTA or any of the other
Transaction Documents, and Kindred hereby waives all defenses of suretyship. The amendment or

modification of this OTA will not affect Kindred's liability under this Section 12.20, unless such
Kindred's liability is amended or modified in a writing signed by the Parties.
[The Next Page is the Signature Page]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF,

each

of the undersigned in

executed this OTA as of the day and year first above written.

the

indicated below

TRANSFEROR:
Kindred Nursing Centers East, L.L.C.

L. Curnutte
Senior Vice President, Corporate Development

KINDRED:
Kindred

Operating, Inc.

By
Douglas L. Curnutte
Senior Vice President, Corporate Developmerrt

signature Page ro operations Transfer and surreirder Agreement

- Kindred *

Terace Facility

has

TRANSFEREE:
Birohwood Oporations LLC

By
Erlichman

Owner

TRANSFEREE GUARANTOR:
E&R Operations LLC

Signaiure Page to Oporations Transfer and Surrender Agreemont

-

Kindred

- Birchwood Terrace Facility

Exhibit A
Definitions
Definitions. In addition to the terms otherwise defined herein, the following terms shall have the
following meaning:
"Accounts Receivable" means all accounts receivable and incentive payments of the Business,
including without limitation, the IGT Credit Amount and other incentive payments related to the QIPP,
QASP or similar incentive programs in additional states.

"Actìon" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
*Nffected Pafücipants" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5(m).

"Afftlinfe"

has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

"Af,filiated-Servíce Transferee Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5(d).

"Ancíllary PernúÍs and Approvals" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(a).
"A/R Collection Period" has the meaning set forth in Section 6'10(b).
"Assets" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1.
"Assignment and Assumpti.on Agreement" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(b).
"Assutned Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section

2.

l(e)'

"Assutned Líøbilities" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4(a).

"Bíll of Sale"

has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a).

"Bríng Down Cerfficate" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(c).

"Broker" has the meaning set forth in Section

4. 18.

"Business" means the business conducted by Transferor exclusively at or exclusively related to
the Facility.
"Business Ddys" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

"Closing" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.
*Closing Date" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1.

*CMS" means the Centers for Medicare and Medicare Services.
"COBRA" means the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act or similar state law.
'oCode" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

"Compliance Violatíons" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3(h).

"Confidential Informatio,tt" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.5(b).
"Contracts" has the meaning set forth in Section

2.

l(e).

"Cost Reports'o means all Cost Reports exclusively related to the Facility filed by Transferor prior

to the Execution Date pursuant to the requirements of any applicable Government Reimbursement
Programs for cost-based payments or reimbursement due to or claimed by Transferor from any applicable
Government Reimbursement Programs or thefu fiscal intermediaries or payor agents.

"Current Records" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(h).
"Deficíencies" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3(g).
"Delnyed Closíng" has the meaning set forth in Section 8.1.

"Departmenf" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(a).
"Dísclosure Updates" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.21.
"Effectíve Tíme" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1'
"Employee Beneftt Plnn" means any plan, program, agreement or policy for the benefit of any
current or former employee, director, independent contractor, or owner (or any dependent or beneficiary
thereoll that is (a) a welfare plan within the meaning of Section 3(l) of ERISA, þ) a pension plan within
the meaning of Section 3(2) of ERISA, (c) a stock bonus, stock purchase, stock option, restricted stoch

stock appreciation right or similar equity-based plan, or (d) any other compensation, deferred-

compensation, retirement, welfare-benefit, bonus, incentive, retention, severance pay, sick leave, vacation
pay, salary continuation, disability, dental, vision, medical, life insurance or fringe-benefit plan, program,
agreement or policy.

"Encurnbrance" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
"Environmental

Inw"

has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

"ERISA- means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.
"ERISA Affilíate" has the meaning

set

forth in Section 4.5(c).

"Escrow Facility" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

"Excluded Assets" shall mean the Assets which are not being transferred to Transferee from
Transferor as described in Section 2.7.
"Execution Date" has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

"Expiratíon DaÍe" has the meaning set forth in Section 10.1.
"Facílífy" has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

"Financìal Statements" means the unaudited balance sheets and profit and loss
relating to the operations of the Business for the 2016 fiscal year.

"Firms"

has the meanins set forth in

Sestiaul2-l5.
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statements

" F u ndame

ntal

R ep r e s e ntatio n

s" has the meaning set forth in Section

10.

I

*GAAP" means U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, as in effect on the Execution Date,
consistently applied.
"Governn ent Reímbursement Program" means the Medicare program, any relevant state
Medicaid program and any other similar or successor federal, state or local health care payment programs
with or sponsored by any Governmental Authority (excluding the TRICARE Program).

"Governmental Authority" ot "Governmental Entí6t" means any federal, state, or local
or any court of competent jurisdiction, administrative agency or commission or other

government

domestic governmental or quasi-governmental authority or instrumentality.

"Group Heakh Plan" means
medical coverage subject to COBRA.

a group health plan offering major medical, dental and

other

"Hazardous Substances" means any chemicals, materials, compounds or substances defined,
regulated, listed or otherwise classified under any applicable Law as a "hazardous substance," "extremely
hazardous substance," "hazardous material," "hazardous waste," "universal waste," "mixed waste," "biohazardous waste," "medical waste," "radioactive waste," "pharmaceutical waste," "commingled waste,"

"mold," "toxic substance," "toxin," "pollutant" or "contaminant," including petroleum (including
petroleum products, constituents, additives, or derivatives thereof), asbestos, asbestos-containing
materials, and polychlorinated biphenyls.

"Healthcare Requiremenf,s" means the requirements of or with respect to Government
Reimbursement Programs, Referral Laws, Patient Privacy Requirements, the False Claims Act, 31,
U.S.C. Section 3729 et seq. as amended, and42 USC Section 1320a-7k(d),42 U.S.C. 1320a-7a(a).
"HIPAA"

means the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act

of

1996.

"IGT Credit Amount" shall mean the amount of any cash or other amounts due to Transferor
(regardless of whether such amounts are paid after the applicable Closing) which is set forth on the IGT
balance sheets of the Facility as of immediately prior to the applicable Closing, and any payment or part
thereof received pursuant to a UPL Program related to or attributable to the period prior to the Effective

Time.

"IMA"

has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1(b).

"Indemnification Cap" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
"Indemnificatìon Oblígatíon" means the indemnification obligations of an Indemnifying Party
under this OTA.
"Indemnified Party" and "Indemnifred Parties" means any Person entitled to indemnification
under Article X of this OTA and Article IX of the Purchase Agreement.

"Indemnifying Party" and "Indemnífying Parties" means any Person required to provide
indemnification under Article X of this OTA and Article IX of the Purchase Agreement.
"Indemnity Threshol.d" has the meaning set forth Section 10.4(a).

"Intellectual Property" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement (excluding such
intellectual property listed as an Excluded Asset).
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"Inventory" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(d).
"Kindred" has the meaning

set

forth in the Preamble.

"Knowledge" means, when used with respect to Transferor, the actual awareness after due inquiry
of a particular fact or matter of any of the following: Michael Beal, President Nursing Center Division;
Jerry Kemper, Chief Financial Officer Nursing Center Division; Jill Bosa, Chief Operating Officer
Nursing Center Division, Melonie McManus, Chief Clinical Officer Nursing Center Division, Patricia
McGillan, Chief Counsel Nursing Center Division, and Glenn Cote, DVP, Facilities Management
Nursing Center Division.

"Law" means any statute, law, rule or regulation or ordinance of any Governmental Authority.
"Loss" oÍ "Losses" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

"LSC" has the meaning set forth in Section 3.3(g)
"Materíal Adverse Effect" means any event, change, development or occurrence that has had or
would reasonably be expected to have a material and adverse effect on the operations, condition (financial
or otherwise) or results of operations of the Business, taken as a whole, but excluding any such event,
change, development or occuffence attributable to or resulting from (i) any change in applicable Law or
the interpretation thereof, (ii) any change in GAAP or the interpretation thereof, (iii) any events, changes,

or occurrences generally affecting the industries in which the Business operates,
(iv) general economic, political or market conditions, (v) any disasters, calamities, emergencies, acts of
war, sabotage or terrorism (or an escalation or worsening of any of the foregoing), (vi) the entry into or
announcement of this OTA and the transactions contemplated hereby, (vii) any action taken or omitted to
be taken by Transferor or its Affiliates pursuant to this OTA or at the written request or with the prior
written consent of Transferee, (viii) any loss of, or change in, the relationship of the Business with its
customers, employees or suppliers (but not any breach of Contract by Transferor or its Affiliate) that is a
direct result of the execution, delivery or performance (in accordance with its terms) of this OTA, the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this OTA or the announcement of any of the
foregoing, (ix) the failure of the Business to achieve internal or external financial forecasts or projections,
provided that the events, changes, developments or occurrences underlying such failure shall not be
excluded as a result of this clause (ix), or (x) any breach by Transferee of this OTA.
developments

"Medícaid Agreernent" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2ÔXii).
"Med.icare Agreement" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(bXi).

"Natíonal Contracts" means all Contracts between Kindred, Transferor, or any of their respective
Affiliates, on the one hand, and any third party, on the other hand, that have been entered into on a
national or regional basis including, without limitation, any Contract pursuant to which any services are
provided by or to any hospital, inpatient rehabilitation facility, nursing facility or other facility of Kindred
or any of its Affiliates that is not the Facility.
"New Lícens¿" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(a).
"Non-Cornpetitíon Covenant" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.3.
"Non-Senior Executive Emplnyee Liquídated Damages" has the meaning set forth in Section
6.3.

"Non-SolícítaÍíon Covenanf" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.3.
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"Notice of Indemníficatíon" has the meaning set forth in Section 10'5.
"Novation" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(c).

"Order" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
"OSHPD" means the California Office of Statewide Health Planning and Development.
"OSHPD Work has the meaning set forth in Section 4.8(c).

*OTA" has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
"Other Operatíons Transfer Agreements" means those certain Operations Transfer Agreements
dated the same date hereof, by and between the Affiliates of Transferor and Transferee for the purposes of
transferring the operations of facilities located in Vermont.
"Outside Date" means September 30, 2018, in all instances, provided that such date shall be
October 31, 2018, with respect to and Escrow Facility eligible for Closing hereunder except for
satisfaction ofthe closing conditions set forth in Section 7.1, so long as the applicable parties are using its
good faith efforts to satisfy such closing conditions'
"Overhead and Shared Semíces" means ancillary corporate or shared services provided to or in
support of any Facility that are general corporate, overhead or other services or provided to both (a) the
Facility, and (b) any other business or facility of Seller and its Affiliates that is not a Facility including,
without limitation, access to hardware and software related to financial and clinical operations, use of
intellectual property, travel and entertainment services, temporary labor services, purchasing and supply
services, personal telecommunications services, computer hardware and software services, energy/utilities
services, treasury services, public relations, legal and risk management services (including workers'
compensation), payroll services, sales and marketing support services, information technology and

tax services, internal audit services, executive
management services, investor relations services, human resources and employee relations management
services, employee benefits services, credit, collections and accounts payable services, logistics services,
property management services, environmental support services, training, federal and state reimbursement
services, state licensing and Medicare and Medicaid certification and maintenance support, in each case
including services relating to the provision of access to information, operating and reporting systems and
databases and all hardware and software or other intellectual property used in connection therewith.
telecommunications services, accounting services,

uPørf¡)" and"Partíes" have the meaning set forth in the Preamble.

"Pøtient Privacy Requiremenfs" means the applicable requirements of the Administrative
Simplification Provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 as amended
by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2OO9 and the implementing regulations thereunder
governing the privacy of individually identifiable health information and the security of such information
maintained in electronic form or of any similar state Laws.
"Pending Medicaid Applicønts" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.10(e).

"Permits" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(i)'
"Permitted Eneumbrance" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
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"Person" means an individual, partnership, venture, unincorporated association, organization,
syndicate, corporation, limited liability company, or other entity, trust, ffustee, executor, administrator or
other legal or personal representative or any government or any agency or political subdivision thereof.
"Plnn" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.5(a).
*Policy and Procedure Manual" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(f).
*Polícy Return Døte" has the meaning set forth in Section

2.l(fl.

*Portfolio" has the meaning set forth in the Furchase Agreement.

"Portþlío Material Adverse Effect" means any event, change, development or occurrence that
has had or would reasonably be expected to have a material and adverse effect on the operations,
condition (financial or otherwise) or results of operations of the Portfolio (as such term is defined in the
Purchase Agreement) in which the Facility is located, taken as a whole, but excluding any such event,
change, development or occurrence attributable to or resulting from (i) any change in applicable Law or
the interpretation thereof, (ii) any change in GAAP or the interpretation thereof, (iii) any events, changes,
developments or occurrences generally affecting the industries in which the Business operates,
(iv) general economic, political or market conditions, (v) any disasters, calamities, emergencies, acts of
war, sabotage or terrorism (or an escalation or worsening of any of the foregoing), (vi) the entry into or
arìnouncement of this OTA and the transactions contemplated hereby, (vii) any action taken or omitted to
be taken by Transferor or Transferor its Affiliates pursuant to this OTA or at the written request or with
the prior written consent of Transferor, (viii) any loss of, or change in, the relationship of the Business
with its customers, employees or suppliers (but not any breach of Contract by Transferor or its Affiliate)
that is a direct result of the execution, delivery or performance (in accordance with its terms) of this OTA,
the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this OTA or the announcement of any of the
foregoing, (ix) the failure of the Business to achieve internal or external financial forecasts or projections,
provided that the events, changes, developments or occurrences underlying such failure shall not be
excluded as a result of this clause (ix), or (x) any breach by Transferee of this OTA.
"Pre-Closíng Imposítion(s)" one or more deficiencies identified on the most recent pre-Closing
survey of the Facility by a Governmental Entity that remains unresolved and results in or imposes (l) a
deficiency rating of "I", "J" or higher, (2) civil money penalties, or (3) denial of payment for new
admission (DPNA).

"Prior Records" has the meaning set forth in Exhibit 2.7.
*Publíc Announcement" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.5.
"Purchase Agteement" has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

"Purchaser" has the meaning set forth in the Recitals.

"Quaffied Plan" has the meaning set forth in Section 4.5Ô)'
"Records" has the meaning set forth in Exhibit 2.7.

"Refenal Laws" means Section 11288(b) of the Social Security Act, as amended, 42 USC
Section 1320a7(b) (Criminal Penalties Involving Medicare or State Health Care Programs), commonly
referred to as the "Federal Anti-Kickback Statute," Section 1877 of the Social Security Act, as amended,
42 USC Section 1395nn and related regulations (Prohibition Against Certain Referrals), commonly
referred to as "Stark Law," 42 USC Section 1320a-7a(a)(5)'
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"Regulatory Approvals" shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(a).

"RehabCare" means RehabCare Group, Inc. or its Affiliate.
"Resident" means a resident of the Transferred Facilities.
"Resident Trust Funds" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.1(k).
"Restricted Party" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.3.
"Restricted Períod has the meaning set forth in Section 6.3.
*Retained Linbílífíes- has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4(b).

"Return" and"Returns" have the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
"Seller" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

"seller Party" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement'
"senior Execu.tive" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.3.
"Seníor Executive Líquídated Damnges" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.3.
"Substítute OTA Transferee" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
'oTax" and*Taxes" have the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

"Termínatíon Date" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
"Transaction Documents" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
"Transferee" has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
"Transferee Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5(b).

"Transþree Guarantor" means E&R Operations LLC.
"Transþree Indemnífted Parties" has the meaning set forth in Section 10.2.
"Transferee's A/R- has the meaning set forth in Section 6.10(a).
"Transferee Plnn" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5(m).

"Transferor" has the meaning set forth in the Preamble.
"Transferor Bad Debt" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.11(b).
"Transferor Confidential Informatíon" has the meaning set forth in Section 6.5(c).
"Trønsferor Indemnifted Parties" has the meaning set forth in Section 10'3.
"Transferor Representative" has the meaning set forth in Section 12.17(a)'
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"Transferor's

NR"

has the meaning set forth in Section 6.10(a).

"Transferred Employees" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5(b).
"Transferred Føcilitíes" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
"Transítinn Períat'has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(bXii)'
"IJPL Contract" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
"IJPL Prograrn" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

"VA"

has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(c).

"VA Contract" has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2(c).
"VA Subcontract" has the meaning set forth in Section 2'2(c).

'3WR" has the meaning set forth in the Purchase Agreement.
*WARN .,Acf" means the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act
amended.
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Exhibit 2.2 (cl
SUBCONTRACT PENDING NOVATION
day
THIS SUBCONTRACT PENDING NOVATION (this "Agreemenf') is made as of this
("Contracto,r"),
2017, by and between
of
- and
Operations
herein
to
that
certain
("Successor").
is
made
Reference
a
2017 , to which Successor and Contractor
Transfer and Surrender Agreement dated as of
are parties

(fhe"OTA"), the terms and conditions of which are incorporated herein by reference.
RECITALS

WHEREAS, Contractor is transferring to Successor, and Successor is assuming from Contractor,
and commonly known as
the operations ofthat certain skilled nursing facility located at
*Closíng
(the
Date"), according to the terms set
2017
effective as of
forth in the OTA;
WHEREAS, Contractor is currently a party to a contract with the United States of America (the
(Íhe "VA Contracl"), and Successor is assuming the
Governmenf"), Contract Number
obligations and liabilities of Contractor thereunder in accordance with Section 2.2(c) of the OTA;
o'

WHEREAS, Successor and Contractor will file an application for novation of the VA Contract
(the "Novation Apptication") pursuant to which the parties will request that the Government recognize
Successor as successor to Contractor under the VA Contract; and
WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to set forth their rights and obligations with respect to the
continued performance of the VA Contract pending approval of the Novation Application.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties, intending to be legally bound, hereby

agree as follows:

1. Statement of Work. On the terms and subject to the conditions hereinafter set forth,
Contractor subcontracts to Successor all aspects of performance of the VA Contract during the term of
this Agreement. Successor agrees to comply with all terms and conditions of the VA Contract including,
but not limited to, the Federal Acquisition Regulation clauses contained therein. Contractor agrees to
cooperate with Successor and to take such actions as may be reasonably requested by Successor to
facilitate Successor's performance of the VA Contract during the Term (as defined herein).
2, Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence as of the Closing Date, and shall
continue until the date on which the Novation Application is approved or the date upon which a final
denial of such application is received by Contractor or Successor, unless sooner terminated as provided
herein (the "Term"). Contractor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time if such
termination is required by the Government or is otherwise necessary to avoid Contractor's termination for
default under the VA Contract.
3.

Successor's Duties

During the Term, Successor shall:

keep accurate accounting records showing all services performed
made or incurred in connection with its performance of the VA Contract;

(a)

expenditures

(b)
Contract;

5906s894.3

keep such records and underlying receipts

¿rs

and

may be required under the VA

(c)

perform the

VA Contract in a legal manner, abiding by all

applicable terms,

conditions, laws, and regulations; and

(d)

maintain and pay premiums

for

comprehensive

bodily injury, liability

(professional and general) and property damage insurance in amounts sufficient to provide reasonable and
adequate protection of both Successor and Contractor against liability which may arise in connection with
the performance of the VA Contract.

4.

Contractor's Duties. During the Term, Contractor shall use its commercially reasonable
efforts to cooperate with Successor in pursuing the Novation Application including, but not limited to,
using commercially reasonable efforts to provide Successor with all documents and information necessary
for Successor to seek a novation of the VA Contract and signing any novation agreement and other forms
reasonably requested by Successor or the Govemment. Contractor shall also take such actions reasonably
required by Successor to facilitate Successor's performance of the VA Contract and the receipt of
payments by Successor for services and goods rendered to the Govemment by Successor under the VA
Contract including, but not limited to, submitting invoices prepared by Successor to the Government on
behalf of Successor for goods and services rendered to the Government by Successor under the VA
Contract, receiving payments on behalf of Successor on such invoices from the Government, and

promptly remitting such payments to Successor.

5. Compensation. In consideration of the services to be rendered by Successor to
Contractor hereunder, Successor shall be entitled to retain all revenues from goods and services provided
by Successor during the Term to the Government under the VA Contract (the "Compensøtion").
Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the Compensation shall be deemed Accounts Receivable (as
defined in the OTA) and subject to Section 6.10 of the OTA.
6. Document Delivery. Contractor shall deliver to Successor copies of all documents and
information that are received by Contractor with respect to the VA Contract.
7. No Partnership or Joint Venture or Agency. Successor and Contractor are not partners,
joint venturers or agents and nothing herein shall be so construed. Successor shall perform its duties
hereunder solely as an independent contractor of Contractor.

8. Indemnification. Successor hereby agrees to indemnify and hold Contractor harmless
from and against any claim, liability, loss, damage, cost, expense or other deficiency including, but not
limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees and other legal costs and expenses in any way arising out ol
resulting from, or relating to (i) Successor's breach of any representation or warranty made by Successor
herein; or (ii) failure of Successor to perform any of its obligations as set forth herein.
9. Amendments: Binding Effect. Except as provided in Section 2 hereof, this Agreement
not
be modified or terminated except by an instrument in writing signed by both parties hereto or
shall
their respective successors or assigns, and shall be binding on and inure to the benefit ofthe parties hereto
and their respective successors and assigns.

10.

Subcontracting and Assignment. Successor shall not further subcontract or assign its
rights or obligations under this Agreement without Contractor's express written consent.

1.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in one or more counterparts, each of which
I
shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.

2
59065894.3

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Subcontract Pending Novation
date first above written.
Contractor:

Successor:

Name

Name:

Title:

590ó5894.3

as of the

Exhibit 2.7
Excluded Assets

(a)

Any cash, cash equivalents, or bank accounts;

(b)

All Accounts Receivable, prepaid expenses, security deposits and other current assets of
(excluding
deferred tax assets);
the Facility

(c)

All National Contracts;

(d)

All

Overhead and Shared Services, including any Contracts

for or

assets related to

Overhead and Shared Services;

(e)

Licenses and permits that are not assignable or transferable, whether with or without third

party consent, to Transferee;

(Ð Assets of Transferor disposed of in the ordinary course of business prior to the Effective
Time; provided that Transferor shall not dispose of any material Assets without the prior written consent
of Transferee (other than Inventory used at the Facility in the ordinary course of business, which may be
used and disposed of provided that it shall also be replenished to a quantity that is required by Law);
(g)

Any management agreement between Transferor and Kindred or its Affiliates, as the case

(h)

All insurance policies and any claims and rights to proceeds thereunder;

may be;

(Ð

The minute books and ownership records of Transferor, including all organizational
documents, stock registers and such other Records of Transferor as they pertain to the ownership,
organization, or existence of Transferor and duplicate copies of such records;

(j)

Any claims for refunds of Taxes and other governmental charges imposed on Transferor
of whatever nature including, but not limited to, those with respect to the Facility or the business
attributable to periods ending on or prior to the Closing Date;

(k)

All

shares

of any capital stock,

membership interests

or partner interests in

any

partnership, of Transferor;

(l)

All of Transferor's email

(m)

All rights of Transferor under this OTA or the other Transaction Document;

(n)

All

accounts;

insurance policies of Transferor or any of its Affiliates and all rights of every nature

and description under or arising out

of such insurance

policies, including the right

to make claims

thereunder, to the proceeds thereof and to any insurance refunds relating thereto;

(o)

Transferor's Returns for periods up to and including the Closing Date and all rights of
Transferor to any recoveries or refunds in respect of Taxes for periods up to and including the Closing
Date, whether or not any refund of or credit for claims have been filed prior to the Closing Date;

(p)

Transferor'sattorney-clientprivilege;

(q)

All Employee Benefit Plans (including Plans) and all assets related thereto;

(r)

Transferor's information technology systems, emails, software licenses, corporate minute
books, records, marketing materials, policies and procedures, and all assets that are used at the corporate
level and do not solely relate to the operations of the Business;

(s)

All claims or rights of Transferor with

and among any other Transferor or amounts due

from related parties;

(t) All of Kindred's or any of its Affiliate's proprietary manuals, marketing materials, policy
procedure
manuals, standard operating procedures and marketing brochures, and all data and studies
and
generated
for the benefit of the Facility;
or analyses
(u)

All funds and accounts of all employee retirement, deferred compensation, health,
plans and programs, including assets representing a surplus or overfunding of any
or
benefit
welfare
Employee Benefit Plan;

(v) All unclaimed property of any third party as of the Closing, including, without limitation,
property which is subject to applicable escheat Laws;
(w) All assets of Transferor not used in connection with or held in whole or in part for use in
connection with the Business;
(x) The items of personal property brought to the Facility by employees of Transferor or its
Affiliates that are not used or held for use with the Business and the operation of any of the Facility;
(V)

All

tradenames, trademarks, service marks, domain names (URLs) and websites owned

by Kindred or its Affiliates including, without limitation, any use of the names "Kindred'

or
"RehabCare," in whole or in part, or any derivation thereof, and all references to any ofthe foregoing on
social media channels (including, without limitation, Facebook, Twitter and YouTube) associated with
any or all of the Facility or Kindred or its Affiliates;

(z)

All files, charts, and other information relating to all Residents who previously occupied
the Facility or used the Facility prior to the Effective Time and are not Residents of the Facility as of the
Effective Time (including, but not limited to, all patient records, medical records, therapy records,
pharmacy records, clinical records, and Resident Trust Funds records) for all periods prior to the date that
is three (3) years before the Effective Time (collectively, "Príor Records" and together with the Current
Records, "Records");

(aa)

And any asset transferred to Purchaser, its Affiliate or assignee under the terms of the

Purchase Agreement;

(bb)

Any

assets listed

as an "Excluded Asset" pursuant to the terms of the

Purchase

Agreement;

(cc)

All

assets owned by RehabCare;

(dd)

all claims, rights, interests and proceeds (whether received in cash or by credit to amounts
otherwise due to a third party) with respect to amounts overpaid by Transferor to any third party with
respect to periods prior to the Closing (e.g., such overpaid amounts may be determined by billing audits
undertaken by Transferor or Transferor's consultants) to the extent not offset against any underpayments
by any applicable third party payor in respect of services rendered prior to the Closing;

(ee) any receipts (i) relating to Transferor's Cost Reports or rights to settlements and
retroactive adjustments on the same (whether resulting from an appeal by Transferor or otherwise) with
2

(ii) which result from Transferor's pursuit of one or more
appeals pertaining to a Government Reimbursement Program to the extent not offset against any
overpayments by such Government Reimbursement Program in respect of services rendered prior to the

respect to time periods prior to the Closing, or

Closing.
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Exhibit 3.2(a)

BILL OF SALE
2017

In consideration of One Dollar ($l.OO¡ and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
("Trønsferor"), does
a
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
hereby grant, bargain, sell, convey, assign and transfer all ofTransferor's right, title and interest in and to,
("Transferee"), and Transferee does
a
all and singular, the Assets to
hereby purchase, take accept and assume, all of Transferor's right, title and interest in and to, all and
singular, the Assets. Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings given to
2017, by
them in that certain Operations Transfer and Surrender Agreement dated as of
and Kindred Healthcare
and among Transferor, Transferee, [Transferor Guaranty], a
Operating, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the"OTA").

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, all and singular, for Transferee's use and benefit, and Transferor
hereby represents and warrants to Transferee that Transferor has full right, power and authority to sell the
foregoing Assets and to make this Bill of Sale and that the foregoing Assets are free and clear of all liens
and encumbrances except for the Permitted Encumbrances.
Nothing contained in this Bill of Sale shall be deemed to supersede or change any of the
obligations, agreements, provisions, covenants, warranties or representations of Transferor or Transferee
in the OTA, which obligations, agreements, provisions, covenants, warranties and representations shall
remain in full force and effect to the full extent provided therein.
[Remainder of this Bill of Sale intentionally left blank

4815-3239-0731.2
590579s3.4

-

signature page to followJ

IN WITNESS IVHEREOF, Transferor has caused this Bill of Sale to be duly executed
first date written above.
TRANSFEROR:

By:
Name:

Title:

TRANSFEREE:

By:
Name

Title:

s90s7953.4

as of the

Exhibit 3.2(b)
ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT
THIS ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGREEMENT (this "Assignmenf ") is made and
201'7, by and between
entered into as of

("Assignor"),

a

and

("Assignee"). Capitalized terms used herein without definition shall have the meanings given to them in
2017, by and among
the Operations Transfer and Sunender Agreement dated
Assignor, Assignee, and Kindred Healthcare Operating, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the " O TA ")

WITNESSETH:

-,

WHEREAS, pursuant to the OTA, Assignor has agreed to sell, transfer, assign, and deliver to
Assignee, and Assignee has agreed to accept from Assignor all existing contracts described in Exhibit A
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein (fhe "Assumed Contrøcts "); and
WHEREAS, pursuant to the OTA, Assignee has agreed to accept and assume Assignor's rights,
claims, and interests with respect to the Assumed Contracts, and to assume the obligations under the
Assumed Contracts which relate to the period of time after the Effective Time.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and suffîciency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:
Section 1. Assignment and Assumption. Effective as of the Closing, Assignor hereby transfers,
assigns and delivers to Assignee all right, title and interest of Assignor in and to the Assumed Contracts.

2. Assignee's Acceptance and Assumption. Assignee hereby accepts such transfer,
delivery of the Assumed Contracts from Assignor and expressly assumes any and all
and
assignment
rights, responsibilities, obligations and liabilities of Assignor in connection with the Assumed Contracts
which relate to the period of time after the Effective Time.
Section

Section

3.

Appointment. Assignor hereby irrevocably appoints Assignee, its successors and

assigns, as the attomey and agent of Assignor, in Assignor's name and stead, to enforce the provisions

of

the Assumed Contracts.

Section 4. Bindine Effect. This Assignment shall be binding on and inure to the benefit
Assignor and Assignee and their respective successors and assigns.
Section

5. Captions. The captions of this Assignment

of

are solely for the convenience of reference

and shall not affect its interpretation.

Section

6.

Counterparts. This Assignment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall

be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Section

7.

Governing Law. This Assignment shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance

with the laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to its conflict of law principles.
[Remainder of this Assignment intentionally left blank

48t4-0367-8539.2
ssqs5762.3

-

signature page to followJ

IN WITNESS IVHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Assignment and Assumption
Agreement as of the day and year first above written.
ASSIGNOR:

By:
Name:
Its:

ASSIGNEE:

By:
Name
Its:

59055762.3

Exhibit A
Assumed Contracts

590ss762.3

Exhibit 3.2(c)
BRING DOWN CERTIFICATE
2017

("fTrønsferee/Trønsferorl") hereby certifies that:

(D This Certificate is being delivered pursuant to [Section 3.2(c)] of that certain Operations
2017 (hereinafter referred to as the
Transfer and Surrender Agreement dated
a
'o OTA"), by and among [Transferee/Transferor],
and Kindred
Healthcare Operating, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

(iÐ All of the representations and warranties of [Transferee/Transferor] set forth in [Article
IV/Article V] the OTA are true and correct in all material respects (or, with respect to any representation
qualified as to materiality, true and correct) as of the date hereof as if made on and as of the date hereof;
except to the extent any such representation or warranty expressly was made as of an earlier date or with
respect to a particular period, in which case such representation or warranty was true and correct in all
material respects (or, with respect to any representation qualified as to materiality, true and correct) as of
such date or with respect to such period.
(iii) [Transferor/Transferee] has performed and complied, in all material respects, with all
terms, agreements, covenants and conditions of the OTA to be performed or complied with by it as of the
date hereof.

[Remainder of this Bring Down Certificate intentionally left blank

s9055783.3

-

signature page tofollowJ

IN LTNESS IVHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Bring Down Certificate
first date written above.
ITRANSFEREE/TRANSFERORI

By
Name:
ai*lo.

s9055783.3

:

as of the

Exhibit 6.10(f)
Wire Instructions

If to Kindred:
ABA# 021000021
Bank Name: JPMorgan Chase Bank
Bank Address: 270 Park Avenue, New York, NY 10017
Account Name: Kindred Healthcare Operating, [nc.
Account Number: 32327 2681

SWIFT CODE: CHASUS33
Kindred Vy'ire Contacts:
Temesha Smith
Keff Helstowski

Ifto

502-596-2007

502-596-2971

Purchaser

[to be provided by OTA Transferee within thirty (30) days following the
Execution Datel

DISCLOSURE SCHEDULES
(VERMONT - BTRCHWOOD)
These Disclosure Schedules are made and given pursuant to those certain Operations
Transfer and Surrender Agreements by and between Kindred Healthcare Operating, Inc., a
Delaware corporation ("Kindred"); Kindred's affiliated seller entities which operate the
Facilities listed on Exhib¡t A of these Disclosure Schedules ("Transþrors"); and Birchwood
Operations LLC, a Vermont limited liability company ("Transþree"), dated June 30, 2Ol7 (the
"Agreement"). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein have the
meanings ascribed to them in the Agreement.
The information contained in the Disclosure Schedules shall be deemed to qualify to the
specific Section (or subsection, as appropriate) of the Agreement to which it corresponds, and
shall be cumulative so that if the existence of the fact or item or its contents disclosed in any
particular Schedule is relevant to any other Schedule, then such fact or item shall be deemed to
be disclosed with respect to the other Schedule to the extent such relevance is reasonably
apparent whether or not a specific cross-reference appears. The headings contained in the
Disclosure Schedules are included for convenience only, and are not intended to limit the effect
of the disclosures contained in such Schedule or to expand the scope of the information required
to be disclosed in such Schedule. Descriptions of documents in the Schedules are summaries
only and are qualified in their entirety by the specific terrns of such documents. Matters
reflected in the Disclosure Schedules are not necessarily limited to matters required by the
Agreement to be reflected herein; additional matters are set forth for informational purposes and
the fact that any item of information is disclosed in the Disclosure Schedules shall not be
construed to mean that such information is required to be disclosed by the Agreement. Any
information and the dollar thresholds set forth herein shall not be used as a basis for interpreting
the term "material" or other similar terms in the Agreement or constitute an admission that such
items are required to be disclosed under the Agreement.

59251390.3

Exhibit A
Facility
Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation
Facility No. 559
43 Starr Farm Rd

Burlington,

59251390.3

VT

-

05408-1321

Birchwood Terrace

Schedule 2.1(e'l
Assumed Contracts
Contracts listed on Schedule 4.I2(a), subject to change until fifteen (15) days prior to
Closing at Transferee's discretion per Section2.I(e) of the Agreement.

All

59251390.3

Schedule 2.5(a)
Ineligible Employees
None

s9251390.3

Schedule 4.2
Notices
(a) None.

(b) See below

DPNA
None.

CMPs
None.

Survey Deficiencies
See attached.

59251390.3

Survey Deficiencies

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace

9/19/2016

4t19t20t7

t2n9l20t7

Ut9t20t8

7n9t2078

The surveys listed below (for which, as of the Execution Date, the Facility has not received certification that it has achieved
substantial compliance) rnay result in the imposition of recommended or mandatory remedies (for, e.g., civil money penalties, denial
of payment for new admissions, and termination of Medicare or Medicaid participation) in the future and/or on a retroactive basis and
regardless of whether such remedies are specified below:

Kindred Transitional
Care and

Rehabilitation.Birchwood Terrace

59251390.3

5trOt

t7

5n0l
t7

Complaint

2567 Pending (Complaint &
Self Rpt) - Verbal exit Both
Unsubstantiated

Schedule 4.3

Litigation

1.

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-Birchwood Terrace. Vermont. Facility No.
559: Two OAG investigations (abuse allegations) fall 2016. The self-reported events
involved a staff member accused of unwanted physical touching of a resident.
Information was provided to the OAG. Message left with OAG to obtain status.

59251390.3

Schedule 4.5(a)
Employee Benefits Plans

2017 Plans
401ß)
T. Rowe Price
Deferred Comnensation - Non Oualified Plan
T. Rowe Price

Kindred Healthcare.Operating, Inc. Employee Medical and Welfare BenefÎts
Plan
Medical
Anthem
Aetna

UHC

Prescription
ESI - Carve out
Wellness
Limeade

H.S.A.
Discovery

CommuterÆarkins
Discovery

HMO
Kaiser CA Union
Kaiser CA Non-Union (High & Medium)

UHC of CA Union
Advocacv
Health Advocate

Dental
CIGNA
Delta

Vision
Davis

UHC

s9251390.3

Basic Life/AD&D
Unum

Supplemental LÍfe - EE. Spouse & Child Benefit
Unum

Voluntarv AD&D
Unum

STD &Buv-Up
Unum

LTD & Buv-Up
Unum

Accident
Unum

Critical Illness
Transamerica

Hospital Indemnitv
Transamerica

Permanent Life
Unum

Identitv Theft
InfoArmor
Leeal
Hyatt Legal
Pet Insurance

VPI

Kindred Healthcare Operating, Inc. Cafeteria Plan
FSA - General Purpose Healthcare. Limited Purpose Healthcare. Dependent
Care
Discovery
AutoÆIome

Metlife
EAP
Unum

5925t390.3

Discount Mall
Perkspot

Corporate Bonus Plans
Short Term Incentive Comp Plan

Long Term Cash Incentive Plan
Kindred Stock lncentive Plan

Division Snecific Bonus Plans
AVPS Incentive Plan
ADS lncentive Plan
CL Incentive Plan
Support Center Insurance Specialist Bonus Plan
Business Office Bonus Plan
Every Moment Counts

Additional Frinee BenefÏts
Paid Time Off/Holidays
Tuition Reimbursment
EDiDNS - Take a Break on Us Housekeeþing & Lawn Service

Retention Agreements
See attached chart.

59251390.3

Schedule a.6@)
Employees

See attached.

s925t390.3

Schedule 4.6(b)
Employee Compensation
None.

5925t390.3

Schedule 4.6(e)

Labor and Employment Disputes
None.

59251390.3

Schedule 4.6(f)
Collective Bargaining Agreements
None.

59251390.3

Schedule 4.6(e)

Labor Disputes
None.

59251390.3

Schedule 4.6(i)

At-Wilt Employment Exceptions
See disclosures set forth on Schedule a.6@)

59251390.3

Schedule 4.7(b\
Requests
None.

59251390.3

for Repairs, Restorations or Alterations

Schedule 4.7(c)
Encumbrances

1.

JP Morgan Chase Bank,
Kindred assets.

59251390.3

N.4.,

as a collateral agen| has a

priority security interest in all

Schedule a.8(aXi)
Government Reimbursement Programs
(a) See Medicare and Medicaid numbers in the attached chart and the VA contract below:
M.{umber

Contract Profile

Payor ParentName

Payor Name

Confact
Start Date

M0003665

(b) None.

59251390.3

M0003665. 80002.VAMas 25.V4

VETERANS

VA

Birchwood

ADMIMSTRATION

Massachusetts

3nt20t3

Facú¡ti€s- Vermont

!t
ll{rtl¡lrs t[oüca¡il
rYPo

Elf€rdee

Srdlftyl{Úi¿

St¡tG

Kindæd Transitional

t7-5003

+7-5003

UT

Cæ md

fúüfu.A.liltes
{3 Stm

Fm

NP¡*

Burlington, VT

Ienaæ

15408

165e481e43

lNwsing centen
r_r_c

þær

SNF

59251390.3

ExpM6

¡rMd

L¡@Ea

MedcafG

C¡JA C€rt
Drúe

Ih

B¿di

lKindred

Rd,

Rehabilitation-Birchwood

t

æ

110

¿7-00m393 JAoVL7

)u3l^8

144

)a26t69

beds deliænæd

þffective zVli20l0: 6 beds
47D0É70331keliænæd eff 4/t/t l
I

Schedule 4.8(aXiv)
Threatened Recoupment, Suspensions, Terminations or Restrictions

See disclosures set

55251390.3

forth on Schedule 4.2(b)

Schedule 4.8(aXv)

Audits
(a) None.

(b) and (c) see charts below
MEDICAID COST REPORTS

20ll

f,"YE

2013

2012

2015

2014

2016

2017

NOTES
Cost report audit
occurs each year,
no specifrc
timeframe to

begin. Nursing
Care component
rebases every

two

years; Resident

Vermont

Completed Completed Completed Completed

Open

Open

Open

Cars, Indirect, and

DON components
rebase every 4

years; Ancillary

&

Property
components rebase
the next quarterly
rate after the

conclusion of an
audit.

MEDICARE COST REPORTS
Ending

Medicare Provider

Number

Fac

State

Name

Date

NPR

Not Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

(d) See disclosures set forth on Schedule 4.2(b)

59251390.3

Schedule 4.8(bxi)
Licenses
See License disclosures set

59251390.3

forth on the chart attached to Schedule 4.8(a)(i)

Schedule 4.8(bxiÐ
Number and Type of Beds

See Licensed Beds attached.

59251390.3

Effective
Medieare
Licensed

ID#/FACILITY
559 KTc&R-Birchwood

59251390.3

Beds as

Beds

uufi

1M

144

of

Incrcases

uulT-

6tfrm

Decreases

uufl-

Medicare

6t30lt7

Beds

IM

Dual Certiñc¿tion

Date or

Beds

orExeeption
Detait
1007o DUAL

Certification

(included in

Chanee

total)

04t0u20rr

144

Schedule 4.8(bxiii)
Reduction in Number of Beds
None.

s9251390.3

Schedule a.8@Xiv)

Violations
See Survey Deficiencies contained in the attachment

59251390.3

to Schedule 4.2(b)

Schedule a.8@Xv)
Life Safety Code
See Survey Deficiencies contained in the attachment

59251390.3

to Schedule 4'2(b)

Schedule a.8(cXi)
Compliance
See disclosures as set forth on Schedule 4.2(b)

s9251390.3

Schedule a.8(cXii)
Referral Laws
None.
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Schedule 4.8(d)
Convictions/Exclusions
None.
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Schedule 4.8(e)-1

Audits; Settlements
See disclosures as set
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forth on Schedule 4.2(b) and Schedule 4.8(a)(iv).

Schedule 4.8(e)-2
Special Focus Facility
None.
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Schedule 4.L0
Absence of Changes
None.
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Schedule 4.12(a)
Proposed Assumed Contracts
See attached
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Fac.
No.

559

Additional
Kindred

Facility State

Kindred Party

Category

Vendor

Contracttype

Contact

Comments

Persons

KindredTransitional

VT

TLC Nursing

Clinical

Staffing

NonClinical

Dishmachine

Associates LLC

Care and

Rehabilitation-

559

Birchwood Terrace

KindredTransitional

VT

Ecolab

Care and

Lease

Rehabilitation-

559

Birchwood Terrace

KindredTransitional

VT

AllianceMechanical NonClinical

Care and

Rehabilitation-

559

Birchwood Terrace

KindredTransitional

VT

Care and

Inc.

Bayada Nurses,
dba Bayada Hospice

Clinical

Proactive
Maintenance
Agreement
Inpatient Services
Agreement

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace

Kelli A.
Marans, Esq.
Bayada Nurses,

Inc.
101 Executive

Dr. Ste 8
Moorestown,
NJ 08057

559

KindredTransitional

VT

Brook Field Service

559

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
KindredTransitional

VT

Comcast

Care and

559

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
KindredTransitional

559

Care and
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Prevenative
Maintenace
Agreement

Non-

Services

Clinical

Agreement

For contractual year
2013; silent on
renewal terms

(cable)

VT

Care and

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
KindredTransitional

Non-

Clinical

Care and

Excel Property
Maintenance

NonClinical

Landscaping
Services

Agreement

VT

Farrell Vending

Non-

Vending Services

Clinical

Agreement

For 2016 season

Fac.
No.

Additional
Kindred

Facility State

Kindred Party

Vendor

Category

Contracttype

Contact

Comments

Persons

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
559

Kindred Transitional

VT

Fire Tech

Non-

Clinical

Care and

Birchwood Terrace
Kindred Transitional

Services

VT

Care and

559

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
Kindred Transitional

Fletcher Allen
Health Care, Inc.

MD

VT

Care and

Kindred Transitional

559

559

Fletcher Allen
Health Care, Inc.

Clinical

559

Professional
Services

Fletcher Allen
Health Care

Clinical

Laboratory and

X-Ray Services
Agreement
Solid waste
disposal

Gauthier Trucking
Company, Inc.

Non-

VT

IIaun Specialty
Gases, Inc

Clinical

Agreement for
Oxygen Supplies

VT

Healthcare Service
Group

Non-

Clinical

Certificate of
Insurance

Boylan, Joseph

Non-

Snowplowing

VT

Care and

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
Kindred Transitional

MD

Psychiary

VT

Care and

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
Kindred Transitional

Dr.7,atl S. Berry,

Services

Agreement -

Care and

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
Kindred Transitional

Medical Director
Agreement

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
559

Sprinkler
Inspection

Rehabilitation559

Agreement for

Care and

Clinical

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
559

Kindred Transitional
Care and

VT

Clinical

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
559

Kindred Transitional
Care and

Rehabilitation-
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VT

Med Vy'aste Disposal

Non-

Agreement for

Clinical

Medical Waste
Disposal

Expired

Fac.
No.

Additional
Kindred

Facility State

Vendor

Kindred Party

Category

Contract type

Terrace
559

Kindred Transitional

VT

Millers Pest Control

Care and

NonClinical

559

VT

Care and

Mother Nature's
Helper

Non-

Clinical

Agreement for
Plant
Maintenance

Phillips, Melinda

Non-

NCD

Clinical

Beauty/Barber

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
559

Kindred Transitional

Services

VT

Care and

559

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
Kindred Transitional

Services

Agreement

VT

Simplex Grinnell

Care and

559

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
Kindred Transitional

559

Care and

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
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NonClinical

Fire
alarm/sprinkler
servlces

VT

SSTA

Care and

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
Kindred Transitional

Pest Control
Service

Agreement

RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace
Kindred Transitional

NonClinical

Price Chart hourly rate to a
seat charge

VT

Contact
Persons

IJVM - Technical

Non-

Services Program

Clinical

Preventative
Mainenance

Comments

Schedule 4.17(a)
Financial Statements
None.
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Schedule 4.L8

Transferor Broker

1.

Guggenheim Securities, LLC.

2.

Healthcare Transactions Group, Inc.

s92st390.3

Schedule 5.3
Transferee Broker
None.

59251390.3

Schedule 6.3
Non-Competition Covenant

(a) The following facilities, until Seller relinquishes ownership of such facilities and the
applicable Transferor transfers operations of such facilities:
Facility Address

Facility Name

State

AZ

AZ

KindredNursingandRehabilitation-Hacienda

660 South Coronado Drive, Sierra Vista,

AZ

Kindred Transitional Care - Phoenix

1880 East Van Buren St, Phoenix,

CA

Kindred Nurslng and Healthcare - Livermore

76 Fenton Street, Livermore,

CA 94550

CA

Kindred Nursing and Healthcare - Victorian

2l2lPine

CA

CA

Kindred Nursing and Healthcare-Bayberry

1800 Adobe Street, Concord,CA 94520-2313

CA

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation -

CA

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation - Ygnacio
Valley

1449 Yganacio Valley Rd, Walnut Creek,

CA

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation-Golden Gate

2707 Pine Street, San Francisco,

CA

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation-Nineteenth

2043 lgth Ave, San Francisco,

Hill

St, San Francisco,

415 29th Street, Oakland,

CA

AZ

85635

85006-3742

94115

94609

CA

CA 94959

94115

CA 94116

Avenue

CA

Kindred Nursing and Transitional Care - Pacific

CA

720 E. Romie Lane, Salinas,

93901

Coast

Cruz

Cn

fin¿rø

CA

Kindred Nursing and Transitional Care-South Marin

1220 S. Eliseo Dr, Greenbrea,

CA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation -

1517 Knickerbocker Drive, Stockton,

Nursing and Transitional Care - Santa

1115 Capital Rd, Santa Cruz,

CA 95062
CA 94904
CA 95210

Valley Gardens

CA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation Vy'alnut Creek

1224 Rossmoor Parkway, Walnut Creek,

CA

Kindred Tran sitional Care and RehabilitationCanyonwood

2120 Benton Drive, Redding,

CA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

401 V/ Ada Ave, Glendora,

CA

CA

96003-2151

91141

Foothill

CA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

Lawton
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1575 7th Ave, San Francisco,

CA

CA 94122

94595

CA
CA

Facility Address

Facility Name

State

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-Siena

11600 Education Street, Auburn,

CA

95602

Kindred Tran sitional Care and Rehabilitation-Smith

1550 Silveria Pkwy, San Rafael,

CA

94903

Ranch

CA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

1359 Pine St, San Francisco,

CA 94109

Tunnell Center

CO

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation - Aurora

10201 East Third Ave, Aurora, CO

GA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

110 Brandywine Blvd, Fayetteville,

GA 30214

Lafayette

Park

ID 83843

ID

Kindred Nursing and

ID

Kindred

ID

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation - Canyon W'est

2814 S. Indiana Ave, Caldwell,ID 83605

ID

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation - Mountain
Valley

601 V/. Camerson Ave, Kellogg,

ID

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation - Nampa

404 N. Horton St, Nampa,ID 83651

ID

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation - Vy'eiser

331 E. Park St, Weiser,ID 83672

ID

Kindred Tran sitional Care and RehabilitationIæwiston

3315 8th St, Lewiston,

IN

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation-Valley View

333 V/. Mishawaka Rd, Elkhart,IN

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-Allison 52268 82nd St, Indianapolis, IN

- Aspen

and Rehabilitation - Caldwell

420 Rowe St, Moscow,

210 Cleveland Blvd, Caldwell,ID 83605

ID

ID

83837

83501

Pointe

IN

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationBridgewater

14751 Carey Road, Carmel

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationColumbus

2100 Midway St, Columbus,

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-Eagle
Creek

4102 Shore Dr, Indianapolis, IN

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabi litationGreenfield

200 Green Meadows Dr, Greenfield, IN

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationGreenwood

377 Westridge Blvd, Greenwood,
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Rehabilitation-Dyer

IN

2300 Great Lakes Dr, Dyer, IN

IN

Facility Address

Facilitv Name

State

150 Beechmont Dr, Corydon,

IN

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationHarrison

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-Indian 240 Beechmont Dr, Corydon, IN
Creek

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

429Lincoln Rd, Kokomo, IN

Kokomo

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationRolling Hills

3625 St Joseph Rd, New Albany, IN

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationSellersburg

7823 OId Hwy #60, Sellersburg, IN

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationSouthPointe

4904 War Admiral Drive, Indianapolis, IN

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabi litationSouthwood

222ZMaryaret Ave, Terre Haute, IN

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationWedgewood

l0l

IN

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation Wildwood

7301E. 16th Street, Indianapolis, IN

KY

Heritage Manor Healthcare Center

401 Indiana Ave,

KY

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation-Maple

515 Greene Drive, Greenville,KY 42345

MA

Clark House Nursing Center at Fox Hill Village

30 Longwood Drive, Vy'estwood,

MA

KindredNursingandRehabilitation-Braintree

1102 Washington Street, Braintree,

MA

Kindred Nursing and

MA

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation-Laurel Lake

MA

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation-Tower

MA

Kindred Transitional Care and

MA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

Rehabilitation-Harborlights

Hill

Rehabilitation-Avery

Potters Lane, Clarksville,

IN

Mayfield,KY 42066

804 East 7th Street, Boston,

620 Laurel Street, Lee,

MA

MA

MA

02090

MA

02184

02127

01238

One Meadowbrook lùy'ay, Canton,

MA

02021

100 West Street, Needham,MA 02194
1200 Suffield Street, Agawam,

MA

01001

Country Estates

MA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-Eagle

1

Love Lane, South Dennis, MA 02660

Pond

MA
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Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

50Indian Neck Road, Wareham,

MA

02571

Facilitv Address

Facility Name

State
Forestview

MA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

160 Main Street, Vy'alpole,

MA

02081

Harrington

MA

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationHighgate

l0 CareMatrix Drive, Dedham,MA 02026

MA

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationHighlander

1748 Highland Ave, Fall River,

MA

02720

MA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

8 Colonial Drive, Westborough,

MA

01581

Vy'estborough

MA

Ledgewood Rehabilitation and Skilled Nursing
Center

MA

Seacoast

MT

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation -

MT

Nursing and Rehabilitation Center

Parkview

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-Park

87 Herrick Street, Beverly,

MA

01915

292 \ù/ashington Street, Gloucester,

MA

01930

200 North Oregon St, Dillon, MT
1500 32nd St S, Great Falls, MT

Place

NC

KindredNursingandRehabilitation-Henderson

280 S Beckford Dr, Henderson, NC 27536

NC

Kindred Transition al Care and Rehabilitation Elizabeth City

901 S. Halstead Blvd., Elizabeth City,

NC

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-Rose

280 S Beckford Dr, Henderson, NC 27536

NC 27909

Manor

NH

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

55 Hanis Road, Nashua,

NH 03062

Greenbniar

OH

Kindred Nursing and

OH

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationLakeMed

70 Normandy Drive, Painesville,

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

75 McMillen Drive, Newark, OH 43055

OH

Rehabilitation-Community

175 Community Drive, Marion,

OH 43302
OH

44077

Newark
OH

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationStratford

7000 Cochran Rd, Glenwillow,

OH

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-The

1575 Brainard Road, Lyndhurst,

OH

44139

OH 44124

Greens

TN
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Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation - Fairpark

307 North Fifth Street, Maryville, TN

Facility Address

Facility Name

State

TN

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation - Loudon

TN

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation -

TN

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation - Smith

TN

1520 Grove St, Loudon, TN

Northhaven

3300 North Broadway, Knoxille, TN

County

112 Health Care Drive Carthage, TN

l0l2

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

Jamestown W'ay, Maryville, TN

Maryville

TX

TX

Kindred Transition al Care and RehabilitationGrapevine

1005 IRA E. Woods Parkway, Grapevine,

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-

301 N. Miller Road, Mansfield,

TX

TX

76051

76063

Mansfield Plaza

TX

6600 Lands End Court, Fort Worth,

Kindred Transition al Care and Rehabilitation-

TX

76116

Ridgmar

Pointe

VA

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation-River

VA

Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-Bay
Pointe

1148 First Colonial Rd, VA Beach,

VA

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationNansemond Pointe

200 West Constance Road, Suffolk,YA 23434

VA

Kindred Assisted Living

VT

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationBirchwood Terrace

43 Starr Farm Rd, Burlington,

VT

05408

VT

Starr Farm Nurslng Center

98 Stan Farm Rd, Burlington,

VT

05408

WA

Kindred Nursing and Rehabilitation-Arden

16357 Aurora Ave North, Seattle, V/A 98133

WA

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationLakewood

11411 Bridgeport Way SW, Tacoma, WA 98499

V/A

Kindred Transitional Care and RehabilitationVancouver

400 East 33rd Street, Vancouver, Vy'A 98663

-

Nansemond

Commons

4142Bonney Rd, Virginia Beach,

VA

VA

Facility Name

Facilitv Address

AZ

Kindred N&R Hacienda

660 S Coronado Dr, Sierra Vista, AZ 85635

CA

KH Brea SAU

875 N Brea Blvd, Brea, C^92821
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23454

200 West Constance Road, Suffolk,VA 23434

(b) The following facilities to be retained by Seller and/or its Affiliates
State

23452

FL

KH South Florida Hollywood SAU

1859 Van Buren St, Hollywood, FL 33020

KY

KH Louisville SAU

l313 Saint Anthony Pl, Louisville,KY 40204

NC

KH Greensboro SAU

2401 SouthsideBlvd, Greensboro, NC 27406

NV

Kindred TC&R Spring Valley

5650 S Rainbow Blvd, Las Vegas NV 891l8

NIV

Kindred TC&R at KH Las Vegas

TX

KHDallas SAU

9525 Greenville Ave, Dallas, TX75243

V/A

KH Seattle First Hill SAU

1334 Teny Ave, Seattle, WA 98101

WA

KH Seattle Northgate SAU

10631
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Flamingo

22508 Flamingo Rd, Las Vegas, IIV 89119

8'Ave NE, Seattle, WA

98125

Schedule 6.10(e)
Pending Medicaid Applicants

[To come at closing.]
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Schedule 6.10(Ð(i)
Accounts Receivables by Resident
[See attached.] [To come at closing]
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Schedule 7.2(h)
UPL Program Transfers

None.
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EXECUTION VERSION
AMENDED AND RE,STATED ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION AGRT,EMENT
VERMONT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED ASSIGNMENT AND

ASSUMPTION
AGREEMENT (this "¡\ssig!@!") is entered into as of August 1,2017 and effective as of June
30, 2077 (the "Assisnment Effective Date"), by and among BM Eagle Holdings, LLC
("Assignor"), Starr Farm Operations LLC ("Starr Farm Assignee") and BIRCHWOOD PROP
LLC ("Birchwood Assignee" and together with Starr Farm Assignee, "A!qigrc"). Capitalized
terms used but not defined herein shall have the same meanings ascribed to such terms in the
Purchase Agreement, as defined below.

RECITALS
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of that certain Asset Purchase Agreement (the
"Purchase Aqreement"), dated as of the Assignment Effective Date, by and between Assignor
and Kindred Healthcare Operating, Inc. ("Kindred"), as Purchaser and Seller thereunder
respectively, Purchaser agreed to purchase from Seller, among other things, the portfolio of
skilled nursing facilities set forth on Exhibit A hereto (the "Assigned Facilities"); and
WHEREAS, Assignor and Birchwood Assignee previously entered into that certain
Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated June 30, 2017, pursuant to which Assignor
assigned its interest under the Purchase Agreement in the Assigned Facilities to Birchwood
Assignee; and

WHEREAS, the principals of Birchwood Assignee and Starr Farm Assignee now desire
to amend and restate such Assignment and Assumption Agreement in its entirety as set forth
herein so that Assignor's interest under the Purchase Agreement in the Assigned Facility known
as Birchwood Terrace will be assigned to the Birchwood Assignee and Assignor's interest under
the Purchase Agreement in the Assigned Facility known as the Starr Farm Nursing Center will
be assigned to the Starr Farm Assignee, as set forth on Exhibit A hereto.

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to execute this Assignment to set forth the terms
and conditions under which Assignor shall assign to Assignees, subject to the terms and
conditions hereol all of its right, title, and interest in and to the Purchase Agreement, solely with
respect to the Assigned Facilities, including all real estate related thereto and as further described
in the Purchase Agreement (collectively, the "Assigned Assets").

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual premises contained herein, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1.
(a)

Assignment and AssumPtion.

Provided that each Assignee delivers and pays the Assignment Purchase Price in
accordance with Section 2(a) and subject to the terms of Section 1(c), Assignor hereby assigns,
transfers and conveys to Birchwood Assignee, all of Assignor's rights under the Purchase
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Agreement with respect to the Assigned Assets of the Assigned Facility known as Birchwood
Terrace, and Assignor hereby assigns, transfers and conveys to Starr Farm Assignee, all of
Assignor's rights under the Purchase Agreement with respect to the Assigned Assets of the
Assigned Facility known as the Starr Farm Nursing Center, each as set forth on Exhibit A hereto.

(b)

Subject to the terms of Section 1(c), each Assignee hereby accepts the assignment

of Assignor's rights under the Purchase Agreement with respect to the Assigned Assets and
assumes and agrees to fulfill, carry out and discharge all of Assignor's obligations, liabilities,
duties, and terms and conditions of and applicable to Assignor's rights under the Purchase
Agreement with respect to the Assigned Assets.

(c)

Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, this Assignment shall not
transfer, and Assignor shall retain, any and all of Assignor's rights, obligations or liabilities
under Sections 2.1,2.5(a)(i), 2.5(a)(x),2.5(b),2.5(c) (solely with respect to the first sentence),
3.4,5.6,6.9(e), 6.9(Ð,10.1(a), l0.l(b), l0.l(c)(i), 10.1(d), 10.1(e), 10.1(Ð, 10.1(h), 10.2(bXD'
and each of 10.4(a), 10.4(b) and 10.4(c) (solely as each relates to the Termination Payment and
the surrender of the Deposit), of the Purchase Agreement; provided, however, that upon the
payment of the Assignment Purchase Price with respect to an Assigned Facility in accordance
with this Assignment, the parties shall execute and deliver an assignment and assumption in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit B (the "Assignment of Certain Retained Rights") pursuant to
which Assignor shall assign to the applicable Assignee all rights, and such Assignee shall
assume all obligations of Assignor, with respect to the Assigned Assets under Sections 2.1 and
3.4 of the Purchase Agreement with respect to such Assigned Facility. For the avoidance of
doubt, Assignor shall remain obligated under the Purchase Agreement for the payment at the
Closing of the portion of the Purchase Price allocated to the Assigned Facilities.

2.
(a)

Purchase Price; Deposit.

In consideration of the assignment of the Assigned Assets, Assignees shall deposit
or shall cause their affiliate(s) to deposit with Madison Title Company, LLC (the "Escrow
Holder") an aggregate cash amount equal to $8,500,000 (the "Assignment Purchase Price") prior
to the Closing or fîrst of two Closings (as applicable) with respect to the Assigned Assets, each
of which shall occur in accordance with and subject to the terms and conditions of the Purchase
Agreement. Not less than 5:00 PM EST one (l) Business Day prior to the each Closing with
respect to the Assigned Assets (a "Payment Deadline"), Assignees will deliver to the Escrow
Holder, by wire transfer of immediately available funds, the portion of the Assignment Purchase
Price allocated to the Assigned Facilities being acquired by each Assignee at such Closing, less
the amount of the Assignee Deposit being credited to the Assignment Purchase Price at such
Closing pursuant to this Assignment, to be held in escrow in accordance with an escrow
agreement substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C (the "Purchase Price Escrow
Asreement"). Time shall be of the essence with respect to Assignees' obligation to deliver and
pay the Assignment Purchase Price. In the event that Assignees fail to make a payment of the
Assignment Purchase Price by the applicable Payment Deadline, this Assignment shall
automatically and immediately terminate with respect to all Assigned Facilities that are not yet
Transferred Facilities, and Assignor shall be entitled to retain the Assignee Deposit (as defined
below) as liquidated damages, but shall not have the right to sue for damages or pursue specif,rc
performance.
2
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(b)

On or prior to the Assignment Effective Date, Assignees have made one or more
deposits in an amount equal to 5425,000 (collectively, the "&igrìee.-b¡!") in an escrow
account with the Escrow Holder to be held pursuant to this Assignment and the Escrow
Agreement dated May 30,2017 (the "Deposit Escrow Aqreement"). The Assignee Deposit shall
serve as a portion of the Assignment Purchase Price or be paid in accordance with this
Assignment and the Deposit Escrow Agreement, and to the extent applied to the Assignment
Purchase Price, shall be applied at the final Closing with respect to the Assigned Facilities.

3. Default. In the event that Assignor fails to execute and deliver the Assignment of
Certain Retained Rights in violation of its obligations hereunder, Assignees, in addition to all
other rights and remedies, shall be entitled to specifrc performance'
4.
(a)

Representations"WarrantiesandCovenants.

Assignor hereby covenants, warrants, and represents to Assignees that all of the
representations and warranties of Assignor in the Purchase Agreement are, without condition or
exception, incorporated and restated herein by Assignor as of the Assignment Effective Date as
though fully stated in this Assignmento and such representations and warranties are true and
correct in all material respects.

(b)

Each Assignee hereby represents and warrants to Assignor that all representations
and warranties made by Assignor in the Purchase Agreement (specifically excluding the
representations and warranties under Section 5.6 of the Purchase Agreement) are true and correct
with respect to such Assignee to the same extent as if such representations and warranties were
made by such Assignee as of the Assignment Effective Date; provided, however, that the
representations and warranties set forth in Section 5.1(a) of the Purchase Agreement with respect
to organizational matters shall be deemed made with respect to the entity type of such Assignee,
if different from that of Assignor.

(c)

Each party hereby represents and warrants to the other party that this Assignment
has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate or company action of such party and is
enforceable in accordance with its respective terms with respect to such party, except as the

enforceability may be subject to or limited by: (i) bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
affangement, moratorium, fraudulent or preferential conveyance, or similar laws affecting the
rights of creditors generally, or (ii) general principles of equity (regardless of whether such
enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law).

(d)

Assignor represents and warrants to Assignees the following with respect to the
Assigned Assets: (i)atrue and complete copy of the Purchase Agreement as of the Assignment
Effective Date, including all schedules and exhibits thereto, is attached hereto as Exhibit
(ii) the Purchase Agreement is a valid, binding and enforceable obligation of Assignor,
enforceable against Assignor in accordance with its terms, and is in full force and effect, except
as the enforceability may be subject to or limited by: (1) bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
arrangement, moratorium, fraudulent or preferential conveyance, or similar laws affecting the
rights of creditors generally, or (2) general principles of equity (regardless of whether such
enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law); (iii) neither Assignor nor, to
Assignor's knowledge, any other party thereto is in default under or in violation of (or, to
a

J
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Assignor's knowledge, is alleged to be in default under or in violation of¡, or has provided or
received any written or, to Assignor's knowledge, oral notice of any intention to terminate, the
Purchase Agreement; (iv) Assignor has not received any written or, to Assignor's knowledge,
oral notice of any disputes under the Purchase Agreement; and (v) to Assignor's knowledge,
there are no disputes pending or, threatened, under the Purchase Agreement.

(e)

Assignor represents and warrants to Assignees that the consideration received by
Assignees pursuant to this Assignment, is full, adequate and independent consideration for the
covenants and representations made by Assignees.

(Ð

Except as set forth in this Assignment and the Purchase Agreement and the OTA
Asset, each Assignee acknowledges, represents and warrants to Assignor that
Assigned
for each
neither Assignor nor any other Person has made any representation or warranty, expressed or
implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of any information regarding Kindred, the Assigned
Assets or the Assigned Facilities furnished or made available to Assignees and their respective
representatives. Each Assignee acknowledges that, except for the representations and warranties

contained in the Purchase Agreement (and the OTA for each Assigned Asset) and this
Assignment, neither Assignor nor any other Person has made, and such Assignee has not relied
on, any other express or implied representation or warranty by or on behalf of the Assignor.

(g)

Prior to the Closing, Assignor shall comply with the reasonable instructions of
Assignees, solely with respect to the Assigned Assets, as necessary for the Assignees to exercise
the rights assigned to them under this Assignment.

(h)

Each Assignee shall comply with the requirements of Sections 10.4(a) and 10.4(b)

Purchase Agreement, with respect to the Assigned Assets, to secure Substitute OTA
Transferees in accordance with the timelines set forth therein and take such other actions as may
be necessary or reasonably requested by Assignor from time to time to enable Assigned Facilities

of the

subject to either Section 10.a(a) or Section 10.4(b) to reach a Closing under the Purchase
Agreement. Assignees shall not appoint a Substitute OTA Transferee without the prior written
consent of Assignor (not to be unreasonably withheld). In the event Assignor determines in its
reasonable discretion that an OTA Transferee or Substitute OTA Transferee selected by an
Assignee is unable to fulfill its obligations under the OTA, upon written notice by Assignor to
such Assignee of such determination, such Assignee shall replace such OTA Transferee or
Substitute OTA Transferee in accordance with terms of this Assignment and the Purchase
Agreement. In the event of a termination by Seller under Sections 10.4(a), 10.4(b) or 10.4(c) of
the Purchase Agreement with respect to any Assigned Facility, this Assignment shall
automatically terminate with respect to such Assigned Facility and the Assignor shall be entitled
to retain the Assignee Deposit as liquidated damages, but shall not have the right to sue for
damages or pursue specific performance.

(Ð

Within ten (10) Business Days of the date on which an OTA is executed with
Facilityo each Assignee shall enter into a binding agreement with the
Assigned
respect to an
applicable OTA Transferee, under which such Assignee shall have the right to cause such OTA
Transferee to assign the OTA in the event the Assigned Facility has become an Operator Delay
Facility or such OTA Transferee has otherwise materially breached its obligations under the

4
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OTA in a manner which would reasonably be expected to cause the failure of any Closing
Condition under the Purchase Agreement or the OTA.
Each Assignee shall execute a joinder to the Escrow Agreement with respect to
the Assigned Assets effective on the applicable Closing Date.

û)

5.
(a)

Indemnification.

Any and all indemnification claims by and between Assignees, on the one hand,
and Kindred, on the other hand, arising in connection with the Assigned Facilities or the
Assigned Assets shall be governed under the applicable indemnification provisions of the
Purchase Agreement. Except as set forth in Section 5(b) of this Assignment, it is expressly
understood and agreed that Assignees shall have no right to seek indemnification from Assignor
for any matter whatsoever arising in connection with Assignees' purchase of the Assigned Assets
or the Assigned Facilities.

(b)

Assignor shall indemniff, defend and hold Assignees harmless from and against
Losses
arising out of or relating to any breach by Assignor of any representation,
any and all
warranty, covenant or agreement made by Assignor in this Assignment.

(c)

Assignees shall jointly and severally indemnify, defend and hold Assignor
harmless from and against any and all Losses arising out of or relating to any breach by either
Assignee of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement made by such Assignee in this
Assignment.

6.
(a)

Termination.

This Assignment may be terminated with respect to an Assigned Facility prior to
the applicable Closing for such Assigned Facility (i) at any time by mutual consent of the
Assignor and the applicable Assignee; (ii) automatically with respect to any Assigned Facility
that is not a Transferred Facility, without any further action by the parties hereto, in the event of
a termination of the Purchase Agreement with respect to such Assigned Facility pursuant to
Sections 6.9 or 10.1 thereof; (iii) by the Assignor, by reason of the material breach by the
applicable Assignee of its representations, warranties, covenants or other obligations set forth in
this Assignment or the Purchase Agreement; and (iv) by the applicable Assignee, by reason of
the material breach by Assignor of any representations, warranties, covenants or other
obligations set forth in this Assignment.

(b)

In the event of a termination of this Assignment pursuant to Section 6.1(aXi) or
Deposit shall be returned to the applicable Assignee. Assignor agrees to
Assignee
the
6.1(aXii),
promptly provide Escrow Holder with written instructions in the form required by Escrow
Holder in connection with a retum of the Assignee Deposit to Assignees.

(c)

In the event of a material breach that gives rise to a right of Assignor to terminate
the Assignment pursuant to Section 6.1(aXiii), Assignor shall have the right as its sole and
exclusive remedy to retain the Assignee Deposit as liquidated damages and terminate this
Assignment. Assignor shall not have the right to sue for damages or pursue specific performance.

5
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(d) In the event of an uncured material breach that gives rise to a right of the
applicable Assignee to terminate the Assignment pursuant to Section 6.1(aXiv), such Assignee
shall have the right to (i) recover the Assignee Deposit and terminate the Assignment and sue for
damages (in which case Assignor agrees to promptly provide Escrow Holder with written
instructions sufficient to cause Escrow Holder to release the Assignee Deposit to such Assignee)
or (ii) pursue specific performance solely to require the consummation of the transactions
contemplated under this Assignment (but not to obtain money for losses and the Assignee
Deposit shall be left in escrow pending the outcome of any action for specific performance).
7.
(a)

Miscellaneous.

Delivery of Notices. Assignor shall, within two (2) business days of receipt,
deliver to Assignees a copy of any notices received by Assignor under Section I 1.4 of the
Purchase Agreement (and expressly including any Disclosure Updates delivered pursuant to
Section 4.17 of the Purchase Agreement), or delivered by Assignor to Kindred under the
Purchase Agreement, to extent related to, or concerning, the Assigned Facilities or the Assigned
Assets. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Assignor shall, promptly following
Assignor's learning of any default with respect to the Assigned Assets, notiff Assignees of the
existence of any such default by or on the part of Kindred andlor Assignor under the Purchase
Agreement.

(b) Bindine Effect. All the covenants and agreements contained in this Assignment
shall extend to and be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns
of the parties hereto.
(c)

Incorooration

of

Recitals. The Recitals set forth at the beginning of this

Assignment are incorporated in and made a part of this Assignment by this reference.

(d)

Amendments. This Assignment supersedes and cancels the prior Assignment and
dated June 30, 2017,by and between Assignor and Birchwood Assignee
Agreement,
Assumption
and all prior understandings between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This
Assignment may not be further amended or changed without the written consent of the parties
hereto. Assignor agrees that it shall not enter into any amendment, restatement, or other
modification to the Purchase Agreement that materially and negatively affects the Assigned
Facilities or Assignees' obligations with respect to any of the Assigned Assets without
Assignees' prior written consent.

(e)

Governins Law. This Assignment shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to the conflicts of law
principles thereof.

(Ð

Disputes. Any claims, controversies or disputes arising out of or related to this
Assignment shall be governed by the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement.

(g)

Failure or Delav Not Waiver: Remedies Cumulative. No failure or delay on the
part of any party in the exercise of any right hereunder shall impair such right or be construed to
be a waiver of, or acquiescence in, any breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or
agreement herein, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right preclude other or
6
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further exercise thereof or of any other right. Unless otherwise provided in this Assignment, all
rights and remedies existing under this Assignment are cumulative to, and not exclusive of any
rights or remedies otherwise available.

(h) No Assisnment. No party shall assign its rights and obligations to this
Assignment without the written consent of the parties hereto. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
any written consent requested in connection with a party's assignment to one or more of its
Affiliates shall not be unreasonably withheld. Assignor acknowledges and agrees that Assignees
may assign the Assignment to certain of their respective Affiliates as specified in Exhibit 7(h)
provided that such Assignee and its Affiliates shall remain jointly and severally liable for all
obligations of such Assignee as set forth in this Assignment related to the Assigned Assets.

(i)

Further Assurances. The parties agree that at any time and from time to time,
upon the wriffen request of another party, each party will execute and deliver any and all further
instruments and documents necessary or desirable to effectuate the transactions contemplated
herein, or take any other actions as reasonably necessary to effectuate the foregoing.

C)

Announcements. If reasonably requested by Assignees, Assignor agrees to
provide Assignees with the opportunity to review and comment prior to the issuing of any initial
press release pursuant to Section 6.a@) of the Purchase Agreement, to the extent concerning this
Assignment and the transactions contemplated hereby.
fRemainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank; Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Assignment, which may
be executed in multiple counterparts (including electronically-transmitted counterparts), all of
which shall constitute one agreement, effective as of the date first above written.

ASSIGNOR

BM EAGLE HOLDINGS, LLC
By: BM EAGLE MANAGER,LLC,
its Manager

By:
Name: Elliot Mandelbaum
Title: Authorized Signatory

ASSIGNEES
BIRCHWOOD PROP LLC

By:
Name:

Title:

Erlichman

Authorized Signatory

STARR FARM OPERATIONS LLC

By:
Name:

Title:

Erlichman

Authorized Signatory

lsignøture Page to Amended ønd Restated Assignment and Assumption Agreement]

Exhibit A
Assiened Facilities

To Birchwood Assienee:
Kindred Transitional Care and Rehabilitation-Birchwood Terrace
43 Starr Farm Road
Burlington, VT 05401

To Starr Farm Assislee:
Starr Farm Nursing Center
98 Starr Farm Road

Burlington, VT 05401
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Exhibit B
Assignment of Certain Retained Rights

4825-3686-91 95.4

Exhibit C
Form of Purchase Price Escrow Aqreement
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Exhibit D
Purchase Agreement
lSee Attachedl
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Exhibit 7.1(hl
Assignees
None
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CustomersÇnank
l0l ParkAveSuitell0l
NewYork, NY 10178
January 22,2018

NeilGamss
Housing & Healthcare Finance
1979 Marcus Avenue, Suite 210
New Hyde Park, NY 11042
Re: Kindred Transitional Care & Rehab

-

Birchwood Terrace

Dear Neil
This term sheet is for discussion purposes only and is issued at a time when Customers Bank the
"Lender" has not completed its credit review of the Borrower. All terms of the credit facility will be
oulined in a comprehensive loan agreement if the credit facility is approved by Customers Bank.
The loan agreement and related documentation may contain additional terms and conditions
regarding matters not addressed in this term sheet.

Borrower (Co):

Birchwood Prop, LLC, and Birchwood Operations, LLC

Guarantors

The unconditional Joint and Several personal guarantees from
Milton Ostreicher and all members of Birchwood Prop, LLC, and
Birchwood OpCo, LLC
Acquire the real estate and operations of the Kindred Transitional Care
& Rehab - Birchwood Terrace

Purpose
Loan Amount:

Line Of Credit
Amount
Line of Gredit:

An

aggregate principal amount of $3,752,000 will be available upon
terms
and conditions hereinafter set forth.
the
$2,752,000 senior secured Term Loan subject to the lesser of 80% Asls LTV or the loan amount
$1,000,000 Capex Loan subject to an 80% As-Complete Senior LTV
when combined with Facility availability as later detailed.
$1,500,000

Availability under the Revolver will be subject to a borrowing base
formula, which is equal to the sum of the lesser of (i) $1'500'000 or ii) up
to 80% on all Eligible Accounts Receivable.
Eligible Accounts receivable would include the following:
. All Medicaid receivables less than 90 days'
. All Medicare receivables less than 90 days.
'All lnsurance receivables less than 90 days.

This term sheet is for discuss¡on purposes only and is issued at a time when Customers Bank has not completed ¡ts credit review of the

All termsandconditionsaresubjecttoasatisfactory auditbyCustomers
borrowerandthecollateraltosecurethecred¡tfacilityoutlinedherein.
facilityisapprovedby
Bank. Furthermore,alltermsofthecreditfacilitywill beoutlinedinacomprehensiveLoanAgreementifthecredlt
not addressed
Customers Bank. The Loan Agreement and related documentation may contain additional terms and conditions regarding matters
in this term sheet.

. Third party receivables less than 90 days.
Private Pay receivables and any Medicaid, Medicare, Managed Care or
Hospice receivables in dispute would be considered ineligible.
Additionally, all credit amounts in any of the eligible receivable categories
would be deducted from the "current"

Unused Fee:

An unused fee of
the Line of Credit

Maturity:

Term Loan: 5 years

.25o/o

per quarter will be due on the unused portion of

Line of Gredit 12 months from closing

Amortization &
Structure:

Borrower will make monthly interest and principal payments to the lender
based upon a25-year amortization schedule.

The borrower has the option to fund the principal payments into a sinking
fund held in escrow by the lender until the HUD takeout is complete
Advances on capital improvements will be subject to proper documentation
requesting payment. lnterest only will be charged on the $1,000,000 allocated
for capital improvements from the date of loan closing until the capital
improvements have been substantially completed, but after 24 months, the
$1,000,000 shall amortize on a 25-year schedule.

lnterest Rate
lnterest Rate
Protection

30 day LIBOR Plus 325bPs

Borrower will be required to provide lnterest Rate Protection in the form of
an interest rate swap, for 50o/o of the Mortgage Loan. The interest rate
swap will be cross defaulted (i.e. defaults under the swap will constitute a
default under the loan, and vice versa); cross terminated and cross
collateralized with the Mortgage Loan.
of the sum of (a) the $3'752 million Term
(or
such lesser. maximum amount approved for
Loan and Line of Credit
any amounts withheld at closing
including
approved
the commitments

Gommitment Fee:

A "Commitment Fee" of

Prepayment

The credit facilities may be prepaid in whole (but not partially) provided
that if prepaid before the 36-month anniversary of the closing, there will
be a penalty ("Pre-payment Penalty") assessed ol 1o/o of the maximum

1.0o/o

amount of the facilities

Collateral:

The Term loan shall be evidenced and secured by 1) a first mortgage
lien on the land and improvements now and hereafter acquired or

review of the
This term sheet is for discussion purposes only and is issued at a time when customers Bank has not completed its credit
borrower and the collateral to secure the credit facility outlined herein. All terms and conditions are subject to a satlsfactory audit by Customers
facilityisapprovedby
Bank. Furthermore,all termsofthecreditfacilityw¡ll beoutlinedinacomprehensiveLoanAgreementifthecredit
customers Bank. The Loan Agreement and related documentat¡on may contain additional terms and condltions regarding matters not addressed
in this term sheet.

construction thereon, 2) a chattel mortgage or security agreement
creating first mortgage lien on the furnishings and equipment to be
located at the projects and 3) an assignment of the lease with the
operating entities. The term loan will shall also be secured by a lien on
Birchwood OpCo, LLC's tangible and intangible personal property
including but not limited to cash and deposit accounts: to the extent
assignable under applicable law, licenses, certificates, permits and other
governmental approvals necessary and required to operate the projects;

the books and records of the Projects and accounts receivable. A
Deposit Account Control Agreement will be required from the operator.
Add itional Gollateral:

Borrower may establish a sinking fund cash collateral account with
Customers Bank. At closing, and each month thereafter through
maturity, borrower will make payments into the cash collateralized
account described in Amortization and Structure section.

Upon closing and funding from HUD or any other lender, the cash

collateral account will be released to the borrower.

Govenants:

Birchwood Prop, LLC, and Birchwood Operations, LLG
Combined
DSCR not to be less than 1.25x before distributions and 1.10x
after distributions.EBlTDAR (excluding extraordinary income and
expenses) less (a) replacement reserves of not less than $350
per bed and (b) the amount, if any, by which management fees
are less than 5 percent of effective gross income, divided by the
principal and interest payments due Lenders for the applicable
period.

The DSCR shall be calculated quarterly, commencing with the
first full quarter immediately after the sixth month of closing the
Mortgage Loan, and thereafter, commencing with June 30,2018,
the DSCR shall be tested on a trailing twelve month period. The
DSCR for the twelve-month period ending December 31 , 2018
shall be determined based on audited, fiscalyear-end financial
statements; all other periods will be tested on internally prepared
financial statements.

Birchwood Operations, LLG shalldemonstrate on a rolling four
quarters basis, minimum average occupancy of 85%.
Management Fees are subject to subordination or curtailment in
the event of Covenant default.
No additional indebtedness without Lender's written Consent

Ancillary Business
Requirements:

Borrower will use Customers Bank for all accounts for this facility

Other Expenses:

All legal fees, costs for third-party reports, disbursements and any other
Lender out-of-pocket expenses for underwriting and closing the loan will
be for Borrower's account and payable on the date of closing to the
extent not paid for directly by the lender from the deposit referenced
below.

This term sheet is for discussion purposes only and is issued at a time when Customers Bank has not completed its credit review of the
borrower and the collateral to secure the credit facility outlined herein. All terms and conditions are subject to a satisfactory audit by Customers
Bank. Furthermore, all terms of the credit fac¡l¡ty will be outlined in a comprehensive Loan Agreement ¡f the credit facility is approved by
Customers Bank. The Loan Agreement and related documentation may contain additional terms and cond¡tions regarding matters not addressed
¡n this term sheet.

Documentation

Conditions
Precedent:

Representations
and Warranties:

Documentation shall be satisfactory to Lenders and will include, but not
be limited to, the terms and conditions included herein as well as
provisions that are customary for a transaction of this type.

Lender site visit and meeting with Borrower's senior management.
Additional operational, financial and regulatory compliance information
may be required. Order and satisfactory review of a Phase one
Environmental, Appraisal report, Property condition report, and all
operating agreements, personal financial information of the guarantors
and purchase agreements and any other documentation not mentioned

The documents will contain those representations and warranties and
covenants customarily found in transactions of this nature, and
others appropriate to this transaction

Deposit

A deposit of $40,000 will be required to cover underwriting cost upon
execution of the term sheet. Any unused portion will be applied to the
closing cost.

Glosing

TBD

Expiration Date:

This proposal will expire on 10 business days from the date of issuance
unless previously accepted.
On behalf of Customers Bank, thank you for this opportunity and we look
forward to continuing to work with you in regard to this financing reguest. lf
you have any questions concerning this matter, or if I may be of assistance in
regard to any other issue, please do not hesitate to contact me at (212) 8434549.
Sincerely,

Anthony Mai
Senior Vice President
Group Head, Healthcare

This term sheet is for discuss¡on purposes only and is issued at a time when Customers Bank has not completed its credit review of the
borrower and the collateral to secure the credit facility outlined herein. All terms and conditions are subject to a satisfactory audit by Customers
Bank. Furthermore, all terms of the credit facility will be outlined in a comprehensive Loan Agreement if the cred¡t facility is approved by
Customers Bank. The Loan Agreement and related documentation may contâin additional terms and conditions regarding matters not addressed
in this term sheet.

The undersigned acknowledges that this loan proposal does not constitute a commitment to
provide financing but is intended to facilitate further discussions and due diligence.
day of

Accepted and acknowledged the

-

2017

-,

By:- Milton Ostreicher
Title: As Manaqinq Member and as Personal Guarantor

This term sheet is for discuss¡on purposes only and is issued at a time when Customers Bank has not completed its cred¡t review of the
borrower ând the collateral to secure the credit facility outlined herein. All terms and conditions are subject to a satisfactory audit by Customers
Bank. Furthermore, all terms of the credit facility will be outlined in a comprehens¡ve Loan Agreement if the credit fâcil¡ty is approved by
CustomersBank. TheLoanAgreementandrelateddocumentationmayconta¡naddit¡onal termsandconditions regardingmattersnotaddressed
in this term sheet.

NOTICES

lf your application for business credit is denied, you have the right to a written statement of the
specific reasons for the denial. To obtain the statement, please contact Customers Bank, Attn: Credit
Administration Department
/ DLR, 99 Bridge Street, Phoenixville, PA 19460, 484-920-7028, or your Lender, within 60 days from
the date you are notified of our decision. We will send you a written statement of reasons for the
denial within 30 days of receiving your request for the statement.
When contacting the Credit Administration Department for a written statement of the specific
reasons for the denial, please be prepared to offer the following information: (1) First and Last
Name, (2) Date of the Notice of Declination, (3) Name of the Lender or Relationship Manager Who
Worked with You, and (4) Current Mailing Address Where You Wish the Statement to be Delivered.
The Federal Equal Credit Opportunity Act prohibits creditors from discriminating against credit
applicants on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, marital status, age (provided the
applicant has the capacity to contract); because all or a part of the applicant's income derives from
any public assistance program; or because the applicant has in good faith exercised any right under
the Consumer Credit Protection Act. The Federal agency that administers compliance with this law
concerning this creditor is the Federal Reserve Consumer Help Center, PO Box 1200, Minneapolis,

MN 55480.

This information and the information provided on all accompanying financial statements and
schedules is provided for the purpose of obtaining credit for the Applicant(s) or for the purpose of
Applicant(s) guaranteeing credit for others. Applicant(s) acknowledge that representations made in
this statement will be relied on by Creditor in its decision to grant such credit. This statement is true
and correct in every detail and accurately represents the financial condition of the Applicant(s) on
the date given below. Creditor is authorized to make all inquiries it deems necessary, either directly
or through any agency employed by Lender for that purpose, to verify the accuracy of the

information contained herein and to determine the creditworthiness of the Applicant(s).
Applicant(s) will promptly notify Creditor of any subsequent changes which would affect the
accuracy of this Statement. Creditor is further authorized to answer any questions about Creditor's
credit experience with Applicant(s). Applicant(s) are aware that any knowing or willful false
statements regarding the value of the above property for purposes of influencing the actions of
Creditor can be a violation of federal law and may result in a fine or imprisonment or both.
By signing below, each Applicant declares that he/she has read and understands the Notice Section
above and, if applicable, has received the Reg B notification regarding denied credit, as well as made
an election under the right to copy of appraisal or valuation.
IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT PROCEDURES FOR OPENING A NEWACCOUNT
lnstitutions to obta¡n, verify, and record information that identifies each person who opens an
account. What this means for you: When you open an account, we will ask for your name, address,
date of birth, and other information that will allow us to identify you. We may also ask to see your

driver's license or other identifying documents.

This term sheet is for discussion purposes only and is issued at a time when Customers Bank has not completed its credit review of the
borrower and the collateral to secure the credit facility outlined herein. All terms and conditions are subject to a satisfactory audit by Customers
Bank. Furthermore, all terms of the credit facility will be outlined in a comprehensive Loan Agreement if the credit facility is approved by
CustomersBank. TheLoanAgreementandrelateddocumentationmaycontainadditional termsandconditions regardingmattersnotaddressed
in this term sheet.
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Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC
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and
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ACCOUNTANT'S COMPI LATION REPORT

Ari Erlichmân and lsaac Rubin
Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC
Burlington, VT 05408
Management is responsible for the accompanying projection of B¡rchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood
Prop, LLC, which comprises the projected combined balance sheets as of December 31 ,2418,2019, and
2020, and the projected statements of ¡ncome, changes in members' equity, and cash flows for the years
then ending, including the related summaries of significant assumptions and accounting policies in
accordance with guidelines for the presentation of a projection established by the American lnstitute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

Management also is responsible for the accompanying forecasted financial statements of Birchwood
Tefface, which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31 ,2017 and the related statements of income
and members' equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Management also is responsible for the accompanying historical financial statements of Birchwood Tenace,
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2014,2015, and 2016 and the related statements
of income and members' equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

We have performed the compilation engagements in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
AICPA. We did not examine or review the fÍnancial statements nor were we required to perform any
procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by management.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on these
financial statements.
Even if the CON approval from Green Mountain Care Board (GMCB) and financing occurred, there will
usually be differences between the projection and actual results because events and circumstances
frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material. We have no responsíbility to
update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.
The accompanying projections were previously complied by us and we stated in our report originally dated
November 20,2017 that we have not audíted or reviewed the projections and accordingly do not express
an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on these financial statements. As disclosed in
Note 8, management has changed certain assumptions and has restated ils December 3l , 2418 through
2020 (Projected) financial statements and has included a column reflecting forecasted financial statements
as of and for the year ending December 31,2017.
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Ari Erlichman and lsaac Rubin
Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC
Page 2

The accompanying financial statements and this report are intended solely for the information and use of
Birchwood bperations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC and GMCB, and are not intended to be and shoufd
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties'

K fulr*
St. Albans, Vermont
January 17,2018
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Birchwood Operat¡ons, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC
COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS
UNDER THE HYPOTHETICAL ASSUMPTIONS IN NOTE 1
December 31, 2014 through 2016 (Historical), 2017 (Forecasted) and 2018 through 2020 (Projected)

ASSETS
Seller
Historical

2014
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivables, net
lnventories
lnsurance recoverables
Other current assets

$

19,800
1,862,772
30,726
332,700
62.634

$

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land and land improvements
Bu¡ldings and improvements
Leasehold improvements
Equipment
Construction in progress

5,973

20't6

$

57,833
1,646,392
30,76s
481,596

,415,546
30,886
336,254
3.600
1,792,259

1

2,308,632

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

Seller
Historical

Seller
Historical
20't5

12,260

12,260

Seller
Forecasted
2017

I

61,'t27
1,679,320
31,380
491,228

Buyer
Projecled
201

$

I

267,236

1,712,906
32,008

4.228

4,313

4,399

2,220,814

2,267,368

,,016,54'

12,260

Buyer
Projected
2020

Buyer
Projected

2019

$ 498,623 $ 7s2,409
1,747 ,164 1,782,108
32,648 33,301
4,487
,,28r,rr2

4,577

,,5?r,3r4

12,260

3,213,785 3,313,785 3,413,785
2,004,158 2,219,001 2,716,674 2,816,674
1,151,446 1,230,518 1,340,381 1,390,381 350,000 400,000 450,000
7.526

3,'t75,390 3,461,779 4,069,315 4,219,315 3,563,785 3,713,785 3,863,785
(2,592,478\ (2,748,262) (2,900,820) (3,056,429) (98,916) (224,974\ (363,176)
582,912 713,517 1,168,495 1,162,886 3,464,869 3,488,811 3,500,609

Less: Accumulated depreciation
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
OTHER ASSETS
lnsurance recoverables
Patient fund accounts

621,244
38,653
659,897

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS

s

TOTAL ASSETS

694,025
41,505
735,530

939,646
37,1 93
976,839

958,439
37,937
996,376

38,696
38,696

40,25;

39,470
39,470

40,259

3.5s1.441 St¿4L3!g LæogJ4e !1320.9æ $ll¿9.111 $ånü¿o¿ $-o-Lll¿ez
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Salaries, wages and other compensation
Patient credit balances
Professional liebility and workers compensation
Line of Credit
Current Portion of Long-term Debt
Other accrued liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

$

241,194
'185,633

117,402
332,700

$

189,791

219,676
41,716
336,254

1,559
3,009
878,488 790,446

$

$ 256,1s0 S
231,485 236,115
80,080 81 ,681
251,128

3,187
1,025,625

3,25;

3,3'16

I,046,138

1,425,396

2,555,036

2,492,728

2,427,356
(45,368)

2,464,299
38,696

2,424,675
39,470

2,381,988

2,502,995
--------:

2,464,145

2,422,246
----------:

___________j_

st,igs

6537;
3,450
654,246

(90,737) (68,0s3)

sg,6sg

+r,sos

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

401,863
621,244
1,061,760

362,973
694,025
1,098,503

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,940,248 1,888,949 2,326,547 2,392,247 3,928,391 3,503,781

324,083
939,646
1,300,922

261,273
240,837
83,315

400,000
62,308
3,382
1,039,636

800,000
59,388

LONG.TERM LIABILITIES
Mortgage payable, Less current portion
Unamortized Debt lssuance costs
Mortgage payable, less unamortized debt issuance costs
Patient fund accounts
Deferred rent
Professional liability and workers compensation

246,204
226,946
78,509
491,228

241,376
222,456
76,970
481,596

37,937
330,565
977,608
1

,346, I 09

40,259_

3,076,493

MEMBERS'EQUITY
1,591 ,723

Members'Equity
Accumulated deficit
Net contributions from Kindred Healthcare, lnc.
TOTAL MEMBERS'EOUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

(2,896,936)

4,508,129
1,61 1,193

(3,787,137)
5,139,494
1,352,357

(s,189,681)

(6,565,61;)

7,229,282
2,039,601

8,600,000
2,034,383

2,307,421_

--.--.---------: ---------------:
1,591,723

2,307,421

3,036,769

--------------:

3,036,769

$_3.551¡9.1 S.it¿4.Li¡99 !1J00-l4s 9a.129.929 $l.520.lL1 gsßJJJ,gz $-eJl3¿02

See Summary of Significant Projection Assumptions and Accounting Policies and Accountent's Report

B¡rchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
UNDER THE HYPOTHETICAL ASSUMPTIONS IN NOTE 1
For the Years Ended December 31 , 2O14 through 201 6 (Historical), and the year ending 201 7 (Forecasted)
and the Yeârs Ending 2018 through 2020 (Projected)

REVENUE
Private room & board
Medicaid room & board
Medicare room & board
Other room & board
Ancillary & other patient revenue

$

Seller

Seller

Seller

Seller

Buyer

Buyer

Buyer

Histor¡cal

Historical

Histor¡cal

POected

Projected

Projected

20't4

2015

2016

Forecasted
2017

2018

2019

2020

$ 1,007,013
8,197,847
3,741,443
966,272
439,808

$ 1,020,328

938,791

7,303,250
3,817,463
561 ,413

INCOME FROM PATIENT CARE

960,343

$

1

,1

10,988

$

6,804,376
3,763,251
828,706

7,245,427
3,415,805
661,398

1,133,208

$

6,940,464
3,838,516

845,280
422,730

993,698

8,037,r 05
3,668,081

947,326

13,038,559
(74.631\

427,4'14 414,441
12,710,387 12,921 ,762 13,180,197 14,077 ,394
(256,544\ (64,825) (66,122) (140,7741

12,863,928

12,453,843 't2,856,937

417.642

Less: Provision for Bad Debts

$

14,352,383
(143,524\

8,361,804
3,8'16,272

985,598
448,604
't4,632,606
(146,326\

'.13,114,076 13,936,620 14,208,860 ',14,486,280

EXPENSES
Admin¡strative & general

Property and related expenses
Plant operation and maintenance
Dietary
Laundry and linen

3,566,011
1,935,051
522,'124

3,811,438

805,247

805,258
181,202
271,214
4,721,470
989,569
714 71

180,334

Housekeep¡ng
Nursing

269,924
4,736,745

Therapy services
Other services

1,058,981

73',t,802
13,806,219

TOTAL EXPENSES

ß42.2911

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
OTHER REVENUE
Miscellaneous
lnterest ¡ncome
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

$

3,773,941
1,842,540

3,835,252

524,057

848,244

534,538
865,209

188,933

192,7'.12

281,646
4,884,081

1,063,226
853,765

1

,879,018

287,279
4,941,645
1,084,490

870,840

3,572,872
523,523
545,228
882,513

3,676,460
552,964

(1

,416,063)

(1

,403,496)

(1

567,255

900,1 62

91 8,1

176,882

180,419

184,O27

263,499
5,040,479
818,450

268,769
5,14',1,289

274,144
5,244,114
851,516
924,144

,376,907) 1 ,224,9'.18

329

584
368

596
375

608
383

2,300

353

952

971

990

(763,613)

834,820
906,023

888,257

618
1,682

24

3,740,996
567,368

556,1 33

13,869,906'14,260,433 14,490,983 12,711,703 13,017,039

176,378

INCOME TAX BENEFIT

NET INCOME (LOSS)

1,838,412
536,872

1

,191

1

,821

66

13,271,730
1

,214,550

620

632

391

398

,010

1

,030

525,509

$

(8e0,201)

$

(1,402,544l, $ (1,375,936) $ 1,225,908 $ 1,192,831 $ 1,215,580

See Summary of Significant Projection Assumptions and Accounting Policies and Accountant's Report
2

Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS'EQUITY
UNDER THE HYPOTHETICAL ASSUMPTIONS IN NOTE 1
For the Years Ended December 31 , 2014 through 2016 (Historical), and the year ending 2017 (Forecasted)
and the Years Ending 2018 through 2020 (Projected)

Beginning Balance

$

Seller
Historical

Seller
Historical

Seller
Historical

2014

2015

2016

(2,133,323)

$

(2,8e6,936)

g

(3,787,137)

Seller
Forecasted
2017

$

Buyer
Projected

Buyer
Projected

2018

2019

$

(5,189,681) $

Equity Contributions

856,178

Distributions

(490,363)

Net lncome (loss)
Ending Balance

$

(763,613) (890,201) (1,402,544\

(1,375,936)

$

(6,565,617)

(2,8e6,e36)

$

(3,787,13D

$

(5,18e,681)

1,591,723

$

2,307,421

2,307,421

(486,232)
1,215,580

1,192,831

See Summary of Significant Projection Assumptions and Accounting Policies and Accountant's Report
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S

(477,132)

'1,225,908

$

1,591,723

Buyer
Projected
2020

$

3,036,769

Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
UNDER THE HYPOTHETICAL ASSUMPTIONS IN NOTE 1
For the years Ended Decembet 31, 2014 through 201 6 (Historical), and the year ending 2017 (Forecasted)
and the Years Ending 2018 through 2020 (Projected)

Seller

Seller

Histor¡cal

Histor¡cal

2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net lncome (loss)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net lncome (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by Operat¡ng Act¡v¡ties
Depreciation & Amortization
Provision for doubtful accounts
Other
(lncrease) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
lnventory and other assets
lncrease (decrease) in:
Accounts Payable
Salaries, wages and other compensat¡on
Pâtient credit balances and other accrued liabilities
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property & equipment
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from new debt
Princ¡pal Payments of Long-Term Debt
Cap¡tal Contributions
Debt lssuance Costs
Proceeds from Line of Cred¡t
Principal Payments on L¡ne of Credit
Distributions to owners for taxes
Net increase in contributions due from K.H., lnc.
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

2015

Seller
Historical
2016

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES
lnterest paid
Transfers of property and equipment to Kindred
Property and equ¡pment purchases payable

Buyer
2018

Projected

Buyer
Projected

Buyer
Projected

2019

2020

$(763,613) $ (ss0,201) 8(1,402,544) $ (1,375,s36) $ 1,225,s08 $ 1,1e2,831 $ 1,215,580

253,132
205,060

64,825

160,886
146,326

148,743

121,600
140,774

155,609
66,122

152,558

155,784
256,544

143,524

1,306

(350,738)
(59,923)

190,682 (295,671)
(17,461) (3er,470)

(99,049)
(29,125)

41,592
2,820
,621) 34,043
(36,791) 387,505
2'17 ,895
(57

ß17.024\ (339,757)

(l

,440,3S5)

(177,782)
(728\

(r,853,680)
(36,407)

4,828 251,128
4,450 231,485
55,678 83,395

(62,522) (32,357)

(',|

(r 81 ,269)

(743)

5,023
4,630

5'123
4,722

1,668

,217,424) 164,203 I ,317,908

1,352,326

(127,680\ (298,576) (592,163) (150,000) (3,563,785) (1s0,000)

(150,000)

2,671,O24

(5e,388)

(56,604)

(62,308)

856,1 78

(113,421)
't,000,000
(200,000)
(490,363)

(400,000)
(477,132)

(40o,ooo)

(486,232)

,849 624,506 2,084,408

1,370,718

72't,849 624,506 2,084,40A

1,370,718

3,666,818

(936,s20)

(948,540)

267,236

231,387

253,786

267,236

498,623

$

752,409

721

(22,855) (13,827)

51,860

3,2s4

42,655 19,800

5,973

57,833

$ 1s,8oo 9_9,e?q $

CASH AT END OF YEAR

Seller
Forecasted
2017

L_L-$
$ (4,333)$ 6,8s9 $

s7,833

S

- $

5,380
$ 9,254 $ (19,046)$ 10,801 $

61,127

W.

498,623

- re1999-1ryre91g
- $
$
$
-

-

$

See Summary of Sign¡ficant Projection Assumptions and Accounting Policies and Accountant's Report
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Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC.
SUMMARY OF SIGN I FICANT PROJECTION ASSUMPTIONS
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
December 31,2014 through 2016 (Historical) and
2017 (Forecasted) and 2018 through 2020 (Projected)

NOTE

1

NATURE AND LIMITATIONS OF PROJECTIONS

The accompanying projections assume that the Company obtains approvalfrom GMCB for a
certificate of need (CON) to purchase an existing 144 bed nursing home in Burlington,
Vermont and can obtain financing for the purchase. These financial projections present, to
the best of management's knowledge and belief, the Company's expected financial position,
results of operations, and cash flows for the years ending December 31, 2018 through 2020
if it obtains CON approval and financing. Accordingly, the projections reflect its judgment as
of January 17, 2018 the date of these projections, of the expected conditions, and its
expected course of action given those hypothetical assumptions. See note I relating to
restatement of the projections from our report originally dated November 20, 2017.

The presentation is designed to assist GMCB in its decision regarding CON approval and
should not be considered to be a presentation of expected future results. Accordingly, these
projections may not be useful for other purposes. The assumptions disclosed herein are
those that management believes are significant to the projections. Even if the projected
assumptions are attained, there will usually be differences between projected and actual
results, because events and circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those
differences may be material.

NOTE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Orqanization and Combination:
Birchwood Operations, LLC has been organized as the entity that will operate the 144 bed
nursing home facility. They will lease the property from Birchwood Prop, LLC (a related
organization) which will be organized to own the property being purchased. These attached
projected financial statements are presented as one combined entity with all eliminating
entries being reflected.
Nature of Operations:
The Company will continue to provide nursing home care and short term rehabilitation for up
lo 144 residents in the Burlington, Vermont area.
lnventories:

lnventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined on the first-in, firstout (FIFO) basis.
Property. Plant and Equipment:
Property, plant and equipment is recorded at cost and depreciation thereon is computed by
the straight-line method over the assets estimated useful life.
Revenues:
A significant amount of revenues are from Medicaid and Medicare reimbursements.
Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PROJECTION ASSUMPTIONS
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
December 31,2014 through 2016 (Historical)
and 2018 through 2020 (Projected)

NOTE 3

PROJECT FUNDING AND CAPITALIZATION

The projections assume that the purchase will be funded by approximately 20Yo of the
purchasã price ($667,757) from the owner's equity and the company will borrow 80% of the
purchase price ($2,671,028) through conventional financing with an amortization over 25
years at an estimated interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.25 basis points (for a total estimate of
.Bio/o for these projections). This will fund the $3,338,785 purchase price. The Loan is
estimated to balloon in 5 Years and the buyers are contemplating refinancing to a HUD loan
at that time.

Additional financing costs estimated at $113,421 and additional costs associated with
obtaining the CON approval estimated at $75,000 will be funded by the owners as equity
contributions for a total estimated equity contribution of $856,178'
It is also anticipated that any cash shortfall in the first year of operation will be covered with
by a Line of Credit in the amount of $1,500,000 estimated to have the same interest rate as
the mortgage above and will be paid back as cash flow allows. For the purpose of these
projectioñs, it is anticipated that the owner's will have to borrow from the line of credit in the
hrsi year for cash flow purposes and that it will be paid back as cash flow permits by the end
of the third year.

NOTE

4

REVENUE ASSUMPTIONS

All revenue assumptions are based on management's best judgment about circumstances
and conditions at the time these projections were prepared and are not all inclusive.

Census - Overall census numbers are projected to remain the same as they were in the first
Quarter of 2017 annualized at 92.29o/o occupancy. No changes in overall occupancy or in
the patient mix of that occupancy percentage are projected. The mix of approximately 14.1o/o
Medicare, 73.7% Medicaid,5.5% Private and 6.70/oYA and other insurance is projected to
remain the same throughout the projections.
2018

Proiected Census
Private
VA & Other lnsurances
Medicaid
Medicare

Total

6

2019

2020

2,663
3,227
35,763

2,663
3,227
35,763

2,663
3,227
35,763

6 852

6,852

6,852

48,505

48.505

48,505

Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC.
SUMMARY OF SIGN I FICANT PROJECTION ASSUM PTIONS
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
December 31,2014 through 2016 (Historical)
and 2018 through 2020 (Prolected)

NOTE 4

REVENUE ASSUM PTIONS (continued)

Rates - Private rates are anticipated to increase $5.00 per day annually from a beginning
average of $368.15 per day to cover normal inflationary costs. VA & Other insurance rates
are anticipated to continue with their current average rates inflated annually by 2o/o to cover
normal inflationary costs. Medicaid rates are projected at the October 2017 current Medicaid
Rate of $218.12 plus an estimated Stepped up capital rate increase of $2.25 inÍlated 2o/o
annually to cover normal inflationary costs. Medicare rates are based on the Current
average rate of $535.33 and are expected to increase 2%o annually to cover normal
inflationary costs. Private and Part B ancillaries are expected to increase 2%o per year using
the 2016 revenues as a base.
Provision for Bad Debts - The projections estimate that the provision for bad debts will be
approximately 1o/o of revenues

NOTE

5

EXPENSE ASSUMPTIONS

All expense assumptions are based on management's best judgment about circumstances
and conditions at the time these projections were prepared and are not all inclusive.
Overall expenses

using
- except where otherwise indicated below, expenses are projected
2.0o/o for

the current facility's historical 2016 costs increased annually by an estimated
inflation.

lnterest costs

-

Mortgage and Line of credit interests are calculated based on amortization

schedules for projected debt as described in Note 3 above.

Depreciation - calculated based on allocation of the $3,338,785 purchase price and other
purchase costs of $75,000 plus an annual increase for normal equipment and furnishings of
$5O,0OO annually and improvements of $100,000 annually. Lives on all depreciable assets
are set using the American HospitalAssociation's estimated useful lives guide.
Amortization of Debt lssuance costs - calculated based on amortizing projected financing
costs of $113,421 being amortized over the 5 year life of the loan.

Management fee - the current owner's management fee has been replaced with a
management fee of 5% of revenues before bad debts per year that will cover administrative,
accounting and oversight provided by a related management company'
General insurance and Worker's Compensation lnsurance will not be self-funded. The
estimated premiums for these insurances are management's best estimate based on the
current information at the time of these projections.
Corporate - lntegrated Marketing - This cost related marketing costs passed down to
Birchwood relating to marketing done by the national management company and won't be
continuing under new ownership and are therefore not included in these projections.
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Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PROJECTION ASSUMPTIONS
AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES
December 31,2014 through 2016 (Historical)
and 2018 through 2020 (Pro¡ected)

NOTE

5

EXPENSE ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Contracted Services - Laundry - Management's best estimate of the cost for these services
under new ownership will be $3.60 per day.... inflated by 2o/o for normal inflationary cost
increases.
Contracted Services - Housekeeping - Management's best estimate of the cost for these
services under new ownership will be $5.40 per day.... inflated by 2% for normal inflationary
cost increases.
Contracted Therapy Services - management estimates that it will be able to realize a $37.16
per day savings for each Medicare, Medicare HMO, and Other lnsurance patient day from
the cost the previous owner was incurring. Costs are then inflated 2%;o for annual inflation
Bed Tax - it is not anticipated the bed tax will increase throughout these projections as it has
remained the same for the last several years.

Facility Rent- Ground Lease - Facility rent will go away with the purchase of the Facility.
However, the current ground lease will continue and be assigned to management at closing.
The remaining terms of this lease are $2,000 per year through June 30, 2062. Management
is in negotiations to try to extend this lease.
NOTE

6

2017 FORECAST ASSUMPTIONS
The assumptions for the forecast of the seller's 2017 activity are based on the seller's actual
2016 results and reflect no significant changes in census, revenues or expenses other than
2o/o inflationary ncreases th rou g hout.
i

NOTE

7

DISTRIBUTIONS TO OWNERS

Distributions to owners to cover income taxes on profits passed through to them are
estimated al 41o/o of profits. For purposes of this projection book income is estimated to
approximate taxable income.
NOTE

8

RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ln our report dated November 20, with respect to the Projected 2018 through 2020 financial
statements, management's assumptions included that part of the purchase price of
$3,338,785 would include $100,000 for Land. The projections have been updated to reflect
that the purchase price does not include Land and therefore that $100,000 has been
allocated to the cost of the building. lt also reflects that there will be an assumption at
closing of the ground lease that the seller has with the landowner as described in note 5.
Also, financing terms have been updated as indicated in note 3.
The financial statements have also been updated to include Forecasted statements as of and
for the year ending December 31,2017.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC
COMBINED DEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE SCHEDULES
UNDER THE HYPOTHETICAL ASSUMPTIONS IN NOTE 1
For the Years Ended Decembet 31,2014 through 2016 (Histor¡cal), and the year ending 2017 (Forecasted)
and the Years Ending 2018 through 2020 (Projected)

Seller

Seller

Histor¡cal

Historical

2014
ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL
Salary - Administrator
Salary - OtherAdmin
Offìce supplies & postage

$

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL

140,541

172,453
268,853
44,876
44,016

20,486
22,505
22,333
52,98'l
176,597

154,698

308,754
464,312
. 34,885
5,072
6,715
704,412

31 3,673
477,402
23,055
18,482

156,206
269,918

51,948

52,947
53,292

26,44'l
61,542

13,1 16

18,437

34,152

34,835

708,412

708,412
126,420
700

708,412
I 29,356
714

35,532
708,412

90,1 60

500

Buyer
Projected

2019

2020

$

13,646

131 ,943

728

287 ,973

703,870

767,567

162,517

280,822
55,128
55,445

54,O47

28,960

319,419 327 ,696 2A2,326
734,861 898,497 752,517

159,330 $
275,316
54,358
33,317
79,226
27,509
64,028
61,200
236,935
360,862
589,070
26,304
I 3,919
36,243
708,412
134,582
743
43,440

62,773
60,000

59,774

232,289
353,786
545,435
25,788

128,977

Buyer
Projected

32,664
77,673
26,970

32,024
76,1 50

237,960
346,849
505,032
25,282
13,378

3A,247

717

33,983
80,811

28,059
65,309
62,424

241,674
368,079
636,1 96

26,830
14,197

36,968
708,412
137,274

758
14,480

,619

731,630

s 3.566.011 $ 3.811,438 $ 3.773.941 $ 3,835,252 $ 3,572,872 $ 3,676,460 $ 3,740,996

expense

ToTALPROPERTY&RELATEDEXPENSESS $1,e3s,051

ToTALPLANTOPERAïON&MAINTENANCE

60,671

$

264,625
52,247

31,396
74,657
25,923
60,335
58,602
233,294
340,048
495,129
24,786

19,485

48,046

153,143

51,223

18,61 3

Buyer
Projected
2014

Seller
Forecasted
2017

1 50,1 40
259,436
50,929

$

64,596

il,745

PROPERTY & RELATED EXPENSES
$ 253j32
Depreciation
Mortgage interest
Mortgage interest - amortization of debt isuance costs
1,410,753
Facilty Rent - Ground Lease
73,340
Equ¡pment Rent
176,712
Taxes
21 11
lnsurance

PLANT OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Salary - Maintenance
Supplies
Purchased services
Gas, fuel & oil
Electricity
Water & sewer
Garbage

2015

280,816
43,898
43,232

Communications
Travel & meetings
Advertising
Licenses & dues
Professionâl services
lnsurances - general
lnsurance - Worker's Comp
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Miscellaneous
Employee physicals
Seminars/inservices
Medicaid Assessment
Purchased services
Penalties
Line of Credit lnterest
Corporate - lntegrated Marketing
Management fees

Seller
Historical
2016

$

$

$ 155,784$

152,558

1,417,296

1,427,163

59,608
183,280
22,444

58,381

gj,lgry

185,776
18,662

9-Lì@

$

155,609

$

1,455,706
59,549
189,492
18.662

@91q

$

98,916 $
127,239
22,6A4
2,000
60,740
193,282
I 8.662
523,523

$

126,059

$

201,091
18.662

18.662

ss2,s64

g-99q9

8 92,624 $ 89,798 $ 91,594 $ 93,426 $ 95,295 $
9,902
9,518
9,708
9,331
10,907
8,265
132,085 145,919 140,096 142,898 145,756 MA,671
42,203 41,359 35,612 36,324 37,050 37 ,751
155,427 155,067 151,995 155,035 158,',136 161,299
79,173 73,335 76,862 78,399 79,967 81 ,566
17,682 17,661 20,363 20,770 21,185 21,609
87,289

522j24

g-ry,

w-

ry99q W.

See Summary of Significant Project¡on Assumtions and Accounting Policies and Accountant's Report

I

$

ss6'133

138,202

121,535
22,684
2,000
63,194

124,456
22,684
2,000
61,955
197,148

97,201
10,100

151,644
38,547
',164,525

83,197
22,041

ry99

Birchwood Operations, LLC and Birchwood Prop, LLC
COMBINED DEPARTMENTAL EXPENSE SCHEDULES
UNDER THE HYPOTHETICAL ASSUMPTIONS IN NOTE 1
FortheYears Ended Decembet31,2014 through 2016 (Histor¡cal), and theyearending20lT (Forecasted)
and the Years Ending 2018 through 2020 (Poected)

Buyer
Buyer
Seller
Seller
Seller
Seller
Historical Historical Historical Forecasted Projected Projected
2017
2018
2019
2015
2016
2014

Buyer
Projected

2020

DIETARY
Dietary salaries
Food
Supplies & other expenses
TOTAL DIETARY

$

440,344 $ 446,649 S 486,224 $ 495,948 $ 505,867 $ 515,984 $
321,908 321,663 320,332 326,739 333,274 339,939
42,995
36,946 41,688 42,522 43,372 44,239

$

848,244

$
2,463

186,757

$

188,933

$
4,165

280,135

$

281,646

$

805,247

$

805,258

$

176,550

$

178,739

$

882,s13

$
2,220

174,618

$

176,882

g
1,541

261,927

$

263,499

$

865,209

$
2,176

190,492

8

192,712

$
1,511

285,738

$

900,162

$
2,264

178,110

$

180,419

$
1,572

267,166

$

268,769

526,304
346,738
45,124

$

918,166

$
2,309

181,672

$

184,027

$
1,603

272,s09

g

274,144

$

I,772,890

LAUNDRY & LINEN
Contracted serv¡ces
Supplies & Other Expenses
TOTAL LAUNDRY & LINEN

3,784

$

180,334

$

181,202

$

264,825

$

267,049

$

271,2't4

HOUSEKEEPING
Contracted services
Supplies & Other Expenses
TOTAL HOUSEKEEPING

5,099

$

269,924

I

287,279

2,355

'1,635

NURSING
Salaries - Nurses (RN)
Salaries - Nurses (LPN)
Salar¡es - Nurses (Other)
Salar¡es - Director of Nursing
Medical d¡rector
Nursing supplies & other costs
Contracted nursing services

THERAPY SERVICES
Salaries - therapy
Contracted therapy
Therapy supplies

1,548,109 $

't,00q276

1,036,755
1,703,206

4,736,745

88,991

'
$

$

Purchased serv¡ces - activities
Other services

SERVICES $

995,64'1

I ,015,554

1,779,293
96,603
70,506

1,814,879
98,535
71,916
290,041

1,851,177
100,506

284,354

39,331

$

4,884,081

$

40,118

4,941,64s

$

$

73,354
295,842

1,738,127
1,035,865
1,888,201
102,516
74,821

30r,759

40,920

5,040,479

1,056,582
1,925,965
1 04,566
76,317

4',1

$

307,794
42,573

738

5,141,289 I5,244,114

I,058,981

$

989,569

159,702
88,174

$

8 174,541 $ 178,032 $ 181,593 $ 185,225 $
98,426 103,206 105,270 107,375 109,523
32,183 32,827 33,484
31,745 31 ,552
280,609 315,750 322,065 328,506 335,076
10,835 10,557 10,768 10,983 11,203
4,471
4,560
4,297
4,383
3,565
122,764 213,862 218,139 222,502 226,952

17 695

$

4,721,470

1,670,633

976,t19

9,015 $
9,195 $
9,379 $
9,567 $
8,856 $
965,529 1,048,563 1,069,534 803,195 819,259
5,761
5,876
5,994
15,184
5,648

1,041,286

SERVICÉS

76,639
267,770

I,704,046

1,637,875

$

$

OTHER SERVICES
Salaries - activities
Salaries - social services
Supplies
Pharmacy/X-Ray/Lab
Purchased serv¡ces - pharmacy

TOTAL OTHER

1,468,718 $
1,823,104
83,568
76,855
276,224

g

TOTAL NURSING

TOTAL THERAPY

$

25,200
284,641
10,014
3,338
160,733
731,802

$

$

1,063,226

$

1,084,490

$

818,4s0

$

834,820

$

166,527

714,471

$

853,765

$

870,840

$

888,2s7

$

See Summary of Significant Projection Assumtions and Accounting Policies and Accountant's Report
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906,023

$

9,758
835,644

851,516

188,930
111,713

34,154
341,778
11,427
4,651

231,491

924,144
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Percentage of short-stay residents who
improved in their abilíty to move around
on their own (Higher Better)

-6.2

admission assessments and
1) Facility has implemented a comprehensive oversig
documentation to capture an accurate picture of admission function.
2) The Physical and Occupational therapists proactively meet weekly with the IDT team to
capture earlier detection of any signs of decline in function.
3) The weekly IDT risk meeting reviews alternative plans /interventions to improve function
4) Review of results of this QM is done monthly at QAPI committee to determine if plan is
improving outcomes.

Percentage of short-stay residents who
report moderate to severe Pain.
(Lower Better)

-6.4

Facility will establish an initiative with the lnterdisciplinary team including the Physicians and
Nurse practitioners for pain management on an ongoing basis including the following:
1) Establish a paln scoring system that reflects the patient's actual experiences.
As pain ratings a re subjective and each person's reliabi lity tn rating pain the Facility plans to
use alternative pain scales recommended by the Q O to help reflect the actua patient effects.
3) Quantifying the timing of rout¡ne pain med compared to PRN med is given may shed some
light on the process of collecting pain ratings and ¡ts improvement'
4) eApl will include utilizing the pain scale provided by the QIO which has more definitions of
each level of pain represents to help quant¡fy and treat appropriately
5) Educate staff, patients and families on new pain scale to assist in achieving this goal.
6) Review the results of the monthly QMs with the QAPI committee to determine if the above
pain management plan is improving the quality management of overall pain'

-0.04
Percentage of short-stay residents with
pressure ulcers that are new or worsened.
(Lower Better)

Percentage of short-stay res¡dents who
newly got an antipsychotic

medication,Percentage of short-stay
residents who got an antipsychotic
medication for the first time during this
nursing home admission. (Lower Better)

-2.1

1) One patient has had a worsening in his/her wound and the facility continue to work toward

declines in condition
The wound care nurse and the medical team work hand ¡n hand on treatment protocols
approved by the wound care assoc¡ation
3) The social service team and psych services work to encourage patients who make choices
may not be in the best of their overall health maintenance (wound care included).
4) The results of wound management is being reviewed monthly by the QAPI comm¡ttee to
ensure positive outcomes are obtained.

1) 2018 plan was already started on November 28, 2017 with the new final rule phase 2 use of
pRN psychotropics has also encouraged Facility to go to the next step of overall psychotrop¡c

ut¡lization.

The Facility has discontinued antipsychotic medications in last 30 days which have not been
utilized consistently. The committee will continue to review at the weekly risk meeting with
Physician/NP oversight to ensure appropriate use, target behaviors are identified and discuss
ative interventions where appropriate
3) The plan ts to utilize psychotropic med ications as last option nd more implementation of
pharmacological approaches specific to each ind ividua patient needs as mentioned tn above
behavior affecting other QM.
The Facility will educate current staff, new hires, patients and families on above plan to
achieve this goal.
5) Review the results of the monthly QMs with the QAPI committee to determ¡ne if the above
plan is improving the quality management of short and long stay residents utilizing
ant¡psychotics.

Long Stay

Percentage of long-stay residents who

-8.6

report moderate to severe pain. (Lower
Better)

Percentage of long-stay low-risk res¡dents -5.3
who lose control of their bowels or

bladder. (Lower Better)

Percentage of long-stay residents who
were physically restrained. (Lower Better)

-0.4

1) One resident at the Facility in the last six months has had a restra int. The Facility's goal ¡s to
have no restraints but unfortunately this resident has failed multiple alternative interventions.
2) This resident is being assessed daily for changes in condition that that may allow the facility
to discontinue this intervention.
3) The DNS/designee will ensure staff are aware of goal to be restraint free and for no resident
to have a restraint implemented without an IDT team comprehensive evaluation.
4) The results of the restraint free goal will be reviewed monthly at QAPI.

Percentage of long-stay residents whose

-5.6

1) Fac¡l¡ty w¡ll continue to review with the IDT team, on a weekly basis, at its risk meetings any
patient who has had a decline in any ADLs or decline in independent mobility to create a plan to
help improve status.
2) Once the plan is established the team communicates the plan to the LNAs/care givers to
ensure a comprehensive approach to improving ADUmobilty outcomes. lf end of life goal would
be care & comfort. ( Often seen with Alzheimer's/ term¡nal patients)
3) The QM is also reviewed monthly by the committee to determine ¡f current plan is impacting
outcome ADLs or independent mobility.

-6.6

1) Facility will continue to review with the IDT team, on a weekly basis, at its risk meetings any
patient who has had a decline in any ADLs or decline in independent mobility to create a plan to
help improve status.
2) Once the plan is established the team communicates the plan to the LNAs/care givers to
ensure a comprehensive approach to improving ADUmobilty outcomes. lf end of life goal would
be care & comfort. ( Often seen with Alzheimer's/ terminal patients)
3) The QM is also reviewed monthly by the committee to determine if current plan is impacting
outcome ADLs or independent mobil¡ty.

-1.3

1) Facility will have a weekly risk weight meeting with dietician and I DT team to identify any
resident who is at risk before weight loss occurs and implement supplements or other resident
specific interventions.
2) New Food service chef to work closely with dietician on more comprehensive finger food
options for Alzheimer residents or other residents who have difficulties sitting to eat either
related to cognitive status or movement disorders.
3) The plans for each resident identified at these risk meetings will be shared with staff/ pat¡ents
and families to ass¡st in achieving this goal.
4) Facility will review the results of the monthly QMs with the QAPI comm¡ttee to determine if
the plan is improving the quality management of weight loss.

ability to move independently worsened.
(Lower Better)

Percentage of long-stay residents whose
need for help with daily activities has

increased. (Lower Better)

Percentage of long-stay residents who
lose too much weight. (Lower Better)

Percentage of long-stay residents who
got an antianxiety or hypnotic medication
(Lower Better)

-8.4

PRN
has also
the new final rule phase 2 use
1) Facility as
encouraged Facility to go to the next step of overall psychotropic util¡zation.
The Facility has already discontinued several Anxiolytic & Hypnotic medications in last 30
which have not been being utilized consistently after review at the weekly risk meeting with
Physician/NP oversight. The committee will cont¡nue to review weekly for appropriate use,
identify target behaviors and discuss alternatives including non-pharmacological interventions
The plan is to utilize psychotropic medications as a last option and more ¡mplementation of
non- pharmacological approaches spec¡fic to each individual resident needs as mentioned in
behavior affecting other QM.
The Facility will continue to educate cunent staff, new hires, patients and families on above
plan to ach¡eve this goal
Review the results of the monthly QMs with the QAPI comm¡ttee to determine if the above
plan is improving the quality management of anxiolytic and hypnotic use.

Percentage of long-stay residents who
got an antipsychotic medication. (Lower

-21 .1

1) Fac¡lity has implemented the new final rule phase 2 use of PRN psychotropics has also
encouraged Facility to go to the next step of overall psychotropic utilization.
2) The Facility has discontinued antipsychotic medications in last 30 days which have not been
being utilized consistently. The committee will continue to review at the weekly risk meeting with
Physician/NP oversight to ensure appropriate use, target behaviors are identified and discuss
alternative interventions where appropriate
3) The plan is to utilize psychotropic medications as last opt¡on and more implementation of
pharmacological approaches specific to each individual patient needs as mentioned in above
behavior affecting other QM.
4) The Facility will continue to educate cunent staff, new hires, pat¡ents and families on above
plan to achieve this goal.
5) Review the results of the monthly QMs with the QAPI comm¡ttee to determine if the above
plan is improving the quality management of short and long stay residents utilizing
antipsychotics.

Better)
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Survey and Certifisation Voice/TTY $AZ) 241-0480
Survey ancl Certifìcation Fax (802)241-0343
Survey and Certification Reportirrg ì,ine (888) 700-5330
To Report Adult Abuse: (800) 564-1612

April27,2017

Ms, Alecia I)ittrario, Adrriinistrator
Kindred Tralisitional Care & Rehab Birchwood Terrace
43 Starr Farm Rd
Burlington, V'f 05408-132 1
Provider ID #: 475003
Dear Ms. Diniario:

Tþe Divisiou of Licensing and Protection completed a sLtrvey at your làcility on April l9' 2017' The
pllrpose of the survey was to determine if your facility was in compliance witli Federal participation
requirements for nnrsilig homes participating in the Medicare/Meclicaicl prograttts. This sulvey I'ouncl
tþat your facility was in substantial cornpliance with the participation requirements. Congrattllations to
you and your stafL

Sirrcerely,

M. Cota, RN
Liccnsing Chicl'
Panrela

Iirtclosure
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Devcl opmental Disabiliti es Services
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F OOO INITIAL COMMENTS

The Division of Licensing and Protection
conducted an annual recert¡f¡cat¡on survey
4117117 - 4119117 . There were no regulatory
violations as a result.
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Any deficiency statement ending w¡th an asterisk (.) denotes a dêficiency wh¡ch the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is delefmined that
other safeguards provide sufficient protection to thê patients. (Sêe instructions.) Except for nursing homes, thê find¡ngs stated above are disclosable 90 days
following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correctio n is provided. For nursing homes, the above find¡ngs aild plans of correct¡on are disclosable 14
days following the date thesê documents a¡e made available to the facitity. lf deficienðies are c¡ted, an approved plan of correÇtion ¡s requisite to cont¡nuèd
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Division of Licensing and Protection
HC 2 South, 280 State Drive
Waterbury VT 0 567 I -2060
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Survey and Certification Voice/TTY
To Report Adult Abuse:
Survey and Certification Fax
Survey and Certifìcation Reporting Line:

(802)
(800)
(802)
(888)

241-0480
564-1612
241-0343
700-5330

ll4ay 5,2016

Ms. Alecia Dimario, Administrator
Kindred Transitional Care & Rehab
43 Stan Farm Rd
Burlington, VT 05408-132 I
Provider ID #: 475003
Dear Ms. Dimario:
The Division of Licensing and Protection completed a survey at your facility on April 27,2016.The
purpose of the survey was to determine if your facility was in compliance with Federal participation
requirements for nursing homes participating in the Medicare and Medicaid programs. This survey
found the most serious deficiency in your facility to be a pattern of deficiencies that constitute no
actual harm with potential for more than minimal harm that is not immediate jeopardy as evidenced

attached CMS-2567 whereby corrections are required. All references to regulatory
requirements contained in this letter are found in Title 42, Code of Federal Regulations.

by the

Plan of Correction (POC)

A POC for the deficiencies, which is your allegation of compliance, must be received by May 17,
2016. Failure to submit an acceptable POC by May 17, 2016 may result in imposition of remedies
or termination of your provider certification. Your POC must contain the following:
a

a

a

a

a

What corrective action will be accomplished for those residents found to have been affected
by the deficient practice;
How you will identify other residents having the potential to be affected by the same
deficient practice and what corrective action will be taken;
What measures will be put into place or what systemic changes you will make to ensure that
the deficient practice does not recur; and,
How the corrective actions will be monitored to ensute the deficient practice will not recur,
i.e., what quality assurance program will be put into place.
The dates corrective action will be completed.

,.

'

t,

l::,

i

li'.lri: t'ì t.

¡,

j:.:l 't:\.'i.ij i I

'
t:r..'.,1,

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer

l/www.nova

.co

:\,)
l

).

tti,,l,lt:tira
:

' ).,.t,) : :i'1
.i1:t ''r), 'a'.: / llt ) i

The remedies, which will be imposed
2016, will include the following:

if

at t),i

substantial compliance has not been achieved by NI.ay 27,

Denial of Payment for New Admissions effective Jaly 27r2016

An Enforcement Cycle

has been initiated based on the citation

of deficiencies at a 'rDrr level or

greater at your facility. All statutory/mandatory enforcement remedies are effective based on the
beginning survey of the Enforcement Cycle. Your Enforcement Cycle began with the A.pril 27,
2016, survey. All surveys conducted after April 27,2016, with deficiencies at a "D" level or greater
become a part of this Enforcement Cycle. The enforcement cycle will not end until substantial
compliance is achieved for all deficiencies from all surveys within an enforcement cycle. Facilities
are expected to achieve and maintain continuous substantial compliance. If you do not achieve
substantial compliance, the CMS Regional Office and/or State Medicaid Agency must deny
payments for new admissions. We are also recommending to the CMS Regional Office and/or State
Medicaid Agency that your provider agreements be terminated on October 27,2016 if substantial
compliance is not achieved by that time. A change in the seriousness of the deficiencies on M:ny 27,
2016 may result in a change in the remedy selected.

Allegation of Compliance
If you believe these deficiencies have been corrected, you may contact Suzanne Leavitt, RN, MS,
Assistant Division Director, Division of Licensing and Protection with your written credible
allegation of compliance. If you choose and so indicate, the POC may constitute your allegation of
compliance. We may accept the written allegation of compliance and presume compliance until
substantiated by a revisit or other means. ln such a case, the recommended remedy listed above
would not be imposed at that time.

If, upon the subsequent revisit, your facility has not achieved substantial compliance, a civil money
penalty may be imposed by the CMS Regional Office beginning on the last day of survey and
continue until substantial compliance is achieved. Additionally, the CMS Regional Office will
impose the other remedies indicated above or revised remedies, if appropriate.
Informal Dispute Resolution
In accordance with $488.331, you have one opportunity to question cited deficiencies through an
informal dispute resolution process. To be given such an opportunity, you are required to send your
written request, along with the specific deficiencies being disputed, and an explanation of why you
are disputing those deficiencies, to Suzanne Leavitt, RN, MS, Assistant Division Director, Division
bv Mav 17.
uest must be received bv this
of Licensing and Protection. This written
date of any
effective
not
delay
the
process
will
2016. An incomplete informal dispute resolution
enforcement action.
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Opnortunitv for Indenendent Informal Dispute Resolution (IIDR)
an Informal Dispute Resolution (IDR) from the State Agency' your
request for IIDR will only be allowed if it is made before the State's IDR is completed. If you chose
to request an IIDR with an lndependent Panel, your written request for an IIDR must be sent to Suzanne
Leavitt, RN, MS, State Survey Agency Director. The State Survey Agency will forward your request to
the trDR Panel, and they will inform you when and how the IIDR will be condtlcted. Your request for
IIDR must be made no later than 10 calendar days from the date of your receipt of this letter.

If you have already requested

Sincerely

Pamela M. Cota, RN

Licensing Chief

Enclosure:

l\r: l:rlk]i:t::¿t:
2.t

,r)l

;t t;ll t

a.,

¿

,,t3.'/t)1.

r

r:

/

i 1 l':)

i:',

.)4

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http:/lwww.novapdf.com)

AH

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES

''A'' FORM
PROVIDËR #
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NO HARM WITH ONLYA POTENTIAL FOR MINIMAL HARM
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FOR SNFs AND NFs

475003
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES

aS3.l5(eX2) zuGHT TO NOTICE BEFORE ROOM/ROOMMATE CHANGE
A resident has the right to receive notice before the resident's room or roommate in the facility is changed.

This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced by:
Based on staffinterview and record review, the facility failed to notify
sample of 3l (Resident# 78) of a room change. Findings include:

I

applicable resident in the stage 2

Per staffinterview with a facility Social Worker (SW) on 4126l16 at ll:.43 AM, Resident # 78 had a room
change on 416/16. There is no written evidence in the clinical record that verbal or written notice was given
prior to the room change. During the interview, the SW conftrmed there is no evidence of written or verbal

notice ofroom change.

F 388

as3.40(cX3 )-(4) PERSONAL VISITS BY PHYSICIAN, ALTERNATE PA/NIP
Except as provided in paragraphs (c)(4) and (Ð ofthis section, all required physician visits must be made by
the physician personally.
SNFs, after the initial visit, may alternate between personal
visits by the physician and visits by a physician assistant, nurse practitioner or clinical nurse specialist in
accordance with paragraph (e) ofthis section.

At the option of the physician, required visits in

This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced by:
Based on record review and confirmed by staff the facility failed to ensure that 2 of 3l sampled residents
have required physician visits that alternate between personal physician and the nurse practitioner. The
findings include the following:
Per medical record review for Resident #50, s/he was last seen by the attending physician on
The resident was seen by the nurse practitioner on l2l28l15,2lll16 and 4128/16.

1.

2.

llll6l15.

Per medical record review for Resident #166, evidences that s/he was last seen by the attending physician

on 10l2ll15. The resident was seen bythe nurse practitioner on llll9l15,ll22l16 and3/24116.
Per interview with the Unit Manger, confirmation was made that the attending physician did not alternate
visits with the nurse practitioner as required.
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F 000 INITIAL COMMENTS

The Division of Licensing and Protection
conducted an unannounced onsite annual
recertification survey on 4125126 - 4127116. Ïhe
following regulatory violations were cited as a
result.
F 253

F 253 483. 15(hX2) HOUSEKEEPING &
SS=E MAINTENANCE SERVICES
The facility must provide housekeeping and
maintenance services necessary to maintain a
sanitary, orderly, and comfortable interior.

This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced
by:

Based on observation, the facility failed to
provide housekeeping and maintenance services
to maintain a sanitary, orderly and comfortable
interior in resident rooms and bathing areas on A,
B and C units. The findings include the
following:
Per environmental tour on 4/26116 in the
presence of the Nursing Home Administrator and
the Maintenance Director the following were
observed:
B Wing: 20 Resident Rooms with built in closets
and bureaus were found to have rough edges,
chipped and peeling paint and missing knobs.
Walls are noted to have peeling paint, sheet rock
with gouges and cove base sloughing from the
walls. Waste paper baskets were found without
plastic bag enclosures, therefore the baskets
themselves were found to be heavily soiled with
accumulated dried materials. Oxygen
concentrators in use were found to have
(X6) DATE

TITLE

LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER REPRESENTATIVE'S SIGNATURE

Any deficiency statement ending w¡th an asterisk (-) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that other
safeguards provide sufficient protection to the patients. (See instructions.) Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days following the
date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided. For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable l4 days following the date
these documents are made available to the facility. lf deficiencies are cited, an approved plan of correction is requisite to continued program participation-
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F 253

Wing: 10 Resident Rooms with built in closets
and bureaus were found to have rough edges,
chipped and peeling paint and missing knobs.
Walls are noted to have peeling paint, sheet rock
with gouges and cove base sloughing from the
walls. Waste paper baskets were found without
plastic bag enclosures, therefore baskets
themselves were found to be heavily soiled with
dried accumulated materials. Oxygen
concentrators in use were found to have
accumulated dust, debris and dried on spills.
C

Special Care Unit: 5 Resident Rooms with built
in closets and bureaus were found to have rough
edges and chipped and peeling paint. Walls are
noted to have peeling paint and cove base
sloughing from the walls. Waste paper baskets
were found without plastic bag enclosures,
therefore baskets themselves were found to be
heavily soiled with dried accumulated materials.
B and C Wing Bathing/Shower Rooms: Both
were found to have cracked tiles on the walls
located towards the floor. C Wing shower room
was found to have dirty soiled laundry resting on
the floor and on the towel racks. Privacy curtains
were noted to be soiled as well.

Confirmation was made at the end of the tour
that the resident rooms,and shower rooms are in
need of cosmetic repairs. Also confirmed that
waste paper baskets and oxygen concentrators
need cleaning.
F 279 483.20(d), 483.20(kx1 ) DEVELOP
SS=D COMPREHENSIVE CARE PLANS
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A facility must use the results of the assessment
to develop, review and revise the resident's
comprehensive plan of care.

(x5)
COMPLETION
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F 279

The facility must develop a comprehensive care
plan for each resident that includes measurable
objectives and timetables to meet a resident's
medical, nursing, and mentaland psychosocial
needs that are identified in the comprehensive
assessment.

The care plan must describe the services that
are to be furnished to attain or maintain the
resident's highest practicable physical, mental,
and psychosocial well-being as required under
5483.25; and any services that would otherwise
be required under $483.25 but are not provided
due to the resident's exercise of rights under
5483.10, including the right to refuse treatment
under $483.10(bX4).
This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced
by:

Based on record review and staff interview the
facility failed to assure that a plan of care was
developed for 1 resident (R #94) in a stage 2
sample of 31. Findings include:

Per record review, Resident #94 has a pressure
area on the Left 4th toe. ln reviews of the MDS
(Minimum Data Set - a comprehensive
assessment tool), Nursing Assessments, and
weekly skin checks since his/her first admission
on 12115115, the resident is coded not to have a
pressure ulcer. The resident was absent from the
facility from 1l5l16lo 3117116 when s/he returned
with no pressure ulcers. The resident was
FORM CMS-2567(02-99) Previous Versions Obsolete
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for fever and
altered mental status. R #94 was readmitted on
4111116 and the Nursing Admission Assessment
Skin inspection notes a pressure area which is
staged as Unstageable on the L 4th Toe. The
Admission assessment MDS notes the
Unstageable pressure ulcer on the 4th toe.
discharged to the hospital on

418116

ln a review of the record although the care plan
does have an initiated Problem of lmpaired Skin
lntegrity there are no prevention or care
interventions found in the plan of care. Per
interview on 4127116 at 1:40 PM, the Charge
Nurse on the Unit confirmed that there was no
care plan with interventions developed for a new
pressure area discovered on 4111118.
F 309 483.25 PROVIDE CARE/SERVICES FOR
SS=D HIGHEST WELL BEING

F 309

Each resident must receive and the facility must
provide the necessary care and services to attain
or maintain the highest practicable physical,
mental, and psychosocial well-being, in
accordance with the comprehensive assessment
and plan of care.

This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced
by:

Based on staff interview and record review, the
facility failed to ensure 1 of 4 applicable
residents in the stage 2 sample of 31 (Resident
#154) received the necessary care to maintain
the highest practicable well being. Findings
include:
Per record review, Resident #154 had an
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unwitnessed fall on 3130116. There is no

(x5)
COMPLETION
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F 309

evidence that staff performed Neurological Vital
Signs (NVS) after the unwitnessed fall. Facility
policy states that if the fall is unwitnessed
monitor NVS every 15 minutes for t hour, then
every 30 minutes for t hour, then every hour for
2 hours. On 4127116 at 12:25 PM, the Director of
Nurses (DNS) confirmed that NVS should have
been done after the unwitnessed fall and that
they have not been done.
F 353 483.30(a) SUFFICIENT 24-HR NURSING STAFF
SS=D PER CARE PLANS

F 353

The facility must have sufficient nursing staff to
provide nursing and related services to attain or
maintain the highest practicable physical, mental,
and psychosocial well-being of each resident, as
determined by resident assessments and
individual plans of care.
The facility must provide services by sufficient
numbers of each of the following types of
personnel on a 24-hour basis to provide nursing
care to all residents in accordance with resident
care plans:

Except when waived under paragraph (c) of this
section, licensed nurses and other nursing
personnel.
Except when waived under paragraph (c) of this
section, the facility must designate a licensed
nurse to serve as a charge nurse on each tour of
duty.

This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced
by:
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Based on staff and resident interviews and
record review, the facility failed to assure that

(x5)
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DATE

F 353

there was sufficient staff to assure the highest
well-being of each resident and assure the
provision of care according to the resident's
plans of care. Findings include:
1). Per resident interview on 4/26116, Resident
#28 stated during the resident interview that s/he
has requested to use his/her bedside commode
during the night shift and has been told that they
are too busy to assist him/her to the bedside
commode and that s/he must use the bedpan
although that is not his/her preferred method of
elimination. S/he states that s/he has told staff
that s/he cannot comfortably use the bedpan. As
a result s/he states that s/he has "held" his/her
urine all night long to avoid using the bedpan.
S/he states that one night recently s/he had held
his/her urine as long as s/he could but that s/he
finally had to request the bedpan. S/he relates
that s/he waited so long that slhe had
"overflowed" the bedpan and that his/her clothing
and bedding were wet.

ln an interview on 4126116 at2:30 PM the
Director of Nurses (DNS) stated that the facility is
aware that they are understaffed despite many
efforts to recruit both Nurses and Licensed
Nurses Aides (LNAs).
F 371 483.35(i) FOOD PROCURE,
SS=E STORE/PREPARE/SERVE - SAN ITARY

F 371

The facility must (1) Procure food from sources approved or
considered satisfactory by Federal, State or local
authorities; and
(2) Store, prepare, distribute and serve food
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under sanitary conditions
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F 371

This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced
by:

Based on observation and confirmed by staff
interview the facility failed to ensure that food in
the nourishment kitchens on A, B and C Wings
are stored under sanitary conditions. The
findings include the following:
Per tour on 4126116 of the kitchenettes on all 3
Units in the presence of the Registered Dietician
(RD) the following was observed:

1. Dementia unit kitchen cabinet was found to
have 2 multi-serving bags of partially used potato
chips and a multi-serving bag of partially used
vanilla wafers unsealed nor dated as to the day
any of the food products were opened.

2. B Wing

cabinet drawer was found to store
multiple souffle cups containing a white powder.
There is no identification as to the contents in the
souffle cups or the date when the powder was put
in use. The cups are marked 2 T.

3.

C Wing refrigerator was found to have
multiple residents' personal food items (fried
chicken-cherry peppers) in disposable containers
with the following dales: 3127116,4123116 and
4125116. 3 Styrofoam containers labeled jelly
daled 4123116. The refrigerator is heavily soiled
with a dried sticky substance making it difficult to
open and close the lower drawers. Confirmation
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F 371 Continued From page 7
is made by both the Unit Manager and the RD
that the refrigerator is very dirty and needs
cleaning. They also confirm that the food should
of been discarded as per the date on the
containers.

(x5)
COMPLETION
DA'fE

F 371

The RD also confirmed the findings on the
Dementia Unit and B Wing and voiced that the
foods need to be stored and labeled properly.
F 514 483.75(rX1) RES
SS=D RECORDS-COMPLETE/ACCU RATE/ACCESSI B

F 514

LE

The facility must maintain clinical records on
each resident in accordance with accepted
professional standards and practices that are

complete; accurately documented; readily
accessible; and systematically organized.
The clinical record must contain sufficient
information to identify the resident; a record of
the resident's assessments; the plan of care and
services provided; the results of any
preadmission screening conducted by the State;
and progress notes.
This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced
by:

Based on staff interview and medical record
review, the facility failed to maintain complete
and accurate clinical records in accordance with
acceptable professional standards of practice for
1 of 31 residents in the sampled group. For
Resident #77,lhe findings include the following:

Per medical record review Resident #77 was
admitted on 2120116 with diagnoses to include
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lype 2 Diabetes, amputation, Chronic Ulcer of
the right foot with partial amputation of multiple
toes, End Stage Renal Disease with dependency
on Renal Dialysis and Chronic Obstructive
Pulmonary Disease.
Per review of the Dialysis Communication
Record for Resident #77 daled 4125/16,
evidences documentation from the Dialysis
Registered Nurse (RN) ["Resident #77 must have
bumped his toe between your facility and
ours-2nd toe stump with skin tear, bleeding.
Area cleaned and antibiotic ointment applied
please follow up thanks."] Per observation
Licensed Practical Nurse (LPN) evaluated
Resident #77's 2nd toe stump on 4125116 at
approximately 4:15 PM at the facility. The
wound was treated and dressed.
Per observation of the medical record on 4126115
there is no evidence that the physician was
notified of the newly acquired wound nor is there
evidence that wound care was conducted.
Confirmation is made by the Unit Manager that
there is no documentation or notification to the
physician regarding Resident #77's newly
acquired wound or treatment there of.

Per interview with the LPN on 4127116 regarding
the lack of communication to the physician
regarding the newly acquired wound and the lack
of documentation pertaining to the wound,
confirmation was made by the LPN stating ["] just
did not do it"l.
F9999

F9999

FINAL OBSERVATIONS

7.13 Nursing Services
The facility must have sufficient nursing staff to
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provide nursing and related services to attain or
maintain the highest practicable physical, mental
and psychosocial well-being of each resident, as
determined by resident assessments and
individual plans of care or as specified by the
licensing agency.
(d)Staffing Levels. The facility shall maintain
staffing levels adequate to met resident needs.
(1) At a minimum, nursing facilities must provide
(i) no fewer than 3 hours of direct care per
resident per day, on a weekly average, including
nursing care, personal care and restorative
nursing care, but not including administration or
supervision of staff; and of the three hours of
direct care, no fewer than 2 hours per resident
per day must be assigned to provide standard
LNA care(such as personal care, assistance with
ambulation, feeding, etc.)performed by LNAs or
equivalent staff and not including meal
preparation, physical therapy or the activities
program.

This requirement is NOT MET as evidenced by:
Based on record review and Resident and Staff
interviews, the facility failed to assure that there
was sufficient staff to assure the highest
well-being and care according to the resident's
plans of care. Findings include:
1. ln a review of the facility staffing patterns for
February, March and April of 2016 it is found that
the facility failed to meet the state regulatory
requirement for 2 hours per day per resident of
direct (LNA)care on 10 days in February, 9 days
in March, and 6 of 23 reported days in April.
Additionally the Total number of care hours of 3
hours per day per resident were not met on I
days in February, 9 days in March, and 5 of 23
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reported days in April.
ln an interview on 4126116 at2:30 PM the
Director of Nurses (DNS) stated that the facility is
aware that they are understaffed despite many
efforts to recruit bot Nurses and Licensed Nurses
Aides

2. Also see F353.
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DEPARTMENT OF DTSABILITIE,S, AGING AND INDEPENDENT LIVING

Division of Licensi no and Protection
HC 2 South, 280 State Drive
Waterbury, VT 05671 -2060
http ://www.d ail. vermont. gov
Survey and Certification VoiceffTY (802) 241-0480
Survey and Certification Fax (802) 241-4343
Survey and Certification Reporting Line: (BB8) 700-5330
To Report Adult Abuse: (800) 564-1612

May 18, 2016

Ms. Alecia Dimario,
Kindred Transitional Care & Rehab Birchwood Terrace
43 Starr Farm Rd
Burlington, VT 05408-1321

Dear Ms. Dimario:

Énclosed is a copy of your acceptable plans of correction for the survey conducted on April
27 ,2016. Please post this document in a prominent place in your facility.
We rnay follow-up to verify that substantial compliance has been achieved and maintained. tf
we findihat your facility has failed to achieve or maintain substantial compliance, remedies
rnay be irnposed.
Sincerely,

Pamela M. Cota, RN
Licensing Chief

Developmental DÍsabilities Services
Licensing and Protection

Adult'õorvices
,,t,,n
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F 000 INITIAL COMMENTS

F 000

-

The Division of Llcensing and prolectíon
conducted an unannounced onsite annual
recertificalion survey on 4n5n6 - 4127116.The
following regulatory violations were cited as a

resul!
F 253 483.15(hX2) HOUSEKEEPING &
SS-E MAINTENANCE SERVICËS

F 253

Preparatian onil/or srecuti:.rt of this plan af
tr¡rrecti¡tti t{nus no¡ cow¡iîutc atlnis.tîon ay
agrëcûtenl h),the provi¿lct'of the tnßh af rhe
alÌcgcdfacts or conchtsions set rttnh in the
statcnrcnt of deficíencies. 1'he pkn of cçrrec!ictn
is prepared ttnrl/oy ¿xeuilc¡l solel¡, hec¡¡7¡gs ¡l¡s
pvavisions offederal cud state l¡mr' require it,
F

253

Mny 26, 20

The facility must provide housekeepíng and
maintenance services necessary lo maintain a
sanilary, orderly, and comfortable inlerior.

Walls and çlosets rvith notcd holes and gougcs
rvçre patched and pninted.

This REQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced

Oxygen cotrccnlrators tnd ryastebaskcls were
immediatcly assessed and clearied ns nec,ded.

by;
Based on observation, the facilit¡r failed to

'fhe Director of Nursing/or
Designee will recduclte sta lf regarding the f¡rcil it ics proeédurcs
rclated to equipnent use and linen handling.

provide housekeeping and maintenance services
to mainlain a sanitary, orderly and comfortable
interior in resident rooms and bathing.areas on A,
B and C unils. The findings include the
following:

'l'l¡e Dircclorof Nursing/or Designee will
conduc¡ monthly rounds lo assess procedures arc
being lnaintainecl. All rcsults will bc reportcd lo
the QAPI rrccting for 3 rnonths to rnsuri

Per environmentat tour on 4126/16 iñ the
presence of the Nursing Home Adminislrator and
the Maintenânce Director the following werc
observed:

compliance.

Thç Direetor of Mainienance arrd ËDl or
Designce t,ill conrplete nronthly rounds and
i<lentify any areos of needcd repair. Work ordcrs
will be established so llrat rcpaírs can bc traçkqd
for comple tion.

B Wing: 20 Resident Roorns wllh built ín closets
and bureaus were found to have rough edges,
chipped and peeling paint and missing knobs.
Walfs are noted to have peelÌng pairtt, sheel,rock
with gouges and cove base sloughing from the
walls. Wasle paper baskets uære found without
plastic bag enclosures, therefore lhe baskels
themselves were found to be heavily soiled witfr
accumulated dried materials. Oxygen
concentrators in use were found to have
otR

The Dircctor ol'Maintenancc arrd ED/ or
Dcsigncc rvill work with the Corporato OtïÌce to
dovelop {¡ syste¡nâtic plan lor refurbishlnent ¡nd
rcpairs in patient roolns and shorrer rooms,
.TITLE

PPLIER

5 l3

lheso doc{¡menls are made ava¡labte lo the faclllly. If delicÌencÍes are ciled, an âpproved plån of correction ¡s requ¡sile
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F 253 Continued From page 1
aÇcumulated dust, debris and dried on spills.

F 253 Thc results ofrounds
and repain rvill be
reviewcd with the eApl conrmirtec monthly x 3
m0nths to ensure conrpliance.

Wing: 10 Resident Rooms with built in closets
and bureaus were found to havp rough edges,
chipped and peeling pafnt and missing knobs.
Walls are noled to have peeling palnt, sheet rock
with gouges and cove base sloughing fiom the
walls,, Wastg paper baskets were found without
plaslic bag enclosures, therefore baskets
themselves were found to be heavily soiled wilh
dried accumulated mateilals, Oxygen
concenlratorô in use wére found to have
accumulated dust, debris and dried on sp¡lls,
G

The ED is responsible for oveiall conrpliance,

?asz ?ac a.ü.e?l.t sjryhrr

î

Special Care Unit: 5 Resldent Rooms with built
in cìosets and bureaus were found to have rough
edges and chipped and peeling paínt. Walls are
noted to have peeling paint and cove base
sloughing from the walls. Waste paper baskets
were found without plastic bag enclDsures,
therefore baskets themselves were found to be
heavily soiled with dried accumulated materials.

lvlay 26,2A16

279

Resiclent # 94 care plan has been dcveloped

for atteration in skin integrity.
I{or¡se audits havc been complctcd on
residcnls wi th potential/actual sk i n integrity
issucs to ensure thal care plans havc beetl
developed,

B and C W¡ng 8âthing/shower Rooms: Both
were found to have cracked tites on lhe walls
located lowards the floor. C Wing shower room
was found to have dirty soiled laundry resting on
the floor and on the towel racks. PrivaÇy curtains
were noted lo be soiled as well.

'Ihe SDC/designee conrpletcd re-education
on dcveloping carc plans for residenls rvith
potentiallactual skin integrity issucs,

The DNS/designee will conplcte random
care plan audits on resident's rvilh
potential,/actual skin integrity irnpnirnrenls
rnonthly x 90 days. 'I'he results of tlreses
audiu wílt be reviewcd at thc monthly QAPI
meeting for 3 ¡nonths to çnsure compliance,
F 279 The DNS is rcsponsible for overall
colnpliance .

Confirmation was made at the end of the tour
that the resident ¡oon'ìs,and shower roomS are in
need of cosmetic repairs. Also confirmed that
waste paper baskets and oxygen concentrators
need cleaning.
F 279 483.20(d). 483. 20(kX1 ) DEVELÖP
SS=D COMPREHENSIVE CARE PLANS
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F 279 Continued From page 2
A facility must use the results of the assessment
to devetop, feview and revisê the resident's
comprehensive plân of cêre.

r

279

The facility must develop a comprehensive care
plan for each resldent thal includes measurable
objectives and tìmetables to meet a reSidentrs
medical, nursing; and mental and psychosocial
needs lhat are identified in the comprehensive
assessment.
The care plan must describe thô serviÇes that
are to be furnished lo attain or maintain the
resident's highest practicable physical, mental,
and psychosocial well-being as requirsd under
$483.25; and arry sêrvices that would olherwìse
be required under $483.25 but are not providèd
due to the residênfs exercise of rights undef
5483.10, including the right to refuse treatment
under $483.10(bX4).
This REQUIRËMENT is not me! as evidenced
by:

Based on record feview and staff interview the
facility failed to assure that a plan of care was
developed for 1 resident (R #94) in a stage 2
sample of 31. Findings include:
Per record review, Resident #94 has å pressurê
area on the Left 4th toe, ln reviews of the MDS
(Minimum Data Set - a comprehensive
asse.ssmênt tool), Nursing Assessments, and
weekly skin checks since hi#her first admission
on 12115115, the resident is coded not to have a
pressufe ulcer. The resident was absent frsm the
facility from 1/5/16 to 3t,17116 when s/he relurned
with no pressure ulcêrs. The resìdent was
FORM CMS-2567(02-99) Prcvrous

\êßbnt Dbro!êtô

Eveßt l0: F88Bll

F6cr¡¡ly ¡O: 475003

lf cûltinuatioñ sheet Page 3 ol

You created thís PDF from an application that is not licensed !q p{!{l! !9.{r.gvaPDF printer (httQ'://www.novapdf.com)
i:.::¡.tii1 / ;-1¡r. t:.1 :
,,i :,) ,)t" | | ') .,.t
"

ll

l.,i I

a,tit:,1'ttt,.1l'

/.,,.1,1t1.

t.;:.11

t, | :l

:-

.,i,i'::,, ),t: | ;.

PRINrÉ,D: 05/05/2016
FORMAPPROVEO

1.,,

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICËS
q

SIÁTÊMENI OF OEFICIENCIES

(x

AND PL¡'.¡ OF CORRECTION

rvrLv¡v¿
r

l

rtv

v+!

r

'

t YÈv

(X3} DATÊ SURVEY
COùIPLETEO

(x2) l4uLT|PLE CONSTRUCTION

PROVIDER/SUPPLIË,R/CLIA
IOËNTIFICATION NUMBER:

475003

A

SUILOING

B,

WINGSTREETADORESS. CrfY, STATE, ZIP CODË

NAn/tE OF PROMDER OR SUPPLIER

{3 STARR FARIYI RD
KINDREÞ TRANSITIONAL CARE & REHAE BIRCHWOOD TER
(x4)

PREFIX
TÂG

PREFIX

tAu

F 279 Continued From Page 3
discharged to the hospilal on 4/8/16 for fever and
altered inenlal status. R #94 was readmitted on
4111116 and the NursingAdmission Atçessment
Skin inspection notes a pressure area which is
staged as Unstageable on the L4th TÓe' The
Admission assessment MDS notes the
Unstageable pressure ulcer Qn lhe 4th toe.
ln a reviev,¡ of the record although the care plan
does have an initiated Problem of lmpaired Skìn
lnlegrity there are no prevention or cÆre
interventlons found in the plan of care. Per
interview on 4127116 at 1:40:PM, the Charge
Nurse on tha Unit cqnfirmed that there was no
care plan with intervgntions developed for a new
pressure areâ discovered on 4111118'
F 309 483.25 PROVIDË CAREISËRVICES FOR
SS=D HIGHEûT WELL BEING

(x5)

coMPtÊfroN

o^lE

F 279

F 309

facility.
residents with un-tvitnessed falls have
the potential to be affected.

All

Thc SDC/designee has re-educatcd the
ticcnsed nurses on the lacility lall
pÕlicylproc€dure wifh elnphasis on NVS for
un-wìtnessed fälls.
't'hc DNSldesignee rvill complete pÕst fa¡l
aridi$ on residents monthly x 90 doys' Thc
results ofthese audils rvill be revierved ¿t tlte
monlhly QÂPl commitlec to ensltre

by;

Éased on staff interview and record review, the
facility faited to ensure 1 of 4 applicable
residénts in the stage 2 samBle of 3'l (Resident
#1 54) recelved the necessary care to malntain
the highest practicable well being. Findings

compliance.
Tt¡e DNS is responsible for ovcrall
compliançe,

include:

l3t1

Per record review, Resident #154 had an
Evenl lO: F68811

May ?6, 2016

F 309

Resident # I 54 no longer resides at the

This RËQUIREMENT is nol met as evidenced

olsololo

054Û8

oEFlclËNcYt

Each reeident muçt teceive and the fac¡lity m¿¡sl
provide the necessary care and services to attain
or maintain the highest practicable physical'
mental, and psychosocial well'being, in
accordance,üit¡l tf¡e comprehensive assessmè¡lt
and plan of care.
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unwilnessed fall on 3130116, There is no
evidence that staff performed NeurologÍcal Vital
Slgns (NVS) after the unwìtneçsed fall' Facility
policy states that if the fall is unwitnessed
monítor NVS every 15 minutes for I hour, then
every 30 rnlnutes iQr t hour, then every. hour for
2 hours. On 4t27116 al 12:25 PM, the Direclor of
Nurses (DNS) confirmed that NVS should have
been done after the unwitnessed fall and that
they have not been done.
F 353 483.30(a) SUFFICIENT 24-HR NURSING STAFF
S$'D PER CARE PLANS

May 26,2016

F 353

F 353

Resident # 28 needs arc being met psr care
plan.

The facility must have sufficient nursing staff to
provide nursing and related services lo attain or
maintaln the highesl practicable physical' rnental,
and psychosocial r¡vell-being of each residènt¡ as
delermined by resident assessments and
individual plâns of cäre.

AJI residenls have the pctential to be

affected.
The DNS/designee has becn actively
recruiling for licensed nurscs and licensed
nursing assislants. Current strateg¡es includc
utilizing loçal as well as multiple o(her slele

The facility rnust provide serviçes by sufficient

numbers óf each of the following types of
personnel on a 24-hour basís to provide nursing
care to all residents in accordance with resident
care ptans:

recruitment opt¡on$. The facility has
contracted wiih tcmporary staffing ogencies
to provide direclcare fcr the facilíly. 't'he
faciliV has an nctive Recruitment and

Except when waived under panagraph (c) of this
seclion, licensed nurses and other nursing
personnel.

Rctention committee.

Thc ED/designcc rvill audit sraflìng weekly
Results

Ëxcept wfien waíved under paragraph (c) of this
sectiôn, the facility must designate a lìcensed
nurse to serve âs a charge nurse on each tour of
duty.

of audits rvill bc revierve<i at thc

monthly QÀPI committee for 3 months to
ensure compliance.

Thc ED is responsiblc for ovcrall
compliance.

flíl

This RËQUIREMENT is not met as evidenced

Poc

û&4!kÅ rf rr ltu

ln*-

by;
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Based on staff and resident interviews and
record review, the facllity failed to assure that
there was sufficíerit slaff to ass.i,re lhe highest
well-being of each resident and assure the
provision of care according to the resident'$
plans of care. Findings include-:
1). Per resident interview Õn 4126116, Rasident
#28 stated during the resident interuiew that s/he
has requested to use hidher bedside commode
during lhe night sJìift and has been told thãt they
are loo busy to assist hlm/her to the þed$ide
commode and that s/he must use the bedpan
although that is not hislher preferred metttod of
eliminãlion. Slhe stales that slhe has told slaff
that slhe cannot comforlably use the bedpan. As
a resull s/he statss that s/he has "held" hidher
urine all night long to avoid usfng the bedpan.
s/he states lhat one night recently s/hê had held
hilher urine as long as dhe could but that s/he
finally had to request the þedpan. S/he rÊlates
that dhe waited so long that dhe h¡d
"overfiowed" the. bedpan and that hi$her clothing
and bedding wêre wet.
ln an interview an 4126116 al2:30 PM the
Direclor of Nurses (DNS) stated that the facìlity is
aware that they are understaffed despíte many
efforts to recruit both Nurses and Llcensed
Nurses Aides (LNAs).
F 371 483.35(¡) FOOD PROCURE,
SS=E STDRHP REPARÉ/SÊRVE - SANITARY

F 371

The facility must (1) Procure food from sourcesapproved or
ðonsidered saiisfactory by Federal, State or lopal
authorilies; and
(2) Store, prepare, distribute and serve food
FORM CMS-2587(02-99) Prsvious Vers¡öns Dbsolele
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F 371

F 3?l

May26,2Aß

Food in the nourishment room/refrigcrãfor
that wûs not datsd, unsealed was disc¿rded
immcdiatety. The refrigerators in thc
nourishrnent rooms tvere all cleancd and
placed on a cleaning schedule.

This REOUIREMËNT is not met as evidenced
by:
Éased on observation and óonfirmed by staff

AIt residcnts have the potcntial to bc
affccted.

interview the facility falled to ensurê thal food in
the nourishmentkitchens on A, and C Wings
arè stçÊed under sanitary conditions. The
findings include, the following:

The SDC/designee has rc-educated the staff
on food sloiage/clcaning guitlelincs per

I

policy.

Per tour on 4/26i 16 of the kitchenettes on all 3
Units in the presence of the Registered Dietician

Thê Crrlinary/Hosp itatity M anagcrldesi gnee
rvill complete regular audits of nourishmcnt
roonrs for I month and lhen weekly aut'lits
for60 days, Resutts of these audits will lre
reviewcd at the rnonthly QAPI meeting to
ensure cornplíàncc.
The DD is respon.sible lor ovqrall
compliance,

(RD) the followlng was observed:

1. Dementia unit kitchen cabinet was found to
have 2 multÈserving bags'of partially used potato
chips and a multì-serving bag of partially used
vanilla wafers unsealed nor dated as to the däy
any of the food products were opened.

2,

B

?üt roL awþà ¡¡qlu Rrteyú

Wng cabinet drawer was found to store

W

multiple souffle cups containing a white powder.
There is no identification as to the contents in the
souffle cups or the date when the powder was put
in use. The cups âre marked 2 T.
C Wing refrigerator was found ts have
multiple residentd personal food items (fried
chicken-cherry peppers) i n disposable containers
with the follovrring dates: 3/27i16, 4/23/16 and
4125t19. 3 Styrofoam containers labeled ielly
daled 41231'16. The refrigerator is heavily sciled
w¡th a dried sticky substance making it difficult to
open and close the lower drawers- Confírmalion

3,

F
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is made by both the Unit Manager and the RÞ
that the refrigeralor is very dirty and needs
cleaning. They afso Çonfirm tfiat the food should
of been discarded as per the date on the
containers.
The RÞ älso conf¡rmed the lindings on the
Þementia Unít and B Wing ahd voiced that the
foods need to be stored and labeled properly.
F 514 48s.75(rx1) RES
$S=D R ECOR ÞS,COM PLETE/ACCURATSACCESSI B

F 371

F 514

May 26, 20 l6

F 5t4

Resident # 77 physiciarr has been notificd
regarding skin tear. Appropriafe
docunrcntation wâs cbnrplelccl in thc medical
rccord.
The LPN involved wâs re-cductted on thc
pôlioy relat€d to contâct of pltysician and ûe
need for appropriate docurnentation.

LE

The facility must maintain clinical reçords on
each resident in accordance Ìì/¡th âccepted
professional standards and practices that are
complete; accurately documepted; readily
accessible; and systematically organized,

l-Iouse audit of resident's carc plans with
potential/ac.tual skin intcgrity issires has bcen
colnpletcd to onsurg no olher rcsidenls âte
âffected by this practice.

The clinical record must contain sufficient
information lo identify the res¡denti a record of
the resident's assessmênts: the plan of care and
services provided; the resulls of any
preadmission screening conducted by the State;
and progress notes.

The SDC/designee has rc-educated liccnsed
nurscs orr M.D notification nnd
documpntaf.i¡:n requiremcnts.

This REQUIREMFNT ls not met as evidenced
'Ihe DNSldesignee rvill complete randoln

by:
Based on staff interview and medical record
review, (he facilily failed to maintain complete
and accurate clinical records in accordanqe with
acceplable professional standârds of practice for
1 of 31 residents in the sampled group. For
Resident #77, the findlngs include the following:

audits on docu¡nentation on rcsidents rvith
skin iûtegrity issucs n¡onlhly x 9O days. Ïhc
rcsults of these audits rvill be revícwed at thc
lnonthly QÂPl conrmittec x3 months to
cnsure compliance.
The DNS is rcsponsible for overall
compliance,
"

Per medical record revjew Resident #77was
admitted on212o116 with diagnoses to include
FORM CM5-2567(02-99) Pr¡vious \l8rsionE Obsolåle
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F 514

F 514 Continued From Page
Type 2 Diabeles, amputation, Chronic Ulcer. pJ
tñð right foot Wth partial amputation of muttiple
toes, End Stage Renal Disease with dependenry
on Renal Dìalysis and Chronic Obstructive
Pulmonary Disease.
Per review of the Diatysis Comrnunication
Resord for Resident #77 daled 4126116'
evidences documenlation from the Dialysis
Registered Nurse (RN) ["Resident f77 rnust have
bumped his toe between your facility and
ours-2nd toe stump with skin tear, bleeding'
Area cleaned and antibiotic óintmenl applied
please follow up thanks,"l Per observation
LicÆnsed Practícal Nurse (LPN) evalualed
Resident #77'sZnd toe stump on 4Æ5116 at
approximalely 4:15 PM at lhe facillty, The
wound was treated an'd dressed,
Per observalion of lhe medical record on 4126115
there is no evidence that the physician was
notified of the newly acquired wound nof is there
evidence lhat wound care was conducted.
Cpnfirmation is made by the Unit Manager that
there isino documentation or notificatioñ to lhe
physician regarding Resident #77's newly
äcâuired woúnd or lreatment there of'
Per interview with the LPN on 4127116 regarding
the lack of communication to tho physician
regarding the nelvly acquired wound and the lack
of documentation pertainhg to the wound.
confirmation was made by the LPN stat¡ng ['l iust
did not do it"l.
troooo FINAL OBSERVATIONS

F9999

7.13 Nursing Services

rneìacitity ñus¡ have sufficient nursing staff to
FORM CMS2567t02'99) PreYious Vetsio¡E Obsolste

Event lD: F8681
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F9999 Continued From page 9
provide nursing and related services lo allain or
maintaÍn the highest practicable phys¡cal, meñta¡
and psychosocial well-being of each re$¡dent, as
determined by residenl assessments and
individual plans of care Dr as specified by the
licensing agency.
(d)Staffing Levels. The facility shall maintain
staffing levels adequale to met resident needs.
(1) At a minlmum, nursing facilities must provide:
(i) no fer,ner than 3 houts crf direct care per
residgnt psr day, oR a '¡/eekly averags, including
nursing care, personal care and restorat¡ve
nursing care, but not including administratian or
supervision of staff: and of the three hours of
direct care, no fewer than 2 hours per resident
per day must be assigned to provide stândard
LNA care(such as personal care, assistance wilh
ambulation, feeding, elc.)performed by LNAS or
equìvalent staff and not including meal
preparation, physical therapy or the aclìvities
progfam.
This requirement is: NOT MET as evidenced by:

F9999

9999

MaY 26,2016

Resident fl 28 necds ,¡rs beÍng mcl pcr cárc
plaa.
. All resídents have the potential to be

'affected.
' The DNS/dc$ignee has been actively
recruiting ior licensed nurses and liccnsed
nursing assistants. Current strategies include

utilizing local as well as multiplc other stÂte
rccn¡ifment options. 1'he facility has
contracted rvith temporary staffìng agencies
to provide direcl care for the facility. The
facility lras an active Rccn¡itmçnt and
Retenf ion corn¡nittee.
The EDldesignee will audit stafling rvcekly.
Results of sudits rvill be reviewe<t at the
monthly QÂPI conunittee for 3 mçnths to
ensure cornpliancc.
Thc ED is responsible for overall
compliance,

Eased on record review and Resident and Staff

interviews, the facility failed to assure lhat there
was sufficient staff'lo assure the highest
welÞbeing and care according to the residênfs
plans of care, FindÍngs include:

(qltl

loc actnpk¡ rlnhv wøwv\ NiwÅ-

1. ln a review of tho faciliìy staffing palterns for
February, March and Apr¡l of 2016 it is found thal
lhe facility failed to meet the state regutatory
requiremênt for 2 hours per day per resident of
direct (LNA) carÊ on 10 days in February, 9 days
in March, and 6 of 23 reported days in April.
Addilionally the Total flumber of care hours of 3
hours per day per resident were not met on
days in February, 9 days in March, and 5 of 23

I
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reported days in April.

vT

05408

PROVIOER'S PLAN OF CORRECTION
(EACfi 0oRRECTIVE ACTION Sl'lOUtD 8E
CROS$REFERÊNCÊO TO THÊ, APPROPRII\Í E
DEFICIÊNCY)

(xsl
cor¡PLÈlìoN
ÞATE

F9999

-

ln an interview on 4126116 at 2:30 PM the
Dírector of Nurses (DNs) stâted that lhe facility is
aware that lhey are understaffed despife many
efforts to recruit bot Nurses and Licensed Nurses
Aides

2. Also see

F353.

FoRM CM$2567(02'99) Previous Versions Obsolels

Facillty lD:475003

EYefll lD;F88Blt

lf conlínualbn sheel Page 11 of

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed 1o,prj¡r.q19.j?.ovaPDF printer (hltp:/.Wyvw'npvap"3j'c,"91'n)
1 r.::';:tll.,

jltt Iti,

{):,¿rt.: i

';/::'t

I

11.

'

1.'a :',.:,

ll

ATTACHMENT 4I

3102289.1

PRINTED:12l1 8/2017

DEPARTMENT OF IIEALTH AND HI'MAN SERVICES
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES
(X1 ) PROVIDER / SUPPLIER

STATEMENT OF
DEFICIENCIES
AND PLAN OF
CORRECTION

/

CIIA

IDENNTIFICATION

|

1

xz¡

rrlulrrrlr

FORMAPPROVED
OMBNO.
kx,r) DATE SURVEY
K]OMPI,FTFI)

coNSTRUCTIoN

IA. BUILDING
lB. WrNG

l,n,rr,ror,,

NI,A4BER
335505

I

I

ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP

OFPROVIDEROF

31 175TH STREET

CARE CENTER INC
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SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL REGULATORY

of harm -

Miniml

hilm oÌ potential for actual
ham
Rsidents Affect€d - Few

will hold the resident's bed.
+*NOTE- TERMS IN BRACKETS HAVE BEEN EDITED TO PROTECT CONFIDENTIALITY**
Based on record ¡eview md interview, the facility did not ensue that the residenfs family member ræeived written notice
that specified the dmtion of the bed hold. Specilically when a resident was trmferred to the hospital the spouse was
not piovided with written or ve¡bal information conceming the facility's bed hold policy. This wæ evident for I out of3
fmily members intetriewed.
Resident #76.
This reslted in no hrum with potential for more thm miniml hilm that was not imediate jeopardy.
The finding is:
Resident #76 is [AGE] yem old witfr [DIAGNOSES REDACTED]. The resident has long tem and short tem memory problems

s

md

dependent upon staff for all Activities ofDaily Living.
Thè NusingNotes dated 3/18/15 documented that the resident was sent to hospital per the Doctor's order. Also, the Nusing
notes docmented that the husbmd was informed by Nusing that the resident was sent to a local hospital for imediate
cre. There wæ no docmented evidence in the medical record (hat a witten notice was sent to the family of the bed hold
policy fron the Social Work Depafment.
ihe facility' s Bed hold Policy dócmented the procedue of notiñcation as follows: When a resident is transfered to an
acute cile setting, the Social Work Depiltment will contact that resident/designated representative Ìegilding the
resident's curent bed hold status irì accordmce to NYSDOH regulations. A follow-up letter will be sent to the designated
representa

tive.

OÃ 4/22/15 during ahe fmily interuiew the resident's husbmd stated that his wife was trmsfered to the hospital in lr4uch
md he wæ never informed ofthe facility's bed hold policy in person, in writing or over the phone. He stated tlìat he

visits his wife almost daily.
On4/23/15,atapproximately i1:014M the Social Worker Supetrisorwas interyiewed.

She stated that the Social Worker
æsigned to the iésident sends a letter to family member alìer a phone call is mde explaining the duation of the bed
hold.
On4/23/15, atapproximately 12:26PM the Social WorkDirector was intewiewed. She stated that there is bed hold letter in
which the bed ltold policy is explained to resident's fmily when the resident is admitted to a hospital. Thefe is no hild
copy of the letter leil in the chmt by Administration or by Social Worker. It is the respomibility of the Social Worker
asÀrgned to the resident to make a phone call to let the fmily/patient representative know about the bed hold status.
a1s.3(h)(a)(i)(a)

Iævel of harm -

right to participâte in the planning or revision of the residetrt's
care plan.
**NOTE- TERMS IN BRACKETS I{AVE BEEN EDITED TO PROTECT CONFIDENTIALITY*+
Based on record review ild int€rview the facility did not ensue that the r6ident's representative was allowed to provide
input duìng cae plming activities. Specifically Resident #76's spouse was not invited to participate in the care
plaming for the resident. This was evident for I out of 28 residents reviewed for Quality of Ctre concerm.
This resulted in no aclul ham with potential for more thm miníml ham that wæ not imediate jeopildy.
.A.llow the resident the

F 0280

Miniml

hilm or potential for actual
hum
Residents Affæted - Few

The finding is:
Resident #76 is [AGE] yers old with IDIAGNOSES REDACTED]. She has long term md short term memory problem md is
dependent
upon stafffor all Activities ofDaily Living.
On 4/21l15 the resident's husband was interuiewed. He stated that he visits almost every day and he was rìever invited to the
CPM. He ñ[the¡ stated that he did not Íeceive a letter or a phone call inviting him to the CPM.
The medical ræo¡d wæ reviewed and there was no dæmented evidence that the Social Wo¡ker invited the resident's husbmd
to the Cile PlÐ Meeting (CPM) held in Dæember, 2014.
On4/23/15, alapproximatelyl:1oPM the Social Worke¡ Assistmt wæ interuiewed md stated that he ænds a letter or writes a
note usually. Hèitated that Ræident #76's husbmd visits daily md he invited him in person to the amual CCP in
Dæember, 2014. He reviewed the chart for his docmentation but did not present docmerìted evidence lhat he wote a note ot
invited the resident ' s husbmd in permn. Additionally, there is no note written by my ofher assigned staffmembe¡ on
the CCP thât the husbmd was invited to pilticipate in the CCP.
41s.1 1(c)(2)(i-iii)

Store, cooþ and serve food in a safe and clean way

F 0371

I¿vel of harm -

hilm

Miniml

or potential for actual

harm

Rsidents Affected - Mmy

Based on observation md staffinteruiews úe facitity did not eroue that food was storeduder smitary conditions.
Specifically, two refrigerators, one that stores cillons ofmilk and one refrigerator that was ued fo¡ nouishments on the
tray line was not in proper working conditions. This had the potential to affæt the whole facility.
This ¡eslted in no actul harm with the potential of more than minimal hum.
The findings rue:
Obserued at 4/20115 tou duing initial tou aroud 10:30 m the dairy/milk refrigerator temperatue at 48 degrees and prep
refrigerator is ?0 degrea. The nowishments in the ptep refrigetatot was cool to touch.
Another obseruationat4/20/15 aI12:35 PM dairy/milk refrigerator is at 48 degræs md milk was 47-48 degrees.
An interview with the Food æryice worker was ímediately conducted after observation on initial tou of 4/20/15, who stated
that she put the nouislments md milk containers in the prep refrigerator about a half m hou ago. The prep reftigerator
was not in use md they put the nouishments on ice .
Interuiewed Food Seruice Dirætor (FSD) oa 4120/15 aflq initial tou, who stated that she did not check temperatues this
moming, her early spervisor called out md she did not hav€ m opportmity to check the temperatrcs. The FSD stated the
dairy/mìlk refrigerator should be ilomd 38 to 40 degrees md the staff keeps corning in md out of the refrigerator.
The Food SeruiCe Superuisor was interuiewed on 4/2O/15 at 12:40 PM. The supetrisor stated he chæked last night the prep
refrigerâtot md it was 42 degrees to 40 degrees. The superuisor continued to slate that possibly the refrigerator went out
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(continued... from page 1)
last night and he will call the service compmy at this time to check out refrigeratoß. The refrigerators temperatues
should be betwæn 38 to 40 degrees. The FSD tested the milk and it wæ initially at 48 degree md went to 47 degrees.
lnten iewed the FSD md she stated the appropriate temperatue is 40 degrees.
415.14(h)

Iævel of harm - Miniml
hilm or potential for âctual

hrm

Rs¡dents Affected - Mmy
F 044t
Level of harm -

Have â progrâm that investigates, controls and keeps infection from spreading.

Miniml

hilm or potential for
hum

actual

Residents Ä.ffæted - Few

Based on obsetrations, record review md interyiews tlìe facility did not ensue that lnfeclion Control procedwes were
followed Specifically,1) two (2) Licensed Practical Nuses (LPN) were obærued as they performed hand hygiene incorectly
duing the Medication Pass. 2) Facility staff were obserued not propeÌly weiling a face mask while working on resident cre
mit, in accordance with New Yo¡k State Flu Mask Regulafion of July 2013.
This ¡eslted in no actul ham with potential for more thm miniml harm.
The finding is:
1) Duing the Medication pass on 4/21l15 at approximtely 4:04 PM, LPN #i was obsen ed as she administered rnedication to
Resident #325. At approximtely 4:08 PM the LPN #1 was obserued as she washed her hands. This State Agent observed her as
she applied soap and water to her hmds and briefly used friction. She imediately placed her hmds uìder the rlming water
md dried them with a brom paper towel. She stated to this State Agent thât she washed her hmds for 15 søonds.
On 4/2I/I5 zlapproximately 4:18 PM LPN #1 was interviewed andståted thât she did not ræliæ that shem$t wash her hands
with friction md soap for 15 to 20 seconds md then ¡inse with ruming water.
On 421./1.5 alapproximately 4:30 PM LPN #2 was observed as she administered oral medication (pills) md assisted the
ræident #197 with a lmnd held inhale¡- At approximtely 4:34 PM: the LPN was obserued as she performed hand hygìene mder
water after administering medicatiom. She was observed as she washed her hmds briefly rvith map and water while
water md ùied them with a brom paper towel.
using friction, then inilnediately put them under lhe
On4/21/15 alapproximately 4:41 PM LPN #2 rvas interviewed and stated that she didn't wash her hmds using friction lor
15-20 seconds mder Ìming water. She siated that she is required to wash he¡ hmds fo¡ 15-20 seconds Ning soap md
water, dry them with a paper towel md hrm off the water using a paper towel.
friction. Then rinse her hæds mde¡
2) On4l20/1,5,at approximately 12:04 PM a CNA wæ obseryed wearing a blue face msk below he¡ nose while in Dining Room on
5th floor while æruing r*idents duing lmch. At approximtely. 12:15 PM, the CNA was observed wearing the blue msk
below nose upon exiting the Dining Room to dispose of Ned fmd md paper item on a resident ' s tay. Lastly, she was
obserued as she went into DR, ¡emoved mother resident ' s tray from the table and exited the DR with the blue paper msk
below her nose.
On4/20/15 a|ãpptoximately, 12:18 PM the CNA was inten'iewed md asked why she was wetring the msk. The CNA stâted that
she did not receive the flu shot arìd is supposed to wear the msk when she enters the building md when she is in m uea
dlat the residents tre located.
On4/22/15, aI approximately 11:19 AM, a Housekeeping Aide was observed walking from the hallway outside the Physical
Therapy ar€ towtrds the elevators. He stopped by the ele\,âtors weiling his mask below his nose md the¡e were several
residents waiting for the elevator.
On 4/22115 at approxinately 11:20 AM the Housekeeping Aide was interuiewed ând stated thât he is supposed to wqr the nusk
becaue he did not receive the flu shot this æason. He further stated thât he is awre that he is to wer the blue msk in
üeas that tho residents ile in. He imediately re-applied his mask over his nose.
On 4/22115, atapproúmately 2:29 PM, m LPN #3 was observed seated at the nusing station wearing the blue paper msk below
her chin. On 4/22/15 at approximately 2:30 PM LPN #3 was imediately interviewed md stated that she did not receive the
flu shot md she is resporìsible to wear the msk in all a¡eas where residents ile about.
The facility's Flu Mask Policy md Procedue was ¡eviewed. It docurented the purpose is to reduce the ¡isk of l¡msmission
oflnfluenz by heallh care workers md covered persoro who dæline vaccination against the influena vi¡u. l. Covered
persons are defmed as healthcre worke¡s or others who frequently come in contact wilh residents, and or areas highly
utilized by patients. Such individuals could potentially expose residents to influena.
The facility's policy on hand washing was ¡eviewed md it docmented: 3. Hmd hygiene procedues: b. Thoroughly cover the
hmds with the volme of the hmd wâshing product recomended by the mnufactuer md vigorously rub hânds together for at
least 20 seconds, taking crue to cover all sufaces of the hmds md fingers. Rinse hmds with at lmst tepid wâter md dry
tloroughly with a disposable towel.
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1) Måke sure thât each resident's drug regimen is free from unnæessary drugs; 2) Each
r$ideutrs entire drug/medication is managed and monitored to achieve highmt well being.

**NOTE- TERMS IN BRACKETS }IAVE BEEN EDITED TO PROTECT CONFIDENTTALITY**
Basd on obseruâtion, ræord review md intetriew, the facility did not enswe that a resident's drug regimen was f¡ee from
mecessry drugs. Specifically, a ræident on antipsychotic medicalion did not ræeive gradual dose reductioß to see if
the medication could be ¡educed or discontinued. This was evident for 1 of 5 residents reviewed for mecessary

Iævel of harm - Miniml
htrm or potential for actual
harm

Rsidents Affected - Few

medication@esident #265).
The finding is:
Resident #265 is a [AGE] yetr-old with IDIAGNOSES REDACTED].
The Amual Minimm Data Set 3.0 (MDS) assessment dated [DATE] docmented the resident had severely impaired cognition md
displayed no mood or behavior symptom. The MDS futhe¡ docmented the resident had [DIAGNOSES REDACTED]. The MDS
docmented the resident received mtipsychotic md mtidepressmt medicâtion.
Obseryeresident #265 in day room On 5/13/16fuomzPM to 4 PM, the resident was obserued in the day room sitting ina
whælchair sleeping- The sweyor spoke to the resident ât 3:05 PM. No behaviors were obserued.
Arother obseruation was done on 5/16116 at 1 1:45 AM in the dayroom. No behaviors were observed.
The Comprehemive Cæe Plm (CCP) for Potential for adveræ side effects related to [MEDICAL CONDITIONI drug use dated
7/22115 docunented the potential side effæts æ IMEDICAL CONDITIONI, gait distubmce, movement disorder, and trdive
dyskinesia. The CCP included the interventioß: Obse¡ve fo¡ adverse side effects ofmedications; Administer medications as
per MD orders; Psych consult as per MD orders; Moritor efficacy of medication; Observe for chmges in frmction statu.
The Psychiatry Consult dated 10/28/15 docmented: Request by staff to evaluate tlús 76 y/o (yeu old) .for psychiatric
evaluation of he¡ mental status and magement. Patient was admitted witlì a history of dementia, GERD, DM, [MEDICAL
CONDITIONI, Asthma, Depression, recentlyhospitaliæd due to IMEDICAL CONDITION]. Patient complained of seeing bugs on
he¡self and bed with trouble sleeping md was going to die .Chut ¡eviewed md obtained update information from nusing
stafï. Patient doe snot have a lìistory ofprevious psychiatric treatment md was not hospitalized . Curently she is
cognitively impaired and not able to provide comprehensible lìistory nor relevant infomation. There were no acule incidents
repoÍed recently md she has not display episodes of aggressive behavior md i¡¡itability. MSE (Mental Statu Exm):
elderly female confmed and disoriented A & O(Alert & Oriented) x (times) 1. Speech: incoherent md not goal oriented.
Mood: labile. Affect: conshicted, flat. Thought: cognitively impaired; parmoid md deluional at times; no vegetative s/s
(signs md symptom) of depression no acute suicidal nor homicidal ideation at this time. Impresion: Dementia, Alzheimer
Type with [MEDICAL CONDITION]. Recomendation: continue her cment protocol of IMEDICAL CONDITION] medication

[MEDICATTON

NAMEI 5 mg md [MEDICATION NAME] 50 mg Psy follow up with (MD) as needed.
The Drug Regimen Review (DRR) dated 1/29116 docunented the phãmacist recomendation: On 11 medications. Evaluate
polyphtrmacy. The DRR physicim's response was a check nurk.
The DRR dated 3/18/16 docmented the philmcist recomendation: On IMEDICATION NAME] md > (greater thm) 3 mos
(months)

since last Psychiatrist evaluation. Pleæe consider Psych F/lJ (follow-up) to evaluate for effætiveness, adverse effects
md gradual dose reduction. The DRR physicim's response was a check mrk.
The Curent Physician's (MD) O¡ders dated 5/3/16 docmented orders for [MEDICATION NAME] 50 milligrm (mg)- 1 Tab OD
(once
daily) and [MEDICATION NAME] 5 mg Tab- i Tab OD.
IMEDICATION NAME] is m antidepresant, md IMEDICATION NAME] is an mtipsychotic medication.
The¡e was no docmented eviderìce that a psychiatry consult was done to follow-up on the monitoring of the IMEDICAL

CONDITIONI medication since 10/28l15.

The Progress Notes ftom L0/28/L5 to 5/13/16 were reviewed. There was no documentation ofmy behar.iors or psychiatric
symptoms.
The¡e was no docmented evidence in the medical record that the resident was evaluated for a gradual dose reduction or thât
a gradual dose reduction was attempted.
On 5/13/16 ã12:45 PM, the regulr 7-3 shift CNA (Certified Nusing Assistmt) was interuiewed and stated the resident
uually goes to the day room afler breakfast. The CNA stated the resident will sometimes dmce fo the music in the day
room. The CNA fi¡ther stated that the resident does not have my behaviors, bul she may refuse a shower because it is cold.
The CNA stated that when this occus, the resident will accept a shower ifyou offer it later on.
On 5/13/16 at approximately 3:00 PM, the Registered Nuse Mmager (RNM)imediately was interuiewed md stated the resident
usually responds pleasmtly to her in the moming. The RNM stated that the ¡esident is blind md enjoys music. She further
stated that the resident is cooperative with care, md she hæ never had ey behaviors, refusal ofcare, or screaming, She
stated the resident is quiet md does not intemct with pÐple ules you æk her something. The RNM stated that any
behaviors would be docwented in the Progrcs Notes, but the ¡esident has had none. The RNM stated the resident has had no
slmptoms of depression, parmoia, or delusiom.
On 5/13/16 at 5 PM and5/16/L6 al2PÌlll, the Medical Director (MD), who is als the resident's primy doctor, was
inte¡viewed md stated that when reviewing the Drug Regimen Review, he did review the resident's medications as per tlìe
psychiatrist's ræolmendâtions. He flrther slated that he usually discusæs the medications with the RN Superuimr and
leaves it up to the RN to docmmt my chânges made. He stated the resident has bæn stable on [MEDICATION NAME] md
IMEDICATION NAME] m he chose to continue the medicâtion, but he will have the rsident sen by the Psychiatrist to see
the medication is still necemry md to possibly lower the dosage. The MD stated that after seeing the 3/18/16 DR& he
must have diæussed the resident's [MEDICATION NAME] with the RN to sæ if the resident is stable and to redjust the
medication âs needed. The MD stated he did not feel the resident needed to b€ seen by the Psychiatrist as the resident only
needs to see the Psychiatrist as needed. He stated that ifa resident has dementia with behavior and is on mtþsycholic
medication, he reviews the medicalion al tlìe time ofthe monthly and relies on the DRR. He stated that ifthe physician
fæls a resident needs fo be sæn by a psychiatrist based on behavior, a refer¡al would be mde. He stated there is no
system in place to erue tlut a ¡esident with a IDIAGNOSES REDACTED].
On 5/16/1.6 a¡ 10:15 m, the Nuse Pracfitioner (NP) was interviewed md stated he begm working at the facility a couple of
months ago and saw the resident about 4 or 5 tim6. The NP stated the resident has Dementia md IMEDICAL CONDITION] md has
been stable on her [MEDICAL CONDITION] medications. The NP stated that she saw the resident for a monthly review on
3,81116, and the resident was stable. The NP fJther stated he did not see the need to have psychiatry re-evaluâte the
resident, but he would have psych follow-up with the resident ifthere were any clnnges. The NP stated that he did not
review the DRRs-
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(continued... frompage 1)
On 5/16/16 at 11:01 AM, the Psychiatrist was interuiewed md stated that he received a requ6t for a medication evâluation
last week on 5/13/16. The Psychiatrist stated he relis on stafffor infomation bæause the ¡esident js cognitively
impaired. He stated the ¡esident was on IMEDICATION NAME] for IMEDICAL CONDITIOI.q md IMEDICATION NAME] fo¡

Iævel of harm - Miniml
hilm or potential for actual

hm

Depresion. The

Rsidents Affæted - Few

NAMEI be

Psychiatrist stated tlìat since fhe resident had bæn stable, he recolmended the [MEDICATION NAME] and IMEDICATION

discontinued. He stated that he works as a comultmt and because of the volme of raidents, he relies on the staffto
dete¡mine when ¡esidents need to be âs*ssed and re-evaluted. He further stated he hæ a good relationship with the staff
md they inform him when a resident needs to be seen.
415.120X1)
F 0431
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Mâ¡ntâ¡n drug ræords and properly mark/label drugs and other similar products according
to accepted profmsional st¿ndards.
Based on observation , ræord review md interview, the facility did not enswe that medicatioß and other biologicals were
not expired Spæifically, Hepuin [V fluh syringes were expired. This was evident for 1 of 8 uits (Unit #8).
The lmdings re:
On 5/10/16 at approximately 10:00 m, the 8th floor nusing uit medication storage was obseßed. The emergency medication
box contained three Monojæt Prefilled Syringes containing Heprin 50 USP Units /5 ml (milliliters) Heparin LockHeprin
Lock were observed with a mmufactuer's expiration date of 0212016.
On5/10116 at 11:00 arn, the Registered Nuse @N) mmagerwas inteNiewed md stated we don'tNe them mymo¡e. No one is
using it here. I do not know why these drugs are still kept in emergency box . The RN Manager futher stated the In-Service
Coordinator is rcponsible fo¡ checking the emergency box for contents and expiration dâtes.
On 5/121L6 at 10:00 m, the RN In -Sewice Coordinator was interuiewed md stated that there was a mistake. she ñuther
stated that my expired items should be retmed to the Director of Nming's ofñce where they are discrded or retmed
to the Pharmacy.
On5/12/16aI3:00ptrL the Director of Nusing was interuiewed md stâted tbat she is surprired that the¡e were some of these
Heprin flushc left on the nusing wits. She fJther stated that the facility does not use Hepilin llushes anymore, and
mybe it was mixed up with olher stock medicatioro.
The Policy md Præedue datedFebruary 2016 docmented that a list of contents with expimtion dates is maintained outside
the emergency box md the nuse chæks the list on the box for expired medications.
41s.1 8(d)
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Maintain drug records and properly mark/label drugs and other similar producfs according

Iævel of harm - Miniml
hilm or potential for actuâl

hrm

Residents Affæted - Some

to accept€d professional st¿ndards.
Based on observatiom md interuiews conducted duing review of the medicalion storage in two of fou nüsing mits (1 -Eâst
md l-West), it was determined that mr¡ltidose vials of inulinwere not dated when opened, in accordmce with acceptable
standaÌds of practice and mmufactuer's recomendation.
The findings re:
Obseruation of fhe facility's medication storage was perfomed on3/22/16be$teen 1:00 PM and 1:30 PM. The following was
obserued:
1-Easl:
On3/22/l6alapprcximately t:00 PM, m openedmultidose vial of Lanhrs imlinwas noted to be opened md the¡e wæ no date
wdtten, neither on the bottle o¡ on the box, when the vial was opened.
The mit medication Licensed Practical Nuse (LPN) was interviewed at this time and stâted that the vial of insulin should
have bæn labeled with the date when it was opened md promptly discrded the vial.

2-W6t:
OD3/22/1,6 ã¡^pproximately 1:30 PM, m opened multidose vial of Hmalog iroulin, one multidose vial Lantus imulin and a
H]Jmlog iNlin pen we¡e noted to be opened md no dates were written, neither on the vials, the pen or theù respective
containers when they were opened.
The mif medication LPN was intewiewed at 1:30 PM as to why the pen or lhe vials were not dated when opened but did not
provide any explanation
to why they were not dated.
The mnufactüer ræomends that insulin vials mut be dated when opened md discarded afìer 28 days.

s

415.1

8(d)

LABORATORY DIRECTOR'S OR PROVIDEB/SUPPLIER
R

(X6) DATE

TTTLE

EPRESENTATTVE'S SIGNATURE

a deficiency which th€ institution my be excued from corr,ecting prNiding it_ is determined that other
safêguuds próvide suflicient prõtection to the patients. (See instructiom.) Except for nusing homes, the lndings stated above are disclosble 90 days following the
provided.
For nusing hona, the above findings and plms of corætion are disclosble 14 days following the date
date of swty whether or not a plan of corætion is

Any deflciency statement ending with m æterisk (+) denotes

FORM

CMS-2567(02-9)
Obsolete

P¡evious Versions

Event ID:

YL1O11

Facilily ID:

335449

Ilcontinution shæt
of 1

Page 1

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HIJMAN SERVICES
CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES
STATEMENT OF
DEFICIENCIES
AND PLANOF
CORRECTION

(X1) PROVIDER / SIJPPLIER

/ CLIA
IDENNTIFICATION
NUMBER
335449

PRINTED:12118i2017

FORMAPPROVED
oMB NO.0938-0391
I(X3) DATE SURVEY

(X2) MULTIPLE CONSTRUCTION
IA. BUILDING
IB. WTNG
I

TOMPT,F-TFD

L*,rr,rn

I

,

I

ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP

OF PROVIDER OF SUPPLIER

LAKE STREET

REHAB AND NURSTNG FACILITY

For informafion on lhe nu¡si¡s home's ¡lân to correct this deficiencv- nlsse contâct the nusins home or the slale

swev

âsencv

(X4) ID PREFX TAG

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF DEFICIENCIES (EACH DEFICIENCY MUST BE PRECEDED BY FULL REGI'LATORY
OR T,SC TDENTIFYING INFORMATTONI
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Give notice to the resident before a room or roommåte chânge.
**NOTE- TERMS IN BRACKETS HAVE BEEN EDTTED TO PROTECT CONFIDENTIALITY**
on inleryiews md record review conducted dwing a recertification ffvey, the facility didnot inform 1 out of 31
residents (fÉ65) reviewed duing Stage 2 of the swey of a room chmge prior to the actual chmge on multiple occasiom.
The findings ue:
Resident #65 has [DIAGNOSES REDACTED].
The Qurterly Minimm Dâta Set (a resident assessment tool) of 5/8/17 ¡evealed that the rcident has no cognitive impairment
with daily decision making.
The rsident was inte¡viewed on 5/31/17 at l1:00 AM duing Stage 1 of the swey md stated that she was moved to another
room twice without notice.
The facility policy md procedue for Room(mate) Chmge revised on 11/2016 stated that the resident who is being moved and
thei representative will be promptly informed ofthe room chmge verbally prior to room being chmged as well as the
r@son for the chmge. The resident md the ræident's representative will be afforded the opportmity to make objections
to the room chmge, which the facility will docment md take into consideration, prior to a Ìoom change.
The Social Worker (SW) wæ intetriewed on 6/2117 at9:45 AM md stated thât the room tansfer process in the facility was
that the resident is cre plamed for the room change, then it is docmented in the medical record. The resident md the
family re then informed of the room chmge.
Review of the ¡sidenfs cli¡ical ræord revealed no docmented evidence of my discussion with the resident and the fmily
about the multiple room and bed chmges. The SW was mable to provide my docmented evidence thât a care plm was

Iævel of harm - Miniml
hilm or potential for actual

hrm

R$idents Affected - Few

Basd

developed.

als.s(e)(z)
F 0253

Provide housekæping and måintenauce seryicc.

IÆvel of hârm - Potential
fo¡ minimal hum

Based on obseruation md interuiew conducted duing a receÍilication swey, the facility did not e$ue that adequate
mintenance md housekeeping sewices were provided to maintain a sanitary, orderly and well-maintained enviroment in 2
out of 4 facility mits (1 East and 1 West). It was detennined that walls, doors, md basebord trim in multiple room in
the aforementioned mits were discolored, scraped md with scuff mrks. The wall papers ue soiled, discolored and peeling
off the wall.
The findings include:
Inspection ofthe facility wæ conducted on 5/3UI7,6/U1'l and 6/5/17 and the lollowing condifions were obserued:
l. Unit 1 East
Rooms 102, 103,104, 105, i06, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, II2,113,I14,117, md 118 exhibited one o¡more ofthe followíng
conditioß: pæling md or soiled md discolo¡ed wall papers; scraped or peeling paint on walls md/o¡ baseboud triru;
scuff mrks md gouges in walls.
2. Unit 1 West
The whitish gray protæting vinyl coverings on the lower ends ofresident room doors that face the hallway have blackish
colo¡ discoloration. The affæted rooms included but we¡e not limited to room 130, 132, 133, 134, 135, 136, L41,144,145,
146 ad i50The Maintemnce Director was intervieweÅo¡6/5/17 al1:10 PM regarding the above obseruâtions md stâted that there were
plans to begin painting Unit 1 East and that ifpossible the dmr coverings will be clemed by the housekeeping staff.

Rsidents Affected - Some

415.5(hX2)

r

0280

Allorv the resident the right to pârticipate in the planring or revision of the resident's
care plan.

IÆvel of harm - Potential
for minimal hrm
Ræidents Affected - Some

**NOTE- TERMS IN BRACKETS HAVE BEEN EDITED TO PROTECT CONFIDENTIALITY**
Ba*d on record review md interviews conducted duing a recertiñcation trvey, the facility did not revise the care plm
for 1 out of3 residents (#207) reviewed for uinary inconfinence following a decline in uinary continence to potentially

restore the residents'previous level ofuinily continence status to the extent possible.
The findings tre:
Resident #207 is m [AGE] yer old female with [DIAGNOSES REDACTED]. The resident was admitted to the facility on [DATE]

fo¡

physical and occupational therapy services.
The initial comprehensire crue plan for incontinence dated l/12/17 revealed that the resident had uinary incontinence
related to impaired imobility. The goal for the resident was to not develop my presure sore. The interyentioß to
achieve the written goal were to apply p¡otective skin care, encouage fluid intake, monitor condition ofskin for sign md
symptom of breakdom, i.e. rednes, tenderness and s$'elling.
The ræident was assessed on the Admision lr{inimm Data Set (MDS; a resident assssment tool) of 1/19/17 which indicated
that the resident showed no cognitive impaiflnent; required extensive assistmce for trmsfering, ambulation and
locomotion; used a walker and wheelchair; required extensive asistance oftwo people for toileting; and was occasionally
incontinent ofuine (defined in MDS as less thm seven episodes ofincontinence).
The above comprehemive care plm revøled no speciñc goal to adùess the prevention ofdecline in incontinence or to
improve the resident's level of continence. Neither was there my spe cific intetrention to promote uinary continence.
The resident was subsequently assessed on the Quarterly MDS dated IDATE] and showed that the resident had become ftequently
incontinent ofuine (defined in MDS as having seven or more epimdes ofincontinence but at least one continent voiding),
continued to show no cognitive impairment, md continued to require assistmce with mbulation or locomotion.
The comprehensive care plm was evalualed on 4/15/17 , six days prior to the above Qurterly MDS, md the plân was to
continue the plm ofcare with no changes noted. The resident's clinical ræord did not reveal my rationale for the
increase in uinary incontinence episodes.
The docunentâtion by the nuse aides in the Ca¡e Tracker showed that the resident continued to be curently incontinent.
The Certified Nuse ÁiOe 1CN,+ *t¡ assigned to the rcident on the day shift was i¡teryiewed on 6/217 at f1:45 AM md stated
that the resident ât times did ask to be toileted and was not able to trmsfer from the bed independently.
The Registered Nuse (RN) who completed the MDS assessments was intewiewedon 6/5/17 at 10:30 AM regarding the dæline in
the residenfs level ofcontinence ând was æked to explain the assessment process and how it is linked to the resident's
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F 0280

(continued... from page 1)
plan of cre. The RN stated that he checlß and validates tlrc Care Tracker then speaks to the Nuse Manager to detemine the
medical or cognitive reasons for the decline noted. After this determination, the resident's cre plm would be reviewed
for ¡evision. The RN stated that this process was not implemented for the resident.

l¿vel of harm - Potential
for minimal

hrm

41s.1 1(c)(2)(i-iii)

Residents Affected - Some
'F 0315

L¿vel of harm - Miniml
hilm or potential for actual

hrm

Residents Affected - Few

Make sure that each resident who enters the nursing home without a stheter ¡s not g¡ven
â stheter, and ræeive proper servic€s to prevent urinary tråct infections and rstore
nonnal bladder function.
*+NOTE- TERMS IN BRACKETS I{AVE BEEN EDITED TO PROTECT CONFIDENTIALITY**
Bâsd on interuiew md record review, the fâcility did not enswe that the necessily treatment and services were provided to
1 out of 3 raidents reviewed for uinary incontinence (#207) to rnaintain or improve the residenfs continence level to tlìe
extent possible.
The findings rue:
Resident #207 is m [AGE]

yer

fo¡

old female with [DIAGNOSES RÈDACTED]. The ¡esident was admitted to the facility on [DAïE]

physical and occupalional therapy services.
The initial comprehensive cre plan for incontinence dated I/I2/I7 revealedlhat the resident had uinary incontinence
related to impaired irmobility. The goal for the resident was to not develop my presswe sore. The interuentioß to
achieve the witten goal weÌe to apply p¡otective skin care, encowage fluid intake, monitor condition of skin for sign md
symptoms of breakdom, i.e. rednes, t€ndemess and swelling.
The resident was assessed on the Admision Minimun Data Set (MDS; a resident assessment tool) of 1/19/17 which indicated
that the resident showed no cognitive impairment; required extensive assistmce for trmfering, ambulation and
locomotion; used a walker and wheelchair; requíred extensive assistance oftwo people for toileting; and was occasionally
irìcontinent ofurine (defined in MDS as less thm seven episodes ofincontinence).
The above care plm revealed no specific goal to address the prevention ofdecline in incontinence or to improve the
resident's level of continence. Neither was the¡e any specific intetrention to promote uimry continence.
The resident was subsequently æsessed on the Quarterly MDS dated IDATE] and showed that the resident had become frequently
incontinent ofuine (deñned in MDS as having seven or more episodes ofincontinence but at l@st one continent voiding),
continued to show no cognitive impairment, ãìd continued to require åssistmce with mbulation o¡ locomotion.
The comprehensive care plm was evaluated on 4/15/17, six dâys prior to the above Qurterly MDS md the plan was to continue
the plan of ctre with no chmges noted. The resident's clinicâl recold did not revøl any rationale fo¡ the incrqse in
wimry incontinence episodes.
The docmentation by the nuse aides in the Care Tracker showed that the rcident continued to be curently incontinent.
The Certified Nuse Aide (CNA #1) assigned to the resident on the day shift was interyiewed on 6/2/17 al ll:45 Altí md stated
tlìat the resident at tines did ask to be toileted and was not able to trilNfer from the bed independently.
The Registered Nuse (RN) who completed the MDS assessments was interuiewed on 6/5/L'l at 10:30 AM regarding the decline in
the residenfs level ofcontinence and wæ asked to explain the assessment process and how it is linked to the resident's
plan of cre. The RN stated that he chæks and validates the Care Tracker then speaks to Nwse Mmager to determine the
medical or cognitive ¡qsons fo¡ the decline noted. Afle¡ this detemination, the resident's cre plm would be reviewed
fo¡ ¡evision. The RN stated that this process was not implemented for the resident.
415.1.2(d)(2)

F 0371

Store, cooþ and sen'e food in a safe ând clean way

I¿vel of harm - Miniml
hilm or potential foÌ âctual

Based on obseruation, interview md record ¡eview conducted duing â ræeÍifìcâtion swey, the facility did not enswe
thât the dishwasher registered the acceptâble final dnse temperature of 180 degrees Fabrenheit (F) when in use to prevent

hrm

food-bome illnæs.
The findings

R$idents A.ffected - Some

re:

An initial iropection of

the kitchen was conducted in the moming of 5/30/17 md the dishwasher was obse¡ved to be in use.
The temperatue gauge of the dishwasher was chæked to detemine if the proper temperatures were being achieved for each
cycle of the machine for proper smitiation- The temperatue gauge for the final rire did not move md was recorded to be
below 150 degree F. The dietary staff member 1DS #1) operating the mchine was interuiewed at that time if she had checked
the temperatue of the dishwaslúng mchine before using it. DS #1 stated that she was not the one respomible for doing
this procedue md directed the sweyoÌ to mother dietary staff member (DS #2). DS #2 was imediately interyiewed md
stated that he had not taken the tempilatue that moming md should have done so.
The dishwashing mchine temperatue log wæ reviewed and revealed that no temperâtue was recorded for the moming of
5ß0/17 prior to the above obseruation.
The acting Food Service Dirætor (AISD) was prcent at that time of the observation and was asked to use a test strþ to
test the lemperature. This test stdp wæ designed to change fromwhite to black when the temperatue reached at least 180
degræs F which is the minimm temperatue required for hot water smitization. The color of the test strip did not chmge.
The AISD then requested mintenance to check the dishwasher.
The mintenance dirætor ar¡ived in a few minutes and noted that a vah€ was opened, which was allowing cold water to get
into the mchine.
A follow-up visit to the kitchen was conducted on 6/5/17 at 1 1:40 AM md revealed the breakfast dishes md utemils were
alrædy washed md no temperahres were ræo¡ded on the log for the dishwasher as required by the facility.
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F 0282

Provide care by qualifed persons according to eâch r6ident's written plan of ure.
**NOTE- TERMS IN BRACKETS }IAVE BEEN EDITED TO PROTECT CONFIDENTLA.LITY**
Bared on obseruation, ræord review md staff inten'iews duing the recertification swey, the facility did not ensue thât
a resident with a Pressue Ulcer (PU) received the næesary treatment as prtrcribed by the Physician to promote heâling.
This was evident for one of th¡ee ¡esidents reviewed fo¡ P¡essue Ulce¡s ftom a total of 27 Stage two smple rsidents
(Resident # 18). Specifically, the treatment Ìendered to the Stage 4 sac¡al PU did not follow the physician's orders
[REDACTED].
The Finding is :
Resident # 18 was admitted to the facility on [DATE], with the last rædmision on 3/5/14. The resident has IDIAGNOSES
REDACTEDI. The resident was also âdmitted wilh a Stage 4 sacral Pressue Ulcer.
The Minimm Data Set IMDS) asesment dated [DATE] docmented that the resident had severely impaired cognition. The MDS
âlso docmented that the ¡esident had a Stage 4 PU lhat was present upon admission.
On 9/17114 at 8:30 AM the treatment was obserued to the sacral PU fo¡ Resident #18. The Licensed Practical Nme (LPN) was
obserued to use a womd clemser, followed by a Norml Saline (NS) rime. TLe LPN proceeded to pack the womd u,ith Calcim
Alginâte ând cover wi(h a Clm Dry Dressing.
The physicim's orders [REDACTED]- The physicim's orders IREDACTED].
On9/17/I4 a¡ 10:00 AM the LPN u'ho ¡ende¡ed the treatment to Resident # 18 was interuiewed. The LPN stated lhat she thought
she was Ning the right solution when she ued the woud clearoer instead of the Dakins solution. The LPN was mable to
locate Dakins solution on the mit whe¡e Resident # 18 ¡esided.
On9/1.7/14 aI10:30 AM the Assistmt Director of Nusing Seruice (ADNS) completed a facility tou md confirmed that theÌe
was no Dakim solution available in the facility.
On9/1.'l/14 a¡ 11:00 AM the Phåmacist was interuiewed. The Phrumcist stated that the philmacy had not delivered Dakins
solution forResident # 18 since 5/31/14.
On9/I'l/14 a¡ i 1:15 AM the Director of Nusing Seruices (DNS) wæ interviewed. The DNS stated that perhaps Resident # 18 was
receiving his supplies from Medicre Pa¡t B. The DNS was wble to confirm this. The DNS flfiher stated that 6 bottles of
Dakins solution had bæn delivered to the facility as stock on 7/1/14- The DNS also confirmed that there was no Dakins in
the facility at this time.
On 9/17114 the employæ respomible for central supply was mavailable for interview.
On9/1,7/14 at12:20 PM the Registered Nuse (RN) Unit Manager where Resident # 18 resided was interuiewed. The RN stated
that she was never informed that Dakins solution was ma\ailable fo¡ Resident # 18. The RN stated that had she bæn
info¡med she would have notified central supply for a delivery.
415.1 1(cX3Xii)
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Make sure thât r€sidents ræeive proper treâtment and assistive deyices to maintain their
vision and hearing.
**NOTE- TERMS IN BRACKETS IIAVE BEEN EDITED TO PROTECT CONFIDENTIALITY**
Based on record review md staff interyiews duing the recertification sm,ey, the facility did not ensue that residents
receive proper treatment to rmintain vision abilities. This was evident for one ofthee residents reviewed for vision in
total of29 stage two rsidents. (Resident # 13?). Specifically, Resident # 137 was receiving an eye drop (gtt) in the

a

evening since July 2014, without the affected eye being identified on the physician's orde¡s IREDACTEDI.
The hnding is:
Resident # 137 was admitted to the facility on IDATE] md last readmitted on [DATE]. The resident has [DTAGNOSES

REDACTED]-

The Minimm Data Set (MDS) assesment dated [DATE] docmented that the resident had severely impaired cognition. The MDS
glâss.
also docurented that the resident's vision was moderately impaired md that the resident did not
On 6/2/14 the physicim ordered m Ophthalmology consult.
The resident wæ sæn by the Ophthâlmologist on 6/11/14. The consult docmented that the resident had dense [MEDICAL
CONDITIONI which wæ viually signiñcant md that IMEDICAL CONDITION] wæ suspected. The comult tu¡ther docmented
that
the resident refused to have cataract sugery.
The Ophthalrnologist ræomend to strut IMEDICATION NAME] PO 1% I drop (gtt) to both eyes (ou) twice a day (BID).
A physicim's orders IREDACTED]. The physicim also ordered IMEDICATION NAME] PO 1olo, also used to reduce intraocular
pressue in o¡æn-mgle [MEDICAL CONDITIONI md Oculm Hypefiension I gtt to both eyes (ou) BID.
The Medication Administration Records (MAR) were reviewed from July 20i4 tlrough September 2014. The MARS docmented the
order for IMEDICATION NAME] 0.005% one gtt into infected eye daily in the evening.
On9/17/1.4 allO:30 AM) LPN # 1 on the second floor assigned to Resident # 137 was interviewed. The LPN was üable to locate
the IMEDICATION NAME] in the medication cut o¡ the refrigerator in the medication room for Resident # 137. The LPN flrther
stated that by looking at the MAR indicated [REDACTED]. The LPN stated that she would have called the Physicim to clrifu
the order.
On9/17/1,4 al 10:25 AM LPN # 2 on the second floor was inten'iewed. The LPN stated that she would not be able to detemine
into which eye the IMEDICATION NAME] wæ to bo administered for Resident # 137. The LPN futher stated that she would have
reported to the Registered Nuse (Rl$ Unit Manager to clrify the omission as to which eye the medication was to be

wø

imtilled in.

On 9/17114 the LPNs assigned to Resident # 137 between 9/131L4 and9/16/14 on the 3:00 PM-11:00 PM shift were mavailable

for interview.
On9/17/1,4 at 10:30 AM the philmacy provider was interviewed. The Phtrmcist stated that he bad last dispenæd the
|MEDICATION NAMEI for Resident # 137 on 9/3/14. The Pharmacist futher stated that the orde¡ should have been cla¡ihed to
reflect thaf both eyes were to be treated.
On9/17/4 at 11:00 AM the Director of Nusing Servica @NS) was interuiewed. The DNS stated that the order for the
[MEDICATION NAME] should have been clarihed when it was first picked up on 7/8114 to detemine which eye was to be treated
or ifit was for both.
On9/1,7/1,4 at 12:15 PM the Registered Nuse (RN) Unit Manager where Resident # 137 r6ids wæ interviewed. The RN stated
that the IMEDICATION NAME] should be kept in the refrigerator in the medication room. The RN turther stated that no one
ever asked her for clarification as to which of the eyes the drops were for. The RN stated that the drops should have been
placed in both eyes. Additionally, the RN was úable to accowt for the missing drops.
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Keep the rate of mediution errors (rvrong drug, wong dos, wrong t¡me) to less than 5%o.
**NOTE- TERMS IN BRACKETS }IAVE BEEN EDITED TO PROTECT CONFIDENTTALITY**
Baæd on obseruation, ræord review, md staff interviews dwing the recertification swey, the facility did not eßue
that the medication er¡or rate was less than 5ol0. This was evident for one ofthtræ residents obsetred for the
administration of medicatiom. Spæihcally, Resident #99 was observed to receive IMEDICATION NAME] (a diuetic medication)
20 milligrms (mg) by mouth þo) on the wong day md IMEDICATION NAME] (m oral diabetic medicâtion) two hous after the
prescribed time resulting in an 8% medication eror rate.
The finding is:
Residmt #99 wæ admitted to the lacility on [DATE] md has IDIAGNOSES REDACTED].
The Minimm Data Set (MDS) âsesment dated IDATE] docmented that the ræident had a Brief Interuiew for Mental Status
(BIMS) score of 14 indicating that the resident wæ cognitively intact.
The curent monthly physiciarfs orders [REDACTED]. The ¡esident was also to receive [MEDICATION NAME] 10 mg po twice a
day
(BID) before meals fo¡ Diabetes Mellitm.
A medication administration obseryation was conducted on 9/15/15 at 9:30 AM on the 3rd Floo¡ mit whe¡e Resident #99

I¿vel of harm -

hrm

hrm

Miniml

or potential for actual

Rsidents Affected - Few

reided.
The Medication

Licercd P¡actical Nuse (LPN) wæ

NAMEI 10mC

obærued to dispense IMEDICATION NAME] 20 mg md IMEDICATION

in addition to eight othe¡ medications. The LPN proceeded to sign for the IMEDICATION NAME] md IMEDICATION NAME]
medicatiom in the Elætonic Medical Ræord (EMR) in the presence of the sweyor.
Upon reconciliation of the medicatiom for Resident #99, it was docmented that the IMEDICATION NAME] had been signed for at
7:30 AM as prescribed, rather tlìat 9:30 AM as was administered. Additionally, it was noted that the [MEDICATION NAME]
should not have been administered on 9/15/15.
On9/17/15 al 10:45 AM, the LPN Medication Nwse who completed the adrúnisl¡ation on 9/15115 was interuiewed The LPN stated
that when she went to administer the [MEDICATION NAME] at 7:30 AM on 9/15/i5 the ¡esident was in the præess of dr*sing.
Additiomlly, the LPN acknowledged that the [MEDICATION NAME] should not have bæn adminisle¡ed on 9/15/15.
On9/L7/L5 alll:45 AM, the Registered Nuse (RN) Charge Nuse was interuiewed. The RN stated tlat the LPN should have
notihed her when the [MEDICATION NAME] had been administered in e¡ror. The RN firther stated thât when the IMEDICATION
NAMEI was administered two hous late, the LPN should have also informed her. The RN stated thâl a Progrss Note should
have bæn witten md the Physicim should have been notified.
On9/17/15 at 12:00 PM, the Asistânt Director of Nusing (ADON) was intetriewed md stated that the RN should have infomed
her when the errors occured. The ADON stated that she would have completed a medication error report ând conducted the
necesary inservices.
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Facilitr

Citr

Statc

Boro Park Center for Rehabilitation & Health Care

Brooklyn

New York 510

6tr/2013

Brooklyn

New York

2ls

Brooklyn

New York 225

6n/2013
6lU20t3

Richmond Center for Rehabilitation and Specialty HealthCarr Staten Island

New York 300

6/U2013

Holliswood Center for Rehabilitation and Healthcare

Queens

New York 314

6/U2013

Bronx Center for Rehabilitation & Health Care

Bronx

New York 200

Hope Center for HIV and Nursing Care

Bronx

New York 66

6nl20t3
4lt/2015

Triboro Center for Rehabilitation and Nursing
University Center for Rehabilitation and Nursing

Bronx

New York 515

6n/2013

Bronx

New York 46

6lU20t3

Bronx

New York 77

6/U2013

Brooklyn Center for Rehabilitation and Residential Health
Bushwick Center for Rehabilitation and Health Care

C¿

lìeds

Date

Williamsbridge Center for Rehabilitation and Nursing
Northern Metropolitan Residential Health Care Facility

Rockland Count¡ New York 120

Northern Riverview Health Care Center

Rockland Count' New York 182

611/2013

Northern Manor Geriatric Center

Rockland Count' New York 231

6lt/2013

Ellicott Center for Rehabilitation and Nursing
Buffalo Center for Rehabilitation and Nursing

Buffalo

New York 160

6lu20t3

Buffalo

New York 200

6/U2013

Corning Center for Rehabilitation and Healthcare

Corning

New York 120

Steuben Center for Rehabilitation and HealthCare

Bath

New York 105

6/v2013
6lt/2013

Ontario Center for Rehabilitation and Healthcare

Canandaigua

New York 98

Fulton Center for Rehabilitation and Health Care

Gloversville

New York 176

Essex Center for Rehabilitation and HealthCare

Elizabethtown

New York 100

tUt/2014
6nl20t3
UU20t4

Warren Center for Rehabilitation and Healthcare

Queensbury

New York 80

6/U2013

Granville Center for Rehabilitation and Nursing
Washington Center for Rehabilitation and HealthCare

Granville

New York 120

1/tsl20t4

Argyle

New York t22

211/2014

Hammonton Center for Rehabilitation and Healthcare

Hammonton

New Jerse. 220

6tr/2013

Deptford Center for Rehabilitation and Healthcare

Deptford

New Jerse¡ 240

6lU20t3

6n/2013
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Census

16-Oct

16-Nov
16-Dec
L7-Jan

17-Feb

L7-Mar
17-Apr
17-May
17-Jun
17-Jul
18-Aug
17-Sep

L7-Ocl
1-7-Nov

Birchwood

Achieve

o.948700717
0.924768519
0.9s0044803
0.959453405
o.887400794
o.8752240L4
0.857638889
0.8s7750896
0.846550179
o.847670251
o.866263441
0.900925926
0.8904s6989
0.886805556

0.879493088 0.983602L51 0.981854839
0.980s55556 0.956770833
0.875
0.93663s94s 0.983602151 0.962s
0.919124424 0.953225806 0.975
0.930867347 0,977380952 0.9839285710.923963t34 0.960215054 0.974495968
0.893577429 0.936L11111 0.951458333
0.9L0368664 0.9196236s6 0.9508064s2
0.920476L9 0.93861111L 0.946666667
0.893087558 0.977956989 0.962903226
0.939L70507 0.985483871 O.94969758t
0.945

Beacon

0.9875

Highland

0.9387s

0.928110599 0.929569892 0.9408266t3
0.893095238 0.956666667 0.947395833
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Facility Specific Addendum Attached - Review All of Policy and Addendum Pages
(Check if State Specific and/or Facility Specific Policy Addendum is attached)

POL¡CY
The patient is admitted without prejudice to payment source. The patient is not required to waive their rights to
Medicaid or Medicare nor are they required to give assurance that they will not apply for Medicaid or Medicare.

COMPONENTS:

1.

The patient is not treated differently based on payment source.

a. Room assignment is based on medical and nursing needs.
b. Care and services are based on individual needs'
2.

A third person (family, surrogate, or legal representative) cannot be required to guarantee payment for the
patient's stay; however, the third person may use the patient's funds to pay for care.

3.

Medicaid-eligible patients are not required to make additional payments (e.9., deposit or a promise to pay
private rates for a specified period) as a prerequisite to admission, expedited admission, or to continue the stay

4.

The facility discloses and provides to a patient or potential patient prior to time of admission, notice of special
characteristics or service limitations of the facility.

5.

lf the facility is a composite distinct part, the facility discloses in its admission agreement its physical

configuration, including the various locations that comprise the composite distinct part, and must specify the
policies that apply to room changes between its different locations.

6. The Medicaid-eligible patient may be charged for services not covered under the state plan only if:
a. The patient requests and receives the service,
b. The patient is notified in advance that the service is not covered and the charge for the service, and
c. The patient's request for the service is not a condition for admission or continued stay.
7. Services and supplies are covered or not covered in the basic daily rates are addressed in the patient's
admission agreement. A list of optional items and services with related charges will be provided upon
admission.

8.

Circumstances for terminating services or supplies may include, but are not limited to:

a. Patient no longer needs services or supplies
b. Physician has discontinued services or supplies

c. Patient refuses services or supplies
d. Services or supplies are no longer appropriate for the patient's care
e. Services or supplies are not covered by Medicare, Medicaid or private insurance
Confidential and Proprietary lnfomation
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g. Charitable, religious, or philanthropic

contributions from an organization or from a person unrelated to a
Medicaid-eligible patient are acceptable as long as the contribution is not a condition of admission, expedited
admission, or continued stay of a Medicaid-eligible patient.

THERAPEUTIG LEAVE/OUT-OF-CENTER ON PASS

1.

Upon admission, the family/responsible party and patient are notified of criteria necessary for patient to leave
the center on therapeutic leave/out-of'center on pass:

a. 72 hours notice prior to leaving the center to allow time for medication

preparation:

1)

Obtaining prescriptions, if applicable

2)

Pharmacy to prepare and send patient medications appropriately labeled for pass

b. Failure to give the center appropriate notification

can result in not obtaining the patient's medications. New

prescribtioñs may need to be called in to family's local pharmacy by the attending physician' Family is
responsible for obtaining and paying for any prescriptions

c,

Family is accountable for all medication including any controlled substances.

d.

patient's nurse and family are responsible for validating the medication count when leaving and returning to
the center.

e.

Family understands that center is responsible for the safety of the patient. Missing or unaccounted for
mediiations or medications dosages exceding the prescribed dose will be investigated,

f.

Missing or incorrect controlled substance counts is reportable to the local law enforcement agency and the
Federal Drug Enforcement AgencY.

>o@<
Reference:
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